#### COUNTY OF SAN MATEO PLANNING AND BUILDING DEPARTMENT

DATE: March 11, 2020

TO: Planning Commission

**FROM:** Planning Staff

**SUBJECT:** <u>EXECUTIVE SUMMARY</u>: Consideration of a Coastal Development Permit and adoption of a Mitigated Negative Declaration, for the construction of a 0.8-mile long multi-use trail within the Caltrans right-of-way in the unincorporated community of El Granada. This project is appealable to the California Coastal Commission.

> County File Number: PLN 2015-00325 (San Mateo County Department of Public Works)

## **PROPOSAL**

San Mateo County is proposing to construct a 0.8-mile, 12-foot wide multi-use trail within unused portions of the Highway 1 right-of-way in the unincorporated community of El Granada. This segment of the Midcoast Multi-Modal Trail (MMT), also referred to as the "Parallel Trail," includes an 8-foot wide asphalt surface with a painted stripe down the center, and 2-foot wide decomposed granite jogging paths on either side of the asphalt. The proposed trail runs parallel to the inland side of Highway 1 between Coronado Street and Mirada Road. The proposed trail will enable people to safely commute by bicycle or foot from El Granada to the south end of Miramar, and eventually serve as a connection to the Naomi Patridge trail which connects to Half Moon Bay. The trail will also include a connection to El Granada Elementary School in order to provide a safe route to school for students who live in the Miramar area.

The trail will generally be set back 60 feet from the Highway 1 travel way. However, the portion of the trail alignment south of the Mirada Surf access road is adjacent to a willow thicket. For this portion of the trail, the County is proposing to route the trail immediately adjacent to the Highway 1 travel way. Placement of the trail at this location will require the construction of a retaining wall and elevated walkway to minimize impacts to the sensitive habitat. The proposed trail will also include placement of a pre-fabricated steel bridge (spanning 125 feet) to connect the trail across the Arroyo de en Medio Creek between Furtado Lane and Miramar Drive. The elevation of the bridge will be approximately 10 feet above the bottom of the dry creek. Construction of the abutments for this bridge will require driven piles into the banks of the creek. Proposed pedestrian scale lighting features will illuminate the trail for safety; however, lighting will be solar powered and will not require connection to the existing utility infrastructure.

### RECOMMENDATION

Approve the Coastal Development Permit and adopt the Mitigated Negative Declaration, County File Number PLN 2015-00325, by adopting the required findings and conditions of approval in Attachment A.

#### **SUMMARY**

Staff has completed a review of the project and all submitted documents and reports in order to determine the project's conformity to applicable Local Coastal Program policies and Zoning Regulations. Potential impacts to cultural resources, special status species and water quality were identified. For the purposes of compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) was circulated by the Planning Department for public comment and to associated State agencies through the State Clearinghouse. No comments were received on this document. The MND includes mitigation measures that, when implemented, will reduce all impacts to less than significant levels. Planning staff has reviewed the project and concluded that the project, as conditioned, complies with the County's Local Coastal Program and Zoning Regulations.

MS:pac - MJSEE0115\_WPU.DOCX

#### COUNTY OF SAN MATEO PLANNING AND BUILDING DEPARTMENT

DATE: March 11, 2020

TO: Planning Commission

FROM: Planning Staff

**SUBJECT:** Consideration of a Coastal Development Permit pursuant to Section 6328.4 of the County Zoning Regulations, and adoption of a Mitigated Negative Declaration, pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act, for the construction of a 0.8-mile multi-use trail within the Caltrans right-of-way in the unincorporated community of El Granada. This project is appealable to the California Coastal Commission.

> County File Number: PLN 2015-00325 (San Mateo County Department of Public Works)

## PROPOSAL

San Mateo County is proposing to construct a 0.8-mile, 12-foot wide multi-use trail within unused portions of the Highway 1 right-of-way in the unincorporated community of El Granada. This portion of the Midcoast Multi-Modal Trail (MMT), also referred to as the "Parallel Trail," includes an 8-foot wide asphalt surface with a painted stripe down the center, and 2-foot wide decomposed granite jogging paths on either side of the asphalt. The proposed trail runs parallel to the inland side of Highway 1 between Coronado Street and Mirada Road. The proposed trail will enable people to safely commute by bicycle or foot from El Granada to the south end of Miramar, and will eventually serve as a connection to the Naomi Patridge trail, which connects to Half Moon Bay. The trail will also include a connection to El Granada Elementary School in order to provide a safe route to school for students who live in the Miramar area.

The trail will generally be set back 60 feet from the Highway 1 travel way. However, the portion of the trail alignment south of the Mirada Surf access road is adjacent to a willow thicket. For this portion of the trail, the County is proposing to route the trail immediately adjacent to the Highway 1 travel way. Placement of the trail at this location will require the construction of a retaining wall and elevated walkway to minimize impacts to the sensitive habitat. The proposed trail will also include placement of a pre-fabricated steel bridge (spanning 125 feet) to connect the trail across the Arroyo de en Medio Creek between Furtado Lane and Miramar Drive. The elevation of the bridge will be approximately 10 feet above the bottom of the dry creek. Construction of the abutments for this bridge will require driven piles into the banks of the creek. Proposed pedestrian scale lighting features will illuminate the trail for safety; however, lighting will be solar powered and will not require connection to the existing utility infrastructure.

### RECOMMENDATION

Approve the Coastal Development Permit and adopt the Mitigated Negative Declaration, County File Number PLN 2015-00325, by adopting the required findings and conditions of approval in Attachment A.

#### BACKGROUND

Report Prepared By: Michael Schaller, Project Planner, Telephone 650/363-1849

Applicant: San Mateo County

Owner: California Department of Transportation (Caltrans)

Location: East side of Highway 1 right-of-way, between Coronado Street and Mirada Road, El Granada.

APN(s): N/A (Public Right-of-Way)

Existing Zoning: RM-CZ (Resource Management-Coastal Zone) and R-1/S-94 (Single-Family Residential/10,000 sq. ft. minimum parcel size)

General Plan Designation: N/A (Public right-of-way)

Local Coastal Plan Land Use Designation: N/A (Public Right-of-Way)

Sphere-of-Influence: Half Moon Bay

Existing Land Use: Open Space with adjacent residential use. Highway 1 is adjacent to the proposed trail.

Flood Zone: Zone X (Areas of minimal flood hazard), FEMA Community Panel 06081C-0255E, Effective Date: October 16, 2012.

Environmental Evaluation: An Amended Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration was issued, with a public review period of June 13, 2018 to July 13, 2018. As of the publication of this report, no comments have been received.

Setting: The Project alignment is comprised of 10.39 acres of undeveloped land within the Highway 1 right-of-way in El Granada. The Project alignment includes a variety of non-native annual grassland, central coast riparian scrub, non-native riparian woodland, a stand of Monterey cypress trees, coastal seasonal wetlands, non-wetland waters, and some developed areas. Elevations along the Project alignment range from 9 feet to 75 feet above sea level. Portions of the alignment are disturbed and mowed regularly. In addition, there are several Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E) utility poles throughout the alignment, as well as above-ground utility boxes at the corner of Coronado Street and Highway 1. Chronology:

<u>Date</u>		Action
November, 2012	-	Board of Supervisors accepted the Highway 1 Safety and Mobility Improvement Study.
June, 2015	-	Board of Supervisors approves contract with BKF Engineering to provide consulting services for preparation of MMT plans and specifications.
September, 2015	-	Public outreach workshop with Midcoast Community Council.
January, 2016	-	Additional public outreach workshop with Midcoast Community Council.
March, 2017	-	Meeting with EI Granada Elementary School principal to discuss connection to the elementary school.
June, 2018	-	Recirculation of the amended Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration.
March 11, 2020	-	Planning Commission hearing.
<b>DIGOLIOGION</b>		

#### **DISCUSSION**

#### A. KEY ISSUES

1. <u>Conformance with the County General Plan</u>

The County's Local Coastal Program (LCP) is a subset of the County General Plan. The analysis below documents the project's consistency with the LCP and, by extension, the County's General Plan.

#### 2. Conformance with the Local Coastal Program

A Coastal Development Permit is required pursuant to San Mateo County Local Coastal Program Policy 2.1, which mandates compliance with the permitting requirements of the California Coastal Act for any government agency wishing to undertake development in the Coastal Zone. Summarized below are the following sections of the LCP that are relevant to this project:

a. Locating and Planning New Development Component

Policy 1.25 - *Protection of Archaeological/Paleontological Resources*. This policy requires that project sites be investigated for cultural resources, when the sites fall into areas of potential sensitivity. If resources are identified then, prior to project approval, a mitigation plan, prepared by a qualified archaeologist, must be submitted, approved, and implemented as part of the project.

As part of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) process, the County's consultant prepared a Cultural Resources Study. The study included archival research at the Northwest Information Center (Sonoma State University), field inspection of the Project location, and contact with the Native American Community. Subsequently, a Historic Property Survey Report (HPSR) was prepared by Caltrans on September 25, 2017. The HPSR included an Archaeological Survey Report, which documented the presence of marine shell fragments on the northeast side of Highway 1 in the area where archaeological site [CA-SMA-1149] has been recorded. This archaeological site is considered eligible for inclusion in the National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) and/or as a California Historical Landmark (CHL).

The proposed Project will include construction activities, such as grading, filling, digging, pile driving, and other various ground disturbing activities during construction of the trail, which could inadvertently cause a substantial adverse change to an archaeological resource. To comply with the requirements of CEQA and the County's LCP, an Environmentally Sensitive Area (ESA) Action Plan has been developed and approved by both Caltrans and County staff. The ESA Action Plan includes fencing around the protected site, the presence of an archaeologist on-site during any ground-disturbing construction-related activities near the protected site, and locating equipment staging areas away from the protected site. These mitigation measures are included as Conditions of Approval Nos. 11 - 13 in Attachment A. With the implementation of these mitigation measures, the project will comply with the requirements of this LCP policy.

#### b. Public Works Component

Policy 2.50 - Improvements for Bicycle and Pedestrian Trails. This policy requires Caltrans to protect and make available adequate right-of-way to allow for the future development of bicycle and pedestrian trails in accordance with the policies of the Recreation and Visitor-Servicing Facilities and Shoreline Access Components of the LCP and the San Mateo County Comprehensive Bike Route Plan (CCAG) and the California Coastal Trail (CCT) Plan. It also promotes the development of a continuous Mid-Coast pedestrian/bicycle/multi-purpose path parallel to Highway 1 as part of the overall CCT system.

The County has been working closely with Caltrans on the issuance of an encroachment permit to implement the trail referenced in the policy. Issuance of the encroachment permit is contingent on the approval of this Coastal Development Permit. Approval of this CDP will partially implement these long-term recreation and transportation plans.

#### c. <u>Sensitive Habitats Component</u>

Policy 7.2 – Designation of Sensitive Habitats. An Initial Study was prepared for this project in compliance with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act. Part of that Initial Study included the preparation of a biological assessment (included as part of Attachment D) which identified two areas of sensitive habitat that the proposed trail will pass through. The central portion of the trail will skirt through a willow thicket (riparian habitat) associated with an unnamed drainage which originates within the eucalyptus grove to the east of the project site. At the southern end of the trail alignment, the project will include the construction of a pedestrian bridge across Arroyo de en Medio creek, which also is considered riparian habitat, though the portion of the creek where the project is proposed is dominated by non-native species, primarily eucalyptus trees. Additionally two special status animal species were identified during field surveys - San Francisco dusky-footed woodrat and the yellow warbler. Compliance with applicable policies for riparian habitat and sensitive species is discussed below.

Policy 7.5 – *Permit Conditions*. This policy requires, as part of the development review process, that the applicant demonstrate that there will be no significant impact on sensitive habitats or species. This is achieved by having the applicant submit a biological report outlining what resources exist at the project location and how the project may impact those resources. As discussed above, biological reports were prepared for this project as part of the CEQA process.

The reports confirmed the presence of San Francisco dusky-footed woodrat (California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) Species of Special Concern) within the willow thicket area and in the Monterey cypress forest in the southern portion of the project area with a total of four woodrat houses observed within these plant communities, two of which were confirmed to be active at the time of the survey. To minimize impacts to this species, the project shall avoid the nests if possible, and if avoidance is not possible, then the nests shall be moved to a location outside of the areas of construction (see Condition No. 5 in Attachment A).

The reports also identified the potential for four different special status bird species to be within the project footprint: Yellow warbler, loggerhead shrike, Allen's hummingbird, and the white-tailed kite. To minimize potential impacts to these species, the proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration includes avoidance measures, which are included as Condition No. 6 in Attachment A. With inclusion of these measures, the project complies with the requirements of Policy 7.5.

Policy 7.7 - *Definition of Riparian Corridors*. This policy defines riparian corridors by the "limit of riparian vegetation" (i.e., a line determined by the association of plant and animal species normally found near streams, lakes and other bodies of freshwater). One of the plant species typically associated with riparian corridors is arroyo willow. As discussed above, the project will skirt a willow thicket that dominates an area in the middle of the trail alignment. This thicket is associated with an undefined, diffused drainage that originates in the eucalyptus grove to the east of the project site, and then flows through a culvert under Highway 1. On the east side of Highway 1, there is no defined channel conveying this water. The proposed Project will permanently impact approximately 3,000 sq. ft. of this riparian habitat.

At the south end of the project, the trail must cross Arroyo de en Medio creek, which is classified as an intermittent creek by the U.S. Geological Survey (USGS). The creek shows obvious signs of scouring and alluvial sediment deposition within the creek bed and an unvegetated gravel bed. Dominant vegetation associated with the creek is composed of non-native tree species including blue gum eucalyptus and blackwood acacia.

Policy 7.9 - *Permitted Uses in Riparian Corridors*. This policy limits the permitted uses within corridors to primarily education and wildlife management activities. Trails and scenic overlooks on public lands are also listed as permitted uses. The proposed project falls into this second category of permitted uses.

Policy 7.10 - *Performance Standards in Riparian Corridors*. This policy requires development permitted in corridors to: (1) minimize removal of vegetation, (2) minimize land exposure during construction and use temporary vegetation or mulching to protect critical areas, (3) minimize erosion, sedimentation, and runoff by appropriately grading and replanting modified areas, (4) use only adapted native or non-invasive exotic plant species when replanting, and (5) minimize alteration of natural streams.

The project has been designed to minimize vegetation removal (and associated impacts to riparian habitat) at the willow thicket. At this location, the most direct and cost effective alignment for the trail would have been straight through the center of this willow thicket. Such an alignment would have significantly impacted the biological value of the thicket. Instead, the trail will be routed adjacent to Highway 1. Placing the trail at this location will require the construction of a retaining wall (with associated increased cost) to support the trail decking, but placement of the trail at this location will significantly reduce the level

of impact upon the riparian habitat. Large scale vegetation removal at the willow thicket location is not proposed nor required to construct the trail. In order to reduce land exposure and disturbance of the riparian corridor, construction of the retaining wall and trail will occur from the adjacent paved portion of Highway 1. This will require traffic control measures during this phase of construction. An erosion control plan (for the entirety of the project) has been developed to ensure that sediment from trail construction activities does not travel into the willow thicket.

As stated previously, the project will result in the permanent removal of 3,000 sq. ft. of riparian habitat at the willow thicket. To mitigate this impact, the County is proposing to develop a replacement/restoration plan which will replace the lost habitat at a 1:1 ratio (See Condition No. 9, in Attachment A). This plan will be developed and implemented as part of the construction phase of this project.

At the Arroyo de en Medio creek location, the project involves the construction of a pedestrian bridge across the creek. Construction of the bridge and the trail will require the removal of approximately ten significant size (12-inch diameter and greater) eucalyptus or black acacia trees. These species are non-native, invasive, and pull substantial amounts of water out of the creek. Removal of these non-native trees from this location could benefit the overall health of the creek by allowing more water to stay in the creek during winter flows. However, to offset the loss of tree canopy, the project will provide 1:1 tree replacement with native species as part of the riparian restoration plan discussed above. With inclusion of these measures, the project complies with the requirements of Policy 7.10.

#### d. Visual Resources Component

Policy 8.5 - *Location of Development*. This policy requires that new development be located on a portion of a parcel where the development: (1) is least visible from State and County Scenic Roads; (2) is least likely to significantly impact views from public viewpoints and (3) consistent with all other LCP requirements, best preserves the visual and open space qualities of the parcel overall. The entirety of the project site is within the boundaries of the Cabrillo Highway County Scenic Corridor. Large sections of the proposed trail alignment will be visible from the Highway. From the perspective of drivers on Highway 1, the project will introduce people walking and riding bikes in an area they have not previously been seen.

Conversely, the project will create a new, safe, and accessible public viewing point where one does not currently exist. While the primary purpose of the proposed trail is to provide a non-motorized alternative for north-south travel down to Half Moon Bay, the trail will also be

used for recreational purposes. Along most of the trail alignment, users will have a generally unimpeded view of the ocean to the west. Grading to construct the trail will generally be minor in scope, and once revegetation of disturbed areas is completed, should not be readily visible. The trail will generally be at grade and composed of asphalt and crushed aggregate, similar to other trails in the area. The project does include two above grade structures that will be visible to motorists on Highway 1: a new guard rail to protect trail users along the willow thicket stretch and the pedestrian bridge.

The proposed guard rail will be approximately 4 feet tall and utilize four metal bars. This is a standard guard rail design as seen on numerous bridges within the California Coastal Zone. The guard rail segment, as seen from vehicles driving on Highway 1, is backed by the vegetation of the willow thicket. No views from existing public viewing points will be obstructed by the guard rail.

The proposed pedestrian bridge will also introduce a new structure where none currently exists. The bridge will also use a design (with open railing) that is typically seen throughout the Coastal Zone. Again, because of its location to the east of the highway, and backed by large trees, the new bridge is not expected to be visually intrusive to motorists travelling on Highway 1.

Policy 8.9 – *Trees.* This policy requires the minimization of tree removal when locating and designing new development. As was stated previously, construction of the pedestrian bridge across Arroyo de en Medio Creek will require the removal of 10 trees over 12 inches in diameter. Most of the trees to be removed are non-native eucalyptus or black acacia. From a visual perspective, removal of these trees will not constitute a significant impact when viewed from Highway 1. The proposed bridge will be located approximately 35 feet to the east of the Highway's edge of payment. There are numerous smaller eucalyptus and acacia trees located between the Highway and proposed bridge location. This mass of vegetation will effectively screen the bridge from travelers on Highway 1 as well as negate the perception of tree loss due to construction of the trail at this location.

In addition, three cypress trees located on the south side of Miramar Drive are proposed for removal because they are either within the footprint of the proposed trail or they are within the route that the bridge must take in order to be swung into place. Unfortunately, removal of these trees is unavoidable. Replacement of these trees will be included in the above cited riparian restoration plan.

Policy 8.12 - *General Regulations*. This policy requires new development to be located and designed so that ocean views are not blocked from public viewing points such as public roads and publicly-

owned lands. As discussed previously, the project will create a new public viewing point where none currently exists. And while the proposed trail will cross in front of publicly owned open space land (Mirada East County Park) no substantial structures that would block public views are proposed as part of this project.

#### e. <u>Recreation/Visitor-Serving Facilities Component</u>

Policy 11.3 - *Definition of Public Recreation Facilities*. This policy defines public recreation facilities as lands and facilities serving primarily a recreation function which are operated by public agencies or other non-profit organizations. Public recreation facilities include, but are not limited to, public beaches, parks, recreation areas, natural preserves, wild areas and trails.

As discussed previously, the primary intended purpose of this trail is to provide a non-motorized alternative for north-south travel down to Half Moon Bay, as well as a Safe Route to School for students of El Granada Elementary School. But the County does recognize that the trail will be used by members of the public for recreational purposes as well.

#### 3. <u>Compliance with County Zoning Regulations</u>

The Coastal Act of 1976 requires that the County's Local Coastal Program (LCP) include zoning ordinances, zoning district maps and any other actions necessary to implement the requirements of the LCP Policies. To that end, all development within the Coastal Zone, including government projects, must comply with all aspects of the LCP, including the applicable zoning regulations.

The trail alignment crosses through two different zoning districts: RM-CZ and R-1/S-94. In the RM-CZ, "Public Recreation" uses are allowed by right. As discussed above, the primary intended purpose of the trail is to provide a non-motorized alternative for north-south travel. However, the trail will also undoubtedly be used by local residents for recreation as well. In the R-1 Zoning District, public transportation infrastructure is not listed as a permitted use, however, there is an implicit understanding that access to and within any zoning district is a necessary function of land use.

#### 4. <u>Compliance with County Grading Ordinance</u>

Construction of the trail will require an estimated 600 cubic yards of grading. Grading activities will be limited to just the area of the proposed trail alignment. Some grading will occur within the edges of the willow thicket, as discussed above, as well as on the banks of Arroyo de en Medio Creek (for the construction of the bridge abutments). Because the trail is a County project, issuance of a grading permit is not required. However, the project must be consistent with the County's Grading regulations per the requirements of the LCP. The findings required for a grading permit are discussed below:

# a. That the project will not have a significant adverse effect on the environment.

Erosion control measures will be implemented during construction to reduce potential off site sedimentation and water quality impacts. Measures to protect potential biotic resources within the footprint of the project have also been included as conditions of approval. Therefore, staff has determined that the project, as proposed and conditioned, will not have a significant adverse impact on the environment.

#### b. That the project conforms to the criteria of Chapter 8, Division VII, San Mateo County Ordinance Code, including the standards referenced in Section 8605.

The project, as proposed and conditioned, conforms to standards in the County's Grading Regulations, including those related to erosion and sediment control, and the timing of grading activity. Conditions of approval have been included in Attachment A to ensure compliance with the County's Grading Regulations.

#### c. That the project is consistent with the General Plan.

As proposed and conditioned, the project complies with applicable General Plan and Local Coastal Plan policies, as discussed in Section A.1 of this report.

#### 5. <u>Compliance with Significant Tree Ordinance</u>

Consistent with Section 12,020.1 of the Significant Tree Ordinance, tree removal associated with another permit, in this case a CDP, does not require a separate tree removal permit when the provisions of the Significant Tree Ordinance are considered and applied. To that end, the following criteria for permit approval are applicable in this case:

The trees in question are too closely located to existing or proposed structures consistent with LCP Policy 8.9(a).

As discussed previously, Policy 8.9 requires the minimization of tree removal when locating and designing new development. Several trees must be removed in order to construct the proposed trail (including placement of the pre-fabricated bridge). The location of the bridge is essentially fixed by the constraints of the span that must be bridged and the location of existing underground utilities. The location and slope of the connecting trail segments are also limited by Federal and State requirements regarding slopes of trails and the proximity of Miramar Drive on the south side of the creek. Because of these constraints, the County must remove the specified trees if the larger public interest project is to be successfully completed. The County is only proposing to remove those trees that directly conflict with the project. No other tree removal is proposed. Replacement plantings will be included as part of the riparian restoration plan.

#### B. <u>ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW</u>

An Amended Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration was issued, with a public review period of June 13, 2018 to July 13, 2018. As of the publication of this report, no comments have been received.

#### C. <u>REVIEWING AGENCIES</u>

San Mateo County Department of Public Works San Mateo County Parks Department

State Agencies:

Caltrans, District 4	Resources Agency
Department of Conservation	Department of Fish and Wildlife, Region 3
Cal Fire	Office of Historic Preservation
Department of Parks & Recreation	Department of Water Resources
California Highway Patrol	Air Resources Board, Transportation Projects
Regional Water Quality Control Board, Region 2	Department of Toxic Substances Control
Native American Heritage Commission	State Lands Commission

#### **ATTACHMENTS**

- A. Recommended Findings and Conditions of Approval
- B. Location Map
- C. Project Plans
- D. Revised Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration (includes Biological Report)

MS:pac - MJSEE0116\_WPU.DOCX

County of San Mateo Planning and Building Department

### **RECOMMENDED FINDINGS AND CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL**

Permit or Project File Number: PLN 2015-00506 Hearing Date: March 11, 2020

Prepared By: Michael Schaller For Adoption By: Planning Commission Senior Planner

#### RECOMMENDED FINDINGS

#### Regarding the Mitigated Negative Declaration, Find:

- 1. That the Mitigated Negative Declaration is complete, correct, and adequate and prepared in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act and applicable State and County guidelines.
- 2. That, on the basis of the Initial Study, comments received thereto, and testimony presented and considered at the public hearing, there is no substantial evidence that the project, if subject to the mitigation measures contained in the negative declaration, will have a significant effect on the environment.
- 3. That the Mitigated Negative Declaration reflects the independent judgment of San Mateo County.
- 4. That the mitigation measures identified in the Negative Declaration, agreed to by the applicant, placed as conditions on the project, and identified as part of this public hearing, have been incorporated into the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan in conformance with California Public Resources Code Section 21081.6.

#### Regarding the Coastal Development Permit, Find:

- 5. That the project, as described in the application and accompanying materials required by Zoning Regulations Section 6328.7 and as conditioned in accordance with Section 6328.14, conforms with the plans, policies, requirements and standards of the San Mateo County Local Coastal Program with regard to the protection of cultural, biotic and visual resources.
- 6. That the project conforms to the specific findings required by policies of the San Mateo County Local Coastal Program as discussed in Section A.2 of this Staff Report. Protection measures will be implemented to prevent any impact to

cultural and biological resources, including San Francisco dusky-footed woodrat and riparian habitat.

7. That where the project is located between the nearest public road and the sea, or the shoreline of Pescadero Marsh, the project is in conformity with the public access and public recreation policies of Chapter 3 of the Coastal Act of 1976 (commencing with Section 30200 of the Public Resources Code). The project site is located on the east side of Highway 1, and thus is not subject to this finding.

### **RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL**

#### Current Planning Section

1. The approval applies only to the proposal as described in this report and materials submitted for review and approval by the Planning Commission on March 11, 2020. The Community Development Director may approve minor revisions or modifications to the project if they are found to be consistent with the intent of and in substantial conformance with this approval.

#### Mitigation Measures

- 2. **Mitigation Measure AES-1:** Consistent with policies included in the Visual Resources Component of the San Mateo County Local Coastal Program, the applicant shall comply with the following measures:
  - a. Retain wetlands intact except for public access ways designed to respect the visual and ecological fragility of the area and adjacent land, in accordance with Sensitive Habitats Component policies of the Local Coastal Program.
  - b. Employ the use of natural materials and colors (i.e., earth tones) for construction of the trail, trail signage and the pedestrian bridge that blend with the vegetative cover of the site.
- 3. **Mitigation Measure AES-2:** To ensure that lighting and glare impacts do not cause a significant impact upon adjacent residential or open space uses, the applicant shall implement the following measures:
  - a. The Project shall use lighting standards that are shielded, aimed directly to the ground to minimize light spillage to adjacent properties and in the case of the proposed bridge and boardwalk will be low or pedestal mounted;
  - b. Employ the use of natural materials and colors (i.e., earth tones) that blend with the vegetative cover of the site; and
  - c. Design and minimize information and direction signs to be simple, easy-toread, and harmonize with surrounding elements;

- 4. **Mitigation Measure AES-3:** To ensure that Project components will not obstruct views within the County Scenic Corridor, the applicant shall:
  - a. Locate and design new development and landscaping so that ocean views are not blocked from public viewing points such as public roads and publicly-owned land; and
  - b. To the extent feasible, design development to minimize blocking of views to or along the ocean shoreline from Highway 1 and other public viewpoints between Highway 1 and the sea.
- 5. **Mitigation Measure BIO-1:** The following measure shall be implemented to avoid and minimize potential impacts to special-status species:
  - a. A qualified biologist shall conduct a pre-construction survey for San Francisco dusky-footed woodrat houses no less than 7 days and no more than 30 days prior to the beginning of ground disturbance and/or construction activities. The survey shall cover the work area and a 50-foot buffer in the upstream and downstream directions. Any San Francisco dusky-footed woodrat houses found shall be marked in the field with flagging tape and their locations will be recorded with GPS.
  - b. If a San Francisco dusky-footed woodrat house is identified in a work area, the County shall attempt to preserve the house and maintain an intact dispersal corridor between the house and undisturbed habitat. An adequate dispersal corridor would be considered to be a minimum of 50 feet wide and have greater than 70 percent vegetative cover. In the event such a corridor is infeasible, the County shall avoid physical disturbance of the nest if feasible.
  - If a San Francisco dusky-footed woodrat house(s) cannot be avoided, the C. California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) shall be notified and information regarding the house location(s) and relocation plan shall be provided. With approval from CDFW and prior to the beginning of construction, a gualified biologist shall dismantle by hand and relocate the house material. Materials from the house shall be dispersed into adjacent suitable habitat that is outside of the work area. During the deconstruction process a gualified biologist shall attempt to assess if there are juveniles in the house. If immobile juveniles are observed, the deconstruction process shall be discontinued until a time when the biologist believes the juveniles will be fully mobile. A 10-foot-wide no-disturbance buffer shall be established around the house until the juveniles are mobile. The house may be dismantled once a qualified biologist has determined that adverse impacts on the juveniles would not occur. All disturbances to woodrat houses shall be documented in a construction monitoring report and submitted to the California Department of Fish and Wildlife.

- 6. **Mitigation Measure BIO-2:** The following measure shall be implemented to avoid and minimize potential impacts to nesting birds:
  - a. If project activities are to be conducted during the nesting season (February 15 to August 31), a pre-construction nesting bird survey shall be performed no more than 14 days prior to initial ground disturbance to avoid impacting active nests, eggs, and/or young.
  - b. If the survey identifies any active nest, an exclusion buffer shall be established for protection of the nest and young. Buffer distance will vary based on species and conditions at the site, however, typical buffers ranges between 25 feet up to 600 feet. A qualified biologist shall establish an appropriate buffer and the buffer shall be maintained until the young have fledged.
  - c. Tree trimming or removal shall be initiated outside of the nesting season (September 1 January 31), whenever possible, to avoid potentially disturbing and/or to minimize the disturbance to any nesting birds.
- 7. **Mitigation Measure BIO-3:** Consistent with LCP Policy 7.17, the applicant shall implement the following performance standards to minimize impacts to wetlands:
  - a. All paths shall be elevated so as not to impede movement of water;
  - b. All construction activity shall take place during daytime hours;
  - c. All outdoor lighting shall be kept at a distance away from the wetland sufficient not to affect the wildlife;
  - d. Motorized machinery (if any is used) shall be kept to less than 45 dBA at the wetland boundary;
  - e. All construction which alters wetland vegetation shall be required to replace vegetation; and
  - f. No herbicides shall be used in wetlands unless specifically approved by the San Mateo County Agricultural Commissioner and the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW).
- 8. **Mitigation Measure BIO-4:** The applicant shall prepare a comprehensive stormwater pollution and erosion control plan for the Project. Erosion control measures shall be in place prior to the start of construction activities and remain in place throughout all phases of project construction. The plan must provide a Best Management Practice monitoring and maintenance schedule and identify parties responsible for monitoring and maintenance of construction-phase Best Management Practices (BMPs). Erosion and water quality control measures identified in the plan must comply with the County of San Mateo Department of Public Work's Contract Requirements for Erosion and Sediment Control, and at a

minimum include, but not be limited to, the following measures (County of San Mateo 2013a; County of San Mateo, 2013b):

- Temporary erosion control measures (such as silt fences, staked straw bales, and temporary revegetation) shall be employed for disturbed areas. No disturbed surfaces will be left without erosion control measures in place.
- b. Sediment shall be retained on-site by a system of sediment basins, traps, or other appropriate measures.
- c. A spill prevention and countermeasure plan shall be developed that will identify proper storage, collection, and disposal measures for potential pollutants (such as fuel, fertilizers, pesticides, etc.) used on-site. The plan will also require the proper storage, handling, use, and disposal of petroleum products.
- d. Construction activities shall be scheduled to minimize land disturbance during peak runoff periods and to the immediate area required for construction. Existing vegetation will be retained where possible. To the extent feasible, grading activities shall be limited to the immediate area required for construction.
- e. Surface waters, including ponded waters, must be diverted away from areas undergoing grading, construction, excavation, vegetation removal, and/or any other activity which may result in a discharge to the receiving water. Diversion activities must not result in the degradation of beneficial uses or exceedance of water quality objectives of the receiving waters. Any temporary dam or other artificial obstruction constructed must only be built from materials such as clean gravel which will cause little or no siltation. Normal flows must be restored to the affected stream immediately upon completion of work at that location.
- f. Sediment shall be contained when conditions are too extreme for treatment by surface protection. Temporary sediment traps, filter fabric fences, inlet protectors, vegetative filters and buffers, or settling basins shall be used to detain runoff water long enough for sediment particles to settle out. Store, cover, and isolate construction materials, including topsoil and chemicals, to prevent runoff losses and contamination of groundwater.
- g. Topsoil removed during construction shall be carefully stored and treated as an important resource. Berms shall be placed around topsoil stockpiles to prevent runoff during storm events. All removed topsoil shall be reused during construction to the extent feasible. Unused topsoil, if any, shall be broadly redistributed to the surrounding areas in such a manner that topography and vegetation cover would not be adversely impacted.
- h. Establish fuel and vehicle maintenance areas away from all drainage courses and design these areas to control runoff.

- i. Disturbed areas will be re-vegetated after completion of construction activities.
- j. Provide sanitary facilities for construction workers.
- 9. **Mitigation Measure BIO-5:** The County shall mitigate for unavoidable impacts on riparian habitat due to the proposed Project by restoring riparian habitat within the region (i.e., the San Mateo County coastal watersheds) at a 1:1 ratio. To the extent feasible, riparian habitat restoration will occur concurrent with implementation of the Project.
  - a. Riparian vegetation to be restored at the mitigation site shall include native overstory and understory species, such as arroyo willow, white alder, American dogwood, Pacific silverweed, and bulrush.
  - b. Prior to the start of project construction, the County shall develop and implement a Riparian Mitigation Plan for creation of riparian habitat. The Riparian Mitigation Plan shall be prepared by a qualified restoration ecologist and will provide the following:
    - (1) A summary of riparian impacts and the proposed mitigation.
    - (2) Goals of the mitigation to achieve no net loss of habitat functions and values.
    - (3) The location of mitigation site(s) and description of existing site conditions.
    - (4) Mitigation design, including:
      - 1. Existing and proposed site hydrology, geomorphology, and geotechnical stability, if applicable.
      - 2. Grading plan if appropriate, including bank stabilization or other site stabilization features.
      - 3. Soil amendments and other site preparation elements, as appropriate.
      - 4. Planting plan and species list.
      - 5. Irrigation and maintenance plan.
      - 6. Restoration schedule.
    - (5) Monitoring plan (including specific, objective final and performance criteria, monitoring methods, data analysis, reporting requirements, monitoring schedule, etc.); and

- (6) A contingency plan for mitigation elements that do not meet performance or final success criteria within 5 years; this plan will include specific triggers for remediation if performance criteria are not being met.
- 10. **Mitigation Measure BIO-6:** Prior to beginning of trail construction, the applicant shall prepare a Tree Replacement Plan, which shall replace all removed significant size trees at a 1:1 ratio with native, drought tolerant trees. The Tree Replacement Plan shall be submitted to the Community Development Director for review and approval.
- 11. **Mitigation Measure CULT-1A:** Prior to the start of construction activities, the Project applicant shall comply with the following measures in order to minimize, prevent, and assure that no inadvertent damage from equipment or personnel occurs to known and/or unknown archaeological and paleontological resources:
  - A qualified archaeologist shall be present during any ground-disturbing construction-related activities associated with the Project, including but not limited to, site preparation, grading, exploratory borings, and construction. In the event that archaeological resources are discovered, construction activities in the vicinity of the discovery shall cease immediately until the archaeologist can determine the significance of the discovery and properly catalogs the find in accordance to professional standards and procedures. If it is determined that construction activities could damage, destroy, or otherwise disturb archaeological/paleontological resources, a mitigation plan adequate to protect such resources shall be prepared by a qualified professional (i.e., qualified archaeologist and/or paleontologist) to ensure adequate protection of these resources.
- 12. **Mitigation Measure CULT-1B:** Construction activities within the vicinity of archaeological resources site CA-SMA-149 shall comply with the following measures in order to minimize, prevent, and assure that no inadvertent damage from equipment or personnel occurs:
  - a. All staging areas shall be located away from archaeological resource site CA-SMA-149.
  - b. A fence shall be placed around the perimeter of archaeological resource site CA-SMA-149.
  - c. The path of the proposed trail shall be designed to avoid archaeological resource site CA-SMA-149.
- 13. **Mitigation Measure CULT-1C:** If an archaeological site(s) is encountered during grading or other soil disturbing activities, project managers and project contractors shall comply with the provisions set forth in Sections 15064.5 (c) or (e) of the CEQA Guidelines, depending on the type of resource encountered. The site(s) will be recorded by a qualified archaeologist, including the extent of the site

boundaries. The trail alignment(s) and/or associated features shall be relocated away from the archaeological site(s), unless the site(s) is evaluated and determined not to be eligible for listing on the California Register of Historical Resources. The archaeologist shall determine the required distance from the resource. If the eligible site(s) cannot be avoided, the proposed trail shall be designed with protective elements that will provide for trail use with minimal effect on the archeological site(s). These protective elements may include fencing, or placement of the trail on a bridge, boardwalk or earthen berm. Prior to construction, data recovery and testing shall be conducted as needed. A final report, including the results of the surveys and evaluations, shall be provided to the State Historic Preservation Officer for review. Furthermore, in the event that an archaeological resource is discovered during project construction activities (e.g., excavation, grading), the following provisions of Section 15064.5 (c) of the CEQA Guidelines are to be followed:

- a. The lead agency shall first determine whether the site is a historical resource, as defined in subdivision (a).
- b. If the lead agency determines that the archaeological site is a historical resource, it shall refer to the provisions of Section 21084.1 of the Public Resources Code, and this section, Section 15126.4 of the Guidelines, and the limits contained in Section 21083.2 of the Public Resources Code do not apply.
- c. If an archaeological site does not meet the criteria defined in subdivision (a), but does meet the definition of a unique archeological resource in Section 21083.2 of the Public Resources Code, the site shall be treated in accordance with the provisions of Section 21083.2. The time and cost limitations described in Public Resources Code Section 21083.2 (c-f) do not apply to surveys and site evaluation activities intended to determine whether the Project location contains unique archaeological resources.
- 14. **Mitigation Measure HYDRO-1:** Consistent with the County of San Mateo's requirements, the applicant shall prepare and submit an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan with the grading permit prior to the start of construction. The plan must show what BMPs will be used and delineate work areas, measures to prevent erosion of unstable or denuded areas, locations of staging areas, construction access routes, and containment of construction materials and waste, as per the County's General Erosion and Sediment Control Plan Checklist. Potential BMPs may include silt fences, straw bales, catch basin inlet protection, berms around covered stockpiles, dust control, and stabilized construction access points.
- 15. **Mitigation Measure NOI-1:** Prior to the issuance of demolition, grading and/or building permits, plan specifications shall indicate that San Mateo County shall be responsible for requiring all construction contractors to implement the following measures to limit construction-related noise:

- a. Construction activity is limited to the daytime hours between 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. (Monday through Friday) or between 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. (Saturdays) and at no time on Sundays, Thanksgiving, and Christmas, per County Code Section 4.88.330.
- b. At least 30 days prior to commencement of construction, notification of planned construction activities and scheduling shall be given to all residents and commercial entities in proximity to the Project site. A suggested notification zone is depicted in Attachment A and is focused on the Segment 4 and Segment 6 construction zones. The notification shall include a brief description of the project, the activities that would occur, and the durations/hours when construction would occur. The notification shall also include the phone number of the construction superintendent(s). If the superintendent(s) receives a complaint, the superintendent(s) shall investigate, take appropriate corrective action, and report the action to the reporting party and to San Mateo County.
- c. A sign shall be posted on construction zone fencing that is clearly visible to site passers-by and that includes a contact name and telephone number of the construction superintendent(s). If the superintendent(s) receives a complaint, the superintendent(s) shall investigate, take appropriate corrective action, and report the action to the reporting party and to San Mateo County.
- d. All internal combustion engines on construction equipment and trucks are fitted with properly maintained mufflers, air intake silencers, and engine shrouds that are no less effective than as originally equipped by the manufacturer.
- e. Stationary construction equipment and material delivery (loading/unloading) areas shall be located as far as practicable from the residences.
- f. Material stockpiling shall be located as far as feasible from nearby noisesensitive receptors.
- g. Unnecessary engine idling shall be curtailed to no more than 10 minutes, to the extent feasible.
- h. "Smart" back-up alarms, which automatically adjust the alarm level based on the background noise level, shall be employed on all trucks and construction vehicles OR back-up alarms shall be disabled and replaced with human spotters.
- i. Grade surface irregularities on the construction sites shall be minimized to the extent feasible.
- j. Construction traffic shall be limited to the haul routes established by San Mateo County.

- 16. **Mitigation Measure NOI-2:** Prior to the issuance of demolition, grading and/or building permits, plan specifications shall indicate that San Mateo County shall be responsible for requiring all construction contractors to implement the following measures to limit pile driving-related noise in Segment 6 of the Project:
  - a. At least 2 weeks prior to commencement of pile driving, notification of planned construction activities at the Arroyo de en Medio Creek bridge shall be individually given to all residents or commercial entities within 500 feet of either bridge abutment. This shall be a separate notification process from the one detailed in Mitigation Measure NOI-1. The notification shall include a brief description of the project, the pile driving activities that would occur, and the durations/hours when construction would occur. The notification shall also include the phone number of the construction superintendent(s) which shall be used for logging complaints. All noise complaints shall also be documented to San Mateo County.
- 17. **Mitigation Measure NOI-3:** Prior to the issuance of demolition, grading and/or building permits, notes shall be provided on plans indicating that San Mateo County shall be responsible for requiring all construction contractors to implement the following measures to limit construction related vibration impacts at the Arroyo de en Medio Creek bridge site:
  - a. In concert with the Segment 6-specific notification included in Mitigation Measure NOI-2, all residents or commercial entities within 100 feet of either bridge abutment shall be informed that they may wish to secure fragile items that could be broken by shaking.
  - b. Prior to the issuance of building permits the construction contractor shall inspect and report on the current structural condition of the existing buildings within 100 feet of either bridge abutment. This shall be accomplished via a photo or video survey of susceptible areas in advance of the potentially damaging pile driving work.
  - c. Monitor and record peak particle velocities at the nearest sensitive receptors (to either bridge abutment) while the pile driving activities are taking place.
  - d. During construction, if any vibration levels cause cosmetic or structural damage to existing buildings in close proximity to the bridge site, the construction superintendent(s) shall log all vibration-related complaints. All vibration complaints shall also be documented to San Mateo County.
- 18. **Mitigation Measure TRAF-1A:** The construction contractor shall be responsible for providing a Traffic Control Plan (TCP) approved by the County Traffic Engineer, prior to the start of construction. The TCP shall include traffic control measures in order to ensure traffic safety during all construction phases. The traffic control devices may involve signage, use of delineators, flashing arrows, and/or temporary lane lines at the discretion of the County Traffic Engineer. The TCP shall be approved by the County Traffic Engineer. The TCP shall be approved by the County Traffic Engineer.

provisions for advanced notification (signage) of the proposed detour routes and coordination with emergency service providers.

- 19. **Mitigation Measure TRAF-1B:** The proposed Project shall be constructed in a manner to avoid a substantial increase in construction-period traffic congestion:
  - a. The applicant will identify locations for contractor parking on-site for the duration of the construction period so that parking does not affect the operation of local roads.
  - b. Vehicle trips to and from the site for purposes of transporting cut and fill will be prohibited during peak traffic a.m. and p.m. peak hours.
  - c. In the event of lane closures due to deliveries, adequate number of flaggers and the appropriate signage will be required to ensure the safe passage of vehicles, bicyclists, and pedestrians.

MS:pac - MJSEE0116\_WPU.DOCX

# ATTACHMENT B

**County of San Mateo - Planning and Building Department** 



# San Mateo County Planning Commission Meeting

Owner/Applicant:

Attachment:

File Numbers:

# ATTACHMENT C

**County of San Mateo - Planning and Building Department** 



	PROFESSIONA	
	MES G. POP	
, REG	* C 48056	
<b>*</b> \	EXPIRES 12/31/19	/*/
	CIVIL TE OF CALIFOR	MIR

	<u>CIVIL PLAN</u>	<u>S</u>
	C-0.00	TITLE SHEET
	C-0.01	NOTES, ABBREVIATIONS, AND LEGENDS
	C-0.02	SURVEY CONTROL PLAN
	C-0.03	SURVEY CONTROL PLAN
I	C-0.04	TYPICAL SECTIONS
	C-1.00	EXISTING CONDITION/DEMOLITION PLAN STA 0+00 TO STA 13+00
	C-1.01	EXISTING CONDITION/DEMOLITION PLAN STA 13+00 TO STA 26+20
	C-1.02	EXISTING CONDITION/DEMOLITION PLAN STA 26+20 TO STA 39+60
	C-1.03	EXISTING CONDITION/DEMOLITION PLAN STA 39+60 TO STA 54+50
	C-2.00	PLAN AND PROFILE STA 00+00 TO STA 06+40
	C-2.01	PLAN AND PROFILE STA 06+40 TO STA 13+00
	C-2.02	PLAN AND PROFILE STA 13+00 TO STA 19+60
	C-2.03	PLAN AND PROFILE STA 19+60 TO STA 26+20
	C-2.04	PLAN AND PROFILE STA 26+20 TO STA 32+90
	C-2.05	PLAN AND PROFILE STA 32+90 TO STA 39+60
	C-2.06	PLAN AND PROFILE STA 39+60 TO STA 46+22.77
	C-2.07	PLAN AND PROFILE STA 50+10 TO STA 54+50
	C-3.00	CROSS SECTIONS
	C-3.01	CROSS SECTIONS
	C-3.02	STORM DRAIN PROFILES
ANIG 2015	C-4.00	SIGNING AND STRIPING PLANS STA 0+00 TO STA 13+00
	C-4.01	SIGNING AND STRIPING PLANS STA 13+00 TO STA 26+20
	C-4.02	SIGNING AND STRIPING PLANS STA 26+20 TO STA 39+60
	C-4.03	SIGNING AND STRIPING PLANS STA 39+60 TO STA 54+50
	C-5.00	FROSION CONTROL PLAN
	C-5.01	FROSION CONTROL DETAILS
	C = 6.00	INTERSECTION DETAILS
	C = 6.01	INTERSECTION DETAILS
	C = 6.02	
	C = 6.02	
	C = 6.04	
	C-6.05	
	STRUCTURA	
	S1	GENERAL PLAN – BRIDGE
	S2	FOUNDATION PLAN - BRIDGE
	S3	ABUTMENT DETAILS
	S4	GENERAL PLAN - RETAINING WALL
	S5	RETAINING WALL DETAILS
	S6	RAILING DETAILS

		CHECKED BY:	BKF (JM)		TITIF	SHEET	DATE: 11/4/2019
		DRAWN BY:	BKF (JC)				FILE NO.: 1/4952
		JAMES C.	PORTER,	DIRECTOR OF P	UBLIC WORKS	555 COUNTY CENTER,	5th FLOOR
REVISION	DATE		SAN	MATEO COUNTY		REDWOOD CITY, CALIFO	RNIA 94063
	FOR REDUCED P ORIGINAL SCALE	LANS IS IN INCHES	0 	1	2	3 4	C-0.00 SHEET 1 OF 38

# **PROJECT DESCRIPTION:**

THE PROPOSED MIDCOAST MUTIL-MODAL TRAIL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT SHALL IMPLEMENT AN ASPHALT CONCRETE TRAIL PARALLEL TO HIGHWAY 1 TO PROVIDE AN ACCESSIBLE ROUTE FOR THE NEIGHBORHOODS ON THE NORTH SIDE OF HIGHWAY 1. THE PROJECT WILL INCLUDE CONSTRUCTION OF APPROXIMATELY 4,537 LF (0.86 MILES) OF NEW TRAIL.

PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION OF SITE: TRAIL ALONG HIGHWAY 1.

SAN MATEO COUNTY ALONG HIGHWAY 1 BETWEEN CORONADO STREET AND MIRADA ROAD.

UTILITIES: STORM DRAIN: WATER:

COUNTY OF SAN MATEO, CALTRANS COASTSIDE COUNTY WATER DISTRICT SEWER AUTHORITY MID-COASTSIDE SANITARY SEWER: SANITARY SEWER: GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT GAS/ELECTRIC: PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC

**REFERENCES:** 

GEOTECHNICAL FOUNDATION REPORT PREPARED BY PARIKH CONSULTANTS, INC. TITLED "FOUNDATION REPORT - MID-COAST MULTI-MODAL TRAIL PHASE 2 PEDESTRIAN OVERCROSSING AND RETAINING WALL" AND DATED JANUARY 25, 2018. **ESTIMATED EARTHWORK:** 

 $CUT = 580 CY \pm (NET)$ 

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING ALL FINAL QUANTITIES.

## **REQUIRED PERMITS:**

- COUNTY OF SAN MATEO ENCROACHMENT PERMIT CALTRANS ENCROACHMENT PERMIT

# **EXISTING TOPOGRAPHY**

THE EXISTING TOPOGRAPHY IS BASED ON AN AERIAL LIDAR PERFORMED BY UNITED STATES GEOLOGICAL SURVEY DATED JULY 14, 2010, AND TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY PERFORMED BY BKF ENGINEERS ON MARCH 22, 2017, MAY 17, 2017, MAY 29, 2019, AND JUNE 6, 2019.

## **PROJECT NOTES:**

• •		
1.	CIVIL ENGINEER	BKF ENGINEERS 255 SHORELINE DRIVE, SUITE 200 REDWOOD CITY, CA 94065 TEL 650.482.6300
2.	ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT	PLACEWORKS 1625 SHATTUCK AVE #300 BERKELEY, CA 94709 TEL 510.848.3815
3.	STRUCTURAL ENGINEER	CORNERSTONE STRUCTURAL ENGINEERING GROUP 40 FEDERAL STREET SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94107 TEL 415.369.9100
4.	TRANSPORTATION ENGINEER	FEHR & PEERS 332 PINE STREET, 4TH FLOOR SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94104 415.348.0300
5.	GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER	PARIKH CONSULTANTS, INC. 2360 QUME DRIVE, SUITE A SAN JOSE, CA 95131 408.452.9000
6.	COUNTY	COUNTY OF SAN MATEO 555 COUNTY CENTER, 5TH FLOOR REDWOOD CITY, CA 94063 TEL 650.363.4100
_		

- 7. THE FOLLOWING NOTES ARE ESTABLISHED MERELY TO GUIDE THE CONTRACTOR AS TO THE GENERAL ITEMS OF WORK INVOLVED AND ARE NOT INTENDED TO COVER COMPLETE SCOPE OF WORK. CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLETE ALL WORK AS PER CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.
- 8. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR PERSONS AND PROPERTY; THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR ALLEGED, IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT, EXCEPTING LIABILITY ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF DESIGN PROFESSIONAL.
- 9. ALL MATERIALS, WORK APPURTENANCES SHALL CONFORM WITH THESE PLANS, THE PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS AND THE LATEST ADOPTED VERSION OF SAN MATEO COUNTY STANDARD DETAILS.
- 10. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL AT ALL TIMES COMPLY WITH THE RULES AND REGULATIONS ESTABLISHED BY CAL-OSHA AND OTHER AGENCIES HAVING JURISDICTION OVER THE WORK.
- 11. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT DESTROY ANY PERMANENT SURVEY POINTS WITHOUT THE CONSENT OF THE COUNTY. ANY PERMANENT MONUMENTS OR POINTS DESTROYED SHALL BE REPLACED BY A REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER OR LICENSED LAND SURVEYOR AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.
- 12. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR MATCHING EXISTING ROADWAYS, SURROUNDING LANDSCAPE AND OTHER IMPROVEMENTS WITH A SMOOTH TRANSITION IN PAVING, CURBS, GUTTERS, SIDEWALKS, GRADING, ETC. AND TO AVOID ANY ABRUPT OR APPARENT CHANGES IN GRADES OR CROSS SLOPES, LOW SPOTS OR HAZARDOUS CONDITIONS.
- 13. THE LOCATIONS AND TYPES OF EXISTING UTILITIES SHOWN ON THE PLANS ARE BASED ON INFORMATION FURNISHED BY SERVICING AGENCIES AND FIELD SURVEY. IT IS THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO FIELD VERIFY THE POSITION OF AND PROVIDE PROTECTION FOR SUCH UTILITIES AND STRUCTURES, WHETHER SHOWN ON THE PLAN OR NOT.
- 14. IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE ENGINEER UPON DISCOVERY OF ANY FIELD CONFLICTS.
- 15. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE HELD RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY FIELD CHANGES DONE WITHOUT WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION FROM THE ENGINEER.
- 16. ANY DEVIATIONS OR CHANGES IN THESE PLANS WITHOUT WRITTEN APPROVAL OF THE ENGINEER SHALL BE AT THE CONTRACTOR'S OWN RISK.
- 17. PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS SHOWN.
- 18. CONTRACTOR IS ADVISED THAT EXISTING UTILITY LINES IN SOME LOCATIONS MAY BE VERY CLOSE TO TRAIL CONSTRUCTION WORK. CONTRACTOR IS TO SUPPORT THESE UTILITIES DURING CONSTRUCTION, AND ANY REQUIRED OR SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION TECHNIQUES PERFORMED SHALL BE AT NO EXTRA COST TO THE COUNTY. COMPENSATION FOR THIS WORK SHALL BE INCLUDED IN THE UNIT PRICES PAID FOR THE VARIOUS CONTRACT ITEMS OF WORK, AND NO ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION WILL BE ALLOWED THEREFORE.

# **PROJECT NOTES (CONTINUED):**

- 19. ELEVATIONS AND LOCATIONS OF ALL EXISTING UTILITY CROSSINGS SHALL BE VERIFIED BY THE CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO START OF ANY CONSTRUCTION AFFECTING SAID LINES. CONTACT USA AT (800) 642-2444 AT LEAST TWO WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO EXCAVATION.
- 20. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONFINE HIS OPERATIONS AND ACTIVITIES WITHIN THE PROJECT LIMITS, CONSISTING OF ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY, UTILITY EASEMENTS, AND/OR PROJECT CONFORMS, AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS.
- 21. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL RESTORE ALL DAMAGED, REMOVED OR OTHERWISE DISTURBED WALLS, FENCES, SERVICES, UTILITIES, IMPROVEMENTS OR FEATURES OF WHATEVER NATURE, DUE TO CONTRACTOR'S WORK. SEPARATE PAYMENT FOR RESTORATION OF EXISTING IMPROVEMENTS TO THEIR ORIGINAL CONDITION WILL NOT BE MADE. COMPENSATION FOR THIS TASK SHALL BE CONSIDERED AS INCLUDED IN THE VARIOUS CONTRACT ITEMS OF WORK INVOLVED.
- 22. ALL PERMANENT MONUMENTS DISTURBED DURING THE PROCESS OF CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE REPLACED AT CONTRACTORS EXPENSE BEFORE ACCEPTANCE OF THE IMPROVEMENTS BY THE COUNTY ENGINEER.
- 23. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL GIVE THE COUNTY ENGINEER TWO WORKING DAYS ADVANCE NOTICE FOR INSPECTION.
- 24. VEGETATION AND IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE REMOVED ONLY WHEN DIRECTED IN WRITING BY THE ENGINEER. NO TREES, VEGETATION, OR IMPROVEMENTS (INCLUDING FENCES) SHALL BE REMOVED WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE ENGINEER.
- 25. CONTRACTOR SHALL EXERCISE CARE WHEN EXCAVATING NEAR TREES AND ROOTS OF TREES TO REMAIN. HAND EXCAVATION MAY BE REQUIRED FOR TREES IN CLOSE PROXIMITY TO THE TRAIL.
- 26. CONTINUOUS DUST CONTROL SHALL BE PROVIDED AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 10 "DUST CONTROL," OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND AS DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER.
- 27. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FURNISH ALL AFFECTED PROPERTY OWNERS AND/OR RESIDENTS WRITTEN NOTIFICATIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 11, "MOBILIZATION," OF THE SPECIAL PROVISIONS.
- 28. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FURNISH AND IMPLEMENT A WATER POLLUTION CONTROL PROGRAM FOR ALL PHASES OF WORK IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 11-1, "WATER POLLUTION CONTROL," OF THE SPECIAL PROVISIONS.
- 29. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FURNISH AND IMPLEMENT A TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN FOR ALL PHASES OF WORK IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 12, "MAINTAINING TRAFFIC," OF THE SPECIAL PROVISIONS. THE CONTRACTOR IS MADE AWARE THAT NO LANE CLOSURES WILL BE ALLOWED. ANY TEMPORARY REMOVAL OF ROADWAY STRIPING DURING CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE REPLACED IN KIND. WORK PERFORMED SHALL CONFORM WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE CALTRANS ENCROACHMENT PERMIT.
- 30. NO TRENCHES OR HOLES SHALL BE LEFT OPEN OVERNIGHT, USE STEEL PLATING OR HOT-MIX ASPHALT AS REQUIRED TO PROTECT OPEN TRENCHES OVERNIGHT.
- 31. STAGING AREAS FOR EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS STORAGE SHALL BE LOCATED IN PUBLIC ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY WITH SAID LOCATION SUBJECT TO THE APPROVAL OF THE ENGINEER AND/OR CALTRANS.
- 32. ALL REVISIONS TO THIS PLAN MUST BE REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE COUNTY ENGINEER PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION AND SHALL BE ACCURATELY SHOWN ON REVISED PLANS STAMPED AND SIGNED BY COUNTY ENGINEER PRIOR TO THE INSTALLATION OF THE IMPROVEMENTS.
- 33. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT AND CLEANOUT ALL EXISTING CULVERT CROSSINGS WITHIN LIMITS OF AC TRAIL CONSTRUCTION.

# **GENERAL CONSTRUCTION NOTES:**

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE NPDES PERMIT COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN MATEO, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING:

- STORE, HANDLE AND DISPOSE OF CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS AND WASTES PROPERLY, SO AS TO PREVENT THEIR CONTACT WITH STORMWATER.
- 2. CONTROL AND PREVENT THE DISCHARGE OF ALL POTENTIAL POLLUTANTS, INCLUDING SOLID WASTES, PAINTS, CONCRETE, PETROLEUM PRODUCTS, CHEMICALS, WASHWATER OR SEDIMENTS AND NON-STORMWATER DISCHARGES TO STORM DRAINS AND WATERCOURSES.
- 3. USE SEDIMENT CONTROL OR FILTRATION TO REMOVE SEDIMENT FROM DEWATERING EFFLUENT.
- 4. AVOID CLEANING, FUELING OR MAINTAINING VEHICLES ON-SITE, EXCEPT IN A DESIGNATED AREA IN WHICH RUNOFF IS CONTAINED AND TREATED.
- 5. DELINEATE CLEARING LIMITS, EASEMENTS, SETBACKS, SENSITIVE OR CRITICAL AREAS, BUFFER ZONES, TREES, AND DRAINAGE COURSES WITH FIELD MARKERS.
- 6. PROTECT ADJACENT PROPERTIES AND UNDISTURBED AREAS FROM CONSTRUCTION IMPACTS USING VEGETATIVE BUFFER STRIPS. SEDIMENT BARRIERS OR FILTERS, DIKES, MULCHING, OR OTHER MEASURES AS APPROPRIATE.
- 7. PERFORM CLEARING AND EARTH MOVING ACTIVITIES ONLY DURING DRY WEATHER.
- 8. LIMIT AND TIME APPLICATIONS OF PESTICIDES AND FERTILIZERS TO PREVENT POLLUTED RUNOFF.
- 9. LIMIT CONSTRUCTION ACCESS ROUTES AND STABILIZE DESIGNATED ACCESS POINTS.
- 10. AVOID TRACKING DIRT OR OTHER MATERIALS OFF-SITE PAVED AREAS AND SIDEWALKS USING DRY SWEEPING METHODS.

# **ABBREVIATIONS:**



## LEGEND:

BOUNDARY ELECTRICAL FENCE OR RAILIN GAS JOINT TRENCH MGS WITH FLARE SYSTEM END TRE OVERHEAD TELEF SANITARY SEWER TELECOMMUNICAT STORM DRAIN LIN SWALE WATER LINE

BLOW OFF BOLLARDS CURB INLET DETECTABLE WAR FIRE HYDRANT MANHOLE OBJECT MARKER SOLAR LIGHT BO SPOT ELEVATION TRAFFIC SIGN/OB TRAFFIC SIGNAL TRAFFIC SIGNAL TRAIL SIGN TREE TREE REMOVAL VALVE ESA FENCING

JASON MANSFIELD, PROJECT MANAGER	ľ
BKF ENGINEERS	1

R.C.E. # 59567 / EXPIRES 12-31-2019

**APPROVED DATE:** 





255 SHORELINE DRIVE, SUITE 200 REDWOOD CITY, CA 94065 (650) 482-6300





## **APPROVED:**

JAMES C. PORTER, DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS R. C. E. # 48056 / EXPIRES 12-31-2019

DESCRIPTION	SYMBOL	DESCRIPTION	
DESCRIPTION CENTERLINE DIAMETER NUMBER 6" DIAMETER TREE ABUTMENT ASPHALTIC CONCRETE ALTERNATE ALTERNATE ALTERNATE AT&T BEGINNING OF CURVE BUILDING BRIDGE BACK OF WALK CATCH BASIN COASTSIDE COUNTY WATER DISTRICT CORCUGATED METAL PIPE CONCRETE CONCRETE CONCRETE PAD CUBIC YARD DOUBLE DISTANCE DRIVEWAY ELECTRIC EXISTING EASEMENT END OF CURVE EXISTING GROUND ELEVATION EDGE OF PAVEMENT ENVIRONMENTALLY SENSITIVE AREA EDGE OF TRAVELWAY FACE OF CURB FINISH GRADE FINISH GRADE	SYMBOL LT LOL LP MAX MB MGS MIN MH MON (N) NO. NT NTS OH, O/H PCC PG&E PH PL, P/L PR, PROP, P PVC RCP RIM RSP RT R/W, R.O.W. RW SAM SD SDMH SHDLR SL SS SSCO SSD SLP SSMH STA STD SQFT. TC T, TEL TRANS TS TW	DESCRIPTION LEFT LAYOUT LINE LOW POINT MAXIMUM MAILBOX MIDWEST GUARDRAIL SYSTEM MINIMUM MANHOLE MONUMENT NEW NUMBER NO TAG NOT TO SCALE OVERHEAD PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC CO POTHOLE PROPERTY LINE PROPOSED POLYVINYL CHLORIDE REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE RIM ELEVATION ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION RIGHT RIGHT OF WAY RETAINING WALL SEWER AUTHORITY MID-COASTS STORM DRAIN STORM DRAIN STORM DRAIN STORM DRAIN MANHOLE SHOULDER STREETLIGHT SANITARY SEWER SANITARY SEWER SANITARY SEWER SANITARY SEWER SANITARY SEWER SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE STATION STANDARD SQUARE FEET TOP OF CURB TELEPHONE TRANSFORMER TRAFFIC SIGNAL TOP OF WALL	DMPANY
LIP OF GUTTER	TYP W	TYPICAL WATER	
PROPOSED		EXISTING	
		<b>— — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —</b>	
Gxxxx	x	XXX GAS	
D TERMINAL			
PHONE LINE		——ОН——— —— SS ————	
ION LINE		⊤	
· • •		• • •	
0			
RNING SURFACE			
		Ő	
LLARD			
BJECT MARKER		×101	
		¢ ⊲0	
	{		
××			
0			800-227-3



# 100% SUBMITTAL - FOR REVIEW ONLY

		DESIGNED BY: E	ЗКГ (СТ)	N	1IDCOAST	MULT	I-MODAL TRAIL	SCALE: AS SHOWN
		CHECKED BY: E	3KF (JM)	NOTES	<b>ARR</b>	F\/IA	TIONS & LEGEND	DATE: 11/4/2019
		DRAWN BY: E	3KF (JC)	NO 120,			nons, a llolnd	FILE NO.: 1/4952
		JAMES C. F	PORTER,	DIRECTOR OF	PUBLIC W	ORKS	555 COUNTY CENTER,	5th FLOOR
REVISION	DATE		SAN	MATEO COUN	ΓY		REDWOOD CITY, CALIFO	RNIA 94063
	FOR REDUCED P ORIGINAL SCALE	LANS IS IN INCHES	0		2	1 1	3 4	C-0.01 SHEET 2 OF 38



BKF ENGINEERS

R.C.E. # 59567 / EXPIRES 12-31-2019



APPROVED:

DATE

JAMES C. PORTER, DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS R. C. E. # 48056 / EXPIRES 12-31-2019



# 100% SUBMITTAL - FOR REVIEW ONLY

		DESIGNED BY: BKF (CT)	MIDCOAST MUL	TI-MODAL TRAIL	SCALE: NTS
		CHECKED BY: <b>BKF (JM)</b>	TYPICAL CRO	SS SECTIONS	DATE: 11/4/2019
		DRAWN BY: <b>BKF (JC)</b>	THICKE CITO	JU JUCTIONS	FILE NO.: 1/4952
		JAMES C. PORTER	, DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS	555 COUNTY CENTER,	5th FLOOR
REVISION	DATE	SAN	MATEO COUNTY	REDWOOD CITY, CALIFOR	RNIA 94063
	FOR REDUCED P ORIGINAL SCALE	0 LANS IS IN INCHES			<b>C-0.04</b> SHEET <b>5</b> OF 38

00

255 SHORELINE DRIVE, SUITE 200 REDWOOD CITY, CA 94065 (650) 482–6300

TE OF CALIFOR

















# NOTES:

1. SEE C-0.02 AND C-0.03 FOR SURVEY CONTROL PLAN.



NG NAME: K:\Eng14\140242\SHEETS\C2.XX-PLAN\_PROFI TIME: 11-04-19

_BC 42.33		45.05 ×47.45					
STA 54+19.41							/
EC 41.91×	CABRILLO S	42.92 SCHOOL DISTRICT				/	/
H42.34 SIA_04+44. HOH	0H	TE R.O.W. 42.20 OH -	ОН	- OH		Hx 43.14	он
BC 41.69 STA 54+50.	.80	× <sup>T2.20</sup>					
SS BC 41.8% STA 54+50		- SS SS	SS	SS		×41.64 S	ss ——— s
EC 41.66 STA 9+00.3	34			×	т т -	т	FG 41.17 - T
9+700 	T		10+00 <sup></sup>	- 11 60		× <sup>41.31</sup>	
	A1 #5	<u>41.57</u>		X 11.00			
40 MIDCOAST TRAIL STA 84	-8694=			44.70		40.99 F	G 41.05
SCHOOL CONNECTION ST	A 54+64.76	60"		× <sup>41.38</sup>			
(N) 8' TRAIL WITH 2'	40.36	<u>P)</u> )				× <sup>40.56</sup>	
×39.53 ×40.00				×40.56			
<u>ss ss / ss -</u>		- ss ss	<u>SS</u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u>ss</u> s
		DUALE.I — ZU	)'				
		DUALE. I - ZU	)'				PVI STA: 10+8 PVI ELEV: 42
							PVI_STA: 10+8 PVI_ELEV: 42 K: 109.41 HP:_STA:_9+
							PVI_STA: 10+8 PVI_ELEV: 42 K: 109.41 HP: STA: 9+ ELEV: 41. LVC: 290.0
SCHOOL CONNECTION	4.68						PVI STA: 10+8 PVI ELEV: 42 K: 109.41 HP: STA: 9+ ELEV: 41. LVC: 290.0
SCHOOL CONNECTION	9+44.68 CE: 41.71						PVI STA: 10+4 PVI ELEV: 42 K: 109.41 HP: STA: 9+ ELEV: 41. LVC: 290.0
	VCS: 9+44.68 BVCE: 41.71						PVI STA: 10+8 PVI ELEV: 42 K: 109.41 HP: STA: 9+ ELEV: 41. LVC: 290.0
	BVCS: 9+44.68 BVCE: 41.71						PVI STA: 10+8 PVI ELEV: 42 K: 109.41 HP: STA: 9+ ELEV: 41. LVC: 290.0
	BVCS: 9+44.68 BVCE: 41.71						PVI STA: 10+4 PVI ELEV: 42 K: 109.41 HP: STA: 9+ ELEV: 41. LVC: 290.0
	BVCS: 9+44.68						PVI STA: 10+4 PVI ELEV: 42 K: 109.41 HP: STA: 9+ ELEV: 41. LVC: 290.0
	BVCS: 9+44.68 BVCS: 9+44.68 BVCE: 41.71						PVI STA: 10+8 PVI ELEV: 42 K: 109.41 HP: STA: 9+ ELEV: 41. LVC: 290.0
	BVCS: 9+44.68						PVI STA: 10+4 PVI ELEV: 42 K: 109.41 HP: STA: 9+ ELEV: 41. LVC: 290.0
	BVCS: 9+44.68 BVCS: 9+44.68 BVCE: 41.71						PVI STA: 10+8 PVI ELEV: 42 K: 109.41 HP: STA: 9+ ELEV: 41. LVC: 290.0
	BVCCS: 9+44.68		)				PVI STA: 10+3 PVI ELEV: 42 K: 109.41 HP: STA: 9+ ELEV: 41. LVC: 290.0
	BVCS: 9+44.68 BVCS: 9+44.68 BVCS: 9+44.68		)				PVI STA: 10+4 PVI ELEV: 42 K: 109.41 HP: STA: 9+ ELEV: 41. LVC: 290.0
	SCALE.	PROFILE HORIZONT	)'	20'			PVI STA: 10+3 PVI ELEV: 42 K: 109.41 HP: STA: 9+ ELEV: 41. LVC: 290.0
	SCALE:		)' AL 1" = $2 \cap$ '	20'			PVI STA: 10+4 PVI ELEV: 42 K: 109.41 HP: STA: 9+ ELEV: 41. LVC: 290.0
	SCALE:	PROFILE HORIZONT VERTICAL	)' 10+00 AL 1" = 20' 1" = 20'	20'			PVI STA: 10+3 PVI ELEV: 42 K: 109.41 HP: STA: 9+ ELEV: 41. LVC: 290.0 1 1 1
SCHOOL CONNECTION	SCALE:	PROFILE HORIZONT VERTICAL	)' 10+00 AL 1" = 20' 1" = 20'	20,			PVI STA: 10+2 PVI ELEV: 42 K: 109.41 HP: STA: 9+ ELEV: 41. LVC: 290.0 1 1 0 1 1 1 1
SCHOOL CONNECTION	SCALE:	PROFILE HORIZONT VERTICAL	)' 10+00 AL 1" = 2 1" = 20' $1^{2}$	20'			PVI STA: 10+4 PVI ELEV: 42 K: 109.41 HP: STA: 9+ ELEV: 41. LVC: 290.0 1 1 1 1 1
	SCALE:	PROFILE HORIZONT VERTICAL	) 10+00 AL 1" = 20' 1" = 20'	20'			PVI STA: 10+3 PVI ELEV: 42 K: 109.41 HP: STA: 9+ ELEV: 41. LVC: 290.0 I I I I I I I I I I I I I
SCHOOL CONNECTION 25%	SCALE:	PROFILE HORIZONT VERTICAL	) $(1)^{-1}$				PVI STA: 10+4 PVI ELEV: 42 K: 109.41 HP: STA: 9+ ELEV: 41. LVC: 290.0
SCHOOL CONNECTION 25% 9+00 APPROVED DATE: JASON MANSFIELD, PROJECT BKF ENGINEERS R.C.E. # 59567 / FXPIF	SCALE: MANAGER RES 12-31-2019	PROFILE HORIZONT VERTICAL No. C 59567 EXP. 12–31–19	) $(10+00)$		BRRF BRF2000000000000000000000000000000000000		PVI STA: 10+4 PVI ELEV: 42 K: 109.41 HP: STA: 9+ ELEV: 41. LVC: 290.0 I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I

BLDG

EL GRANADA

~\_\_\_

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL













				POTH	IOLING DA	TA TABLE			
POTHOLE #	STREET	CUT SIZE	SOIL	UTILITY	UTILITY SIZE	MATERIAL	DEPTH	LOCATION REFERENCE/NOTES	
(1B)	311 MAGELLAN AVE	1' X 2'	CLAY, ROCKS	SANITARY SEWER	10"	ASBESTOS CEMENT	87"	45' NW FROM EDGE OF ASPHALT. 7' NE FROM NO PARKING SIGN	
2	311 MAGELLAN AVE	1' X 2'	CLAY, ROCKS	WATER	10"	STEEL	55"	45' NW FROM EDGE OF ASPHALT. 17' NE FROM NO PARKING SIGN	
(5)	CA-1 & MAGELLAN AVE.	1' X 1'	HARD DIRT, CLAY	WATER	10"	STEEL		NO VISUAL, TOO MUCH GROUND WATER. POSSIBLE DEPTH AT 11.5'. POTHOLE IS LOCATED 20' NW FROM STOP SIGN. 15' SW FROM WHITE STOP LINE.	
6	CA-1 & MAGELLAN AVE.	1' X 1'	HARD DIRT, CLAY	SANITARY SEWER	10"	ASBESTOS CEMENT	173 <b>"</b>	34' NW FROM STOP SIGN. 13' SW FROM WHITE STOP LINE.	
	{				35	<u></u>			
ОН -	29.45 OH STA 19+ 31.20LT ×27.01	-80.45 INV 29.28	— НО 7.000 1.000	5.42 5.42				ОН ОН ОН ОН	
	568 <u>6 ×</u> 568 <u>6 ×</u> 79 19 × <sup>2</sup> 728 96 × 7 − 7 − 7 −	<del>9.39</del> 55 -	BEGIN W A 1004-00 FLFV 35				SS 	SS SS SS SS SS SS	
46		GY 7 PATOR C6.0				> ,	×29.82	× <sup>29.78</sup>	

00.00 36.03 36.03 31.03

-101<del>+</del>00-

€-0.04

21+00

29.69

29.65

29.68

FG

21+00

EG-

12"ø SS (A

RETAINING WALL SEE SHEET S4

EC 35.26

STA 19+86.89

\_\_\_<del>\_\_\_X</del>

└──END/3MGS──── SS ──── SS ────

30.18

×29.28

,29.67

(P)18" RCP, 41LF S=0.030 (C-3.02)

- CUT AND CAP (E)SS

LINE IF IN CONFLICT

WITH (P)SD LINE

=20+00=

EC 35.14

NV 30.55

STA 19+87.02 7.00'RT

-(P)TYPE G2 SDCB

BEGIN ST-70 MOD BARRIER

STA 19+85.63 9.51RT RIM 35.05 NV 30.55



SHEET

TCHUN

M

0

Č

5

90\_\_\_

80-

70-

60---

50--

40-

30-

20-

\_

(N)18" RCP-

G 35.23

FG 35.17

FG 35.11-

IED)

1. SEE C-0.02 AND C-0.03 FOR SURVEY CONTROL PLAN.

20+00





(18)/

- SS

×<sup>30.41</sup>

×<sup>30.26</sup>

≠22+00≒

22+00

APPROVED DATE:

0.73%

STA 102+00.00 TRAIL ELEV 36.76 TW 36.76 BW 32.17

<del>\</del>2

34-16 SS

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL, SEE STRUCTURAL

<u>`3></u>\_\_

SHEET S4

SS

×31.13

31.64

34.55





38.138.25

.35.94

-34.00 POINT 38.47 38.47 34.53

STA 104+ ALL ANGLE I TRAIL ELEV TW BW

-00.00 38.22 34.02

104+ ELEV BW BW

STA RAIL

104+00

24+00

24+00

Q

0.73% 36.7

SCALE:

# <u>PROFILE</u> HORIZONTAL 1" =20' VERTICAL 1" = 20'

23+00

CABRILLO HIGHWAY (HWY 1) ST-70 MOD BARRIER RAIL - 4 <u>PLAN</u> SCALE: 1" =20' 0.73% -(E)10" WATER (E)10" SS

00.00 37.49 32.52

103+ TW BW

**STA RAIL** 

103+00

=23+00**-**

\_\_\_\_\_

STATE R.O.W.

,33.15

×33.13



![](_page_34_Figure_0.jpeg)

POTHOLING DATA TABLE									
POTHOLE #	STREET	CUT SIZE	SOIL	UTILITY	UTILITY SIZE	MATERIAL	DEPTH	LOCATION REFERENCE/NOTES	
(1A)	CA-1 & MIRAMAR DRIVE	1.5' X 1'	ROCKS, CLAY, MUD	FM/SANITARY SEWER	18 <b>"</b>	PVC	16.5'	56' NW FROM EDGE OF ROAD. 32' NE FROM GUARD RAIL	
3	NW CORNER OF CA-1 & MIRAMAR DRIVE	1' X 2'	CLAY, ROCKS	WATER	10"	STEEL		NO VISUAL, TOO MUCH GROUND WATER. POSSIBLE DEPTH AT 104". POTHOLE IS LOCATED 55' NW FROM EDGE OF ASPHALT. 27' NE FROM GUARD RAIL.	
4	SE CORNER OF CA-1 & FURTADO LANE	1' X 2'	HARD DIRT, CLAY	WATER	10"	STEEL		NO VISUAL, TOO MUCH GROUND WATER. POSSIBLE DEPTH AT 13'. POTHOLE IS LOCATED 28' NE FROM GUARD RAIL. 60' SE FROM EDGE OF ASPHALT.	

![](_page_35_Figure_5.jpeg)

![](_page_35_Figure_6.jpeg)

## NOTES:

1. SEE C-0.02 AND C-0.03 FOR SURVEY CONTROL PLAN.

2. (E)ABANDONED SEWER LINE IS IN CONFLICT WITH (P)BRIDGE PIERS. CONTRACTOR TO REMOVE SEGMENT OF (E)PIPE AS REQUIRED TO INSTALL PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE REMOVAL OF (E)PIPE WITH COUNTY, ENGINEER, AND SEWER AUTHORITY MID-COASTSIDE.

GRAPHIC SCALE								
20	0	20	40					

35+18.25 GB C/L 67.77 35+65.96 GB C/L 68.84	PV9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	STA: 36+26.81 VI ELEV: 71.42 K: 23.51 STA: 36+41.81 ELEV: 71.87 LVC: 30.00	36+63.54 GB 36+63.54 GB 36+63.54 GB 36+88.15 GB 36+88.15 GB 36+88.15 GB 36+88.15 GB	37+00.00 GB C/L 71.80	PVI STA: 3 PVI ELEY LP: STA: 3 ELEV: K: 12 LVC: 3 \$2 \$7 \$2 \$7 \$2 \$ \$2 \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	57+49.35 √:71.06 57+52.33 71.15 .04 0.00
	4.25%		30 + 00 30	-3.22% -1.49		

<u>PROFILE</u> HORIZONTAL 1" =20' SCALE: VERTICAL 1" = 20'

APPROVED DATE: JASON MANSFIELD, PROJECT MANAGER BKF ENGINEERS R.C.E. # 59567 / EXPIRES 12-31-2019

![](_page_35_Picture_16.jpeg)

![](_page_35_Picture_17.jpeg)

![](_page_35_Picture_18.jpeg)

39+00

MIRAMAR DRIVE

-0.61% -1.55%

<u>†</u>31.

100

90 80

\_\_\_\_ \_\_\_\_70

\_\_\_

\_\_\_\_

60

50 40 30

39+60

# 100% SUBMITTAL - FOR REVIEW ONLY

		DESIGNED BY:	BKF (CT)	MIDCOAST MULTI-MO			TI-MODAL T	RAIL	SCALE: AS SHOWN	
		CHECKED BY:	BKF (JM)	PLAN & PROFILE					DATE: 11/4/2019	
		DRAWN BY:	BKF (JC)	STA 32+90 TO STA 39+60				)+60	FILE NO.: 1/4952	
		JAMES C. PORTER, DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS					555 COUNTY CENTER, 5th FLOOR			
REVISION	DATE		SAN	MATEO COUNTY			REDWOOD CITY, CALIFORNIA 94063			
	FOR REDUCED P ORIGINAL SCALE	LANS IS IN INCHES	0	1	2		3 4	4	<b>C-2.05</b> SHEET 15 OF 38	

LVC: 30.00

(E)16" \$S

-0.66%

200

38+94. VCE: 71.

.53% /

ARROYO DE EN MEDIO CREEK

-0.00%

38+00

37+74.44 C/L 71.31

.00%




								)16" WATER-			
42∔	00				43-	-00				44÷	00
					<u>PROF</u>	<u>ILE</u>					
			S	CALE:	HORIZ	ONTAL	1" = 20	,			
					VERTIC	CAL 1" =	= 20'				
	APPROVED	DATE:			DROFE	SSION					OF SAN
					ER CONRA	D MANSTER			KK ⊨		J. L
					JASON						┑╓┯┥┣╸
	JASON MAN	ISFIELD, PRO	JECT MANAGE	R	EXP. 12	2-31-19	E	NGINEERS / SURV	eyors / Planners		
	BKF ENGINE	ERS			STATE CI	VIL CORNIA	255	SHORELINE	DRIVE, SUITE 200		
	R.C.E. # 59	9567 / 6	EXPIRES 12-3	31-2019	- OF	CALIT	(65)	WOOD CITY, ( 0) 482-6300	CA 94065		VC NOP







		DESIGNED BY:	ВКҒ (СТ)		MIDCOAS	ST MUL	TI-MOD	AL TRAIL	SCALE: AS SHOWN
		CHECKED BY:	BKF (JM)		PLAN & PROFILE		DATE: 11/4/2019		
		DRAWN BY:	BKF (JC)	S	<u>STA 50</u>	<u>+10 T</u>	o sta	54+50	FILE NO.: 1/4952
		JAMES C.	PORTER,	DIRECTOR O	F PUBLIC	WORKS		555 COUNTY CENTER,	5th FLOOR
REVISION	DATE		SAN	MATEO COUN	NTY			REDWOOD CITY, CALIFOR	RNIA 94063
	FOR REDUCED PI ORIGINAL SCALE	LANS IS IN INCHES	0 		2		3	4	<b>C-2.07</b> SHEET 17 OF 38



		1	Star C. POLING	APPROVED:			
		LEG(X)	MIL AROSA	DATE:			
		×	EXPIRES 12/31/19				
			CIVIL RIT	JAMES_C. PO	ORTER, DIREC	TOR OF PUBLIC	C WORKS
			UF CALITO	к. С. Е. # 4	48056 / EXPI	IRES 12-31-20	2+00
				2.0	The local states		
				4.0			
		the state of the s	51+00	2.0'			
			A DE ALEANDER			1	
	and the second second						
						NO	
YP.)						<u></u>	
;N,		- 0HI - <del> 0</del> HI -=	OHI		→H	OH	—— ОН ——
ZE				/	~	SEI	
03 -					T -		
5+CQ			TEPHINEPHINEP	6+00			
20+0				+		<u>_</u>	
- I THINK IN	WAR AN ANT AN ANT	and the share th				Preventer	
~			١	•		MA	
				\		9	
						+	
						Ó	
						<b>T</b>	
	TOP OF BANK					S	
					$\backslash$		
							$\langle$
			-		$\bigwedge$		Γ
			7			$\sim$	Б
							<b>S</b> 5.
				$\square$			Ľ
OH	OH	он <u></u> он			—— он	- <u> </u>	
							Т.
					-	Τ.	بب
– T ———	— T —— T	T	_			[	м М
TEAPILITEAP			12+00				13+00
							<b>B</b>
							AT
							X
							8
						<u>,</u>	5
							1~ 1
			100	% SUBM	ITTAL -	FOR RE	VIEW ONLY
		DESIGNED BY: BKF (CT)	MIDCO	AST MULTI-	-MODAL TR	AIL	SCALE: AS SHOWN
		CHECKED BY: BKF (JM)	SIGNINC	GAND ST	RIPING PL	_ANS	DATE: 11/4/2019
		DRAWN BY: BKF (JC)	STA (	<u>O+00 TO</u>	STA 13+	-00	FILE NO.: 1/4952
	_	JAMES C. PORTER,	DIRECTOR OF PUBL	C WORKS	555 C	COUNTY CENTER	R, 5th FLOOR
REVISION	DATE	SAN			KLUWU	CITT, CALIF	
	FOR REDUCED F ORIGINAL SCALE	PLANS			4		C-4.00 Sheet 21 of 38



WING NAME: K:\Eng14\140242\SHEETS\C4.XX-5 T\_TIME: 11-04-19



VING NAME: K:\Eng14\140242\SHEETS\C4.XX-SIGN\_STRIPING. . TIME: 11\_04\_19





ε					
g wal	L				
OF 2) OF 2)					
1	L 0.00'				
uns 2	25.44				
			100% SUBN	ITTAL - FOR RI	EVIEW ONLY
		DESIGNED BY: CDI	MIDCOAST MULTI	-MODAL TRAIL	SCALE: AS NOTED
		CHECKED BY: JPJ	GENERAL PL	AN - BRIDGE	DATE: 11/4/19
		DRAWN BY: CDI			FILE NO.: 1/495
VISION	DATE	JAMES C. PORTER, SAN	DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS MATEO COUNTY	555 COUNTY CENT REDWOOD CITY, CA	ER, 5th FLOOR LIFORNIA 94063



HYDROLOGIC SUMMARY			
50	100		
318	365		
65.0	65.4		
4.4	4.3		
	<b>ARY</b> 50 318 65.0 4.4		

Flood plain data are based upon the Final Hydrology Study dated June 19, 2017 prepared by BKF Engineers. The accuracy of said information is not warranted by Cornerstone Structural Engineering Group, Inc. and interested or affected parties should make their own investigation.

# SCOUR DATA TABLE

Support Location	Long Term (Degradation and Contraction) Scour Elevation (ft)	Short Term (Local) Scour elevation (ft)
Abut 1	No change	Not Applicable
Abut 2	No change	Not Applicable

Location Abut 1

Abut 2

<u>Notes:</u>

- 1. 62.5 Indicates bottom of abutment
- 2. -5-Indicates contour elevation.
- 3. Indicates 30"ø CISS Driven Pile.
- 4. Utility locations shown are approximate, for utility information and locations see Civil Plans. Pothole area as required by Civil Plans.
- 5. Right-of-way shown is approximate. See Civil Plans for right-of-way data and limits of work.
- 6. Contractor shall verify all existing controlling field dimensions before ordering or fabricating any material.
- 7. Contour interval = 1'
- 8. Contours shown indicate existing grading. For finished grade contours, see Civil Plans
- 9. A representative of the Geotechnical Engineer of Record shall be on site at all times during the pile installation operations.

<u>Legend</u>:

- 1 Existing Overhead Electrical Line, see
- Civil Plans Existing Water Line, see Civil Plans
- (2)
- Existing Sanitary Sewer Line, see  $(\overline{\mathcal{Z}})$ Civil Plans
- Existing abandoned Sanitary Sewer (4)Line, see Civil Plans

PILE DATA TABLE								
Pile Type	Nominal Resistance		Design Tip Elev	Specified Tip Elev	Required Nominal Driving Resistance			
	Compression	Tension	(ft)	(ft)	(Kips)			
30" CISS x 0.625"	160 kips	0 kips	(1) 22.0; (3) 20.5	20.5	250			
30" CISS x 0.625"	175 kips	0 kips	(1) 18.0; (3) 18.0	18.0	250			
					• / 7 > + + +			

Design tip elevation is controlled by the following demands: (1) Compression (2) Tension (3) Lateral.



(650) 482-6300



APPROVED:

DATE:



JAMES C. PORTER, DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS R. C. E. # 48056 / EXPIRES 12-31-2019

# **GENERAL NOTES** LOAD AND RESISTANCE FACTOR DESIGN

DE	SIGN:	AASHTO LRFD Guide Design of Pedestrian AASHTO LRFD Bridge 6th Edition with Calt	Specification for th Bridges, 2nd Editic Design Specificatio trans Amendments	e on & ns,
SE	ISMIC DESIGN:	Caltrans Seismic Des Version 1.7, dated A members to be desi an R factor of 1.0 ( spectral acceleration designed with an R 1.25 x peak spectral LRFD Specifications.	sign Criteria (SDC), pril 2013. Superstru gned to remain elas force equal to 1.0 ) and connections t factor of 0.8 (force acceleration) per A	cture stic with x peak to be e equal to AASHTO
DE	AD LOAD:	Bridge Self Weight (i	ncluding concrete d	eck)
LIV	/E LOADING:	90 psf Pedestrian Lo	oad & H10 Design V	/ehicle
WII	ND LOADING:	AASHTO Signs and L applied at right angl of the structure. Cor of lateral load bracin design of the truss beams and their con chord, truss verticals loads shall not be le lineal foot or a 200 whichever produces of any direction at any along the top chord.	uminaires. Wind load es to the longitudin nsider wind load in ng system and in the vertical members, flon ection. For design s, and floor beams, ess than 50 pounds pound point load, greater stresses, ap direction at any po	ds al axis design ne oor of top wind per plied in pint
SE LO	ISMIC ADING:	V <sub>s30</sub> = 200 m/s Peak Ground Acceler 5% Damping	ration = 0.600g	
	() 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0			
<u> </u>	ACCELER/	ATION RESPO	NJE JPEUIR	
ABI REA	JTMENT ACTIONS:	Maximum bridge servi reactions are as follo	ce loading ws:	
		Dead Load Vehicular Live Load Pedestrian Live Load Reactions are per ead	28,250 lb 10,000 lb 21,600 lb ch bearing (2	
SOI FOF	L CRITERIA Pe R DESIGN: pr	bearings per abutmer er Foundation Report ovided by Parikh, dat Soil Unit Weight Active equivalent flui Traffic Load (lateral) Incremental Seismic	ed 1/25/2018: d pressure (undrain Earth Pressure	= 120 pcf ed) = 80 pcf = 72 psf = 90 pcf
		100% SUBI	MITTAL - FOR RI	EVIEW ONLY
	DESIGNED BY: CDI	MIDCOAST MULT	TI-MODAL TRAIL	SCALE: <b>AS NOTED</b>
	DRAWN BY: CDI		PLAN - BRIDGE	FILE NO.: 1/4952
DATE	JAMES C. PORTER, San	DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS MATEO COUNTY	555 COUNTY CENT REDWOOD CITY, CA	ER, 5th FLOOR LIFORNIA 94063
FOR REDUCED P ORIGINAL SCALE	O PLANS IS IN INCHES		3 4	<b>S2</b> Sheet <b>34</b> of <b>38</b>



# ATTACHMENT D

**County of San Mateo - Planning and Building Department** 

## **COUNTY**OF **SAN MATEO** PLANNING AND BUILDING

County Government Center 455 County Center, 2nd Floor Redwood City, CA 94063 650-363-4161 T 650-363-4849 F www.planning.smcgov.org

## NOTICE OF INTENT TO ADOPT A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION

Lead Agency:	County of San Mateo, Public Works Department
Project Title:	Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project
Project Location:	County of San Mateo
Project Applicant:	County of San Mateo

Introduction: The County of San Mateo has prepared an Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) finding for the Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project (proposed Project). The County finds that although the proposed Project could have an effect on the environment, there will not be a significant effect due to design features, best management practices, and mitigation measures that will avoid potentially significant impacts. Pursuant to California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines Section 15072, the County will provide this Notice of Intent to Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration (Notice of Intent) to the public, responsible agencies, trustee agencies, and the San Mateo County Clerk.

Project Description: The proposed Project will include construction of a 0.8-mile multi-use trail within 10.39 acres of undeveloped land within the Caltrans right-of-way land in the unincorporated community of El Granada, California. The Project site runs parallel to Cabrillo Highway (Highway 1) between Coronado Street and Mirada Road. The proposed Project will become a component of the larger California Coastal Trail (CCT), which is a network of public trails for walkers, bikers, equestrians, and others along the 1,200-mile California coastline.<sup>1</sup> Further, the Project will enable people to safely commute by bicycle from El Granada to areas south of El Granada, and eventually serve as a connection to the Naomi Patridge trail which connects to Half Moon Bay. A more detailed description of the Project components is included in Project Description of the IS/MND.

**Public Review Period:** A 30-day public review period for the IS/MND will commence Wednesday, June 13, 2018 and end on Friday, July 13, 2018. Interested individuals and public agencies may submit written comments on the document, which must be received by the County no later than July 13, 2018. Written comments on the IS/MND may be provided by email or mail to Mike Schaller, Senior Planner, County of



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> California Coastal Trail.Info Website, http://www.californiacoastaltrail.info/cms/pages/main/index.html, accessed on February 18, 2016.

San Mateo Planning Department at 455 County Center, 2<sup>nd</sup> Floor Redwood City, CA 94063 mschaller@smcgov.org

Document Availability: Copies of the IS/MND and all documents referenced in the IS/MND are available for review at the County of San Mateo Planning Department located at 455 County Center, 2<sup>nd</sup> Floor, Redwood City, CA 94063. An electronic copy of the IS/MND is available to view and download on the County's website: [http://planning.smcgov.org/midcoast-multimodal-trail-project].

Scheduled Public Meetings: The San Mateo County Planning Commission will consider the proposed Project and the IS/MND at a public date to be determined. Once scheduled, public notices of the meeting will be issued.

M. Schallen Signature

6/11/18 ate Date

MICHAEL SCHALLER

Printed Name

SENIOR PLANNER

Title

#### **INITIAL STUDY CHECKLIST**

The proposed Midcoast Multimodal Trail (MMT) Project is a project under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). This Initial Study was prepared by PlaceWorks for the County of San Mateo. This Initial Study was prepared pursuant to the CEQA (Public Resources Code Sections 21000 et seq.), CEQA Guidelines (Title 14, Section 15000 et seq. of the California Code of Regulations).

1.	Title:	Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project
2.	Lead Agency Name and Address:	County of San Mateo 455 County Center, 2 <sup>nd</sup> Floor Redwood City, CA 94063
3.	Contact Person and Phone Number:	Mike Schaller, Senior Planner Planning Department (650) 363-1825
4.	Location:	San Mateo County
5.	Applicant's Name and Address:	County of San Mateo 455 County Center, 2 <sup>nd</sup> Floor Redwood City, CA 94063
6.	General Plan Land Use Designations:	See page 6 of this Initial Study
7.	Zoning:	See page 6 of this Initial Study
8.	Description of Project:	See page 9 of this Initial Study
9.	Surrounding Land Uses and Setting:	See page 2 and 4 of this Initial Study
10.	Required Approvals:	See page 12 of this Initial Study

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

INITIA	L STUD	DY CHECKLIST	i
ENVIF	RONMEI	NTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED	1
ENVIF	RONMEI	NTAL CHECKLIST	22
	I.	AESTHETICS	22
	II.	AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY RESOURCES	26
	III.	AIR QUALITY	28
	IV.	BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES	31
	V.	CULTURAL RESOURCES	49
	VI.	GEOLOGY AND SOILS	55
	VII.	CLIMATE CHANGE	59
	VIII.	HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS	63
	IX.	HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY	68
	Х.	LAND USE AND PLANNING	73
	XI.	MINERAL RESOURCES	75
	XII.	NOISE	76
	XIII.	POPULATION AND HOUSING	94
	XIV.	PUBLIC SERVICES	95
	XV.	RECREATION	97
	XVI.	TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION	97
	XVII.	UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS	101
	XVIII.	MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE	105

### List of Figures

Figure 1	Regional and Local Location Map	5
Figure 2	Existing Conditions	6
Figure 3	General Plan Land Use Designations	8
Figure 4	Zoning Designations	9
Figure 5	Trail Segments	11
Figure 6	Trailhead at Coronado Street	13
Figure 7	El Granada Elementary School Access	14
Figure 8	Wetland Trail at Private Road	15
Figure 9	Wetland Trail at Magellan Avenue and Coronado Avenue	17
Figure 10	Cortez Avenue to Medio Avenue	18
Figure 11	Medio Avenue to Miramar Drive	19
Figure 12	Medio Avenue to Miramar Drive	20
Figure 13	Special-Status Plant Species	34
Figure 14	Special-Status Animal Species	35
Figure 15a	Biological Communities in the Study Area	39
Figure 15b	Biological Communities in the Study Area	40
Figure 16	Sensitive Noise Receptors	78

#### List of Tables

Table 1	Exterior Noise Level Standards, dBA for Receiving Land Use: Single- or Multiple-	
	Family Residence, School, Hospital, Church, or Public Library Properties	81
Table 2	Interior Noise Level Standards, dBA for Dwelling Units	81
Table 3	Noise Emission Levels for Typical Construction Equipment Items	84
Table 4	Typical Noise Levels from Construction Activities for Public Works Projects	85
Table 5	Typical Vibration Levels Produced by Common Construction Equipment	90

#### APPENDICES

Appendix A	Biological Resources Assessment and Wetland Delineation R	eport

- Appendix B AB52 Consultation Letters
- Appendix C Noise and Vibration Data

#### ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED

The environmental factors checked below will be potentially affected by the proposed Project, involving at least one impact that is a potentially significant impact, as indicated by the checklist on the following pages.

Aesthetics Agriculture & Forestry Resources □ Air Quality Biological Resources Cultural Resources **Greenhouse Gas Emissions** Hazards & Hazardous Materials ✓ Noise **D** Land Use & Planning Mineral Resources **D** Population & Housing Public Services **D** Recreation ✓ Transportation & Circulation □ Utilities & Service Systems

#### Determination:

On the basis of this initial evaluation:

- Geology & Soils
- Hydrology & Water Quality
- Mandatory Findings of Significance
- I find that the proposed Project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment and a NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.
- $\mathbf{N}$ I find that, although the proposed Project could have a significant effect on the environment, there will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the Project have been made by or agreed to by the County. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.
- I find that the proposed Project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an ENIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT (EIR) will be prepared.
- I find that the proposed Project MAY have a "potentially significant impact" or "potentially significant unless mitigated" impact on the environment, but at least one effect 1) has been adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and 2) has been addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as described on attached sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the effects that remain to be addressed.
- I find that although the proposed Project could have a significant effect on the environment, because all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards, and (b) have been avoided or mitigated pursuant to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation measures that are imposed upon the proposed Project, nothing further is required.

SIGNATURE

Date

PRINTED NAME

TITLE

#### A. OVERVIEW

This Initial Study checklist was prepared to assess the potential environmental effects of the Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project, herein referred to as the "proposed Project" or "Project." This Initial Study consists of a depiction of the existing environmental setting and the Project description followed by a description of various environmental effects that may result from construction and operation of the proposed Project.

This Initial Study was originally circulated for a 30-day public review following release of a Notice of Completion on August 11, 2016. However, it is being recirculated to clarify that Caltrans has granted Lead Agency status to San Mateo County, and to provide additional detail and analysis of impacts related to construction of the proposed retaining wall and bridge, as further described below.

#### B. BACKGROUND

Numerous studies, including the Highway 1 Trail Concept Study (Concept Study) prepared for the City of Half Moon Bay in 2004, and the Highway 1 Safety and Mobility Improvement Study (Improvement Study) for San Mateo County Midcoast Communities, completed in 2010, envision a continuous multimodal separated trail for pedestrian and bicycle use located on the east side of Highway 1, and provide neighborhood trail connections at Avenues in El Granada, in order to address mobility challenges within the Project vicinity. The Improvement Study focused on enhancements to Highway 1 that will better serve all users through short- and long-term strategies consistent with regional policies. The study addressed the following mobility challenges within the Project vicinity:

- Speed management;
- High pedestrian crossing demand;
- Varying traffic volumes and speeds;
- Turning traffic at driveways and streets; and
- Sight distance challenges at cross streets.

The specific goals of the Improvement Study within the Project vicinity are:

- Increased pedestrian, bicycle and vehicle safety along Highway 1;
- More transportation options for those that cannot, or choose not to use cars for local trips and commuting, reducing congestion and maintaining road capacity; and
- A network of secondary alternatives for pedestrian and bicycle circulation, built upon existing and planned trails and other opportunity sites, such as El Granada's historic medians.

The Improvement Study identified strategies to attain these goals, including completing portions of the California Coastal Trail (CCT) and providing additional trails, bikeways, walkways and crossing opportunities. The proposed CCT alignment as described in the Improvement Study was selected as a

potential route because it provides a continuous north-south route between Midcoast communities for multimodal travel separated from Highway  $1.^1$ 

The proposed Project alternative evaluated in this IS/MND, conceptualized during the planning process described in the Improvement Study, is a bicycle and pedestrian commuter trail that will provide an alternative means of transportation for residents of communities along the San Mateo County Midcoast to safely access neighboring communities, schools and recreational destinations without using Highway 1. The proposed Project will be constructed between El Granada and Miramar, then connect to the Naomi Partridge Trail in Half Moon Bay, providing a continuous route of travel along this portion of the Midcoast,<sup>2</sup> and include construction of a 0.8-mile multi-use trail within 10.39 acres of undeveloped land within the Caltrans right-of-way in the unincorporated San Mateo County Midcoast. The Project site runs parallel to and separated from Cabrillo Highway (Highway 1) between Coronado Street and Mirada Road, as shown on Figure 1. The proposed Project will become a component of the larger CCT, which is a network of public trails for walkers, bikers, equestrians, and others along the 1,200-mile California coastline.<sup>3</sup> The CCT will provide a continuous public right-of-way along the coastline to allow non-motorized access to the coast for public use, and provide linkages to other trails in the vicinity and to units of the State Park system.<sup>4</sup>

The proposed Project, located within the Caltrans right-of –way and consisting of seven segments that comprise the entire 0.8 miles of trail, which are shown on Figure 5 and described in more detail in Section D below, has "independent utility" from development of the larger CCT project for the following reasons.<sup>5</sup> First, the Project overall will improve local pedestrian/bicycle circulation and safety, and provide regional connections to areas south of the proposed Project in accordance with regional policies that require that "Caltrans protect and make available adequate right-of-way to allow the future development of bicycle and pedestrian trails."<sup>6</sup> Second, Segment 1 proposes a crosswalk across Coronado Avenue near Highway 1 in El Granada to facilitate access to downtown El Granada for pedestrians and bicyclists. This crosswalk will result in an improvement to existing connections. Third, Segment 1 will include sidewalk enhancements at the corner of Coronado Street and a pedestrian/bicycle-activated push button at the traffic signal. Fourth, Segment 2 provides local pedestrian and bicycle access to and from Miramar and Half Moon Bay and the El Granada Elementary School, where none occur under existing conditions. Finally, Segment 5 will provide a crosswalk across Medio Avenue, and include traffic-calming measures to

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Highway 1 Safety and Mobility Improvement Study, San Mateo County Midcoast Communities: Princeton, El Granada, and Miramar, CA. April 2010, https://planning.smcgov.org/sites/planning.smcgov.org/files/Safety%20and%20Mobility%20 Improvement%20Study%20P1.pdf, accessed February 22, 2018.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> San Mateo County Planning and Building. Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project, About the Project, https://planning.smcgov.org/midcoast-multimodal-trail-project, accessed February 22, 2018.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> California Coastal Trail. Info Website, http://www.californiacoastaltrail.info/cms/pages/main/index.html, accessed February 18, 2016.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> California Coastal Trail, Completing the Trail, http://www.californiacoastaltrail.info/cms/pages/trail/done.html, accessed February 20, 2018.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> Caltrans Local Assistance Procedures Manual, January 2018, Page 5, http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/ LocalPrograms/lam/LAPM/LAPM.pdf, accessed February 20, 2018.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> San Mateo County Local Coastal Plan, Policy 2.50: Improvements for Bicycle and Pedestrian Trails, https://planning.smcgov.org/sites/planning.smcgov.org/files/LCP%20Policy%202.50%20-

<sup>%20</sup>Improvements%20for%20Bicycle%20and%20Pestrian%20Tr\_1.pdf, accessed February 22, 2018.

improve local pedestrian and bicycle connections in this area. In conclusion, the proposed Project represents a "stand-alone" project and demonstrates "independent utility." A more detailed description of the Project components is included in Section D, Project Description.

#### C. REGIONAL AND LOCAL LOCATION

As shown on Figure 1, the Project alignment is located in western San Mateo County and is bounded by Coronado Street to the north; El Granada Elementary School and Wilkinson School, open space, and single-family residential, to the east; Mirada Road to the south, and Highway 1 to the west. The Project site is located 25 miles south of San Francisco, and 50 miles north of the City of Santa Cruz.

The Project alignment is currently undeveloped; however, access is provided via several streets that cross or are adjacent to the proposed Project, including Coronado Avenue, Cortez Avenue, Medio Avenue, Furtado Lane, and Miramar Drive.

#### EXISTING SETTING

#### **Existing Conditions**

The Project alignment is comprised of 10.39 acres of undeveloped land within the Highway 1 Caltrans right-of-way in San Mateo County. The Project alignment includes a variety of non-native annual grassland, central coast riparian scrub, non-native riparian woodland, a stand of Monterey cypress trees, coastal seasonal wetlands, non-wetland waters, and some developed areas. Elevations along the Project alignment range from 9 feet to 75 feet above sea level. Given that the Project site is directly adjacent to the east of Highway 1, portions of the alignment are disturbed and mowed regularly. In addition, there are several Pacific Gas & Electric (PG&E) utility poles throughout the alignment, as well as above-ground utility boxes at the corner of Coronado Street and Highway 1.

As shown on Figure 2, the Project alignment is largely unimproved and undeveloped. The stretch of land from Coronado Street to the private driveway just north of Magellan Avenue consists primarily of nonnative grassland, and slopes downward west toward Highway 1. The area south of the private driveway extending to just south of Magellan Avenue consists of dense vegetation, and then transitions back to non-native grassland to Furtado Lane. Between Furtado Lane and Miramar Drive, there's an area of dense vegetation, including a stand of trees. Finally, the area of land between Miramar Drive to the southern boundary of the Project alignment at Mirada Road consists of non-native grassland, with dense vegetation along the eastern edge of the boundary. Further, there are no formal sidewalks or improved drainage channels on or along the Project alignment; however, there is an existing bike lane on Highway 1 the length of the Project site. A portion of an archaeological site<sup>7</sup> is located within the Project footprint.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> CA-SMA-149.





Source: ESRI, 2015. PlaceWorks, 2015

Proposed Trail





Source: Google Earth Pro, 2016. PlaceWorks, 2016.



Approximate Trail Alignment

Figure 2 Existing Conditions

Although undeveloped and not currently used as a recreational area, the Project alignment generally offers views of the Pacific Ocean on the portion of the alignment that is west of Magellan Avenue. However, areas east of Magellan Avenue are buffered by vegetation and residential development and therefore offer limited views of the Pacific Ocean.

#### **Surrounding Conditions**

Land uses surrounding the Project alignment primarily consist of single-family residential uses along the northern boundary of the Project alignment, with the exception of schools to the east at the intersection of Coronado Street and Highway 1, which includes Wilkinson School, a private K to 8<sup>th</sup> grade school, and El Granada Elementary, a Cabrillo Unified School District-K through 5<sup>th</sup> grade school. Both schools are directly adjacent to the Project alignment along its north/northeastern boundary. South of the Project alignment (from Mirada Road) land uses are similar to those described above, including undeveloped areas of non-native grassland and, single-family residential, as well as commercial uses, including a hotel and coffee shop. To the south across Highway 1, between Coronado Street and Magellan Avenue, is an undeveloped area open space that fronts the ocean and is covered with similar vegetation as that of the Project alignment. The Mirada Surf West Walk, another multimodal trail segment of the CCT is located in this area. A single-family residential neighborhood and areas consisting of a mix of dense vegetation, as well as less dense non-native grassland are located south of the Project alignment between Magellan Avenue and Mirada Road. The area west of the Project alignment across from Coronado Street primarily consists of areas of undeveloped land, as well as some single- and multi-family uses along Avenue Alhambra.

#### Land Use Designation and Zoning

The Project site is within Caltrans' right of way in San Mateo County; therefore, the San Mateo County General Plan Land Use and Zoning Designations will not apply. However, as shown below in Figure 3, a small portion of the Project is located outside of the Caltrans right of way, within San Mateo County jurisdiction. General Plan land use designations adjacent to the Project alignment include Open Space Urban, Institutional Urban, Public Recreation Urban, and Medium Low Density Residential Urban,<sup>8</sup> as shown on Figure 3. The reach of trail within County jurisdiction will occur in the Institutional land use designation.

As shown on Figure 4, the Project site is adjacent to two Zoning designations, including One-Family Residential District/Combining District Midcoast/Design Review District/Coastal Development District (R-1/S-94/DR/CD), and Resource Management-Coastal Zone/Design Review District/Coastal Development District (RM-CZ/DR/CD). The reach of trail that will be within County jurisdiction will occur in the RM-CZ/DR/CD zoning designation.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup> San Mateo County, San Mateo Planning and Building Department GIS Website, http://maps.smcgov.org/planning/, accessed February 18, 2016.

#### MIDCOAST MULTIMODAL TRAIL PROJECT INITIAL STUDY



Coastside Commercial Recreation



**Public Recreation** 

Figure 3 General Plan Land Uses







Proposed Trail



#### D. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The County of San Mateo Department of Public Works proposes to construct a new 0.8-mile, 12-footwide, two-directional multi-use trail parallel to Highway 1 from Coronado Street to Mirada Road, which will be open for public access 365 days a year. The Project will also include entry and safety signage, traffic-calming features at road crossings, a creek bridge, retaining wall and other infrastructure designed to minimize potential impacts to the natural drainage courses and wetland areas, as described below under the heading "Trail Components." Further, as shown on Figure 5, the Project consists of seven segments that comprise the entire 0.8 miles of trail, which are described in more detail below.

## Trail Components

#### a. Trail Surface

The proposed trail includes an 8-foot-wide asphalt surface with a painted stripe down the center, and a 2-foot-wide surface of decomposed granite on either side of the asphalt, for a total of 12 feet in width.

#### b. Creek Bridge

The Project will include construction of a steel bridge spanning 80 feet to connect the multimodal trail across the Arroyo de en Medio Creek between Furtado Lane and Miramar Drive. The elevation of the bridge will be approximately 10 feet above the bottom of the dry creek.

#### c. Drainage Infrastructure

The proposed Project crosses several small drainage courses, as described below, and will construct culverts beneath the trail to allow water to continue draining along these existing courses. The drainage culverts will be constructed using 15 inch in diameter reinforced concrete pipe.

#### d. Utilities

Proposed pedestrian scale lighting features will illuminate the proposed trail for safety; however, lighting will be solar powered and will not require connection to the existing utility infrastructure. Existing utilities, including the sewer manhole southwest of El Granada Elementary and the above-ground utility boxes at the corner of Highway 1 and Coronado Street may require relocation to accommodate the trail alignment; however, to the extent feasible, the proposed Project will try to minimize the need to relocate existing infrastructure. Furthermore, the trail alignment minimizes crossings with existing utilities.

#### e. Safety Signage and Markings

The Project will include signage at various locations along the trail, including at the trail entrance on the corner of Highway 1 and Coronado Street, as well as safety and way-finding signage for pedestrian and vehicular traffic, as described below.

- *Trail Crossing Signage.* Trail crossing signage will be constructed on all roadways with trail crossings to alert automobile drivers from both directions that they are approaching a trail.
- *ii. Advanced Trail Crossing Signage.* This signage will be placed beneath the Trail Crossing Signage (described above) when the advanced warning for automobile drivers is needed due to visibility at a crossing point.
- iii. *Modified W10-3 Signage.* This signage will be placed on Highway 1 at Miramar Drive facing both northbound and southbound traffic to alert vehicles of the trail crossing on Miramar Drive.





Source: Google Earth Pro, 2016. PlaceWorks, 2016.

0\_\_\_\_\_\_600 Scale (Feet)

Approximate Project Trail Alignment

Approximate Trail Segment Dividers

Figure 5 Trail Segments In addition to the signage described above, markings will be painted on the pavement for safety, including high-visibility crosswalks, shark teeth yield markings, and raised crosswalk markings.

#### f. Fencing and Railing

The Project will include a vehicular barrier rail that will separate Highway 1 and trail traffic at Segment 4, described below and shown on Figure 9, as well as decorative railing along the top of a proposed retaining wall, serving as a buffer between the wetland and trail users. The barrier rail must be approved by Caltrans, and the railing will be consistent with the character of features along the existing CCT. Materials for the railing and barrier rail will likely consist of concrete and steel.

#### g. Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Access

The surface of the proposed trail will be constructed with a slope of no more than 5 percent and a width of 12 feet; therefore, the trail will be ADA compliant.

#### Trail Segments

#### a. Segment 1: Trailhead at Coronado Street

This segment of trail begins at the intersection of Highway 1 and Coronado Street, as shown on Figure 6. As shown on Figure 6, the Project proposes a crosswalk across Coronado Avenue to facilitate access to downtown El Granada. In addition to the crossing, the Project will include sidewalk improvements at the corner of Coronado Street where the trail will begin, and pedestrian/bicycle-activated push buttons at the traffic signal. Further, the Project will include a trailhead at the northeast corner of Highway 1 and Coronado Street. The trail alignment will be designed to minimize the disturbance to existing utility infrastructure and drainage; however, existing utility boxes and/or manholes that are on or near that corner will be relocated to accommodate the trail. With the exception of the trailhead near Highway 1, the remainder of the trail at this segment will generally be set back 60 feet from Highway 1 and within the Caltrans right-of-way; however, there will be a reach of trail that extends from the main trail that will provide direct access to El Granada Elementary School, as described in more detail under Segment 2.

#### b. Segment 2: El Granada Elementary School Access

As shown on Figure 7, this segment is a continuation of Segment 1 (described above). As shown on Figure 7, this stretch of trail will include the reach of trail that provides access to and from the El Granada Elementary School. Similar to Segment 1, this segment is generally set back 60 feet from Highway 1 and within the Caltrans right-of-way, with the exception of the reach of trail that provides access to the El Granada Elementary School, which is outside of the Caltrans right-of-way. The proposed Project will include installation of stop signs where the main trail intersects with the reach of trail that provides access to the school for the safety of pedestrians using both the main trail and the trail reach.

#### c. Segment 3: Wetland Trail at Private Road

As shown on Figure 8, this segment is a continuation of Segment 2 (described above). As shown on Figure 8, this stretch of trail will generally be set back 60 feet from Highway 1, with the exception of the eastern portion of the trail near the private road. The area adjacent to the private road and just north of the trail is a sensitive wetland and the trail is routed around that area to minimize potential impacts to the wetland and drainage area. At this segment of trail, a culvert will be constructed below the trail to







minimize impacts to the existing drainage course, as shown on Figure 8. In addition, a new gate and fencing at the entry to the private road will be located 40 feet from Highway 1, which will replace the existing gate that is currently set back 120 feet from Highway 1. The trail will extend behind the fence and in front of the wetland. This segment of trail could require the removal of some vegetation to maintain sight distance.

#### d. Segment 4: Wetland Trail at Magellan Avenue and Coronado Avenue

As shown on Figure 9, this segment is a continuation of Segment 3 (described above). As shown on Figure 9, this stretch of trail is directly adjacent and runs parallel to Highway 1 in order to minimize potential impacts to the areas of existing wetland and vegetation. This segment will include construction of a vehicular barrier rail six feet from the roadway to serve as a buffer between the trail and the roadway. In addition, a retaining wall and decorative railing will be constructed, consistent with the character of the existing CCT, up to four feet in height in order to protect the wetland. Construction of this segment will require removal of some existing vegetation, as well as construction of a soldier pile wall and concrete foundation slab supported on 24-inch diameter cast-in-drilled hole piles that will require a pile driver to install, in order to accommodate the trail.

#### e. Segment 5: Cortez Avenue to Medio Avenue

As shown on Figure 10, this segment is a continuation of Segment 4 (described above). As shown on Figure 10, this stretch of trail will generally follow along the 60-foot setback line from Highway 1. The Project will include a crosswalk across Medio Avenue to connect the trail, as well as bulbouts, chokers, and signage to serve as traffic-calming measures and to alert vehicular traffic where the trail crosses Medio Avenue.

#### f. Segment 6: Medio Avenue to Miramar Drive

As shown on Figure 11, this segment is a continuation of Segment 5 (described above). As shown on Figure 11, the trail will cross a private driveway, Furtado Lane, and Miramar Drive. In order to control vehicular speed at these crossings, the Project will elevate the trail no more than 6 inches and include signage and pavement markings in order to alert vehicles of the trail. This segment of trail will involve removal of vegetation, as well as construction of an 80-foot, 12-foot-wide pedestrian bridge over Arroyo de en Medio Creek, in order to accommodate the proposed Project and to minimize potential impacts to the existing creek that runs between Furtado Lane and Miramar Drive. The bridge will be a pre-fabricated steel truss superstructure, which will be founded on a reinforced concrete grade beam supported on 30-inch diameter cast-in-drilled hole piles (2 each abutment) that will require a pile-driver to install. The trail will generally be set back more than 60 feet from Highway 1, and the proposed bridge will be set back 100 feet from the highway. The Project will also include a raised crosswalk where the trail crosses Miramar Drive.

#### g. Segment 7: Miramar Drive to Mirada Road

As shown on Figure 12, this segment is a continuation of Segment 6 (described above), and is the last segment of the trail. The Project will include removal of vegetation on the south side of Miramar Drive where trees and dense vegetation currently exists in order to increase the sight distance and visibility of trail users as they approach Miramar Drive from the south. Additionally, there will be some vegetation

#### MIDCOAST MULTIMODAL TRAIL PROJECT INITIAL STUDY







#### MIDCOAST MULTIMODAL TRAIL PROJECT INITIAL STUDY





#### MIDCOAST MULTIMODAL TRAIL PROJECT INITIAL STUDY





removal where the trail approaches Mirada Road in order to align the trail 60 feet from Highway 1 at the Miranda Road crossing. This stretch of trail will be set back 40-60 feet from Highway 1 and will be aligned to minimize potential impacts to existing vegetation along the northern boundary of the Project site which serves as a buffer between existing residential uses and the proposed Project. Although this segment is the end of the trail for the proposed Project, there will not be a formal trailhead where this segment ends given that it is intended to connect to future phases of the trail, not currently proposed under this Project.

#### E. CEQA LEAD AGENCY

Section 15367 of the CEQA Guidelines defines the "Lead Agency" as the public agency which has the principal responsibility for carrying out or approving a project. As the location of the Project is primarily within Caltrans right-of-way, Caltrans would typically be the lead agency, however lead agency status was transferred to San Mateo County on March 7, 2018. The County of San Mateo Public Works Department is the public agency which has the principal responsibility for planning, designing, and building the proposed Project; however, as noted above, the Project site is within the Caltrans right-of-way, therefore Caltrans will be responsible to approve construction activities related to the Project within its right-of-way. Section 15381 of the CEQA Guidelines defines a "Responsible Agency" as any public agency other than the Lead Agency which has discretionary approval power over the project. As such, Caltrans is a responsible agency.

#### F. CONSTRUCTION

Construction of the proposed Project will take place over approximately 6 months and is expected to begin in the spring of 2019.

#### G. REQUIRED APPROVALS

Following the County's certification of the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and subsequent approval of the Project, San Mateo County will conclude their review and analysis of the proposed Project, and hold the required public hearings for the following permits, as well as other permits as determined throughout the environmental review and permitting process:

- Section 1602 Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement (California Department of Fish and Wildlife)
- Section 401 Water Quality Certification Permit (Regional Water Quality Control Board)
- Section 404 Nationwide Permit (Army Corps of Engineers)
- State Water Quality Control Board Review (State Water Quality Control Board)
- California Department of Fish and Wildlife Review (California Department of Fish and Wildlife)
### ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST

#### I. AESTHETICS

Wil	the Project:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
a)	Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?			$\checkmark$	
b)	Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings and historic buildings within a State scenic highway?				V
c)	Substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of the site and its surroundings?		V		
d)	Create a new source of substantial light or glare that will adversely affect day or nighttime views in the area?		V		
e)	Be adjacent to a designated Scenic Highway or within a State or County Scenic Corridor?		V		
f)	Be within a Design Review District, and if so, will it conflict with applicable General Plan or Zoning Ordinance provisions?				V
g)	Visually intrude into an area having natural scenic qualities?			V	

#### Discussion

#### a) Will the project have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?

The San Mateo County General Plan (County General Plan) and the County Local Coastal Program (LCP) do not define or officially designate any scenic vistas within the County. However, the General Plan does state that El Granada is largely influenced by its coastal setting, and mentions that the beautiful views of the ocean, rocky hills, dense stands of mature eucalyptus trees and sloped terrain make El Granada an extremely scenic area.<sup>9</sup> Further, the County General Plan identifies the Cabrillo Highway (Highway 1) as providing dramatic coastal views and is a County-designated scenic corridor.<sup>10</sup>

The Project will construct a new 0.8-mile, 12-foot-wide, two-directional multi-use trail parallel to Highway 1 from Coronado Street to Mirada Road primarily within an existing Caltrans right-of-way. As described in detail under the Project Description, the trail will consist of an 8-foot-wide asphalt surface, and a 2-foot-wide surface of decomposed granite on either side of the asphalt, for a total of 12 feet in width. Other features will include a pedestrian bridge along Segment 6 (described above) spanning the creek, as well as safety and way-finding signage along the trail.

Additionally, Segment 4 (described above) will include construction of a retaining wall up to four feet in height to serve as a buffer between the trail and the existing wetland; however, the retaining wall will be below the height of the existing vegetation and will not obstruct any views. Lastly, the Project will include

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup> County of San Mateo General Plan, page 4.14.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>10</sup> County of San Mateo General Plan, Table 4.1, page 4.8 and map from page 4.12.

a guardrail at Segment 4 where the trail alignment is directly adjacent to Highway 1 to serve as a safety barrier between vehicles and trail users; however, the guardrail will be below the height of existing vegetation and the proposed retaining wall, therefore will not obstruct views.

Overall, the Project will not include any components or features that will block scenic vistas. Therefore, a *less-than-significant* impact will occur and no mitigation measures are required.

# b) Will the project substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings and historic buildings within a State scenic highway?

The trail alignment is not located within the vicinity of a State scenic highway; however, the stretch of Highway 1 from Half Moon Bay (2.5 miles south) to the Santa Cruz County line, is a State-designated scenic highway. Given the distance of the trail alignment from this segment of Highway 1, and because the trail alignment itself is not located immediately adjacent to a State designated scenic highway, there will be *no impact*. No mitigation measures are required.

# c) Will the project substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of the site and its surroundings?

As discussed in Section C above, the undeveloped Project site is within the Caltrans right-of-way; however, the surrounding visual setting is characterized by public open space, single- and multi-family residential homes, and Wilkinson and El Granada Elementary Schools. There is also an existing portion of the CCT which exists directly to the south of Highway 1 across from the Project site between Coronado Street and Magellan Avenue. The undeveloped Project site includes a variety of non-native annual grassland, central coast riparian scrub, non-native riparian woodland, a stand of Monterey cypress trees, coastal seasonal wetlands, non-wetland waters, and some developed areas, with elevations ranging from 9 to 75 feet.

Development of the Project would result in vegetation removal, consisting of clearing and grubbing activities along the trail alignment. As shown on Figures 15a and 15b, vegetation to be removed consists of non-native Annual Grassland. In addition, development would require the removal of a Monterey Cypress tree located within an existing stand of Monterey Cypress Forest located South of Furtado Lane, near the existing wooden bridge (Segment 6). These activities would be limited to the area immediately along the 12-foot-wide trail as required to facilitate its construction. Both the vegetation and tree proposed to be removed are visible from Highway 1 and residential homes located adjacent to the proposed trail alignment. Although the removal of vegetation and tree would be visible from locations immediately surrounding the Project site, these activities would be limited in scope and therefore impact on visual quality in the vicinity.

The proposed trail will include visible enhancements including an improved 8 foot wide asphalt surface and with a 2 foot decomposed granite shoulder on either side, for a total of 12 feet, a retaining wall fence and guard rail along Segment 4 (as described above), and a 80-foot bridge along Segment 6. Further, there will also be safety and way-finding signage at various points along the trail. There are no permanent buildings that will degrade the existing visual character. Overall, the Project will provide visual enhancement to the surrounding area by providing a formalized trail for pedestrians to facilitate views of scenic resources. Although there could be impacts to visual character during construction related activities, such as views of construction equipment (i.e., tractors, trucks, etc.) and supplies, these impacts will be temporary and last only during construction of the trail.

Although the Project will not include construction of permanent buildings, the construction of a trail in an otherwise undeveloped area could substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of the site and its surroundings. However, compliance with Mitigation Measure AES-1 will minimize these potential impacts to the visual character.

**Mitigation Measure AES-1:** Consistent with policies included in the Visual Resources Component of the San Mateo County Local Coastal Program, adopted in June 2013, the applicant shall comply with the following measures:

- Set back development from the edge of streams and other natural waterways a sufficient distance to preserve the visual character of the waterway;
- Prohibit structural development which will adversely affect the visual quality of perennial streams and associated riparian habitat, except for those permitted by Sensitive Habitats Component Policies of the Local Coastal Program;
- Retain wetlands intact except for public accessways designed to respect the visual and ecological fragility of the area and adjacent land, in accordance with Sensitive Habitats Component policies of the Local Coastal Program.
- Employ the use of natural materials and colors (i.e. earth tones) for construction of the trail, trail signage and the pedestrian bridge that blend with the vegetative cover of the site;

Overall, while the proposed Project will introduce a trail to an undeveloped area which could alter the character of the existing site, compliance with Mitigation Measure AES-1, will ensure that the Project has a *less-than-significant* impact with regards to visual character.

# d) Will the project create a new source of substantial light or glare that will adversely affect day or nighttime views in the area?

The Project site itself is undeveloped and does not contain existing sources of light or glare; however, the area is developed with urban uses, which provide sources of light in the vicinity.

Existing sources of light and glare in the vicinity of the Project site are typical of residential, institutional, and commercial land uses, including interior and exterior lighting, and sources of glare from building windows and cars. As described above, the Project will include lighting features at key locations to illuminate the proposed trail for safety which could result in impacts to day or nighttime views in the area. Additionally, the Project will include structures such as vehicular barrier rails, way-finding and safety signage, and a pedestrian bridge, which could be constructed of materials that result in glare. However, compliance with Mitigation Measure AES-2 will serve to minimize these impacts.

**Mitigation Measure AES-2:** To ensure that lighting and glare impacts do not cause a significant impact upon adjacent residential or open space uses, the applicant shall implement the following measures:

- The Project shall use lighting standards that are shielded, aimed directly to the ground to minimize light spillage to adjacent properties and in the case of the proposed bridge and boardwalk will be low or pedestal mounted;
- Employ the use of natural materials and colors (i.e. earth tones) that blend with the vegetative cover of the site; and
- Design and minimize information and direction signs to be simple, easy-to-read, and harmonize with surrounding elements;

Overall, compliance with Mitigation Measure AES-2 related to lighting and reflection will ensure that the Project does not result in a new source of substantial light or glare that will adversely affect day or nighttime views in the area. Therefore, a *less-than-significant* impact will occur.

# e) Will the project be adjacent to a designated Scenic Highway or within a State or County Scenic Corridor?

As described under discussion I.b above, the trail alignment is not located within the vicinity of a State scenic highway. However, the Project site is parallel and directly adjacent to Cabrillo Highway (Highway 1), which is designated as a County Scenic Corridor. The San Mateo County General Plan defines "scenic corridors" as land adjacent to a scenic road right-of-way which, when seen from the road, provides outstanding views of natural landscapes and attractive man-made development.<sup>11</sup> Although the proposed Project would involve construction of a trail, trail signage, and a pedestrian bridge within the County Scenic Corridor, none of the proposed features would include the type of structures (i.e. buildings) that would typically obstruct or otherwise impede scenic views offered along the corridor. Additionally, components of the proposed Project would be below the height of existing residential and commercial structures, and vegetation, that surround the Project site and therefore would not impede or obstruct scenic views from within the County Scenic Corridor. Nevertheless, the Project will be adjacent to a County Scenic Corridor; however, implementation of Mitigation Measure AES-3 will minimize potential impacts.

**Mitigation Measure AES-3:** To ensure that Project components will not obstruct views within the County Scenic Corridor, the applicant shall:

- Locate and design new development and landscaping so that ocean views are not blocked from public viewing points such as public roads and publicly-owned land; and
- To the extent feasible, design development to minimize blocking of views to or along the ocean shoreline from Highway 1 and other public viewpoints between Highway 1 and the sea.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>11</sup> San Mateo County, General Plan, Overview Background & Issues, November 1986, page 7G.

Overall, compliance with Mitigation Measure AES-3 will ensure that the proposed Project will result in a *less-than-significant* impact with regards to impacts in the County Scenic Corridor.

# f) Will the project be within a Design Review District, and if so, will it conflict with applicable General Plan or Zoning Ordinance provisions?

The Project site is within the Caltrans right of way, and while the site is technically within a Design Review District, the Design Review standards do not apply in this case. These standards apply primarily to residential and/or commercial development. Therefore, given that the Project does not include a residential component, or any other permanent structural component, the Project will not be in conflict with the General Plan or Zoning Ordinance provisions regarding design review. Therefore, *no impact* will occur and no mitigation measures are required.

### g) Will the project visually intrude into an area having natural scenic qualities?

For the reasons described under impact discussion I.c, and within implementation of Mitigation Measure AES-1 as described above, the proposed Project will have *a less-than-significant* impact with regards to intrusion into an area having natural scenic qualities.

Wil	the Project:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
a)	For lands outside the Coastal Zone, convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland or Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency, to non- agricultural use?				V
b)	Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, an existing Open Space Easement, or a Williamson Act contract?				$\checkmark$
c)	Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or nature, could result in conversion of farmland to non-agricultural use or of conversion of forest land to non-forest use?	٦		٦	Ø
d)	For lands within the Coastal Zone, convert or divide lands identified as Class I or Class II Agriculture Soils and Class III Soils rated good or very good for artichokes or Brussels sprouts?				V
e)	Result in damage to soil capability or loss of agricultural land?				V
f)	Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code Section 4526), or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code Section 51104(g))?	٦	٦	٦	Ø

#### II. AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY RESOURCES

#### Discussion

a) Will the project convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use?

According to maps from the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency land within El Granada is categorized as primarily Urban and Built-Up Land. The Project site is located on Urban and Built-Up Land.<sup>12</sup> There are no agricultural lands identified as Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance within the Project site. However, the Project site is within a Resource Management-Coastal Zone (RM-CZ) District, which does permit uses such as agricultural use, and timber harvesting, among other uses; however, the site currently does not include farming, timber harvesting, or any other agricultural use. Therefore, the Project will result in *no impact* and no mitigation measures are required.

### b) Will the project conflict with an existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract?

The Project site is located within the Caltrans right-of-way and does not include any agricultural use. Further, according to the 2012 map of Williamson Act contract land, there is no agricultural land within the Project site. <sup>13</sup> Therefore, implementation of the proposed Project will not conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract. Consequently, the Project will result in *no impact* and no mitigation measures are required.

# c) Will the project involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or nature, could result in conversion of farmland to non-agricultural use or of conversion of forest land to non-forest use?

As detailed above, the Project site and surrounding areas do not include any zoning, or existing land uses relating to forest land, timber production, or agriculture. Although the Project site itself is undeveloped, it is generally in an urbanized area surrounded by existing residential and commercial development, and will not impact any distant or outlying areas used for agricultural lands. Further, as mentioned above, the Project site is within a RM-CZ District, which does permit uses such as agricultural use, and timber harvesting, among other uses; however, the site currently does not include farming, timber harvesting, or any other agricultural use. Therefore, the Project will result in *no impact* and no mitigation measures are required.

# d) For lands within the Coastal Zone, will the project convert or divide lands identified as Class I or Class II Agriculture Soils and Class III Soils rated good or very good for artichokes or Brussels sprouts?

According to the San Mateo County Public GIS Viewer, the Project site will not be located on Class I, Class II, or Class III Agriculture Soils, <sup>14</sup> therefore, *no impact* will occur and no mitigation measures are required.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>12</sup> California Resources Agency, Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program. San Mateo County Important Farmland 2012, ftp://ftp.consrv.ca.gov/pub/dlrp/FMMP/pdf/2012/smt12.pdf, accessed March 2, 2016.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>13</sup> California Department of Conservation, 2012, State of California Williamson Act Contract Land,

ftp://ftp.consrv.ca.gov/pub/dlrp/wa/2012%20Statewide%20Map/WA\_2012\_36x42.pdf, accessed March 2, 2016.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>14</sup> San Mateo County Public GIS Viewer, http://maps.smcgov.org/planning/, accessed May 18, 2016.

#### e) Will the project result in damage to soil capability or loss of agricultural land?

For the reasons described in impact discussion II.c and II.d, the proposed Project will not result in damage to soil capability or loss of agricultural land. Therefore, *no impact* would occur and no mitigation measures are required.

f) Will the project conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code Section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code Section 4526), or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code Section 51104(g))?

Neither the Project site, nor adjoining parcels feature zoning designations for forest land, timberland, or timber production. Therefore, the Project will result in *no impact* and no mitigation measures are required.

Wil	I the Project:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
a)	Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan?			V	
b)	Violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air quality violation?			V	
c)	Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project area is in non- attainment under applicable federal or State ambient air quality standards (including releasing emissions which exceed quantitative thresholds for ozone precursors)?		٦	Ŋ	
d)	Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations, as defined by BAAQMD?				
e)	Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of people?			V	
f)	Generate pollutants (hydrocarbon, thermal odor, dust or smoke particulates, radiation, etc.) that will violate existing standards of air quality on-site or in the surrounding area?			V	

#### III. AIR QUALITY

#### Discussion

The Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) is the regional air quality management agency for the San Francisco Bay Area Air Basin (SFBAAB), which comprises all of Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, Napa, San Francisco, San Mateo, and Santa Clara counties; the southern portion of Sonoma County; and the southwestern portion of Solano County. Air quality in this area is determined by such natural factors as topography, meteorology, and climate, in addition to the presence of existing air pollution sources and ambient conditions.<sup>15</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>15</sup> Bay Area Air Quality Management District, 2011, California Environmental Quality Act Air Quality Guidelines, Appendix C: Sample Air Quality Setting.

### a) Will the project conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan?

Large projects that exceed regional employment, population, and housing planning projections have the potential to be inconsistent with the regional inventory compiled as part of the BAAQMD 2010 Bay Area Clean Air Plan. The Project will result in the construction of a 0.8-mile multi-use trail within 10.39 acres of undeveloped land, within the Caltrans right-of-way in the unincorporated community of El Granada and will not generate new operational vehicle trips within the area. In addition, the proposed Project will not have the potential to substantially affect housing, employment, and population projections within the region, which is the basis of the Bay Area Clean Air Plan projections. Therefore, the proposed Project is not considered a regionally significant project under CEQA Guidelines Section 15206 that will affect regional vehicle miles traveled (VMT) and warrant intergovernmental review by the Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) and the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC). Furthermore, the Project will fall under BAAQMD's screening criteria, which is used to determine projects that have the potential to generate emissions that exceed BAAQMD's operational emissions thresholds (see Section III (b)). These thresholds are established to identify projects that have the potential to generate a substantial amount of criteria air pollutants. Because the Project will not exceed these thresholds during Project operations, the Project will not be considered by BAAQMD to be a substantial emitter of criteria air pollutants. Therefore, the Project will not conflict with or obstruct implementation of the 2010 Bay Area Clean Air Plan and impacts will be considered *less than significant*. No mitigation measures are required.

# b) Will the project violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air quality violation?

BAAQMD has identified thresholds of significance for criteria pollutant emissions and criteria air pollutant precursors, including reactive organic gases (ROG), oxides of nitrogen (NOx), coarse inhalable particulate matter (PM10), and fine inhalable particulate matter (PM2.5). Developments below the significant thresholds are not expected to generate sufficient criteria pollutant emissions to violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air quality violation.

### Construction Emissions

Construction activities produce combustion emissions from various sources, such as on-site heavy-duty construction vehicles, vehicles hauling materials to and from the Project site, and motor vehicles transporting the construction crew. Site preparation activities produce fugitive dust emissions (PM10 and PM2.5) from soil-disturbing activities, such as grading and excavation. Air pollutant emissions from construction activities on site will vary daily as construction activity levels change. The proposed Project involves the construction of an 8-foot-wide asphalt surface with a painted stripe down the center, and a 2-foot-wide surface of decomposed granite on either side of the asphalt, for a total of 12 feet in width. BAAQMD's CEQA Guidelines identifies screening criteria for construction-related criteria air pollutant emissions. Since BAAQMD's CEQA Guidelines does not have specific screening criteria for recreational trails, the screening criteria for city parks were used as the best fit. Based on BAAQMD's screening criteria air pollutant emissions and will need further analysis. The proposed Project will not exceed the screening-level size identified by BAAQMD and will generate a nominal increase in criteria air pollutants during construction activities. Furthermore, the proposed Project does not have any unusual circumstances, such as the potential to result in overlapping construction activities. Therefore, a

quantified analysis of the Project's construction emissions is not necessary and the impact is *less than significant*.

#### **Operational Emissions**

The existing 10.39 acres of undeveloped land do not generate long-term air pollutant emissions from the burning of fossil fuels in vehicles (mobile sources), energy use for cooling, heating, and cooking (energy), or landscape equipment use and consumer products (area sources). The proposed Project involves the construction of a trail. BAAQMD's CEQA Guidelines identifies screening criteria for operation-related criteria air pollutant emissions. Since BAAQMD's CEQA Guidelines does not have specific screening criteria for recreational trails, the screening criteria for city parks were used as the best fit. Based on BAAQMD's screening criteria, city parks of 2,613 acres or larger have the potential to generate a substantial increase in criteria air pollutant emissions and will need further analysis. The Project is substantially below the BAAQMD screening threshold and will generate nominal criteria air pollutant emissions. Furthermore, the proposed Project will not generate new vehicle trips within the area; therefore, it is not anticipated to result in a net increase of mobile source emissions. Additionally, the proposed trail will be energy efficient. Criteria air pollutant emissions generated by the Project at the operational level are a *less than significant* impact

## c) Will the project result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project area is in non-attainment under applicable Federal or State ambient air quality standards (including releasing emissions which exceed quantitative thresholds for ozone precursors?

The SFBAAB is currently designated as a nonattainment area for California and National ambient air quality standards (AAQS) for ozone (O3) and for PM2.5, and a nonattainment area under the California AAQS for PM10. Any project that does not exceed or can be mitigated to less than the BAAQMD significance levels, used as the threshold for determining major projects, does not add significantly to a cumulative impact. As explained in response to Section III.b above, construction and operation of the Project will fall under the BAAQMD screening criteria and will not result in regional emissions in excess of these threshold values. This impact is considered *less than significant*.

### d) Will the project expose sensitive receptors to pollutant concentrations, as defined by BAAQMD?

Localized concentrations refer to the amount of pollutants in a volume of air (ppm or  $\mu$ g/m3) that can be correlated to potential health effects on sensitive populations. The closest sensitive receptors to the Project are the residences located approximately 75 feet north of the Project near Medio Ave and El Granada Elementary School located approximately 85 feet north of the Project.

### Construction Off-Site Community Risk and Hazards

Project construction will temporarily elevate concentrations of toxic air contaminants (TACs) and PM<sub>2.5</sub> in the vicinity of sensitive land uses during construction activities. However, construction of the Project trail will not generate an intensive construction schedule or a substantial off-road equipment fleet that will result in significant construction impacts to off-site sensitive receptors. Overall, construction emissions associated with the proposed Project will not exceed BAAQMD's project level and cumulative significance thresholds for community risk and hazards, and the impact is *less than significant*.

### Operational Phase On-Site Community Risk and Hazards

Once completed, the Project will not be a source of emissions; therefore operational on-site emissions pose no risk to the community and have a *less-than-significant* impact. No mitigation measures are warranted.

#### e) Will the project create objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of people?

Construction and operation of a recreational trail will not generate substantial odors. The type of facilities that are considered to have objectionable odors include wastewater treatments plants, compost facilities, landfills, solid waste transfer stations, fiberglass manufacturing facilities, paint/coating operations (e.g. auto body shops), dairy farms, petroleum refineries, asphalt batch plants, chemical manufacturing, and food manufacturing facilities. Recreational uses are not associated with foul odors that constitute a public nuisance.

During construction activities, the application of asphalt will temporarily generate odors. Any construction-related odor emissions will be temporary and intermittent in nature. Additionally, noxious odors will be confined to the immediate vicinity of the construction equipment. By the time such emissions reach any sensitive receptor sites, they will be diluted to well below any level of air quality concern. Impacts will be *less than significant*. No mitigation measures are warranted.

# f) Will the project generate pollutants (hydrocarbon, thermal odor, dust or smoke particulates, radiation, etc.) that will violate existing standards of air quality on-site or in the surrounding area?

The proposed Project is a passive recreation trail and motor vehicles (except for maintenance and emergency services) will not be permitted to use the facility. Although the Project may generate pollutants during the construction phase (as discussed above) related to equipment typical of trail construction (i.e. trucks, small tractors, compaction equipment, etc.), these impacts will be temporary and only last during the construction period, thus it is not anticipated that these activities will result in the generation of a substantial amount of pollutants. Overall, impacts will be *less than significant* with regards to generation of pollutants and no mitigation measures are required.

Will the Project:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
a) Have a significant adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?		M		

### IV. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES

Wil	the Project:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
b)	Have a significant adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community identified in local or regional plans, policies, regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?		Q	٦	
c)	Have a significant adverse effect on federally protected wetlands as defined by Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means?			M	
d)	Interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites?		Ŋ		
e)	Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree preservation policy or ordinance (including the County Heritage and Significant Tree Ordinance)?		Ø		
f)	Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan?				
g)	Be located inside or within 200 feet of a marine wildlife preserve?				V
h)	Result in the loss of oak woodlands or other non-timber woodlands?		Ø		

The discussion below reflects the findings of the *Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project Biological Resources Assessment* (BRA) and Wetland Delineation Report prepared by WRA Environmental Associates on October 23, 2015. These reports are included in Appendix A. The biological resources assessment and wetland delineation were based on site conditions observed on August 13, 2015, related information available at the time of the study, and from reviewing past reports completed on the Study Area or adjacent properties.

### **Existing Conditions**

The Study Area includes non-native annual grassland, central coast riparian scrub dominated by arroyo willow (*Salix lasiolepis*), a non-native riparian woodland dominated by blue gum (*Eucalyptus globulus*), a stand of Monterey cypress (*Hesperocyparis macrocarpa*), developed areas, coastal seasonal wetlands, and non-wetland waters, with elevations ranging from 9 to 75 feet. Residential neighborhoods, public open space, and schools surround the Study Area. The upland portions of the Study Area are generally comprised of wind breaks of Monterey cypress and non-native annual grasslands.

The Study Area is situated on a coastal terrace between the Santa Cruz mountain range and the Pacific Coast. No past development or agricultural fields occur within the Study Area; however, based on historic

aerial imagery, portions of the Study Area are mowed regularly.<sup>16</sup> In addition, a Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E) power line occurs through the Study Area in several locations. The Study Area is transected by developed areas including Miramar Drive, Medio Avenue, and a private dirt road.

The study area was evaluated for the potential occurrence of special-status species by first determining which special-status species occur through a literature and database search. Database searches for known occurrences of special-status species focused on the Half Moon Bay and Montara Mountain 7.5 minute U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) quadrangles. The following sources were reviewed to determine which special-status plant and wildlife species have been documented to occur in the vicinity of the Study Area:

- California Natural Diversity Database records (CDFW 2015)
- USFWS quadrangle species lists (USFWS 2015)
- CNPS Electronic Inventory records (CNPS 2015)
- CDFG publication "California's Wildlife, Volumes I-III" (Zeiner et al. 1990)
- CDFG publication "California Bird Species of Special Concern" (Shuford and Gardali 2008)
- CDFG publication "Amphibians and Reptile Species of Special Concern in California" (Jennings 1994)
- CDFG publication "An Annotated Check List of Amphibians and Reptile Species of California and Adjacent Waters, third revised edition" (Jennings 2004)
- A Field Guide to Western Reptiles and Amphibians (Stebbins 2003)
- San Mateo County Local Coastal Program (County of San Mateo 2013)
- a. Special-Status Plant Species

As shown in Figure 13, special-status plant species were identified within the vicinity of the Study Area; however, they are unlikely or have no potential to occur within the Study Area given its disturbed character, compared to the coastal prairie, woodlands, or high quality meadows and seeps where special status species are likely to occur.<sup>17</sup>

#### b. Special-Status Animal Species

As shown on Figure 14, special status animal species were identified within the vicinity of the Study Area; however, most species are unlikely or precluded from occurring based upon the high level of development and disturbance in the area and lack of suitable habitat.<sup>18</sup> Two special-status animal species were observed during the August 13, 2015 site visit and three other special-status animal species are determined to have a moderate potential to occur in the Study Area. The two species observed included the San Francisco dusky-footed woodrat (*Neotoma fuscipes annectens*) and the Yellow warbler

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>16</sup> Biological Resources Assessment, Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project, El Granada, San Mateo County, California, prepared by WRA Environmental Consultants, October 23, 2015, page 1.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>17</sup> Biological Resources Assessment, Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project, El Granada, San Mateo County, California, prepared by WRA Environmental Consultants, October 23, 2015, page 16.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>18</sup> Biological Resources Assessment, Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project, El Granada, San Mateo County, California, prepared by WRA Environmental Consultants, October 23, 2015, page 16.





Source: WRA Environmental Consultants, 2015.







Source: WRA Environmental Consultants, 2015.

Scale (Feet)



(*Setophaga petechial brewsteri*). The three species that have moderate potential to occur include the Loggerhead shrike (*Lanius ludovicianus*), Allen's hummingbird (*Selasphorus sasin*), and the White-tailed kite (*Elanus leucurus*).<sup>19</sup>

### Discussion

a) Will the Project have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on a plant or animal population, or essential habitat, defined as a candidate, sensitive or special-status species in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or US Fish and Wildlife Service?

Special-status species are plants and animals that are legally protected under the State and/or federal Endangered Species Acts or other regulations, as well as other species that are considered rare enough by the scientific community and trustee agencies to warrant special consideration, particularly with regard to protection of isolated populations, nesting or denning locations, communal roosts and other essential habitat.

### Special-Status Animal Species

Of the 59 special-status animal species previously documented in the vicinity of the Study Area, two are present and three were determined to have the potential to occur within the Study Area, as described above. However, the other species occur in habitats not found in the Study Area. Further, no aquatic habitat is present and high development and disturbance within and adjacent to the Study Area preclude the presence of many species.<sup>20</sup> Although most special-status species are not expected to occur within the Study Area, Mitigation Measure BIO-1 will ensure the protection of the San Francisco dusky-footed woodrat, which was observed during the site visit.

**Mitigation Measure BIO-1:** The following measure shall be implemented to avoid and minimize potential impacts to special-status species:

- A qualified biologist shall conduct a pre-construction survey for Dusky-footed woodrat houses no less than 7 days and no more than 30 days prior to the beginning of ground disturbance and/or construction activities. The survey shall cover the work area and a 50-foot buffer in the upstream and downstream directions. Any Dusky-footed woodrat houses found shall be marked in the field with flagging tape and their locations will be recorded with GPS.
- If a Dusky-footed woodrat house is identified in a work area, the County shall attempt to
  preserve the house and maintain an intact dispersal corridor between the house and
  undisturbed habitat. An adequate dispersal corridor would be considered to be a minimum of
  50 feet wide and have greater than 70 percent vegetative cover. In the event such a corridor
  is infeasible, the County shall avoid physical disturbance of the nest if feasible.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>19</sup> Biological Resources Assessment, Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project, El Granada, San Mateo County, California, prepared by WRA Environmental Consultants, October 23, 2015, page 16 and 19.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>20</sup> Biological Resources Assessment, Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project, El Granada, San Mateo County, California, prepared by WRA Environmental Consultants, October 23, 2015, page 24.

If a Dusky-footed woodrat house(s) cannot be avoided, the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) shall be notified and information regarding the house location(s) and relocation plan shall be provided. With approval from CDFW and prior to the beginning of construction, a qualified biologist shall dismantle by hand and relocate the house material. Materials from the house shall be dispersed into adjacent suitable habitat that is outside of the work area. During the deconstruction process a qualified biologist shall attempt to assess if there are juveniles in the house. If immobile juveniles are observed, the deconstruction process shall be discontinued until a time when the biologist believes the juveniles will be fully mobile. A 10-foot-wide no-disturbance buffer shall be established around the house until the juveniles are mobile. The house may be dismantled once a qualified biologist has determined that adverse impacts on the juveniles would not occur. All disturbances to woodrat houses shall be documented in a construction monitoring report and submitted to CDFW.

Implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-1 will ensure the protection of the San Francisco dusky-footed woodrat and impacts to this special-status animal species will be *less-than-significant*.

#### Special-Status and Non-Special-Status Nesting Birds

Four special-status bird species were determined to potentially nest in trees and shrubs within the Study Area. Although most common native bird species are also protected under the Migratory Bird Treaty Act (MBTA) during nesting season, Mitigation Measure BIO-2 will further reduce the potential disturbance to nesting birds within the Study Area.

**Mitigation Measure BIO-2:** The following measure shall be implemented to avoid and minimize potential impacts to nesting birds:

- If project activities are to be conducted during the nesting season (February 15 to August 31), a pre-construction nesting bird survey shall be performed no more than 14 days prior to initial ground disturbance to avoid impacting active nests, eggs, and/or young.
- If the survey identifies any active nest, an exclusion buffer shall be established for protection
  of the nest and young. Buffer distance will vary based on species and conditions at the site,
  however, typical buffers ranges between 25 feet up to 600 feet. A qualified biologist shall
  establish an appropriate buffer and the buffer shall be maintained until the young have
  fledged.
- Tree trimming or removal shall be initiated outside of the nesting season (September 1 January 31), whenever possible, to avoid potentially disturbing and/or to minimize the disturbance to any nesting birds.

Implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-2 will ensure the protection of special-status and non-specialstatus bird species and, therefore, will result in a *less-than-significant* impact.

#### Special-Status Plant Species

Of the 42 special-status plant species known to occur in the vicinity of the Study Area, none were determined to have potential to occur within the Study Area<sup>21</sup>; therefore, a *less-than-significant* impact will occur with regards to having a substantial adverse effect on sensitive or special-status plant species.

b) Will the Project have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community identified in local or regional plans, policies, regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or US Fish and Wildlife Service?

Sensitive biological communities include habitats that fulfill special functions or have special values, such as wetlands, streams, and riparian habitat. These habitats are regulated under federal regulations (such as the Clean Water Act (CWA)), state regulations (such as the Porter-Cologne Act, the CDFW Streambed Alteration Program, and CEQA), or local ordinances or policies (such as County Tree Ordinances, Special Habitat Management Areas, applicable LCPs, and General Plan Elements).

#### Non-Sensitive Biological Communities

Non-sensitive biological communities are those communities that are not afforded special protection under CEQA, and other state, federal, and local laws, regulations and ordinances. These communities may, however, provide suitable habitat for some special-status plant or wildlife species. Non-sensitive biological communities in the Study Area include developed areas, non-native annual grassland, Monterey cypress forest, and northern coastal scrub. Detailed descriptions of these communities can be found in the BRA, included as Appendix A of this Initial Study.

#### Sensitive Biological Communities

Sensitive biological communities are defined as those communities that are given special protection under CEQA and other applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations and ordinances. Four Environmental Sensitive Habitat Area's (ESHA) occur within the Study Area, including coastal seasonal wetland, non-wetland waters, central coast riparian scrub, and non-native riparian woodland, as shown in Figure 15. Detailed descriptions of these communities can be found in the BRA, included as Appendix A of this Initial Study.

#### a. Wetlands

Approximately 0.02 acre of CCC wetland habitat occurs within the Study Area. Coastal seasonal wetlands are not described by Holland (1986) and are dominated by perennial herbs, especially sedges and grasses that are often low growing and grow yearlong in areas with mild winters. This community occurs scattered throughout California, being most common in grasslands.

Wetlands are defined within the Study Area as Western Rush Marshes (*Juncus patens* Provisional Herbaceous Alliance, Rarity Ranking G4 S4), which occur on seasonally saturated soils on flats, depressions or gentle slopes. Western Rush Marshes contain continuous to intermittent cover of western

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>21</sup> Biological Resources Assessment, Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project, El Granada, San Mateo County, California, prepared by WRA Environmental Consultants, October 23, 2015, page 24.





Source: WRA Environmental Consultants, 2015.







Source: WRA Environmental Consultants, 2015.



rush with commonly associated facultative wetland plants such as Italian wildrye, velvet grass, toad rush (*Juncus bufonius*), and clover (*Trifolium* spp.).

In the Study Area, this biological community occurs centrally, within a small man-made swale that drains to arroyo willow thicket. Western rush is dominant with co-dominants of common rush (*Juncus occidentalis*), and bristly ox-tongue. While the coastal wetlands are dominated by hydrophytic vegetation, it did not contain indicators of hydric soils or wetland hydrology and therefore only meets the California Coastal Commission definition of a wetland. Further, while wetlands were observed at the Project site, they were determined to be in association with linear, manmade shallow swale that may be associated with old tire ruts from past mowing. Although plant species found at the Project site indicated the presence of a wetland, these species were not found to be functioning as hydrophytes in its current condition. Further, the Wetland Delineation Report concluded that the surface and subsurface water associated with the wetland feature does not collect for extended periods of time and concluded that this feature is not considered a wetland in the report.

Nevertheless, construction activities typical of trail construction, such as site grading, ground disturbance, and paving of a trail, could affect or disturb this wetland feature. However, implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-3 would minimize impacts to the wetland.

**Mitigation Measure BIO-3:** Consistent with LCP Policy 7.17, the applicant shall implement the following performance standards to minimize impacts to wetlands:

- All paths shall be elevated so as not to impede movement of water;
- All construction activity shall take place during daytime hours;
- All outdoor lighting shall be kept at a distance away from the wetland sufficient not to affect the wildlife;
- Motorized machinery (if any is used) shall be kept to less than 45 dBA at the wetland boundary;
- All construction which alters wetland vegetation shall be required to replace vegetation;
- No herbicides shall be used in wetlands unless specifically approved by the county Agricultural commissioner and the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW); and
- All projects be reviewed by the State Department of Fish and Wildlife and State Water Quality Control Board to determine appropriate mitigation measures.

Consequently, because the wetland feature is not necessarily considered a wetland in the Wetland Delineation Report for the reasons mentioned above, and implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-3 would reduce impacts to the wetland, a *less-than-significant* impact would occur.

#### b. Non-Wetland Waters

Non-wetland waters associated with two streams were observed within the Study Area, totaling approximately 0.04 acre (212.97 linear feet). Non-wetland waters within the Study Area occur as an intermittent stream in the south and perennial drainage centrally.

The USGS dashed blue-line intermittent stream, Arroyo de en Medio, showed obvious signs of scouring and alluvial sediment deposition within the creek bed and an unvegetated gravel bed. Dominant vegetation associated with the creek is composed non-native tree species including blue gum and blackwood acacia (*Acacia melanoxylon*) and water was not present at the time of the site visit. The nonnative riparian woodland associated with this intermittent stream is discussed below. The unnamed perennial drainage was observed with standing water and obvious signs of bank scour. The drainage was approximately fourteen inches deep and three to five feet wide.

Vegetation associated with the perennial drainage was dominated by central coast riparian scrub, as discussed below. This unnamed stream drains west through a culvert under Highway 1, ultimately to the Pacific Ocean. This perennial drainage likely receives subsurface flows from a local underground stormwater conveyance system and potential upstream intermittent flows; however, the source water is unconfirmed. As such, there is the potential that these waters could be Section 404 jurisdictional "non-wetland" waters; therefore, the Project will be required to obtain a Section 404 permit from the Army Corps of Engineers, as well as a Section 401 permit from the Regional Water Quality Control Board.

As described above, the Project proposes a trail alignment. Construction activities will be typical of trail construction, such as site grading, ground disturbance, and paving of a trail, which could affect or disturb non-wetland waters within or adjacent to the Study Area primarily due to runoff and erosion; however, the following mitigation measure will ensure that potential impacts to riparian habitat will be minimized.

**Mitigation Measure BIO-4:** The applicant shall prepare a comprehensive stormwater pollution and erosion control plan for the Project. Erosion control measures shall be in place prior to the start of construction activities and remain in place throughout all phases of project construction. The plan must provide a BMP monitoring and maintenance schedule and identify parties responsible for monitoring and maintenance of construction-phase BMPs. Erosion and water quality control measures identified in the plan must comply with the County of San Mateo Department of Public Work's Contract Requirements for Erosion and Sediment Control, and at a minimum include, but not be limited to, the following measures (County of San Mateo 2013a; County of San Mateo, 2013b):

- Temporary erosion control measures (such as silt fences, staked straw bales, and temporary revegetation) shall be employed for disturbed areas. No disturbed surfaces will be left without erosion control measures in place.
- Sediment shall be retained on-site by a system of sediment basins, traps, or other appropriate measures.
- A spill prevention and countermeasure plan shall be developed that will identify proper storage, collection, and disposal measures for potential pollutants (such as fuel, fertilizers, pesticides, etc.) used on-site. The plan will also require the proper storage, handling, use, and disposal of petroleum products.
- Construction activities shall be scheduled to minimize land disturbance during peak runoff periods and to the immediate area required for construction. Existing vegetation will be

retained where possible. To the extent feasible, grading activities shall be limited to the immediate area required for construction.

- Surface waters, including ponded waters, must be diverted away from areas undergoing grading, construction, excavation, vegetation removal, and/or any other activity which may result in a discharge to the receiving water. Diversion activities must not result in the degradation of beneficial uses or exceedance of water quality objectives of the receiving waters. Any temporary dam or other artificial obstruction constructed must only be built from materials such as clean gravel which will cause little or no siltation. Normal flows must be restored to the affected stream immediately upon completion of work at that location.
- Sediment shall be contained when conditions are too extreme for treatment by surface protection. Temporary sediment traps, filter fabric fences, inlet protectors, vegetative filters and buffers, or settling basins shall be used to detain runoff water long enough for sediment particles to settle out. Store, cover, and isolate construction materials, including topsoil and chemicals, to prevent runoff losses and contamination of groundwater.
- Topsoil removed during construction shall be carefully stored and treated as an important resource. Berms shall be placed around topsoil stockpiles to prevent runoff during storm events. All removed topsoil shall be reused during construction to the extent feasible. Unused topsoil, if any, shall be broadly redistributed to the surrounding areas in such a manner that topography and vegetation cover would not be adversely impacted.
- Establish fuel and vehicle maintenance areas away from all drainage courses and design these areas to control runoff.
- Disturbed areas will be re-vegetated after completion of construction activities.
- Provide sanitary facilities for construction workers.

Implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-4, as well as compliance with applicable regulations such as obtaining Section 401 and 404 permits, will ensure the protection of non-wetland waters within the Study Area; therefore, will result in a *less-than-significant* impact.

c. Riparian Habitat

### Central Coast Riparian Scrub

The Study Area contains approximately 1.22 acres of central coast riparian scrub that is associated with an unnamed perennial drainage. Holland (1986) describes this central coast riparian scrub as occurring in areas of open to nearly impenetrable willow shrubs associated with a stream or mouth of streams, occurring near the coast in the South Coast Ranges. Soils are relatively fine-grained sand and gravel bars from alluvial deposition.

This community is described as Arroyo Willow Thickets (*Salix lasiolepis* Shrubland Alliance, Rarity Ranking G4 S4), which occurs throughout much of California along streams, seeps and drainages. The canopy is dominated by arroyo willow forming an open to continuous layer with a variable herbaceous layer. Typical associated species include mugwort (*Artemisia douglasiana*), coyote bush, California blackberry and other willow species.

Within the Study Area, central coast riparian scrub occurs centrally adjacent to Highway 1 and is transected by a pull out and dirt road that provides access to a large field to the east. This habitat is part of a larger area of central coast riparian scrub that extends generally east to west. The canopy is dense and nearly impenetrable, dominated by arroyo willow. Understory structure is heterogeneous due to the many branches of arroyo willow. California blackberry, stinging nettle (*Urtica dioica*), panicled bulrush, and Pacific rush (*Juncus effusus*) comprise the intermittent shrub and herb cover.

The proposed Project will permanently impact approximately 3,000 square feet<sup>22</sup> of Coast Riparian Scrub habitat. However, implementation of the following mitigation measure will reduce and minimize these impacts.

**Mitigation Measure BIO-5:** The County shall mitigate for unavoidable impacts on riparian habitat due to the proposed Project by restoring riparian habitat within the region (i.e., the San Mateo County coastal watersheds) at a 1:1 ratio. To the extent feasible, riparian habitat restoration will occur concurrent with implementation of the Project.

- Riparian vegetation to be restored at the mitigation site shall include native overstory and understory species, such as arroyo willow, white alder, American dogwood, Pacific silverweed, and bulrush.
- Prior to the start of project construction, the County shall develop and implement a Riparian Mitigation Plan for creation of riparian habitat. The Riparian Mitigation Plan shall be prepared by a qualified restoration ecologist and will provide the following:
  - A summary of riparian impacts and the proposed mitigation.
  - Goals of the mitigation to achieve no net loss of habitat functions and values.
  - The location of mitigation site(s) and description of existing site conditions.
  - Mitigation design, including:
    - Existing and proposed site hydrology, geomorphology, and geotechnical stability, if applicable.
    - Grading plan if appropriate, including bank stabilization or other site stabilization features.
    - Soil amendments and other site preparation elements, as appropriate.
    - Planting plan and species list.
    - Irrigation and maintenance plan.
    - Restoration schedule.
  - Monitoring plan (including specific, objective final and performance criteria, monitoring methods, data analysis, reporting requirements, monitoring schedule, etc.); and

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>22</sup> Based upon the current 30% plans, which call for filling in approximately 4 ft. by 700 ft. of this sensitive habitat, the project will permanently remove approximately 3,000 sq. ft. of Coast Riparian Scrub (a sensitive habitat under the Coastal Act). This must be mitigated at a 1:1 ratio.

 A contingency plan for mitigation elements that do not meet performance or final success criteria within five years; this plan will include specific triggers for remediation if performance criteria are not being met.

#### Non-Native Riparian Woodland

The Study Area contained approximately 0.39-acre of non-native riparian woodland, such as Eucalyptus groves (*Eucalyptus* [globulus, camaldulensis] Semi-Natural Woodland Alliance), which are typically planted as woodlands and shelterbelts to buffer coastal winds and provide shade. This vegetation alliance is dominated by one of several eucalyptus species (*Eucalyptus* spp.), all of which are not native to North America. Blue gum (and other eucalyptus) groves are frequently situated in rural and semi-urbanized settings, along streams, and coastal hills/prairies.

Within the Study Area, there is a non-native riparian canopy associated with Arroyo de en Medio which is dominated by blue gum and blackwood acacia. The understory structure is heterogeneous with arroyo willow saplings and black acacia with scattered red elderberry (*Sambucus racemosa*), all of which are covered by cape ivy (*Delairea odorata*). The lower shrub layer is dominated by Himalayan blackberry (*Rubus armeniacus*). The herb layer is dominated by garden nasturtium (*Tropaeolum majus*) and veldt grass (*Ehrharta erecta*), mixed with leaf and bark litter from the shedding eucalyptus.

As described above, the Project proposes a trail alignment, including a pedestrian bridge across the Arroyo de en Medio creek. Given that vegetation removal and/or tree removal could be required during construction activities in and adjacent to the creek, a Section 1602 Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement from the California Department of Fish and Wildlife will be required. Other construction activities will be typical of trail construction, such as site grading, ground disturbance, and paving of a trail, which could affect or disturb riparian habitat within or adjacent the Study Area; however, implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-4 as described above will ensure that potential impacts to riparian habitat be *less than significant*.

c) Will the project have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected wetlands as defined by Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.), through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption or other means?

### Section 404 Jurisdictional Wetlands

No wetlands were observed during the site visit that meet the three parameters necessary to qualify as a Corps jurisdictional wetland. While facultative wetland plants dominated small areas of the Study Area, these areas did not contain indicators of hydric soils or wetland hydrology. As a result, no seasonal wetlands were mapped that are subject to Corps regulation under Section 404 of the Clean Water Act.<sup>23</sup> Therefore, the Project will have *no impact* to Section 404 jurisdictional wetlands.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>23</sup> Wetland Delineation Report, Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project, El Granada, San Mateo County, California, prepared by WRA Environmental Consultants, October 23, 2015, page 19.

#### Potential Section 404 Tidal Waters

There were no Section 404 tidal waters or jurisdictional non-wetland waters identified within the Study Area.<sup>24</sup> Therefore, the Project will have *no impact* on Section 404 tidal waters.

#### Potential Section 404 Jurisdictional "Non-Wetland Waters"

As described above, the Study Area contains potential Section 404 Jurisdictional non-wetland waters; however, implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-3, as well as compliance with applicable regulations such as obtaining Section 401 and 404 permits, will ensure the protection of non-wetland waters within the Study Area; therefore, will result in a *less-than-significant* impact.

#### Waters of the State

The potential Section 404 jurisdictional non-wetland waters identified within the Study Area are also considered Waters of the State; therefore, they will be subject to regulation by the SWRCB and the RWQCB.<sup>25</sup>

d) Will the project interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species, or with an established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites?

The Project site is located in a largely urbanized area, bordered by existing roadways and other urban uses which preclude the presence of any important wildlife movement corridors across the Project site. Although there are wetlands and other ESHAs within the vicinity of the Project site, Mitigation Measures BIO-1 through BIO-5 will ensure that wildlife species are not adversely affected during construction and/or operation of the Project. Therefore, a *less-than-significant* impact will occur.

# e) Will the project conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as tree preservation policy or ordinance?

The Project site is located within the coastal zone and will be subject to policies in the San Mateo County LCP, as well as the County's Significant Tree Ordinance and Heritage Tree Ordinance, which are further described below.

#### *Heritage Tree Ordinance (Ordinance No. 2427)*

The regulation of the removal and trimming of heritage trees on public and private property is established under County of San Mateo Ordinance 2427, otherwise known as the Heritage Tree Ordinance. According to this ordinance, a "heritage tree" means any of the following:

Class 1 shall include any tree or grove of trees designated after Board inspection, advertised public hearing and resolution by the Board of Supervisors. The affected property owners shall be given proper written notice between 14 and 30 days prior to inspection and/or hearing by the Board.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>24</sup> Wetland Delineation Report, Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project, El Granada, San Mateo County, California, prepared by WRA Environmental Consultants, October 23, 2015, page 19.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>25</sup> Wetland Delineation Report, Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project, El Granada, San Mateo County, California, prepared by WRA Environmental Consultants, October 23, 2015, page 19 and 20.

- Class 2 shall include any of the following trees, in addition to several species of oak trees (Coast Live Oak, Canyon Live Oak, Oregon White Oak, Black Oak, Interior Live Oak, and Blue Oak), healthy and generally free from disease, with diameter equal to or greater than the sizes listed:
  - Acer macrophyllum Bigleaf Maple of more than 36 inches in diameter west of Skyline Boulevard or 28 inches in diameter east of Skyline Boulevard.
  - Arbutus menziesii Madrone with a single stem or multiple stems touching each other 4 ½ feet above the ground of more than 48 inches in diameter, or clumps visibly connected above ground with a basal area greater than 20 square feet measured 4½ feet above average ground level.
  - Chrysolepis chrysophylla Golden Chinquapin of more than 20 inches in diameter.
  - Cupressus abramsiana All Santa Cruz Cypress trees.
  - Fraxinus latifolia Oregon Ash of more than 12 inches in diameter.
  - Sequoia sempervirens Redwood of more than 84 inches in diameter west of Skyline Boulevard or 72 inches in diameter east of Skyline Boulevard.

Further, "protected tree" is defined as a tree specially listed as endangered by either the California Native Plant Society's List or any tree species designated protected by the Board of Supervisors. Section 11,051 of the Heritage Tree Ordinance requires a permit by the applicant to remove, destroy, or trim trees within the unincorporated area of San Mateo County. The permit will require any person proposing to cut down, destroy, move or trim one or more heritage trees to submit to the San Mateo County Planning Department an application which shall identify the species, contain the number, size and location of the trees or trees involved, a brief statement of the reason for the requested action, and describe any other pertinent information the Planning Director may require.

#### Significant Tree Ordinance (Part Three of Division VIII of the San Mateo County Ordinance Code)

Section 12,012 of the Significant Tree Ordinance of the San Mateo County Code defines a "significant tree" as any live woody plant rising above the ground with a single stem or trunk of a circumference of thirty-eight inches or more measured at four and one half feet vertically above the ground or immediately below the lowest branch, whichever is lower, and having the inherent capacity of naturally producing one main axis continuing to grow more vigorously than the lateral axes. Section 12,020 requires a permit for the cutting down, removing, poisoning or otherwise killing or destroying or causing to be removed any significant tree or community of trees, whether indigenous or exotic, on any private property. Section 12,021 outlines permit application requirements, which requires data such as the diameter and height of the tree being removed, the type of tree(s) proposed for removal, a map or accurate sketch of the location of the trees proposed for removal, the method for marking the tree proposed for removal, a – description of the method used for removal, description of tree planting and replacement program, reasons for tree removal, the general health of the tree proposed for removal, and other pertinent information the Planning Director may require.

As described above, the Project site is relatively absent of significant or heritage size trees with the exception of the area within the banks of the Arroyo de en Medio creek. The Project proposes to construct a pedestrian bridge spanning the Creek, which contains tree species such as eucalyptus and

cypress trees.<sup>26</sup> Therefore, it is likely that 5-10 significant size trees will be removed to accommodate the proposed bridge. However, consistent with Section 12,020.1 (Exemptions) of the Significant Tree Regulations: "Tree cutting which has been authorized by the Planning Commission, Design Review Committee, or Planning Director as part of a permit approval process in which the provisions of this Part have been considered and applied" are exempt from having to obtain a separate tree removal permit. The San Mateo County Planning Commission must approve a Coastal Development Permit for this project, at which time they will consider the provisions of the Significant Tree Removal regulations. Further, the Significant Tree Regulations require replacement of all qualifying trees at a 1:1 ratio. To comply with this requirement and not be in conflict with the County's tree regulations, the following mitigation measure is required:

**Mitigation Measure BIO-6:** Prior to beginning of trail construction, the applicant shall prepare a Tree Replacement Plan, which replaces all removed significant size trees at a 1:1 ratio. The Tree Replacement Plan shall be submitted to the Planning Director for review and approval.

Implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-6 will ensure a *less-than-significant* impact with regards to tree removal that will take place as a result of construction of the proposed Project.

# f) Will the project conflict with an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan?

The Project will not conflict with any adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or other approved conservation plan. The San Bruno Mountain Habitat Conservation Plan encompasses an area of approximately 3,600 acres near San Bruno Mountain located 20 miles north of the Project site and does not include areas in the vicinity of the Project site. No such plans have been adopted encompassing the Project vicinity, *no impacts* are anticipated.

### g) Will the Project be located inside or within 200 feet of a marine or wildlife preserve?

The nearest State Marine Conservation Area (SMCA) is the Pillar Point SMCA, located off the coast of Pillar Point,<sup>27</sup> more than 200 feet from the Project site. Therefore, the Project would not be located inside or within 200 feet of a marine or wildlife preserve and *no impact* would occur. No mitigation measures are required.

### h) Will the Project result in loss of oak woodlands or other non-timber woodlands?

The Project site includes non-native riparian woodland dominated by blue gum eucalyptus trees, and does not identify oak woodlands or non-timber woodlands within the Project site. While trees would be removed as part of the Project, they would not include removal of any oak or other non-timber woodlands. Further, implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-6, as described above, would require that a Tree Replacement Plan be prepared to ensure that any tree removal complies with the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>26</sup> Biological Resources Assessment, Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project, El Granada, San Mateo County, California, prepared by WRA Environmental Consultants, October 23, 2015, page 16.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>27</sup> California Department of Fish and Wildlife, California San Francisco Bay MPAs Map, https://nrm.dfg.ca.gov/ FileHandler.ashx?DocumentID=74845&inline, accessed May 18, 2016.

requirements of the Heritage Tree Ordinance and the Significant Tree Ordinance, and that trees will be replaced at a 1:1 ratio. Therefore, a *less-than-significant* impact would occur.

### V. CULTURAL RESOURCES

Wil	l the Project:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
a)	Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource as defined in Section 15064.5?				Ŋ
b)	Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource pursuant to Section 15064.5?		V		
c)	Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic feature?			V	
d)	Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of formal cemeteries?			V	
e)	Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource as defined in Public Resources Code 21074?			V	

### **Existing Conditions**

The following discussion is based on a cultural resources study conducted for the Project site prepared by Tom Origer & Associates on October 13, 2015.<sup>28</sup>

The cultural resources study included archival research at the Northwest Information Center, Sonoma State University, Rohnert Park (Northwest Information Center [NWIC] File No. 15-0395), as well as examination of the library and files of Tom Origer & Associates, field inspection of the Project location, and contact with the Native American Community.

Subsequently, a Historic Property Survey Report was prepared by the California State Department of Transportation (Caltrans) on September 25, 2017. The Report included a NWIC record search and Archaeological Survey Report (ASR). The ASR documents the presence of marine shell fragments on the northeast side of SR 1 in the area where archaeological site [CA-SMA-1149] has been recorded. This archaeological site is considered eligible for inclusion in the National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) and/or as a California Historical Landmark (CHLs).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>28</sup> Note: The full cultural resources study prepared by Tom Origer & Associates on October 13, 2015, contains information about the locations of archaeological sites. These resources are vulnerable to looting and other vandalism, and are protected by law. For that reason, the cultural resources study is not available for public review and therefore, not included as part of the appendix to this Initial Study.

#### Discussion

a) Will the Project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource as defined in Section 15064.5?

The types of cultural resources that meet the definition of historical resources under CEQA generally consist of districts, sites, buildings, structures, and objects that are significant for their traditional, cultural and/or historical associations. Commonly, the two main resource types are subject to impact, and that may be impacted related to buildout of the Project, are historical archaeological deposits and historical architectural resources, as discussed below. Archaeological resources are addressed in Section V.b., and human remains are addressed in Section V.d below.

Cultural resources are protected by federal and State regulations and standards, including but not limited to: the National Historic Preservation Act, the California Public Resources Code, and CEQA. Also, the Office of Historic Preservation (OHP) has determined that structures in excess of 45 years of age should be considered potentially important historical resources, and former buildings and structure locations could be potentially important archaeological sites. Typically, if the Project site or adjacent properties are found to be eligible for listing on the California Register, the development will be required to conform to the current Secretary of the Interior's "Standards for Treatment of Historic Properties with Guidelines for Preserving, Rehabilitating, and Restoring Historic Buildings", which require the preservation of character defining features which convey a building's historical significance, and offers guidance about appropriate and compatible alterations to such structures.

Historical and pre-contact archaeological deposits that meet the definition of historical resources under CEQA could be damaged or destroyed by ground-disturbing activities associated with construction of the Project, such as grading and/or filling. Should this occur, the ability of the deposits to convey their significance, either as containing information important in prehistory or history or as possessing traditional or cultural significance to Native American or other descendent communities, could be materially impaired.

The records search revealed that the OHP Historic Property Directory (which includes listings of the California Register of Historical Resources, California State Historical Landmarks, California State Points of Historical Interest, and the National Register of Historic Places) does not list any recorded buildings or structures within or adjacent to the Project site.<sup>29</sup> Further, the Project site itself is currently undeveloped and therefore does not have any structures that will be historically significant. As such, there will be *no impact* related to historical resources and no mitigation measures are required.

# b) Will the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource pursuant to Section 15064.5?

Archaeological deposits that meet the definition of unique archaeological resources under CEQA could be damaged or destroyed by ground-disturbing activities associated with Projects, such as grading and/or

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>29</sup> Tom Origer and Associates, A Cultural Resources Study for the Mid-Coast Multi-Modal Trail Project, October 13, 2015, page 6.

filling.<sup>30</sup> Should this occur, the ability of the deposits to convey their significance, either as containing information important in prehistory or history, or as possessing traditional or cultural significance to Native American or other descendent communities, could be materially impaired.

The proposed Project will include construction activities, such as grading, filling, digging, pile driving, and other various ground disturbing activities during construction of the trail, which could inadvertently cause a substantial adverse change to an archaeological resource. The cultural resources study identified one archaeological resource (CA-SMA-149) within the study area. According to the cultural resources study, this archaeological resource was originally recorded when the property owners encountered human remains in 1973.<sup>31</sup> No other ethnographic or archaeological sites have been reported in the vicinity.

The Project would include ground-disturbing activities during construction of the trail, implementation of which could disturb identified archaeological resources (CA-SMA-149), and/or other not-yet discovered archaeological deposits that may be present in the Study Area. The site would be protected from any potential adverse impacts through the establishment of an Environmentally Sensitive Area (ESA) and implementation of an ESA Action Plan.<sup>32,33</sup> As such, the following mitigation measures will minimize potential impacts to archaeological resources.

**Mitigation Measure CULT-1A:** Prior to the start of construction activities, the Project applicant shall comply with the following measures in order to minimize, prevent, and assure that no inadvertent damage from equipment or personnel occurs to known and/or unknown archaeological and paleontological resources:

A qualified archaeologist shall be present during any ground-disturbing construction-related activities associated with the Project, including but not limited to, site preparation, grading, exploratory borings, and construction. In the event that archaeological resources are discovered, construction activities in the vicinity of the discovery shall cease immediately until the archaeologist can determine the significance of the discovery and properly catalogs the find in accordance to professional standards and procedures. If it is determined that construction activities could damage, destroy, or otherwise disturb archaeological/ paleontological resources, a mitigation plan adequate to protect such resources shall be

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>30</sup> If the cultural resource in question is an archaeological site, CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(c)(1) requires that the lead agency first determine if the site is a historical resources as defined in CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(a). If the site qualifies as a historical resource, the potential adverse impact must be considered through the process that governs the treatment of historical resources. If the archaeological site does not qualify as a historical resources but <u>does</u> qualify as a unique archaeological site, then it is treated in accordance with PRC Section 21083.2 (CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(c)(3). In practice, most archaeological sites that meet the definition of a unique archaeological resource will also meet the definition of a historical resource.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>31</sup> Tom Origer and Associates, A Cultural Resources Study for the Mid-Coast Multi-Modal Trail Project, October 13, 2015, page 5 and 6.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>32</sup> California Department of Transportation, Historic Property Survey Report, September 25, 2017, page 3.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>33</sup> The Caltrans-maintained inventory of archaeological cultural resources is restricted to use by Caltrans cultural resource staff, due to crucial and confidential cultural resources information. Caltrans, 2014. Volume 2 – Standard Environmental Reference Handbook, Page E-1.2-1, http://www.dot.ca.gov/ser/vol2/ex\_1\_3\_definitions.pdf, accessed May 2, 2018.

prepared by a qualified professional (i.e. qualified archaeologist and/or paleontologist) to ensure adequate protection of these resources.

**Mitigation Measure CULT-1B:** Construction activities within the vicinity of archaeological resources site CA-SMA-149 shall comply with the following measures in order to minimize, prevent, and assure that no inadvertent damage from equipment or personnel occurs:

- All staging areas shall be located away from archaeological resource site CA-SMA-149.
- A fence shall be placed around the perimeter of archaeological resource site CA-SMA-149.
- The path of the proposed trail shall be designed to avoid archaeological resource site CA-SMA-149.<sup>34</sup>

**Mitigation Measure CULT-1C:** If an archaeological site(s) is encountered during grading or other soil disturbing activities, project managers and project contractors shall comply with the provisions set forth in Sections 15064.5 (c) or (e) of the CEQA Guidelines, depending on the type of resource encountered. The site(s) will be recorded by a qualified archaeologist, including the extent of the site boundaries. The trail alignment(s) and/or associated features shall be relocated away from the archaeological site(s), unless the site(s) are evaluated and determined not to be eligible for listing on the California Register of Historical Resources. The archaeologist shall determine the required distance from the resource. If the eligible site(s) cannot be avoided, the proposed trail shall be designed with protective elements that will provide for trail use with minimal effect on the archeological site(s). These protective elements may include fencing, or placement of the trail on a bridge, boardwalk or earthen berm. Prior to construction, data recovery and testing shall be provided to the State Historic Preservation Officer for review.

Furthermore, in the event that an archaeological resource is discovered during project construction activities (e.g., excavation, grading), the following provisions of Section 15064.5 (c) of the CEQA Guidelines are to be followed.

(1) The lead agency shall first determine whether the site is a historical resource, as defined in subdivision (a).

(2) If the lead agency determines that the archaeological site is a historical resource, it shall refer to the provisions of Section 21084.1 of the Public Resources Code, and this section, Section 15126.4 of the Guidelines, and the limits contained in Section 21083.2 of the Public Resources Code do not apply.

(3) If an archaeological site does not meet the criteria defined in subdivision (a), but does meet the definition of a unique archeological resource in Section 21083.2 of the Public Resources Code, the site shall be treated in accordance with the provisions of Section 21083.2. The time and

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>34</sup> Environmentally Sensitive Area Action Plan for the Mid-Coast Multi-Modal Trail in San Mateo County, California. Prepared by Thomas M. Origer, M.A, December 2017.

cost limitations described in Public Resources Code Section 21083.2 (c-f) do not apply to surveys and site evaluation activities intended to determine whether the Project location contains unique archaeological resources.

(4) If an archaeological resource is neither a unique archaeological nor a historical resource, the effects of the proposed Project on those resources shall not be considered a significant effect on the environment. It shall be sufficient that both the resource and the effect on it are noted in the Initial Study or EIR, if one is prepared to address impacts on other resources, but they need not be considered further in the CEQA process.

Overall, implementation of Mitigation Measures CULT-1A through CULT-1C will ensure that a *less-than-significant* impact occurs with regards to causing a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource.

# c) Will the project directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic feature?

As described in the cultural resources study for the Project site, other than the one archaeological resource site, no other cultural resources were found within the study area.<sup>35</sup> However, given that the Project site is currently an undeveloped and undisturbed parcel of land, there is the possibility that unique paleontological and/or geologic features could be accidently discovered and/or directly or indirectly destroyed during ground-disturbing activities associated with construction of the Project. However, as listed above in Section V.b, implementation of Mitigation Measures CULT-1A through CULT-1C will reduce potential impacts to paleontological resources that may be discovered.

Consequently, given that the cultural resources study did not identify any unique paleontological and/or geologic features at the Project site, and because compliance with federal and State laws provide protection of paleontological resources at the Project site by requiring construction activities to cease in the event of discovery of paleontological resources, impacts will be *less than significant* and no mitigation measures are required.

### d) Will the project disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of formal cemeteries?

The Project will include grading and filling as part of the construction of the proposed Project. Given that the Project site is currently an undeveloped and undisturbed parcel of land, there is a possibility that construction activities could disturb human remains, including those interred outside of formal cemeteries.

As mentioned under discussion V.b, there is one known archaeological resource site within the study area, which included discovery of human remains. Therefore, human remains associated with pre-contact archaeological deposits could exist on the Project site in other locations, and could be encountered at the time of ground-disturbing activities during construction of the trail. The associated ground-disturbing

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>35</sup> Tom Origer and Associates, A Cultural Resources Study for the Mid-Coast Multi-Modal Trail Project, October 13, 2015, page 6.

activities, such as site grading and filling, have the potential to disturb human remains interred outside of formal cemeteries. Descendant communities may ascribe religious or cultural significance to such remains, and may view their disturbance as an unmitigable impact. Disturbance of unknown human remains will be a significant impact.

However, any human remains encountered during ground-disturbing activities will be required to be treated in accordance with California Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5, Public Resources Code Section 5097.98 and the California Code of Regulations Section 15064.5(e) (CEQA), which states the mandated procedures of conduct following the discovery of human remains. According to the provisions in CEQA, if human remains are encountered at the Project site, all work in the immediate vicinity of the discovery shall cease and necessary steps to ensure the integrity of the immediate area shall be taken. The San Mateo County Coroner shall be notified immediately. The Coroner shall then determine whether the remains are Native American. If the Coroner determines the remains are Native American, the Coroner shall notify the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) within 24 hours, who will, in turn, notify the person the NAHC identifies as the Native American Most Likely Descendant (MLD)<sup>36</sup> of any human remains. Further actions shall be determined, in part, by the desires of the MLD. The MLD has 48 hours to make recommendations regarding the disposition of the remains following notification from the NAHC of the discovery. If the MLD does not make recommendations within 48 hours, the owner shall, with appropriate dignity, reinter the remains in an area of the property secure from further disturbance. Alternatively, if the owner does not accept the MLD's recommendations, the owner or the descendent may request mediation by the NAHC.

In addition to compliance with the California Health and Safety Code, Public Resources Code, and the California Code of Regulations (CEQA), compliance with Mitigation Measures CULT-1A through CULT-1C will further reduce the potential to inadvertently disturb any human remains that may be present within the Study Area. Through mandatory regulatory procedures described above, and implementation of Mitigation Measures CULT-1A through CULT-1C, which will require that a qualified archaeologist be on-site during construction to determine the significance of archeological resources in the event any are inadvertently uncovered, including human remains, within the study area, as well as provide adequate protection for any known and or unknown resources, impacts to human remains will be *less than significant*.

# e) Will the proposed project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource as defined in Public Resources Code 21074?

A Tribal Cultural Resource (TCR) is defined under Assembly Bill 52 (AB52) as a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of size and scope, sacred place, and object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe that are either included or eligible for inclusion in the California Register of Historic Resources or included in a local register of historical resources, or included in a local register of sacred place, acting as the lead agency,

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>36</sup> "Native American Most Likely Descendant' is a term used in an official capacity in CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(e), and other places, to refer to Native American individuals assigned the responsibility/opportunity by NAHC to review and make recommendations for the treatment of Native American human remains discovered during project implementation. Section 5097.98 of the Public Resources Code and Section 7050.5 of the Health and Safety Code also reference Most Likely Descendants.

supported by substantial evidence, chooses at its discretion to treat the resource as a TCR. As discussed under criteria (b) and (d), other than the one recorded archaeological resource, no known archeological resources, ethnographic sites or Native American remains have been identified or reported on the Project site. As discussed under criterion (b) implementation of Mitigation Measures CULT-1A and CULT-1B will reduce impacts to known and unknown archaeological deposits, including TCRs, to a less-than-significant level. As discussed under criterion (d) compliance with State and federal regulations will reduce the likelihood of disturbing or discovering human remains, including those of Native Americans. Further, the County contacted known tribes in compliance with AB52 and no response was received. Invitations for consultation can be found in Appendix B of this Initial Study. Therefore, implementation of Mitigation Measures CULT-1A through CULT-1C, together with compliance with State and federal regulations related to the protection of human remains will minimize impacts to TCRs to a *less-than-significant* level.

Will the Project:		Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
<ul> <li>a) Expose people or structures to poter adverse effects, including the risk of involving: <ul> <li>i) Rupture of a known earthquake on the most recent Alquist-Priolo Ear Map issued by the State Geologist fo other substantial evidence of a know</li> <li>ii) Strong seismic ground shaking?</li> <li>iii) Seismic-related ground failure, i</li> <li>iv) Landslides, mudslides or other seise v) Coastal cliff/bluff instability or erosio</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	ntial substantial loss, injury or death fault, as delineated rthquake Fault Zoning r the area or based on rn fault? including liquefaction? similar hazards?				
b) Result in significant soil erosion or th	e loss of topsoil?			Ŋ	
<ul> <li>c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil t would become unstable as a result o potentially result in on-or off-site lan spreading, subsidence, liquefaction of</li> </ul>	that is unstable, or that f the project, and dslide, lateral or collapse?				
<ul> <li>Be located on expansive soil, as defir of the California Building Code (2010 risks to life or property?</li> </ul>	ned in Section 1803.5.3 I), creating substantial			N	
<ul> <li>e) Have soils incapable of adequately suspective septic tanks or alternative waste wat where sewers are not available for th wastewater?</li> </ul>	upporting the use of er disposal systems ne disposal of		٦		Ø

### VI. GEOLOGY AND SOILS

#### Discussion

a) Will the project expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury or death involving: i) rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area or based on other substantial evidence of a known fault?; ii) strong seismic ground shaking; iii) seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction; iv) landslides, mudslides, or other similar hazards?

The Project site is set within the Coast Ranges geomorphic province which is characterized by northwest trending valleys and ridges. This setting is strongly influenced by a series of folds and faults that resulted from the impingement of the Pacific tectonic plate on the North American craton, and resultant strike-slip faulting along the San Andreas Fault zone. The Coast Ranges can be further divided into the northern and southern ranges, which are separated by the San Francisco Bay. The Southern Coast Ranges run north and south between San Francisco Bay to the north, the Central Valley to the east, the Transverse Ranges to the south, and the Pacific Ocean to the west.

The Project site is located on the Half Moon Bay terrace sequence, one of several marine terraces or wave-cut benches that are readily visible along this stretch of the Pacific Coast. Some of the oldest terraces have been mapped on the flanks of nearby Montara Mountain at elevations exceeding 1,500 feet above mean sea level (amsl). In the immediate vicinity of the Project site, where the topography is subdued and the prevailing elevations are low (i.e., 30 to 65 feet amsl), the shallow, unconsolidated geologic units beneath these terraces consist of older alluvial fan and stream terrace deposits, including coarse-grained gravel, sand, and silt at the heads of alluvial fans, and younger distal fan deposits composed of finer grained sand, silt, and clayey silt.<sup>37 38</sup> The bedrock geology underlying the above-referenced terrace deposits is dominated by the heavily fractured Cretaceous granitic rocks (i.e., granites, granodiorites, and tonalities) of the Montara Mountain igneous suite.

State-level protections against these geologic and seismic hazards include, but are not limited to the Seismic Hazards Mapping Act, the Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Act, and the California Building Code (CBC). Further, if San Mateo County determines that additional geotechnical investigation is needed, the applicant must provide that information to the County before a building permit can be issued.

- i. The Project site is located approximately 1 mile northeast of the mapped trace of the San Gregorio Fault, one of the more significant earthquake faults in the San Francisco Bay area.<sup>39</sup> Detailed seismic investigations of this fault in the nearby Pillar Point headlands, one of only two on-land exposures, revealed that it is a zone comprised of multiple strands of right-lateral strike-slip faults. Thus, hazards associated with surface fault rupture could potentially be present at the Project site. Proximity to this fault notwithstanding, the Project site is not located in a State-designated Earthquake Fault Zone (EFZ, formerly known as an Alquist-Priolo Fault Zone). Consequently, the potential for primary seismic ground rupture at the Project site is considered low and the potential impacts of fault rupture are considered *less than significant*. No mitigation measures are required.
- ii. The Project site, as well as the greater San Francisco Bay region in which it is located, represents one of the most seismically active areas in the continental United States. As previously discussed, active earthquake faults have been mapped in relatively close proximity. An earthquake of moderate to high magnitude generated within the San Francisco Bay area could produce strong ground shaking at the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>37</sup> U.S. Geological Survey (USGS), 1994. Geologic Map of the Montara Mountain and San Mateo 7-1/2 Degree Quadrangles, San Mateo County, California, by Earl H. Pampeyan, Map I-2390.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>38</sup> USGS, 2015. Half Moon Bay Quadrangle, California, San Mateo County, 7.5-minute Series, Scale 1:24,000.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>39</sup> USGS, 2005. Final Technical Report Paleoseismic Investigation of the Northern San Gregorio Fault, Half Moon Bay, California, by William Lettis & Associates, Inc., National Earthquake Hazards Reduction Program Award No. 04HQGR0045

Project site. The degree of shaking will be subject to a number of variables, such as the magnitude of the event, the distance to the zone of rupture, and local geologic conditions. Potential effects of earthquake-related ground shaking could include damage to buildings, streets, paved paths, and utilities. During Project construction, compliance with applicable California Building Code (CBC) requirements will help ensure that the proposed structures (such as paved paths, bridge across Arroyo de en Medio Creek, culverts, handrails, etc.) are able to resist minor earthquakes without damage, resist moderate earthquakes without structural damage (but with some nonstructural damage), and resist major earthquakes without collapse, but with some structural as well as nonstructural damage. In light of these safeguards, the potential impacts of ground shaking are considered *less than significant*. No mitigation measures are required.

- iii. The California Geological Survey (CGS), through its Seismic Hazards Zonation Program, has not yet prepared maps that show seismically induced landslide or liquefaction hazards for the Project area. Nevertheless, a 2006 map published through a cooperative program involving the CGS and the U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) classified the liquefaction potential at the Project site as "moderate." Zones of moderate susceptibility are expected to account for 20 to 30 percent of all future liquefaction occurrences.<sup>40</sup> Compared to areas with high liquefaction potential, somewhat stronger seismic shaking is required to cause liquefaction in zones of moderate susceptibility. Considering these mapping results, the potential impacts of seismically induced liquefaction are considered *less than significant*. No mitigation measures are required.
- iv. In general, the presence of steep slopes, an overabundance of surface water (including overirrigation), combined with soils of low soil shear strength can increase the likelihood of slope instability and the potential for landslides, mudslides, and related hazards. The Project site and its immediate surroundings are typified by gentle, southwest slopes towards the Pacific Ocean, and topographic relief in this area is subdued. Steep slopes are not present, nor are there indications of soils with unusually low shear strength. Natural hazard maps published by San Mateo County show that neither debris flow source areas nor historical landslides are located in the immediate vicinity of the Project site.<sup>41</sup> In light of this information, the potential impacts of landslides, mudslides, or other similar hazards are considered *less than significant*. No mitigation measures are required.
- v. According to the LCP, a coastal bluff or cliff is defined as a scarp or steep face of rock, decomposed rock, sediment or soil resulting from erosion, faulting, folding or excavation of the land mass and exceeding 10 feet in height.<sup>42</sup> Further, the LCP Policy 9.8 (c) states that the extent of the bluff to be considered for hazards should include the area between the face of the bluff and a line described on the bluff top by the intersection of a plane at a 20 degree angle from the horizontal passing through the toe of the bluff or cliff, or 50 feet inland from the edge of the cliff or bluff, whichever is greater. However, even at its closest point to the coast, the Project site is more than 50 feet from the nearest

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>40</sup> USGS and California Geological Survey (CGS), 2006. Maps of Quaternary Deposits and Liquefaction Susceptibility in the Central San Francisco Bay Region, California, by Robert C. Witter, Keith L. Knudsen, Janet M. Sowers, Carl M. Wentworth, Richard D. Koehler, and Carolyn E. Randolph, Open-File Report 2006-1037.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>41</sup> San Mateo County, 2015. Planning and Building Adopted Maps, http://planning.smcgov.org/adopted-maps, accessed March 21, 2016.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>42</sup> San Mateo County, Local Coastal Program Policies, June 2013, page 9.2.
coastline. Therefore, hazards related to coastal bluff or cliff erosion will be *less than significant*. No mitigation measures are required.

#### b) Will the project result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil?

Construction of the Project will entail grading and limited excavation. Such activities carry some inherent potential for soil erosion and/or loss of topsoil. Certain regulatory requirements apply to projects that disturb more than 1 acre of soil, such as the proposed Project, to help mitigate these potential impacts. Accordingly, the proposed Project will be required to comply with the San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board's (RWQCB-SFB) requirements for the preparation and implementation of a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP), whose goal is to reduce runoff-related erosion impacts during Project grading and construction. Part of the SWPPP includes preparation of an erosion control plan that will include erosion control Best Management Practices (BMPs) such as hydroseeding and biodegradable erosion control blankets; linear sediment barriers, fiber rolls and other measures to break up slope length or flow; post-construction inspection of drains for accumulated sediment; and clearing of accumulated sediment in such drains.

Overall, compliance with the RWQCB erosion control requirements such as development and implementation of a site-specific SWPPP, including identification of erosion control BMPs, will help ensure that impacts related to erosion and the loss of topsoil will remain *less than significant*. No mitigation measures are required.

# c) Will the project be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that will become unstable as a result of the project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction or collapse?

As previously described, the topography at the 0.8-mile-long Project site is subdued with elevations ranging from 30 to 65 feet amsl and gentle slopes to the southwest in the direction of the Pacific Ocean. The potential for landslides is judged negligible in light of the prevailing gentle topography and the susceptibility for liquefaction is judged moderate based on maps compiled by the USGS. Consequently, the potential for landsliding, lateral spreading, liquefaction, or collapse appears to be low overall. As such, the potential impacts associated with unstable geologic units or soils are considered *less than significant*. No mitigation measures are required.

# d) Will the project be located on expansive soil, as defined in Section1803.5.3 of the California Building Code, creating substantial risks to life or property?

Published soil surveys of San Mateo County classified the soils beneath the Project site as soils of the Watsonville-Elkhorn Association, generally consisting of grayish, shallow to deep soils that have developed on low marine terraces.<sup>43</sup> Soils of this association reportedly possess a thick, dark-gray surface soil that is sandy loam, loam, or, in a few places, clay loam. These surveys did not identify expansive soils at the Project site or in its immediate vicinity. Consequently, the potential impacts arising from

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>43</sup> U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA), 1961. Soil Survey of the San Mateo Area, California, by Richard J. Wagner and Ralph E. Nelson, issued May 1961.

construction atop expansive soil are considered *less than significant*. No mitigation measures are required.

## e) Will the project have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative wastewater disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of wastewater?

Implementation of the Project will not generate wastewater that might otherwise require the use of septic tanks. The Project vicinity is currently serviced by the existing wastewater conveyance/treatment system in the community of El Granada. This system is managed by the Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside (SAM) Wastewater Treatment Facility, a plant that also serves the Granada Community Services District (GCSD), the City of Half Moon Bay, and the Montara Water and Sanitary District. In light of the above, Project implementation will have *no impact* with respect to the use of septic tanks or alternative wastewater disposal systems. No mitigation measures are required.

Wil	I the Project:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
a)	Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the environment?			V	
b)	Conflict with an applicable plan, policy, or regulation of an agency adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases?			V	
c)	Result in the loss of forestland or conversion of forestland to non-forest use, such that it would release significant amounts of GHG emissions, or significantly reduce GHG sequestering?				V
d)	Expose new or existing structures and/or infrastructure (e.g., leach fields) to accelerated coastal cliff/bluff erosion due to rising sea levels?			V	
e)	Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving sea level rise?				V
f)	Place structures within an anticipated 100-year flood hazard area as mapped on a Federal Flood Hazard Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation map?				Ø
g)	Place within an anticipated 100-year flood hazard area structures that would impede or redirect flood flows?				V

### VII. CLIMATE CHANGE

### **Existing Conditions**

Scientists have concluded that human activities are contributing to global climate change by adding large amounts of heat-trapping gases, known as greenhouse gases (GHGs), into the atmosphere. The primary source of these GHG is fossil fuel use. The Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) has identified four major GHGs—water vapor, carbon dioxide ( $CO_2$ ), methane ( $CH_4$ ), and ozone ( $O_3$ )—that are the likely cause of an increase in global average temperatures observed within the 20th and 21st

centuries. Other GHG identified by the IPCC that contribute to global warming to a lesser extent include nitrous oxide ( $N_2O$ ), sulfur hexafluoride ( $SF_6$ ), hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons, and chlorofluorocarbons.<sup>44,45</sup> This section analyzes the Project's contribution to global climate change impacts in California through an analysis of project-related GHG emissions.

Where available, the significance criteria established by the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) may be relied upon to make the following determinations.

#### Discussion

a) Will the project generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the environment?

The Project does not generate enough GHG emissions on its own to influence global climate change; therefore, the GHG analysis measures the Project's contribution to the cumulative environmental impact. The existing 10.39 acres of undeveloped land does not generate GHG emissions from the burning of fossil fuels in vehicles (mobile sources), energy use for cooling, heating, and cooking (energy), landscape equipment use and consumer products (area sources, or indirect emissions from water use, wastewater generation, and solid was disposal. The development contemplated by the Project will include construction of a 0.8-mile multi-use trail and will not result in an increase in vehicle trips within the area. Likewise, the proposed Project will not contribute to global climate change through the increase in air emissions from heating and cooling associated with a building.

The proposed Project involves the construction of an approximate 0.8-mile multi-use trail. BAAQMD does not have thresholds of significance for construction-related GHG emissions. GHG emissions from construction activities are short term and therefore not assumed to significantly contribute to cumulative GHG emissions impacts. Since BAAQMD's CEQA Guidelines does not have specific screening criteria for recreational trails, the screening criteria for city parks were used as the best fit. Based on BAAQMD's screening criteria, city parks of 2,613 acres or larger have the potential to generate a substantial increase in GHG emissions and will need further analysis. The proposed multi-use trail will be 0.8 miles long on 10.39 acres, which is below the BAAQMD screening threshold and will generate nominal GHG emissions. Furthermore, the trail will be energy efficient because all trail lighting will be solar-powered or use other energy efficient lighting features. Therefore, GHG emissions generated by the proposed Project are a *less-than-significant* impact. No mitigation measures are warranted.

## b) Will the project conflict with any applicable plan, policy, or regulation of an agency adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of GHGs?

Applicable plans adopted for the purpose of reducing GHG emissions include CARB's Scoping Plan, the MTC's/ ABAG Plan Bay Area, and County of San Mateo's Energy Efficiency Climate Action Plan (EECAP). A consistency analysis with these plans is presented below.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>44</sup> Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change, 2001, Third Assessment Report: Climate Change 2001, New York: Cambridge University Press.

 $<sup>^{45}</sup>$  Water vapor (H<sub>2</sub>O) is the strongest GHG and the most variable in its phases (vapor, cloud droplets, ice crystals). However, water vapor is not considered a pollutant.

#### CARB's Scoping Plan

In accordance with Assembly Bill 32 (AB 32), the California Air Resources Board (CARB) developed the 2008 Scoping Plan to outline the State's strategy to achieve 1990 level emissions by year 2020. To estimate the reductions necessary, CARB projected Statewide 2020 business as usual (BAU) GHG emissions (i.e., GHG emissions in the absence of statewide emission reduction measures). CARB identified that the State as a whole will be required to reduce GHG emissions by 28.5 percent from year 2020 BAU to achieve the targets of AB 32. A revised BAU 2020 forecast conducted after publication of the 2008 Scoping Plan by CARB shows that the state will have to reduce GHG emissions by 21.6 percent from BAU without Pavley and the 33 percent Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS) or 15.7 percent from the adjusted baseline (i.e., with Pavley and 33 percent RPS).

Statewide strategies to reduce GHG emissions include the Low Carbon Fuel Standard (LCFS), California Appliance Energy Efficiency regulations; California Building Standards (i.e., CALGreen and the 2008 Building and Energy Efficiency Standards); California Renewable Energy Portfolio standard (33 percent RPS); changes in the corporate average fuel economy standards (e.g., Pavley I and Pavley II); and other measures that will ensure the State is on target to achieve the GHG emissions reduction goals of AB 32. Statewide GHG emissions reduction measures that are being implemented over the next six years will reduce the Project's minor GHG emissions, particularly related to the construction phase of the project.

The proposed Project does not fall into any of these categories, and does not need to mitigate according to these standards. Impacts will be *less than significant* and no mitigation measures are warranted.

### MTC's/ABAG's Plan Bay Area

To achieve MTC's/ABAG's sustainable vision for the Bay Area, the Plan Bay Area land use concept plan for the region concentrates the majority of new population and employment growth in the region in Priority Development Areas (PDAs). PDAs are transit-oriented, infill development opportunity areas within existing communities. The Project is not within a PDA and will not affect regional population and employment projects. The proposed Project will continue to serve the San Mateo County coastal communities and will be consistent with the overall goals of Plan Bay Area. Therefore, the impacts will be *less than significant*. No mitigation measures are warranted and this issue will not be discussed further.

### San Mateo's Energy Efficiency Climate Action Plan

The County of San Mateo adopted the EECAP in June 2013. The EECAP is intended to streamline future environmental review of development projects in the unincorporated areas of San Mateo County by following the CEQA Guidelines and meeting the BAAQMD expectations for a Qualified GHG Reduction Strategy. The EECAP identifies the County's GHG reduction goal of 17 percent reduction below baseline emissions by 2020, which exceeds the statewide AB 32 target of a 15 percent reduction below baseline emissions by 2020. The goals and measures identified in the EECAP represent the County's actions to achieve its GHG reduction targets for target year 2020. The proposed Project will consume little energy, as street lights are solar powered. The project will be consistent with the energy efficiency goals and measures identified in the County of San Mateo's EECAP. Further, the Project will enable people to safely commute by bicycle from El Granada to areas south of El Granada, and eventually serve as a connection

to the Naomi Patridge trail which connects to Half Moon Bay. Therefore, the impacts will be *less than significant* and no mitigation measures are warranted.

c) Will the result in the loss of forestland or conversion of forestland to non-forest use, such that it would release significant amounts of GHG emissions, or significantly reduce GHG sequestering?

Although the Project will include removal of trees, it will not result in loss of forestland or conversion of forestland to non-forest use, as described above in impact discussion II.c. For those same reasons, the Project will result in *no impact* and no mitigation measures are required.

# d) Will the project expose structures and/or infrastructure (e.g., leach fields) to accelerated coastal cliff/bluff erosion due to rising sea levels?

According to the Governor's Executive Order S-13-08 on November 2008, global sea level rise for the next century is projected to rise faster than historical levels with the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change predicting that sea levels will rise between seven to 23 inches this century, and in some cases up to a 55 inch increase. However, as discussed above in impact discussion VI.a.v, the Project site is far enough from the nearest coastal cliff/bluff that it will not expose structures or infrastructure to accelerated coastal erosion. Therefore, a *less-than-significant* impact would occur and no mitigation measures are required.

# e) Will the project expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving sea level rise?

According to the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) sea level rise map, the Project site sits outside of areas to be significantly impacted by sea level rise. The NOAA study predicts a maximum sea level rise of 72 inches (6 feet) in the next century.<sup>46</sup> Therefore, the Project will not expose people or structures to sea level rise and *no impact* will occur. No mitigation measures are required.

# f) Will the project place structures within an anticipated 100-year flood hazard area as mapped on a Federal Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation map?

The Project does not include a housing component or other permanent habitable structures nor is the Project site within a 100-year floodplain.<sup>47</sup> Therefore, the proposed Project will result in *no impact*.

# g) Will the project place within an anticipated 100-year flood hazard area structures that would impede or redirect flood flows?

The Project site is not in the 100-year floodplain, according to FEMA FIRM No. 06081C0255E. Therefore, no structures will be placed in a 100-year floodplain that will impede or redirect flood flows. Also, the trail

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>46</sup> National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), Sea Level Rise and Coastal Flooding Impacts Interactive Map, https://coast.noaa.gov/slr/, accessed May 18, 2016.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>47</sup> Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), 2012. FIRM Map No. 06081C0255E.

will be outside of an area subject to future sea level rise or in a future erosion zone, according to the recent San Mateo County inundation map.<sup>48</sup> The proposed Project will result in *no impact*.

### VIII. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

Wil	l the Project:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
a)	Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, use or disposal of hazardous materials?			V	
b)	Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment?			V	
c)	Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances or waste within ¼-mile of an existing or proposed school?			V	
d)	Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous material sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, create a significant hazard to the public or the environment?				V
e)	For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within 2 miles of a public airport or public use airport, will the project result in a safety hazard for people residing or working in the project area?			M	
f)	For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, will the project result in a safety hazard for people residing or working in the project area?				Ø
g)	Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan?				
h)	Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland fires, including where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas or where residences are intermixed with wildlands?			V	
i)	Place housing within an existing 100-year flood hazard area as mapped on a Federal Flood Hazard Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation map?				V
j)	Place within an existing 100-year flood hazard area structures that would impede or redirect flood flows?				V
k)	Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving flooding, including flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam?			٦	Ø
I)	Inundation by seiche, tsunmi, or mudflow?			$\checkmark$	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>48</sup> San Mateo County, 2016. *SMC– Ocean Side South – Inundation Map,* http://seachangesmc.com/wp-content/uploads/2015/12/SMC\_HighHazardFloodExtent\_Poster\_OceanSouthwDisclaimer.pdf, accessed March 18, 2016.

#### Discussion

a) Will the project create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, use or disposal of hazardous materials?

Small amounts of potentially hazardous materials associated with heavy mechanical equipment, for example diesel, gasoline, or other automotive fluids, or associated trail building, such as herbicides, may be used during construction of the trail, or during routine maintenance. Project operation also could involve small quantity use of the same types of materials, as well as landscape maintenance products, during the course of trail upkeep. It is not, however, anticipated that large quantities of these materials will be permanently used or stored within the Project site.

Given that it is not anticipated that large quantities of the aforementioned materials will be permanently used or stored within the Project site, and with implementation of standard precautions and BMPs, the use, storage, and/or disposal of hazardous materials will not result in a significant hazard to the public or environment. Further, given the nature of the Project (i.e., multi-use trail), the overall impacts related to this threshold will, therefore, result in a *less-than-significant* impact and no mitigation measures are required.

# b) Will the project create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment?

As discussed above in Section VIII.a, operation of the Project could involve small quantity storage of potentially hazardous materials associated with heavy mechanical equipment, for example diesel, gasoline, or other automotive fluids, or associated trail building, such as herbicides. However, given the nature of the Project (i.e., multi-use trail), in addition to implementation of standard precautions and BMPs, the Project will not create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials. Therefore, impacts will be *less than significant* and no mitigation measures are required.

## c) Will the project emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous materials, substances or waste within ¼-mile of an existing or proposed school?

The El Granada Elementary School, a Cabrillo Unified District-kindergarten through 5<sup>th</sup> grade school, and the Wilkinson School, a private school for kindergarten through 8<sup>th</sup> grade students, are directly adjacent to the Project alignment along its north/northeast boundary at the intersection of Coronado Street and Highway 1.

As discussed in Section VIII.a and VIII.b above, operation of the Project could involve small quantity storage and use of landscape maintenance products, and fuels. However, given the nature of the Project (i.e., multi-use trail), use of any such materials will be limited and the potential to emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous materials will not be significantly different than those associated with existing conditions as a Caltrans undeveloped right-of-way. Consequently, because operations of the Project will not be drastically different than those of the existing conditions and compliance with other

federal and State laws related to the handling of hazardous materials, impacts will be *less than significant* and no mitigation measures are required.

# d) Will the project be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous material sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, create a significant hazard to the public or the environment?

A search of the Department of Toxic Substance Control's (DTSC's) online EnviroStor database<sup>49</sup> and the State Water Resources Control Board's (SWRCB's) online Geotracker database<sup>50</sup> on March 21, 2016 revealed that the Project site is not included on a list of hazardous material sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5, and, as a result, will not create a significant hazard to the public or the environment. The nearest listed site is Camp Miramar located southwest of the Project alignment at the corner of Mirada Road and State Highway 1. A former vaulted water well, since abandoned under permit issued by the San Mateo Environmental Health Services Agency, mistakenly was identified as a UST. The status of this listing is "No Further Action" as of August 12, 2012. Implementation of the proposed Project, therefore, will result in *no impact* with regard to this threshold and no mitigation measures are required.

e) For a project within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within 2 miles of a public airport or public use airport, will the project result in a safety hazard for people residing or working in the project area?

The Project site is located approximately 1.7 miles southeast of Half Moon Bay Airport and is within the Airport Influence Area (AIA) established by the City/County Association of Governments (C/CAG) of San Mateo County Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) for the Environs of the Half Moon Bay Airport.<sup>51</sup> The ALUCP indicates that the Project site is just within Safety Zone 7, which is the outer most area of flight paths. Safety Zone 7 is considered to have a low risk of aircraft accident and only requires plan review by the Airport Land Use Commission for structures 100 feet or higher given that objects shorter than 100 feet in height will not typically be airspace obstructions.<sup>52</sup> Given the nature of the Project (i.e., multi-use trail), there are no structures or improvements planned that will exceed the 100 foot height limit and trigger ALUC airspace review. Additionally, the Project site is not within the noise exposure area of the Half Moon Bay Airport.<sup>53</sup> Consequently, given that the Project will be constructed at a height significantly less than the 100 foot threshold for review by the ALUC, and because the Project is not within the noise exposure area of the airport, the Project is not expected to result in a safety hazard for people residing or working in the Project area. Therefore, this will be a *less-than-significant* impact and no mitigation measures are required.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>49</sup> http://envirostore.dtsc.ca.gov/public

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>50</sup> http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/public

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>51</sup> City/County Association of Governments (C/CAG) of San Mateo County San Mateo County Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan for the Environs of Half Moon Bay Airport, September 2014, Half Moon Bay Safety Zones, Exhibit 4C.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>52</sup> City/County Association of Governments (C/CAG) of San Mateo County San Mateo County Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan for the Environs of Half Moon Bay Airport, September 2014, page 4-24.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>53</sup> City/County Association of Governments (C/CAG) of San Mateo County San Mateo County Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan for the Environs of Half Moon Bay Airport, September 2014, 2032 Noise Exposure Contours, Exhibit 4B.

# f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, will the project result in a safety hazard for people residing or working in the project area?

There are no private airstrips in the vicinity of the proposed Project. Therefore, there will be *no impact* and no mitigation measures are required.

## g) Will the project impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan?

The proposed Project will not result in changes to current circulation for emergency vehicles or interfere with existing emergency response plans during construction. Following construction, design of the Project will allow emergency vehicles to access and follow routes similar to those used prior to development of proposed Project. Implementation of the proposed Project, therefore, will result in a *less-than-significant* impact and no mitigation measures are required.

# h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland fires, including where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas or where residences are intermixed with wildlands?

The proposed Project is not located on or immediately adjacent to wild lands. CAL FIRE evaluates fire hazard severity risks according to areas of responsibility (i.e., federal, state, local). According to CAL FIRE,<sup>54</sup> there are no very high fire hazard severity zones (VHFHSZ) within the Local Responsibility Area on or near proximity to the Project site. Likewise, these are no moderate, high, or very high fire hazard severity zones in the State Responsibility Areas in the vicinity of the Project site.<sup>55</sup> Although San Mateo County identifies the Project site to be located within a Community at Risk zone (i.e., neighborhoods or communities that interface with wild lands), compliance with applicable buildings codes and ordinances of the County of San Mateo, including California Building Code, Chapter 7A, Materials and Construction for Exterior Wildfire Exposure, and the very nature of the Project (i.e., multi-use trail), will reduce the risk of loss, injury, or death resulting from wildland fire and impacts will be *less than significant* and no mitigation measures are required.

### i) Will place housing within an existing 100-year flood hazard area as mapped on a Federal Flood Hazard Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation map?

The proposed Project does not include a housing component; therefore, *no impact* will occur with regards to placement of housing within an existing 100-year flood hazard area and no mitigation measures are required.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>54</sup> California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection, 2008. San Mateo County Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones in LRA map, http://frap.fire.ca.gov/webdata/maps/san\_mateo/fhszl\_map.41.pdf accessed May 29, 2015.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>55</sup> California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection, 2007. Fire Hazards and Severity Zones in State Responsibility Areas, http://frap.cdf.ca.gov/webdata/maps/sanmateo/fhszs\_map.43.pdf, accessed May 29, 2015.

# j) Will the project place within an existing 100-year flood hazard area structures that would impede or redirect flood flows?

As described above in impact discussion VII.g), the Project site is not within a 100-year floodplain and therefore, no structures will be placed in a 100-year floodplain that could impede or redirect flood flows. As such, the proposed Project will result in *no impact* and no mitigation measures are required.

# k) Will the project expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving flooding, including flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam?

The Project site is not in a dam inundation zone;<sup>56</sup> therefore, development of the Project will not expose people or structures to hazards from dam inundation. Also, the Project site is not in an area protected from 100-year floods by a levee. Therefore, the Project will result in *no impact* with regard to exposing people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury, or death involving flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam, and no mitigation measures are required.

### I) Will the project potentially be inundated by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow?

According to the ABAG interactive debris flow and landslide maps, the Project site is not within an area susceptible to mudflows.<sup>57</sup> However, a small portion of the proposed trail (approximately 500 feet) is within a mapped tsunami inundation zone.<sup>58</sup> A tsunami is a sea wave caused by a sudden displacement of the ocean floor, most often due to earthquakes.

A seiche is a surface wave generated in a closed or partially closed body of water, which can be compared to the back-and-forth sloshing in a bathtub. Seiches can be created by winds, underwater earthquakes, or tsunamis. Bodies of water such as bays, harbors, lakes, reservoirs, large aboveground storage tanks, and swimming pools can experience seiches. Because there are no large aboveground storage tanks or reservoirs in the vicinity of the site and the Project site is near the Pacific Ocean and not an enclosed body of water, there will be no potential impact due to a seiche.

Only a small portion of the trail is within a mapped tsunami inundation zone. This will not represent a significant change regarding the risk posed by tsunami inundation above and beyond those of existing conditions. It is also unlikely that a significant number of people will be accessing the trail during a tsunami event. There are various precautions and warning systems that will be implemented by the County in the event of a tsunami. The County of San Mateo maintains an Emergency Alert System on commercial television and radio as well as over the National Weather Service All Hazard Radios to notify the public of an impending tsunami threat. In addition, the County provides local warnings and instructions to tsunami hazard areas through the County's telephone emergency notification system

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>56</sup> County of San Mateo Planning and Building, 2015. San Mateo County Hazards/Dam Failure Inundation Areas,

http://planning.smcgov.org/documents/san-mateo-county-hazards-dam-failure-inundation-areas, accessed March 18, 2016. <sup>57</sup> Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG), 2015. *Earthquake and Hazards Program: Interactive Map of Debris Flow Source Areas and Existing Landslides*, http://gis.abag.ca.gov/website/Hazards/?hlyr=existingLndsld, accessed March 18, 2016.

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>58</sup> California Emergency Management Agency, California Geological Survey, and University of Southern California., 2009.
 Tsunami Inundation Map for Emergency Planning, Montara Mountain Quadrangle, June 15.

(TENS) and San Mateo County (SMC) alert, which is used to contact the public via email, cell phone, and/or smartphone devices.

Due to the infrequent nature of tsunamis and small area of the trail that is within the tsunami inundation zone, the potential impact of flooding from tsunamis or seiches is considered to be *less than significant* and no mitigation measures are required.

### IX. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY

Wil	the Project:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
a)	Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements (consider water quality parameters such as temperature, dissolved oxygen, turbidity and other typical stormwater pollutants (e.g., heavy metals, pathogens, petroleum derivatives, synthetic organics, sediment, nutrients, oxygen-demanding substances, and trash))?	٦	V	٦	٦
b)	Significantly deplete groundwater supplies or interfere significantly with groundwater recharge such that there will be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a significant lowering of the local groundwater table level (e.g., the production rate of pre-existing nearby wells would drop to a level which would not support existing land uses for which permits have been granted)?			Ŋ	
c)	Significantly alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of the course of a stream or river, in a manner which will result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site?		M		
d)	Significantly alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of the course of a stream or river, or substantially increase the rate or amount of surface runoff in a manner which will result in flooding on- or off-site?			Ŋ	
e)	Create or contribute runoff water which will exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems or provide significant additional sources of polluted runoff?				
f)	Significantly degrade surface or groundwater water quality?			V	
g)	Result in increased impervious surfaces and associated increased runoff?			V	

#### Discussion

a) Will the project violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements?

The proposed Project will disturb approximately 50,688 square feet (1.16 acres) and introduce approximately 33,792 square feet (0.8-acre) of impervious surface. Clearing, grading, excavation, and construction activities associated with the proposed Project have the potential to impact water quality

through soil erosion and increasing the amount of silt and debris carried in runoff. Additionally, construction will involve the use of chemicals and solvents, such as fuels and lubricating grease, for motorized heavy equipment that could impact water quality with stormwater runoff. Temporary storage of construction materials and equipment in work areas or staging areas could create the potential for a release of hazardous materials, trash, or sediment to the storm drain system.

The Project will be required to comply with the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) General Construction Permit (GCP) as well as prepare a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) because more than 1 acre of land will be disturbed. This requires the incorporation of BMPs to control sedimentation, erosion, and hazardous materials contamination of runoff during construction. In addition, the GCP requires that prior to the start of construction activities, the Project applicant must file Permit Registration Documents (PRDs) with the SWRCB, which includes a Notice of Intent (NOI), risk assessment, site map, annual fee, signed certification statement, SWPPP, and post-construction water balance calculations.

As a result of Project construction and operation, water quality could be impacted; however, implementation of Mitigation Measure HYDRO-1 will serve to minimize these impacts.

**Mitigation Measure HYDRO-1:** Consistent with the County of San Mateo's requirements, the applicant shall prepare and submit an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan with the grading permit prior to the start of construction. The plan must show what BMPs will be used and delineate work areas, measures to prevent erosion of unstable or denuded areas, locations of staging areas, construction access routes, and containment of construction materials and waste, as per the County's *General Erosion and Sediment Control Plan Checklist*. Potential BMPs may include silt fences, straw bales, catch basin inlet protection, berms around covered stockpiles, dust control, and stabilized construction access points.

Overall, compliance with implementation of Mitigation Measure HYDRO-1, and because the Project will be subject to existing regulations required by the NPDES General Construction Permit, as well as prepare a SWPPP, the impact to water quality during construction will be *less than significant*.

The operation and maintenance activities associated with the Project will result in minimal impacts on water quality. Water quality in stormwater runoff is regulated locally by the San Mateo Countywide Water Pollution Prevention Program (SMCWPPP), which include the C.3 provisions set by the San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB). The project is exempt from the C.3 requirements for stormwater treatment, source controls, and site design measures, because it is an impervious trail with a width of 10 feet or less and located more than 50 feet from the top of creek banks. The asphalt (impermeable) portion of the trail will be only 8 feet wide with 2 feet of decomposed granite (pervious surface) on either side of the paved trail. Nevertheless, the Project will incorporate the following site design measures:

- Limit disturbance of natural water bodies and drainage systems.
- Minimize compaction of highly permeable soils.

- Protect slopes and channels.
- Minimize impacts from stormwater and urban runoff on the biological integrity of natural drainage systems and water bodies.
- Conserve natural areas, including existing trees, other vegetation and soils.
- Minimize impervious surfaces.

Given that implementation of water runoff BMPs and LID features will be required during construction and operation, along with implementation of Mitigation Measure HYDRO-1, which serve to protect water resources, a *less-than-significant* impact will occur.

# b) Will the project substantially deplete groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge such that there will be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a significant lowering of the local groundwater table level?

The proposed Project could result in a significant impact if it will substantially deplete groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge. The community of El Granada is served by Coastside County Water District (CCWD), which obtains most of its water from surface water supplies. Only 4 percent of the water supply is obtained from groundwater and the nine groundwater wells are located east of Half Moon Bay Airport and over 3 miles from the Project site. Therefore, implementation of the Project should not interfere with groundwater recharge.

The Project site is located within the Half Moon Bay Terrace Groundwater Basin and the El Granada Subbasin, which is in long term equilibrium.<sup>59</sup> The CCWD Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) states that the District has sufficient water to meet demands during normal years through 2035.<sup>60</sup> Since the proposed Project is a new trail, there will be no increase in water demand.

Construction activities could result in short-term impacts to groundwater if the water table is high and construction dewatering was required. The State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB's) Geotracker website indicates that groundwater in the vicinity of the Project site is typically 24 to 35 feet below ground surface (bgs). The Project will involve minimal grading and/or excavation and groundwater should not be encountered during construction activities. The Project will result in the creation of approximately 33,792 square feet of impervious surface but it will be spread over a distance of 0.8-mile. Therefore, the impact of increased impervious surfaces on groundwater recharge will be minimal.

There is sufficient water in future years for the community of El Granada and the Project will not increase water demand. The increase in impervious surfaces will have a minimal impact on groundwater recharge. Therefore, the Project will have a *less-than-significant* impact with respect to groundwater supplies and groundwater recharge and no mitigation measures are required.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>59</sup> Balance Hydrologics, Inc., 2010. *Midcoast Groundwater Study Phase III, San Mateo County, California*.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>60</sup> West Yost Associates, 2011. 2010 Urban Water Management Plan Prepared for Coastside County Water District.

c) Will the project substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of the course of a stream or river, in a manner which will result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site?

The Project will not involve the alteration of a stream or river, but will involve a bridge above the Arroyo de en Medio dry creek bed between Furtado Lane and Miramar Drive. Ground disturbance during construction could result in a temporary alteration in drainage patterns. However, as noted in Section IX.a, construction will be subject to the requirements of the GCP and preparation of a SWPPP to minimize erosion and siltation impacts. Also, the Project will require preparation of an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan that specifies BMPs to minimize erosion and sedimentation and will include the following:

- Minimize disturbed areas of the site.
- Implement dust control measures, such as silt fences and regular watering of open areas.
- Stabilize construction entrances/exits.
- Install storm drain protection measures.
- Install sediment control measures around the site, including sand bags and filter rolls.

Once construction has been completed, there should be no significant alteration in existing drainage patterns. The relatively minor amount of new impervious surfaces with construction of the asphalt portion of the trail will not result in a substantial change of overland runoff volume or rates. As a result, there will not be substantial erosion or siltation impacts and operational impacts will be *less than significant*.

Overall, implementation of Mitigation Measure HYDRO-1 and compliance with the regulatory requirements and implementation of BMPs and site design measures will ensure that erosion and siltation impacts are *less than significant*.

d) Will the project substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of the course of a stream or river, in a manner which will result in substantial flooding on- or off-site?

The Project will not involve the alteration of the course of a stream or river but will involve construction of a bridge above the Arroyo de en Medio dry creek bed. The Project will take place primarily along the Caltrans right-of-way, which is currently undeveloped and thus will result in an increase in impervious surfaces with construction of an 8-foot-wide asphalt path. However, this change in impervious surfaces is spread over a 0.8-mile stretch of land and will not significantly change drainage patterns or the rate and amount of surface runoff. The project has been designed to avoid the creation of rolling dips or other features that will concentrate surface runoff at any one location. The Project will implement site design features to minimize impacts to stormwater runoff.

Ground disturbance during construction could temporarily alter drainage patterns but construction activities will be subject to the NPDES permit that imposes strict requirements to reduce the volume of stormwater runoff. BMPs will be implemented during construction and an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan will be prepared and submitted to the County prior to the start of construction.

Compliance with the State and County regulatory requirements will ensure that the rate and/or volume of surface runoff will not be substantially increased in a manner that results in on-site or off-site flooding and therefore, this impact is *less than significant*.

# e) Will the project create or contribute runoff water which will exceed the capacity of the existing or planned stormwater drainage systems?

Runoff from the trail is expected to drain via sheetflow to adjacent vegetated or undeveloped areas where it will infiltrate into the soil. Therefore, stormwater runoff will not require a connection to the existing storm drain system. The proposed Project will cross several small drainage courses and culverts will be constructed beneath the trail to allow water to continue draining along its existing natural course. Such improvements will not change the capacity of the existing drainage channels or stormwater conveyance systems. Therefore, the Project will not result in stormwater runoff volumes that could exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems, and the impact will be *less than significant*.

### f) Will the project otherwise substantially degrade water quality?

The multi-use trail will be used by pedestrians, bicyclists, and equestrians with no motorized travel (except for routine maintenance). Therefore, the Project will not generate pollutants such as motor oil, trace metals, grease, and fuels associated with road contaminants. The trail will require minimal maintenance so there will be no pollutants such as nutrients, organic compounds, or pesticides/ herbicides that could impact stormwater runoff.

Implementation of BMPs will be required during construction to control erosion and runoff in accordance with the provisions of the SWPPP and will minimize the potential for releases of construction pollutants that could impact water quality. Therefore, compliance with these regulations and the limited probability that stormwater pollutants will be generated with use of the trail will ensure that the Project does not substantially degrade water quality and the impact is *less than significant*.

### g) Will the project result in increased impervious surfaces and associated increased runoff?

The existing Project site is unimproved and therefore does not contain impervious surfaces. The Project proposes construction of a trail which will therefore increase the amount of impervious surfaces which will increase the amount of stormwater runoff. However, as discussed above under impact discussion IX.e, increased runoff will not result in runoff volumes that could exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems, thus resulting in a *less-than-significant* impact determination. No mitigation measures are required.

#### X. LAND USE AND PLANNING

Wil a)	l the Project: Physically divide an established community?	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
/					
b)	Conflict with any applicable land use plan, policy, or regulation of an agency with jurisdiction over the project (including, but not limited to the general plan, specific plan, local coastal program, or zoning ordinance) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect?			M	
c)	Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan or natural community conservation plan?				V
d)	Result in the congregating of more than 50 people on a regular basis?			V	
e)	Result in the introduction of activities not currently found within the community?				Ŋ
f)	Serve to encourage off-site development of presently undeveloped areas (examples include the introduction of new or expanded public utilities, new industry, commercial facilities or recreation activities)?				V
g)	Create a significant new demand for housing?				$\checkmark$

#### Discussion

#### a) Will the project physically divide an established community?

Construction of the Project will have a significant environmental impact if it were sufficiently large or otherwise configured in such a way as to create a physical barrier or other physical division within an established community. A typical example will be a project which involved a continuous right-of-way, such as a roadway, which will divide a community and impede access between parts of the community.

The Project site is currently undeveloped and proposes construction of a 0.8-mile, 12-foot-wide, twodirectional multi-use trail parallel to Cabrillo Highway (Highway 1) from Coronado Street to Mirada Road. Although the Project site itself is undeveloped, the areas surrounding the Project site are generally developed, consisting of El Granada Elementary School and Wilkinson School, single- and multi-family residential, and commercial development. However, the proposed Project will improve connection between existing developments by formalizing a trail in an area that is otherwise undeveloped. Therefore, the proposed Project will not physically divide any established community and a *less-than-significant* impact will occur. No mitigation measures are required. b) Will the project conflict with any applicable land use plan, policy or regulation of an agency with jurisdiction over the project (including, but not limited to, the general plan, specific plan, local coastal program or zoning ordinance) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect?

Construction of the Project will have a significant environmental impact if it will conflict with community goals as expressed in adopted plans, policies, or regulations. The Project will be consistent with several LCP policies related to the avoidance or mitigation of an environmental effect. For example, LCP Policy 7.3, Protection of Sensitive Habitats, prohibits any land use or development which could have a significant adverse impact on sensitive habitat areas, and development in areas adjacent to sensitive habitats shall be sited and designed to prevent impacts that could significantly degrade the sensitive habitats. As described above under Section IV. Biological Resources, the Project will not result in significant adverse environmental effects related to sensitive habitat, wetland, or other biological resources with implementation of Mitigation Measures BIO-1 through BIO-5. Further, LCP Policy 7.5, Permit Conditions, requires applicants to demonstrate that there will be no significant impact on sensitive habitats as part of the development review process. The Project will also be consistent with LCP Policy 7.9, Permitted Uses in Riparian Corridors, which permits limited uses within riparian corridors, including trails and scenic overlooks. Given that the Project involves construction of a trail, the Project will be consistent with this policy.

Overall, compliance with the LCP policies described above would ensure that there will be no significant impacts on sensitive habitats, and that the Project will have a *less-than-significant* impact on the surrounding area. No mitigation measures are required.

### c) Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan or natural community conservation plan?

The Project will not conflict with any adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or other approved conservation plan. The San Bruno Mountain Habitat Conservation Plan encompasses an area of approximately 3,600 acres near San Bruno Mountain located 20 miles north of the Project site and does not include areas in the vicinity of the Project site. No such plans have been adopted encompassing the Project vicinity; therefore the Project will result in *no impact*.

### d) Will the project result in the congregating of more than 50 people on a regular basis?

The Project proposes construction of a trail which will result in people visiting the Project site, however, it is not expected that more than 50 people will be congregating on a regular basis. Although there could be several people using the trail simultaneously, these trail users will not likely congregate such that it results in adverse effects. Overall, a *less-than-significant* impact will occur and no mitigation measures are required.

### e) Will the project result in the introduction of activities not currently found within the community?

The Project proposes construction of a trail along Highway 1 that will provide opportunities for passive recreation, such as walking and bicycling. Given the location near the Pacific Ocean coastline and the existing California Coastal Trail which also provides trails for passive recreation within the community, the Project will not be introducing activities that are not already present in the area. Therefore, *no impact* will occur and no mitigation measures are required.

f) Will the project serve to encourage off-site development of presently undeveloped areas (examples include the introduction of new or expanded public utilities, new industry, commercial facilities or recreation activities)?

Although the Project itself will develop an undeveloped area of land, the Project components will be constructed within the site itself and will not otherwise encourage any off-site development anywhere necessary to support construction and/or operation of the proposed trail. Further, because the Project is a trail and does not include a housing component which could increase the population, there will not be a need for any new industry or commercial facilities as a result. Therefore, *no impact* would occur and no mitigation measures are required.

### g) Will the project create a significant new demand for housing?

The Project proposes construction of a trail which will encourage people to engage in passive recreation; however, it is unlikely that the trail will encourage or result in the relocation of anyone to the extent that it will create a significant new demand for housing. Further, the proposed Project will not generate an increase in employment. Therefore, *no impact* will occur and no mitigation measures are required.

XI.	MINERAL RESOURCES

Will	the Project:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
a)	Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that will be of value to the region and the residents of the state?				V
b)	Result in the loss of availability of a locally important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan?				Ŋ

### Discussion

# a) Will the project result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that will be of value to the region and the residents of the state?

The California Department of Conservation, Geological Survey (CGS) classifies lands into Aggregate and Mineral Resource Zones (MRZs) based on guidelines adopted by the California State Mining and Geology Board, as mandated by the Surface Mining and Reclamation Act of 1974. These MRZs identify whether known or inferred significant mineral resources are present in areas. Lead agencies are required to incorporate identified MRZs resource areas delineated by the State into their General Plans.<sup>61</sup> The San Mateo County General Plan does not identify any Land Use designations for mineral resources on the Project site.<sup>62</sup> Therefore, the Project will result in *no impact* and no mitigation measures are required.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>61</sup> Public Resources Code Section 2762(a)(1).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>62</sup> County of San Mateo Planning and Building Department, Map 1.4 – Midcoast Land Use Plan,

http://planning.smcgov.org/sites/planning.smcgov.org/files/documents/files/SMC\_Midcoast\_LCP\_LU.pdf, accessed March 31, 2016.

b) Will the project result in the loss of availability of a locally important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local general plan, specific plan, or other land use plan?

See Section XI.a above.

#### XII. NOISE

Wil	the Project:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
a)	Exposure of persons to or generation of noise levels in excess of standards established in the local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies?		Ø		
b)	Exposure of persons to or generation of excessive groundborne vibration or ground borne noise levels?		V		
c)	A substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above levels existing without the project?			V	
d)	A substantial temporary or periodic increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above levels existing without the project?		V		
e)	For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within 2 miles of a public airport or public use airport, will the project expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels?		٦	Ŋ	٦
f)	For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, will the project expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels?				V

#### **Existing Conditions**

The primary sources of noise in the vicinity of the Project site are from traffic noise on surrounding roadways; primarily from Cabrillo Highway (Highway 1). Secondary roadway noise sources include Coronado Street, Magellan Avenue, Medio Avenue, Miramar Drive, Mirada Road, and Furtado Lane.

Upon completion of the proposed Project, the trail will accommodate pedestrian and bicycle users. There are no new vehicle parking facilities included in the proposed Project. These pedestrian and bicycle users will generate negligible levels of sound (from footfalls, talking, and/or exertion), as compared to the motor vehicle flows along the nearby Highway 1. The Project will be accessible 365 days of the year, but will be primarily intended for daytime usage as lighting will only consist of solar-powered fixtures, meant to provide safety illumination.

The proposed Project is within an unincorporated area of San Mateo County, known as El Granada. Therefore, the General Plan Noise Element of San Mateo County is referenced for noise-related policies and noise control goals. Likewise, the San Mateo County Code is used to establish regulatory noise limitation for the project. These two documents are summarized below.

#### a. Sensitive Receptors

In general, noise is primarily a concern with regard to noise-sensitive land uses such as single- or multiplefamily residences, schools, hospitals, churches, or public libraries where quiet environments are necessary for enjoyment, public health, and safety. Commercial and industrial uses are generally not considered noise- and vibration-sensitive uses, unless noise and vibration would interfere with their normal operations and business activities. As shown on Figure 16, the nearest sensitive receptors to Project site are residential uses that are generally between approximately 50 to 150 feet from the trail pathway. The closest school use is the El Granada Elementary School, portions of which are within approximately 50 feet of the proposed trail.





Source: Google Earth Pro, 2016. PlaceWorks, 2018.

600 Scale (Feet)



Approximate Trail Alignment

Figure 16 Sensitive Noise Receptors

#### b. County of San Mateo Noise Element

The Noise Element of the County's General Plan is generally intended to protect public health and welfare by eliminating existing noise problems and by preventing significant degradation of the future acoustic environment. The Noise Element was adopted in November of 1986 and it provides over-arching strategies for controlling and/or reducing community-wide noise environments within the County.

The General Plan Noise Element also provides land use compatibility and interior and exterior noise standards to "guide development within the unincorporated area." These exterior noise standards are based on the State of California's Noise Compatibility Guidelines, but the Noise Element also states: "...this approach has never been incorporated by ordinance into the development review process."<sup>63</sup> For reference, however, the State's Noise Compatibility Guidelines denote the following for uses categorized as 'Playgrounds, Neighborhood Parks':

- "normally acceptable" will have environmental noise levels between 50 and 70 dBA CNEL.
- "conditionally acceptable" will have environmental noise levels between 67.5 and 75 dBA CNEL.
- "normally unacceptable" (no guidelines provided).
- "clearly unacceptable" will have environmental noise levels between 72.5 and 85+ dBA CNEL.

These land use standards are designed to ensure that proposed land uses are compatible with the predicted future noise environment. For example, a "conditionally acceptable" designation implies new construction or development should be undertaken only after a detailed analysis of the noise reduction requirements for each land use is made and needed noise insulation features are incorporated in the design. By comparison, a "normally acceptable" designation indicates that standard construction can occur with no special noise reduction requirements.

The above discussion notwithstanding, it is important to note that with the recent Supreme Court decision regarding the assessment of the environment's impacts on proposed projects (*CBIA v BAAQMD*, issued December 17, 2015),<sup>64</sup> it is generally no longer the purview of the CEQA process to evaluate the impact of existing environmental conditions on any given project. For noise, the application of this ruling means that the analysis of traffic, rail, and aircraft noise effects at the Project site—regarding land use compatibility issues—is no longer part of CEQA. Therefore, exterior noise effects from nearby roadways relative to land use compatibility of the Project is no longer a topic for impact evaluation under CEQA, and no statement of impact significance is germane.

#### c. San Mateo County Code (Noise Ordinance)

Noise emissions within the County of San Mateo are primarily regulated by Chapter 4.88 – Noise Control of the County Code, adopted in 1982.<sup>65</sup> The Noise Ordinance lists nine qualitative factors, to determine whether noise generating activities violate the Ordinance provisions. As an over-arching restriction on community noise, Section 4.88.350 reads:

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>63</sup> Section 'Man-Made Hazards Issues,' Part I 'Noise', Section C 'Evaluation of Existing Plan, Policies, and Regulations for Noise Control, Subsection 4 'Noise Land Use Compatibility', page 16.54

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>64</sup> California Supreme Court. *California Building Industry Association v. Bay Area Air Quality Management District* (2015) [Case No. S213478].

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>65</sup> San Mateo County Municipal Code, Chapter 4.88 Noise Control, https://library.municode.com/ca/san\_mateo\_county/ codes/code\_of\_ordinances?nodeId=TIT4SAHE\_CH4.88NOCO; accessed March 14, 2018.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this ordinance, it shall be unlawful for any person to willfully or negligently make or continue, or cause to be made or continued any unreasonably loud, unnecessary, or unusual noise which disturbs the peace and quiet of any neighborhood or which causes any discomfort or annoyance to any person of normal sensitivity residing in the area. The factors which shall be considered in determining whether a violation of the provisions of this section exists include the following:

- a) The sound level of the objectionable noise.
- b) The sound level of the background noise.
- c) The proximity of the noise to residential sleeping or hospital facilities.
- d) The nature and zoning of the area from which the noise emanates and upon which the noise impacts.
- e) The number of persons affected by the noise sources.
- f) The time of day or night the noise occurs.
- g) The duration of the noise and its tonal, informational, or musical content.
- h) Whether the noise is continuous, recurrent, or intermittent.
- i) Whether the noise is produced by a commercial or non-commercial activity. (Prior Code Section 4955; Ord. 2803, 10/19/82)

The primary numerical standards for limiting exterior and interior noise levels are contained in Sections 4.88.330 and 4.88.340, respectively. The County's noise ordinance is designed to protect people from objectionable non-transportation noise sources such as music, construction activity, machinery, pumps, and air conditioners. Like many noise regulations, San Mateo County restricts noise levels generated at a source property from exceeding certain noise levels over a stepped range of time periods; that is, increasing levels of noise emissions are allowable for decreasing time frames.

#### Exterior Noise Limits

As described under the Sensitive Receptor subsection above, for exterior noise, the receiving property types are delineated as single- or multiple-family residences, schools, hospitals, churches, or public libraries; situated in either the incorporated or unincorporated area. These numerical standards for exterior noise are summarized in Table 1.

#### Interior Noise Limits

For interior noise, it is unlawful to create, or allow the creation of, any noise which causes the noise level when measured inside a receiving dwelling unit with windows in their normal seasonal configuration to exceed the noise level standards summarized in Table 2.

#### Construction-Related Noise

Construction activities are exempted from the above noise limitations provided said construction is conducted per the requirements of Section 4.88.360. That is, construction activities are prohibited between 6:00 PM and the following 7:00 AM on weekdays and between 5:00 PM and the following 9:00 AM on Saturdays. Construction is not allowed on Sundays, Thanksgiving, and Christmas.

# Table 1Exterior Noise Level Standards, dBA for Receiving Land Use: Single- orMultiple-Family Residence, School, Hospital, Church, or Public LibraryProperties

Category	Cumulative Number of Minutes (in any 1 hour time period)	Daytime 7 AM—10 PM	Nighttime 10 PM—7 AM	
1	30	55	50	
2	15	60	55	
3	5	65	60	
4	1	70	65	
5	0	75	70	

a) In the event the measured background noise level exceeds the applicable noise level standard in any category above, the applicable standard shall be adjusted in 5 dBA increments so as to encompass the background noise level.

b) Each of the noise level standards specified above shall be reduced by 5 dBA for simple tone noises, consisting primarily of speech or music, or for recurring or intermittent impulsive noises.

c) If the intruding noise source is continuous and cannot reasonably be stopped for a period of time whereby the background noise level can be measured, the noise level measured while the source is in operation shall be compared directly to the noise level standards in Table 1. Source: County of San Mateo Code, Chapter 4.88, Section 4.88.330.

Table 2         Interior Noise Level Standards, dBA for Dwelling Units										
Category	Cumulative Number of Minutes (in any 1 hour time period)	Daytime 7 AM—10 PM	Nighttime 10 PM—7 AM							
1	5	45	40							
2	1	50	45							
3	0	55	50							

a) In the event the measured background noise level exceeds the applicable noise level standard in any category above, the applicable standard shall be adjusted in 5 dBA increments so as to encompass the background noise level.

b) Each of the noise level standards specified above shall be reduced by 5 dBA for simple tone noises, consisting primarily of speech or music, or for recurring or intermittent impulsive noises.

c) If the intruding noise source is continuous and cannot reasonably be stopped for a period of time whereby the background noise level can be measured, the noise level measured while the source is in operation shall be compared directly to the noise level standards in Table 2. Source: County of San Mateo Code, Chapter 4.88, Section 4.88.340

#### d. Pertinent Acoustical Industry Considerations

With respect to projected increases, noise impacts can be broken down into three categories. The first is "audible" impacts, which refer to increases in noise level that are perceptible to humans. Audible increases in general community noise levels generally refer to a change of 3 dB or more since this level has been found to be the threshold of perceptibility in exterior environments. The second category, "potentially audible" impacts, refers to a change in noise level between 1 and 3 dB. This range of noise levels was found to be noticeable to sensitive people in laboratory environments. The last category includes changes in noise level of less than 1 dB that are typically "inaudible" to the human ear except

under quiet conditions in controlled environments. Only "audible" changes in noise levels at sensitive receptor locations (i.e., 3 dB or more) are considered potentially significant. Note that a doubling of traffic flows (i.e., 10,000 vehicles per day to 20,000 per day) will be needed to create a 3 dB increase in traffic-generated noise levels.

#### Discussion

The County of San Mateo proposes to construct a new 0.8-mile, 12-foot-wide, two-directional multi-use trail parallel to Highway 1 from Coronado Street to Mirada Road, which will be open for public access 365 days a year. The Project will also include entry and safety signage, traffic-calming features; at-road crossings, a creek bridge, retaining wall, and other infrastructure designed to minimize potential impacts to the natural drainage courses and wetland areas. The Project consists of seven segments that comprise the entire 0.8 miles of trail. With the exception of the trailhead near Highway 1, the majority of the trail will generally be set back 60 feet from Highway 1; mostly within the Caltrans right-of-way. However, there will be a portion of the trail that is within 16 feet of the center of the nearest travel lane of Highway 1. Technical details associated with the noise and vibration assessment are included in Appendix C.

a) Will the project result in exposure of persons to or generation of noise levels in excess of standards established in the local general plan or noise ordinance, or other applicable standards of other agencies?

#### General Plan Noise Element

El Granada is a census-designated place (CDP) in San Mateo County without established exposure land use compatibility standards. Therefore, the General Plan of San Mateo County is referenced in order to determine what can be characterized as acceptable noise compatibility. At relatively low levels, noise can interfere with speech, sleep, and mental concentration. At higher levels and for extended periods of time, noise can cause stress, headaches, and a variety of physiological effects, including permanent hearing loss. The County of San Mateo General Plan states in Chapter 16 that all citizens are entitled to a peaceful and quiet environment without the intrusion of noise which may be hazardous to their health and welfare. The General Plan seeks to develop policies aimed at providing an environment free from harmful and annoying levels of noise. As noted above, however, noise land use compatibility impact assessments are no longer part of the CEQA process (per the CBIA v BAAQMD ruling of December 2015), so the environment's noise effects onto the proposed Project are not pertinent to this CEQA document.

### *County Code Noise Emission Limits*

The proposed Project will consist of pedestrian and bicycle users following the trail. No motorized vehicles will be on the trail<sup>66</sup> and there are no new vehicle parking facilities included in the proposed Project. These pedestrian and bicycle users will generate negligible levels of sound (from footfalls, talking, and/or exertion), as compared to the motor vehicle flows along the adjacent Highway 1. Therefore, the operations at and the use of the proposed Project will not change (or substantially increase) the area noise levels (as compared to existing conditions) and will not create noise levels that will violate Sections 4.88.340 of the County Code (dealing with noise emissions at sensitive receptor land uses).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>66</sup> With the possible exceptions of law enforcement patrols or occasional maintenance vehicles.

Thus, trail users will not generate noise levels in excess of County Code standards and this impact is *less than significant*.

#### *County Code Construction Activities*

According to the County of San Mateo Code (Section 4.88.360), noise sources associated with construction are exempted from the noise level limits (of Tables 1 and 2 above), provided said activities do not take place before 7:00 AM or after 6:00 PM on weekdays (Monday through Saturday), before 9:00 AM or after 5:00 PM on Saturdays, at any time Sundays, Thanksgiving, and Christmas.<sup>67</sup>

Construction of the proposed Project will take approximately six months and is expected to begin in the spring of 2019. The primary construction activity of the proposed Project will involve earthwork and grading, and could involve the use of tractors, dump trucks, and graders. In addition, chainsaws could be used to remove vegetation, where necessary. Usual operating cycles for these types of construction equipment may involve one or two minutes of full-power operation followed by three or four minutes at lower power settings. However, drilling rig(s), crane(s), and an impact pile driving rig will be needed for sections of the trail's development. In general, construction-related short-term noise levels will be higher than existing ambient noise levels in the vicinity of the Project site, but will end once construction is completed.

As shown on Figure 16, the closest sensitive noise receptors are the residences approximately 60 to 75 feet adjacent to the Project site near Furtado Lane (located east of the Project boundary), and El Granada Elementary School approximately 35 feet adjacent to the Project site. As such, residential and school receptors may intermittently and sporadically hear construction-related noise levels that are noticeable in relation to ambient noise levels. However, traffic flow on Highway 1 is the dominant noise source at the majority of these receptors and construction activities are not expected to substantially increase the daytime noise environment. Nonetheless, there are residences located within 150 feet of some specific construction zones and there are two sections of the Project that will require the use of pile drivers which are considered special, noise- and vibration-intensive equipment. Projected construction noise impacts are discussed below, and vibration-related impacts are addressed in Noise Impact item b).

*General Construction Noise.* Noise generated during construction is based on the type of equipment used, the location of the equipment relative to sensitive receptors, and the timing and duration of the noise-generating activities. Each stage of construction involves the use of different kinds of construction equipment and, therefore, has its own distinct noise characteristics. Noise levels from construction activities are dominated by the loudest piece of construction equipment. The dominant noise source is typically the engine, although work piece noise (such as dropping of materials) can also be notable. Since these piles will be installed in a drilled hole, the primary noise sources for this construction zone would be drill rig(s), crane(s), and an impact pile driving rig. As described above, there are 21 residences and the El Granada Elementary school within 50 to 150 feet from the Project corridor. Table 3 lists typical individual construction equipment noise levels, based on a distance of 50 feet between the equipment and noise receptor.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>67</sup> Presumably, construction activities outside of these exempt hours would defer to being subject to the normal noise level limitations of Section 4.88.330 of the Code. That is, household or commercial construction could take place on a Sunday, for example, but would be limited to the noise requirements of Section 4.88.330 (as reproduced in Table 1).

Construction Equipment	Typical Noise Level (dBA) at 50 Feet	Construction Equipment	Typical Noise Level (dBA) at 50 Feet
Air Compressor	81	Pile-Driver (Impact)	101
Backhoe	80	Pile-Driver (Sonic)	96
Ballast Equalizer	82	Pneumatic Tool	85
Ballast Tamper	83	Pump	76
Compactor	82	Rail Saw	90
Concrete Mixer	85	Rock Drill	98
Concrete Pump	71	Roller	74
Concrete Vibrator	76	Saw	76
Crane, Derrick	88	Scarifier	83
Crane, Mobile	83	Scraper	89
Dozer	85	Shovel	82
Generator	81	Spike Driver	77
Grader	85	Tie Cutter	84
Impact Wrench	85	Tie Handler	80
Jack Hammer	88	Tie Inserter	85
Loader	85	Truck	88
Paver	89		

Table 3	<b>Noise Emission L</b>	evels for Typical	<b>Construction Eq</b>	uipment Items

Source: Federal Transit Administration, Transit Noise, and Vibration Impact Assessment, 2006.

As shown in Table 3, construction equipment can generate high levels of noise, with typical equipment often generating noise levels ranging from 71 dBA to 101 dBA at 50 feet. Thus, construction of the proposed Project would temporarily increase the ambient noise environment and would have the potential to affect noise-sensitive land uses in the vicinity of that trail pathway. Construction noise impacts from an impact pile driving rig occur in the following locations: 1) Segment 4 west of Magellan Avenue, where there is one home west of Highway 1 and five homes to the east of the highway (both generally north of Medio Avenue and south of Magellan Avenue) located within 200 feet from the proposed trail pathway; and 2) Segment 6 between Furtado Land and Miramar Drive, where there are two residence west of Highway 1 within approximately 50 feet of the proposed abutments.

The average noise levels at noise-sensitive receptors would tend to be lower than what is presented in Table 3 because construction equipment noise is intermittent and diminishes at a rate of at least 6 dB per doubling distance. Additionally, since construction equipment would move around the site and be operated with different loads and power requirements, the associated noise emissions to nearby receptors is typically quite variable over the course of any given work day.

Construction is performed in distinct steps, each of which has its own mix of equipment items (like those shown above in Table 3) and noise characteristics. Table 4 provides the typical, average noise levels

generated during representative construction phases; starting with the common reference distance of 50 feet and progressing away from the center of activities.

		Average Noise Level, L <sub>eg</sub> (dBA) <sup>b</sup> at Noted Distances <sup>c</sup>										
Construction Phase	50 ft	100 ft	150 ft	200 ft	250 ft	300 ft	400 ft	500 ft	750 ft	1,000 ft	1,250 ft	1,500 ft
Ground Clearing	84	78	74	72	70	68	66	64	60	58	56	54
Excavation	88	82	78	76	74	72	70	68	64	62	60	58
Foundations	88	82	78	76	74	72	70	68	64	62	60	58
Erection	79	73	69	67	65	63	61	59	55	53	51	49
Finishing	84	78	74	72	70	68	66	64	60	58	56	54

Table 4	<b>Typical Noise Levels from</b>	<b>Construction Activitie</b>	s for Public Works Projects <sup>a</sup>
---------	----------------------------------	-------------------------------	--

a. Including roads & highways projects, sewer/pipeline projects, and other trenching projects.

b. Sound level with all pertinent equipment operating and with typical usage factors.

c. This presentation conservatively accounts for only spherical spreading loss, while ignoring several other propagation attenuation factors.

Sources: US Environmental Protection Agency, 1971.

Per the results of Table 4, the worst-case noise levels at the pertinent distances (to the nearest residences and the school)—assuming no attenuation due to the Project site's topography and vegetation and neglecting the special case of pile driving—could be in the range of 74 to 88 dBA  $L_{eq}$ .<sup>68</sup> Pile driving operations would be within the range of 91 to 101 dBA (for distances of 150 feet to 50 feet from the impact activities, respectively).

The project site is generally level, but—due to soil conditions, and the need to span the Arroyo de en Medio Creek—some heavy earthwork and structural installations will be required. These structures will consist of: a) a retaining wall to protect the wetlands area in Segment 4<sup>69</sup> and, b) an 80-foot bridge along Segment 6<sup>70</sup> (to span the creek). Both of these structural elements will require substantial, but differing, foundations. The three main types of construction activities are discussed in more detail below.

*Segment 4 Retaining Wall.* For the Segment 4 retaining wall, approximately 65 'soldier' piles<sup>71</sup> (24-inch diameter cast-in-drilled-hole piles with nominal 8-foot spacing) will be installed to support a concrete

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>68</sup> It should be noted that due to the site topography and vegetation, the real-world noise levels at these nearest receptors would be less than the values of Table 2.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>69</sup> Construction of this segment will require removal of some existing vegetation, as well as construction of a soldier pile wall and concrete foundation slab supported on 24-inch diameter cast-in-drilled-hole (CIDH) piles, which will support the trail approximately four feet above the nominal grade level, to protect the adjacent wetlands.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>70</sup> The steel bridge is to connect the multimodal trail across the Arroyo de en Medio Creek between Furtado Lane and Miramar Drive. The elevation of the bridge will be approximately 10 feet above the bottom of the dry creek. There will be foundation abutments at each end of the bridge and each abutment will need a pair of 30-inch diameter, CISS piles.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>71</sup> A soldier pile is a common retaining wall strategy in which H-shaped steel beams ("piles") are drilled deep into the earth at regular intervals — usually 2 to 4 yards apart. Between each vertical pile, horizontal supports fill the gap, helping to spread the load. Known as "lagging walls," these horizontal supports are most often made from precast concrete panels, steel girders, or pressure-treated timber. Source: https://www.foundationrepairservices.com/blog/what-you-should-know-about-soldier-piles/

foundation slab for that portion of the trail. These soldier piles will be installed to a nominal depth of 5 feet and will have lagging walls no more than four to five feet in height. Since these piles will be installed in a drilled hole, the primary noise sources for this construction zone would be a drill rig and a crane. Per Table 3 above, a mobile crane would be expected to produce an average noise level of 83 dBA at 50 feet, while a drilling rig (taken to be equivalent to a bulldozer in this table) would produce an average noise level of 85 dBA at 50 feet. These values would be at least 10 dB lower at approximately 150 feet and an additional 10 dB lower at approximately 500 feet. That is, 83 to 85 dBA at 50 feet, 73 to 75 dBA at 150 feet, and 63 to 65 dBA at 500 feet (all approximate noise levels).

The existing noise levels from traffic flows on Highway 1 are predicted to be approximately 72 dBA CNEL at 50 feet, 65 dBA CNEL at 147 feet, and 60 dBA CNEL at 318 feet (all relative to the roadway centerline). Peak-hour  $L_{eq}$  values are commonly taken to be within 2 dB of the 24-hour CNEL value.<sup>72</sup> Thus, roadway noise levels, generally speaking, are approximately 10 dB less than the expected Segment 4 retaining wall construction noise levels. As such, the installation of the retaining wall would be readily discernible above the traffic-generated noise at receptors within approximately 200 feet of the trail pathway. This would encompass one home west of Highway 1 and five homes to the east of the highway (both generally west of Medio Avenue and east of Magellan Avenue). This increased noise level from Segment 4 construction activities could be considered as a substantial increase in the ambient conditions, albeit a temporary change, so retaining wall construction is a *potentially significant* noise impact.

*Segment 6 Bridge.* The Segment 6 bridge will be a pre-fabricated steel truss superstructure, which will be founded on a reinforced concrete grade beam supported on 30-inch diameter, cast-in-steel-shell (CISS) piles on abutments at each end of the span (a total of four piles). These piles will be driven, rather than drilled. The trail will generally be set back more than 60 feet from Highway 1, and the proposed bridge will be set back 100 feet from the highway. The Segment 6 bridge is generally located west of Miramar Drive and east of Furtado Lane and the Project will also include a raised crosswalk where the trail crosses Miramar Drive. There are two residences within approximately 50 to 60 feet of the proposed abutments.

Given the local soil conditions and the needed bearing capacity of the abutments, the foundations will consist of 30-inch diameter CISS piles that will be impact-driven to a nominal depth of 6 feet. This pile driving activity is projected to have a duration of one day per abutment (two days total).<sup>73</sup> Per Table 3 above, an impact pile driving rig would be expected to produce an average noise level of 101 dBA at 50 feet. This value would be expected to reduce to approximately 81 dBA at 500 feet from the pile driving rig and to 71 dBA at 1500 feet (all neglecting additional attenuation that would be provided by ground effects, topography, and/or barrier effects from intervening structures). At the two nearest residences to the abutments, the pile driving noise levels (i.e., 101 dBA) would be approximately 30 dB above the background noise from traffic-flows on Highway 1.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>72</sup> California Department of Transportation (Caltrans). 2013, September. Technical Noise Supplement ("TeNS"). Prepared by ICF International, http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/env/noise/pub/TeNS\_Sept\_2013B.pdf.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>73</sup> E-mail from Christopher D. Ingle of Cornerstone Structural Engineering Group to Steve Noack of PlaceWorks, dated October 3, 2017.

Although the duration of pile driving activities is temporary and short-term (less than one week total) and although this portion of the overall project construction will also adhere to the County Code time-of-day restrictions, the very close proximity of noise-sensitive receptors and the associated large increases in ambient noise conditions will result in a *significant* construction noise impact during Segment 6 bridge installation. Notable noise reduction mitigation measures would be required.

*All Other Portions.* For other sections of the Project trail that do not require foundations or structures<sup>74</sup>, construction activities will primarily employ equipment items that will not generate significant levels of noise. These new, temporary sources, coupled with the relatively high existing noise levels from traffic flows on Highway 1 may, at times, be audible at nearby residential and school land uses, but are not expected to substantially raise the community noise levels; outside of Project Segments 4 and 6. Thus, construction noise would be a *less than significant* impact on these other portions of the project.

*Construction Noise Summary.* While the Project construction will adhere to Section 4.88.360 of the County Code that restricts construction activities to allowable portions of the day<sup>75</sup>, construction noise will substantially raise the existing ambient conditions and the associated impacts will be *significant* (Segment 6 bridge) or *potentially significant* (Segment 4 retaining wall) and will require noise reduction mitigation measures for these specific project sections. The majority of the trail pathway construction, however, is not expected to substantially raise the ambient environment and will result in *less than significant* noise impacts.

- Mitigation Measure NOI-1: Prior to the issuance of demolition, grading and/or building permits, plan specifications shall indicate that San Mateo County shall be responsible for requiring all construction contractors to implement the following measures to limit construction-related noise:
- Construction activity is limited to the daytime hours between 7:00 AM and 6:00 PM (Monday through Friday) or between 9:00 AM and 5:00 PM (Saturdays) or at no time on Sundays, Thanksgiving, and Christmas, per County Code Section 4.88.330.
- At least 30 days prior to commencement of demolition, notification of planned construction activities and scheduling shall be given to all residents and commercial entities in proximity to the Project site. A suggested notification zone is depicted in Attachment A and is focused on the Segment 4 and Segment 6 construction zones. The notification shall include a brief description of the project, the activities that would occur, and the durations/hours when construction would occur. The notification shall also include the phone number of the construction superintendent(s). If the superintendent(s) receives a complaint, the superintendent(s) shall investigate, take appropriate corrective action, and report the action to the reporting party and to San Mateo County.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>74</sup> Besides the approximate 520-foot long retaining wall in Project Segment 4 and the 80-foot long steel bridge in Project Segment 6, the remaining 3,600 feet of proposed trail includes an 8-foot-wide asphalt surface with a painted stripe down the center, and a 2-foot-wide surface of decomposed granite on either side of the asphalt; for a total trail width of 12 feet.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>75</sup> Specifically, construction activities are prohibited between 6:00 PM and the following 7:00 AM on weekdays and between 5:00 PM and the following 9:00 AM on Saturdays. Construction is not allowed on Sundays, Thanksgiving, and Christmas.

- A sign shall be posted on construction zone fencing that is clearly visible to site passers-by and that includes a contact name and telephone number of the construction superintendent(s). If the superintendent(s) receives a complaint, the superintendent(s) shall investigate, take appropriate corrective action, and report the action to the reporting party and to San Mateo County.
- All internal combustion engines on construction equipment and trucks are fitted with properly maintained mufflers, air intake silencers, and engine shrouds that are no less effective than as originally equipped by the manufacturer.
- Stationary construction equipment and material delivery (loading/unloading) areas shall be located as far as practicable from the residences.
- Material stockpiling shall be located as far as feasible from nearby noise-sensitive receptors.
- Unnecessary engine idling shall be curtailed to no more than 10 minutes, to the extent feasible.
- 'Smart' back-up alarms, which automatically adjust the alarm level based on the background noise level, shall be employed on all trucks and construction vehicles OR back-up alarms shall be disabled and replaced with human spotters.
- Grade surface irregularities on the construction sites shall be minimized to the extent feasible.
- Construction traffic shall be limited to the haul routes established by San Mateo County.

**Mitigation Measure NOI-2:** Prior to the issuance of demolition, grading and/or building permits, plan specifications shall indicate that San Mateo County shall be responsible for requiring all construction contractors to implement the following measures to limit pile driving-related noise in Segment 6 of the Project:

At least two weeks prior to commencement of pile driving, notification of planned construction activities at the Arroyo de en Medio Creek bridge shall be individually given to all residents or commercial entities within 500 feet of either bridge abutment. This shall be a separate notification process from the one detailed in Mitigation Measure NOI-1. The notification shall include a brief description of the project, the pile driving activities that would occur, and the durations/hours when construction would occur. The notification shall also include the phone number of the construction superintendent(s) which shall be used for logging complaints. All noise complaints shall also be documented to San Mateo County.

Implementation of Mitigation Measures NOI-1 and NOI-2 will reduce construction-related noise impacts to the extent reasonably feasible<sup>76</sup> and construction noise impacts would be *less than significant* for all phases of construction.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>76</sup> The term "feasible" is defined in CEQA to mean "capable of being accomplished in a successful manner within a reasonable period of time, taking into account economic, environmental, social, and technological factors." (Source: Public Resources Code, Section 21061.1.)

b) Will the project result in exposure of persons to or generate excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels?

#### **Operations Vibration**

Operation of the walking/biking trail will not involve any mechanical equipment that will induce notable levels of groundborne vibration. Likewise, users of the trail will not produce measureable levels of groundborne vibration. Thus, vibration impacts during project operations will be *less than significant*.

#### Construction Vibration

As described above in the construction noise discussion, there are 21 residences within approximately 50 to 150 feet from the Project pathway. The Wilkinson School and El Granada Elementary School are located near the Project's eastern boundary.

The County has not identified or adopted vibration standards. In lieu of such local standards, the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) provides guidelines for maximum acceptable levels of ground-borne vibration for different land use types.<sup>77</sup> Vibration impacts are quantified both in terms of annoyance and architectural damage due to vibration. For vibration annoyance, 78 VdB is considered the maximum vibration level for residential land uses; 84 VdB is considered the maximum vibration level for commercial land uses. For architectural damage due to vibration, a Peak Particle Velocity (PPV) of 0.2 is considered the maximum vibration level for non-engineered timber and masonry buildings (typically applied to residential structures); a Peak Particle Velocity (PPV) of 0.3 is considered the maximum vibration level for engineered concrete and masonry buildings (typically applied to commercial structures). In the absence of local standards or regulations, these FTA guidelines provide the basis for determining the impact significance of potential project-related vibration impacts.

While the County of San Mateo Code does not set quantified vibration limits and does not specifically exempt vibration-producing activities associated with construction, it is assumed herein that the allowable time-of-day parameters of Section 4.88.360<sup>78</sup> also apply vibration sources associated with construction.

*General Construction Vibration.* As with noise, vibration energy generated during construction is based on the type of equipment used, the location of the equipment relative to sensitive receptors, and the timing and duration of the vibration-generating activities, and the soil conditions. Each stage of construction involves the use of different kinds of construction equipment and, therefore, has its own distinct vibration characteristics. Vibration energy from construction activities are dominated by high-force, short-duration events, such as rock blasting, hoe ramming, and/or soil compaction (as with vibratory rollers). The most pronounced construction vibration source would be the use of an impact pile driving rig. Table 3 lists ground-borne vibration levels associated with various types of typical construction equipment (at the common reference distance for vibration sources of 25 feet).<sup>79</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>77</sup> Federal Transit Administration (FTA), 2006. Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment. United States Department of Transportation. FTA-VA-90-1003-06, May.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>78</sup> That is, construction activities are not to take place before 7:00 AM or after 6:00 PM on weekdays (Monday through Saturday), before 9:00 AM or after 5:00 PM on Saturdays, at any time Sundays, Thanksgiving, and Christmas.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>79</sup> Federal Transit Administration (FTA), 2006. Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment. United States Department of Transportation. FTA-VA-90-1003-06, May.

		Peak Particle Velocity in Inches per Second (in/sec)	Vibration Level in Vibration Decibels (VdB)
Equipment		at 25 Feet	at 25 Feet
Pile Drive (impact)	upper range	1.518	112
	typical	0.644	104
Dila Drive (serie)	upper range	0.734	105
Plie Drive (soffic)	typical	0.170	93
Vibratory Roller		0.210	94
Hoe Ram		0.089	87
Large Bulldozer <sup>a</sup>		0.089	87
Caisson Drilling		0.089	87
Loaded Trucks		0.076	86
Jackhammer		0.035	79
Small Bulldozer <sup>a</sup>		0.003	58

#### Table 5 Typical Vibration Levels Produced by Common Construction Equipment

a. For purposes of this evaluation, a 'large' bulldozer is above an operating weight of 85,000 pounds (represented by a Caterpillar D8-class or larger); a 'medium' bulldozer has an operating weight range of 25,000 to 60,000 pounds (such as a Caterpillar D6- or D7-class); and a 'small' bulldozer has an operating weight range of 15,000 to 20,000 pounds (such as a Caterpillar D3-, D4-, or D5-class).

Source: Federal Transit Administration (FTA). 2006. Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment. United States Department of Transportation. FTA-VA-90-1003-06, May.

With the Project site's soil conditions, and the need to span the Arroyo de en Medio Creek, some heavy earthwork and structural installations will be required. These structures will consist of: a) a retaining wall to protect the wetlands area in Segment 4,<sup>80</sup> and b) a 80-foot bridge along Segment 6<sup>81</sup> (to span the creek). Both of these structural elements will require substantial, but differing, foundations. The three main types of construction activities are discussed in more detail below.

*Segment 4 Retaining Wall.* As discussed above for construction noise, the Segment 4 retaining wall will require the installation of approximately 65 cast-in-drilled-hole piles (of 24-inch diameter with nominal 8-foot spacing). Since these piles will be installed in a drilled hole, the primary and worst-case vibration source for this construction zone would be the drilling rig. Per Table 5 above, a mobile crane would be expected to produce a peak particle velocity (PPV) of 0.089 inches per second (relative to architectural damage effects) or a vibration velocity level of 87 VdB (relative to annoyance effects); both at a reference distance of 25 feet.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>80</sup> Construction of this segment will require removal of some existing vegetation, as well as construction of a soldier pile wall and concrete foundation slab supported on 24-inch diameter cast-in-drilled-hole (CIDH) piles, which will support the trail approximately four feet above the nominal grade level, to protect the adjacent wetlands.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>81</sup> The steel bridge is to connect the multimodal trail across the Arroyo de en Medio Creek between Furtado Lane and Miramar Drive. The elevation of the bridge will be approximately 10 feet above the bottom of the dry creek. There will be foundation abutments at each end of the bridge and each abutment will need a pair of 30-inch diameter, cast-in-steel-shell (CISS) piles.

For the damage-related issues, a drilling rig's vibration energy would be reduced in average soil conditions to below the significance threshold at well under 25 feet. As discussed in Section VI, Geology and Soils, above, the soils on-site consist of thick, dark-grey surface soil that is sandy loam, loam, or, in a few places, clay loam. <sup>82</sup>Since there are no receptor structures along the retaining wall section that are this close to drilling operations, drilling-generated vibration levels will be well below the damage impact threshold and retaining wall construction is a *less than significant* vibration damage impact.

Similarly, for the annoyance-related issues, a drilling rig's vibration energy would be reduced in average soil conditions to below the significance thresholds at 50 feet from residential structures and at 32 feet for commercial structures. Since there are no receptor structures along the retaining wall section that are this close to drilling operations, drilling-generated vibration levels will be well below the annoyance impact threshold and retaining wall construction is a *less than significant* vibration annoyance impact.

*Segment 6 Bridge.* As discussed above for construction noise, the Segment 6 bridge will be a prefabricated steel truss superstructure, which will require the installation of four 30-inch diameter, cast-insteel-shell (CISS) piles on abutments at each end of the span. Due to soil conditions and the results of the Type Selection Approval meeting with Caltrans,<sup>83</sup> these piles will be driven, rather than drilled. This pile driving activity is projected to have a duration of one day per abutment (two days total).<sup>84</sup> The Section 6 bridge is generally located west of Miramar Drive and east of Furtado Lane and the Project will also include a raised crosswalk where the trail crosses Miramar Drive. There are two residences within approximately 50 to 60 feet of the proposed abutments.

Per Table 5 above, the upper range for impact pile driving rigs is a peak particle velocity (PPV) of 1.518 inches per second (relative to architectural damage effects) or a vibration velocity level of 112 VdB (relative to annoyance effects); both at a reference distance of 25 feet. Since there are no commercial structures near the Segment 6 bridge, the pertinent (and more restrictive) vibration damage threshold is 0.2 PPV and the pertinent (and more restrictive) vibration annoyance threshold is 78 VdB.

For the damage-related issues, the pile driving reference level of 1.518 PPV at 25 feet is calculated to reduce to approximately 0.54 PPV at the nearest residential receptors (approximately 50 feet). This result in is well over the vibration damage threshold of 0.2 PPV. To be below this threshold (while assuming vibration energy dissipation through average soil conditions),<sup>85</sup> a receptor residence would have to be at least approximately 97 feet from the pile driving rig (or approximately 74 feet for commercial receptor buildings which have a threshold of 0.3 PPV). Thus, all residences within approximately 100 feet of the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>82</sup> This is a conservative evaluation as the FTA's 'average soil conditions' are most likely denser and more propagationefficient than the sandy loam and loam soils of this particular project site. See Section VI, Geology and Soils (above), for more information on project soils.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>83</sup> Type Selection Report for Mid-Coast Multi-Modal Trail Pedestrian Bridge, CSEG. Prepared for San Mateo County, November 8, 2017.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>84</sup> E-mail from Christopher D. Ingle of Cornerstone Structural Engineering Group to Steve Noack of PlaceWorks, dated October 3, 2017.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>85</sup> This is a conservative evaluation as the FTA's 'average soil conditions' are most likely denser and more propagationefficient than the sandy loam and loam soils of this particular project site. See Section VI, Geology and Soils (above), for more information on project soils.

actual pile driving locations would be expected to experience potentially damaging vibration levels from the Segment 6 bridge construction. This would be a *significant* vibration damage impact. Notable vibration reduction mitigation measures would be required.

Similarly, for the annoyance-related issues, an impact pile driving rig's vibration energy would be reduced (in average soil conditions) to below the significance thresholds at approximately 330 feet from residential structures (and at 210 feet for commercial structures). Thus, all residences within approximately 330 feet of the actual pile driving locations would be expected to experience potentially annoying vibration levels from the Section 4 bridge construction. This would be a *significant* vibration annoyance impact. Notable vibration reduction mitigation measures would be required.

*All Other Portions.* For other sections of the Project trail that do not require foundations or structures<sup>86</sup>, construction activities will primarily employ equipment items that will not generate significant levels of vibration, such as loaded trucks and/or small bulldozers. With these relatively non-vibration-intensive equipment items, coupled with the propagation losses due to sizable distances to commercial and residential receptors along the majority of the trail's pathway, construction vibration would be a *less than significant* impact on these other portions of the Project for both architectural damage and annoyance effects.

*Construction Vibration Summary.* While the Project construction will adhere to Section 4.88.360 of the County Code that restricts construction activities to allowable portions of the day,<sup>87</sup> construction vibration will substantially raise the existing ambient conditions and the associated impacts will be *significant* at the Segment 6 bridge (only) and will require vibration reduction mitigation measures for this specific project section. The majority of the trail pathway construction, as well as the Segment 4 retaining wall, however, is not expected to substantially raise the ambient vibration environment and will have *less than significant* vibration impacts.

**Mitigation Measure NOI-3:** Prior to the issuance of demolition, grading and/or building permits, notes shall be provided on plans indicating that San Mateo County shall be responsible for requiring all construction contractors to implement the following measures to limit construction-related vibration impacts at the Arroyo de en Medio Creek bridge site:

- In concert with the Segment 6-specific notification included in Mitigation Measure NOI-2, all
  residents or commercial entities within 100 feet of either bridge abutment shall be informed
  that they may wish to secure fragile items that could be broken by shaking.
- Prior to the issuance of building permits the construction contractor shall inspect and report on the current structural condition of the existing buildings within 100 feet of either bridge abutment. This shall be accomplished via a photo or video survey of susceptible areas in advance of the potentially damaging pile driving work.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>86</sup> Besides the approximate 520-foot long retaining wall in Project Section 4 and the 80-foot long steel bridge in Project Section 6, the remaining 3,600 feet of proposed trail includes an 8-foot-wide asphalt surface with a painted stripe down the center, and a 2-foot-wide surface of decomposed granite on either side of the asphalt; for a total trail width of 12 feet.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>87</sup> Specifically, construction activities are prohibited between 6:00 PM and the following 7:00 AM on weekdays and between 5:00 PM and the following 9:00 AM on Saturdays. Construction is not allowed on Sundays, Thanksgiving, and Christmas.

- Monitor and record peak particle velocities at the nearest sensitive receptors (to either bridge abutment) while the pile driving activities are taking place.
- During construction, if any vibration levels cause cosmetic or structural damage to existing buildings in close proximity to the bridge site, the construction superintendent(s) shall log all vibration-related complaints. All vibration complaints shall also be documented to San Mateo County.

Implementation of Mitigation Measure NOI-3 will reduce construction-related vibration impacts to the extent reasonably feasible<sup>88</sup> and construction vibration impacts would be *less than significant* for all phases of construction.

# c) Will the project result in a substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above levels existing without the project?

Traffic flows are the primary source of ambient noise in the vicinity of the Project site. The main vehicular noise source is Highway 1, immediately to the southeast of the Project trail. The Project's proposed trail is not expected to create a significant noise impact, since its primary use is walking and recreation. As such, this impact will be *less than significant*. No mitigation measures are required.

# d) Will the project result in a substantial temporary or periodic increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above levels existing without the project?

The aspect of project implementation that would involve potential temporary or periodic increases in ambient noise levels would be related to the construction portion of the project. Construction noise impacts were addressed above in noise impact item a), which concluded that implementation of Mitigation Measures NOI-1 and NOI-2 will reduce construction-related noise impacts to the extent reasonably feasible<sup>89</sup> and construction noise impacts would be *less than significant* for all phases of construction.

# e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within 2 miles of a public airport or public use airport, will the project expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels?

The Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan for the Environs of Half Moon Bay Airport (ALUCP) outlines regulations for compatible land uses within the Half Moon Bay Airport Influence Area (AIA). The Project site is located approximately 1.5 miles to the southeast of Half Moon Bay Airport, and is located within the AIA. While people working in the Project site may be exposed to occasional noise associated with

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>88</sup> The term "feasible" is defined in CEQA to mean "capable of being accomplished in a successful manner within a reasonable period of time, taking into account economic, environmental, social, and technological factors." (Source: Public Resources Code, Section 21061.1.)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>89</sup> The term "feasible" is defined in CEQA to mean "capable of being accomplished in a successful manner within a reasonable period of time, taking into account economic, environmental, social, and technological factors." (Source: Public Resources Code, Section 21061.1.)
airport use, the Project site is not located within the 60 dBA CNEL Noise Exposure Contour (of 2012),<sup>90</sup> and any such exposure is expected to be brief and not expected to occur at levels that will conflict with the Noise Compatibility Criteria outlined in the ALUCP. Further, exposure to excessive noise levels attributed to aircraft noise from a public airport will not likely be substantially different than existing conditions. Therefore, impacts will be *less than significant*. No mitigation measures are required.

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, will the project expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels?

As mentioned above, there are no private airstrips in the vicinity of the proposed Project. Therefore, there will be *no impact* with regard to exposing people residing or working in the vicinity of the Project site to excessive noise levels related to private airstrips.

Will	the Project:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
a)	Induce significant population growth in an area, either directly (for example, by proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of roads or other infrastructure)?				Ŋ
b)	Displace existing housing (including low- or moderate- income housing), necessitating the construction of replacement housing elsewhere?				Ŋ

# XIII. POPULATION AND HOUSING

# Discussion

a) Will the project induce substantial population growth in an area, either directly (for example, by proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of roads or other infrastructure)?

The Project proposes to construct a new 0.8-mile, 12-foot-wide, two-directional multi-use trail for recreational purposes. The Project does not propose housing or employment, and thus will not induce substantial population growth in the area. Therefore, the Project will result in *no impact* related to population growth and no mitigation measures are required.

b) Will the project displace substantial numbers of existing housing units, necessitating the construction of replacement housing elsewhere?

The Project site is currently undeveloped and will therefore not result in the displacement of any housing units. Therefore, the Project will result in *no impact* and no mitigation measures are required.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>90</sup> City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County, Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan for the Environs of Half Moon Bay Airport, 2014, http://ccag.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/HAF-ALUCP-Final.pdf, accessed March 15, 2018.

#### XIV. PUBLIC SERVICES

Will the Project:		Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
a)	Will the project result in substantial adverse physical				
	impacts associated with the provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or physically				
	altered governmental facilities, the construction of which				
	could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to				
	maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives for any of the public services:				
	i. Fire protection?			V	
	ii. Police protection?			Ŋ	
	iii. Schools?				$\mathbf{V}$
	iv. Parks?				V
	v. Other public facilities or utilities (e.g., hospitals, or electrical/natural gas supply systems)?				V

#### Discussion

a) Will the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives for any of the public services?

The primary purpose of a public services impact analysis is to examine the impacts associated with physical improvements to public service facilities required to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times, or other performance objectives. Public service facilities need improvements (i.e., construction of new, renovation or expansion of existing) as demand for services increase. Increased demand is typically driven by increases in population. The Project will have a significant environmental impact if it will exceed the ability of public service providers to adequately serve the residents of El Granada, thereby requiring construction of new facilities or modifications to existing facilities.

#### Fire Protection

Fire protection in El Granada is provided by the Coastside Fire Protection District, which serves 30,000 residents in a 50-square-mile area from three fire stations.<sup>91</sup> The El Granada Fire Station #41 is located at 531 Obispo Road, El Granada, CA 94018, which is located 1.1 miles from the proposed trail alignment at its furthest point.<sup>92</sup> The proposed Project will include enhancements to an area of undeveloped land within the Caltrans right of way that will include a 0.8-mile 12-foot-wide trail alignment. As a result, the Project could result in an increase in visitors engaging in passive recreation, such as jogging, walking, biking, and running, which could result in additional calls for fire and emergency services. However, the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>91</sup> Coastside Fire District, 2008. About Us, http://coastsidefire.org/about, accessed March 2, 2016.

 $<sup>^{92}</sup>$  This accounts for the distance from the Fire Station 41 at 531 Obispo Road to the eastern boundary of the Project at Mirada Road.

construction of a 0.8-mile trail is unlikely to draw a significant amount of visitors to the extent of requiring the need for new or physically altered fire protection facilities. As mentioned above, the Project does not include a residential component and therefore will not result in an increase of the permanent population. Further, given the close proximity of Fire Station #41 to the proposed trail, response times and service ratios are unlikely to be affected to the point of requiring expansion of existing or construction of new facilities. Consequently, a *less-than-significant* impact will occur with respect to fire and emergency services and no mitigation measures are required.

# Police Protection

Police protection in El Granada is provided by the San Mateo County Sheriff. The North Coast Substation located at 500 California Ave in Moss Beach, and the Half Moon Bay Substation located at 537 Kelly Avenue in Half Moon Bay, are both located less than 4 miles from the Project site. Although a potential increase in visitors could occur, given the close proximity of both Substations, any increase will unlikely affect response times or service ratios resulting in any substantial changes that will trigger the need for new or expanded police protection facilities. Further, as described above, the Project does not include a residential component and therefore will not result in an increase of the permanent population. Overall, a *less-than-significant* impact will occur with respect to police protection and no mitigation measures are required.

#### Schools

As mentioned above, the Project does not include a residential component and therefore will not result in an increase of the permanent population. As such, the Project will not generate students that will attend any schools serving the area, and *no impact* will occur to schools. No mitigation measures are required.

#### Parks

The proposed Project will not cause an increase of use or demand for parks and will not trigger the need for new or physically altered facilities in order to maintain existing levels of service. Further, the Project itself will increase the amount of recreational opportunities in the area. Therefore, there will be *no impact* with respect to parks and no mitigation measures are required.

# Other Public Facilities (e.g. Hospitals, or Electrical/Natural Gas Supply Systems)

As mentioned above, the Project does not include a residential component and therefore will not result in an increase of the permanent population nor would the Project result in the construction of permanent structures that would require electrical or natural gas supply. As such, the Project will not result in a substantial increase to the number of visitors to libraries. Therefore, *no impact* will occur and no mitigation measures are required.

# XV. RECREATION

Will th	e Project:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
a) W ai su Ol	/ill the project increase the use of existing neighborhood nd regional parks or other recreational facilities such that ubstantial physical deterioration of the facility will occur r be accelerated?				Ŋ
b) D th w ei	oes the project include recreational facilities or require ne construction or expansion of recreational facilities hich might have an adverse physical effect on the nvironment?				Ŋ

#### Discussion

a) Will the project increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational facilities, such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility will occur or be accelerated?

As discussed above in Section XIII, Population and Housing, the proposed Project will construct a paved, 0.8-mile-long trail and is not expected to result in any direct or indirect increase in population as a result. Further, the Project will increase the quality of recreational opportunities available in the area. As such, there will be *no impact* with regards to use of existing parks and recreational facilities and no mitigation measures are required.

b) Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of recreational facilities which might have an adverse effect on the environment?

See Section XV.a above.

# XVI. TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION

Will the Project:		Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
<ul> <li>a) Conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or policy establishing measures of effectiveness for the performance of the circulation system, taking into account all modes of transportation including mass transit and non-motorized travel and relevant components of the circulation system, including but not limited to intersections, streets, highways and freeways, pedestrian and bicycle paths, and mass transit?</li> </ul>			Ø		
b)	Conflict with an applicable congestion management program, including, but not limited to level of service standards and travel demand measures, or other standards established by the county congestion management agency for designated roads or highways?			M	

Wil	l the Project:	Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
c)	Result in a change in air traffic patterns, including either an increase in traffic levels or a change in location that results in substantial safety risks?				V
d)	Substantially increase hazards due to a design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)?			V	
e)	Result in inadequate emergency access?				V
f)	Conflict with adopted policies, plans, or programs regarding public transit, bicycle, or pedestrian facilities, or otherwise decrease the performance or safety of such facilities?			V	
g)	Cause a noticeable increase in pedestrian traffic or a change in pedestrian traffic patterns?			V	
h)	Result in inadequate parking capacity?				V

# Discussion

a) Will the project conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance, or policy establishing measures of effectiveness for the performance of the circulation system, taking into account all modes of transportation including mass transit and non-motorized travel and relevant components of the circulation system, including but not limited to intersections, streets, highways and freeways, pedestrian and bicycle paths, and mass transit?

The City/County Associations of Governments of San Mateo County's (C/CAG) Congestion Management Program (2013 CMP) requires local jurisdictions to notify C/CAG at the beginning of the CEQA process of all development applications or land use policy changes that are expected to generate a net 100 or more peak hour trips on the CMP network. In addition, San Mateo County does not require the preparation of traffic impact analysis for land use projects that generate less than 500 trips per day or 100 peak hour trips at an intersection.<sup>93</sup>

The proposed Project will construct a 0.8-mile multi-use trail within Caltrans right-of-way parallel Highway 1. Overall, vehicle trips within El Granada will not increase substantially in the long-term as a result of the Project and will likely generate fewer than 100 peak hour trips or 500 trips per day. Thus, Project operation will have minimal impacts on congestion management programs for San Mateo County roads.

In the short-term, during project construction, construction equipment will be brought to the site, and numerous truck trips to bring gravel and other material to the Project site will occur. It is anticipated that there will be an average of eight inbound vehicle trips and eight outbound vehicle trips each day during the 24-week construction phase. The short-term construction traffic related to delivery of equipment and import of material as well as the daily transportation of construction workers to the site is not expected

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>93</sup> County of San Mateo, Traffic Impact Study Requirements, September 2013, page 2.

cause a significant increase in traffic volume. Further, vehicle trips related to delivery of construction equipment will not increase traffic congestion to above less than significant levels because these short-term activities will be mitigated through the implementation of Mitigation Measures TRAF-1A and TRAF-1B.

**Mitigation Measure TRAF-1A:** The construction contractor shall be responsible for providing a Traffic Control Plan (TCP) approved by the County Traffic Engineer, prior to the start of construction. The TCP shall include traffic control measures in order to ensure traffic safety during all construction phases. The traffic control devices may involve signage, use of delineators, flashing arrows, and/or temporary lane lines at the discretion of the County Traffic Engineer. The TCP shall be approved by the County Traffic Engineer. The TCP shall include provisions for advanced notification (signage) of the proposed detour routes and coordination with emergency service providers.

**Mitigation Measure TRAF-1B:** The proposed Project shall be constructed in a manner to avoid a substantial increase in construction-period traffic congestion.

- The applicant will identify locations for contractor parking on site for the duration of the construction period so that parking does not affect the operation of local roads.
- Vehicle trips to and from the site for purposes of transporting cut and fill will be prohibited during peak traffic AM and PM peak hours.
- In the event of lane closures due to deliveries, adequate number of flaggers and the appropriate signage will be required to ensure the safe passage of vehicles, bicyclists, and pedestrians.

Implementation of Mitigation Measure TRAF-1A and TRAF-1B will reduce construction-related traffic impacts to a *less-than-significant* level.

# b) Will the project conflict with an applicable congestion management program, including but not limited to level of service standards and travel demand measures, or other standards established by the county congestion management agency for designated roads or highways?

The nearest CMP intersection is located 3 miles south of the Project site in Half Moon Bay at Highway 1 and State Route 92. As discussed in response Section XVI.a above, the Project will generate fewer trips than the 100 peak hour trips, which is the threshold for the preparation of traffic impact analysis to the CMP roadway system. As the Project will generate fewer trips than the 100 peak hour trip threshold, the Project will not cause a substantial impact to the CMP roadway network. As such, this impact will be *less than significant* and no mitigation measures are required.

c) Will the project result in a change in air traffic patterns, including an increase in traffic levels or a change in location that results in substantial safety risks?

As discussed above in Section VIII.e above, the Project site is located approximately 1.7 miles southeast of Half Moon Bay Airport and is within the AIA established by the C/CAG of San Mateo County ALUCP for the

Environs of the Half Moon Bay Airport.<sup>94</sup> The ALUCP indicates that the Project site is just within Safety Zone 7, which is the outer most area of flight paths. Safety Zone 7 is considered to have a low risk of aircraft accident and only requires plan review by the Airport Land Use Commission for structures 100 feet or higher given that objects shorter than 100 feet in height will not typically be airspace obstructions.<sup>95</sup> Given the nature of the Project (i.e., multi-use trail), there are no structures or improvements planned that will exceed the 100-foot height limit and trigger ALUC airspace review. Therefore, there will be *no impact* to existing air traffic patterns as a result of the Project and no mitigation measures are required.

# d) Will the project substantially increase hazards due to a design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)?

The proposed Project will not include any hazardous design features, such as sharp curves or intersections with inadequate signalization, nor will it increase incompatible uses on local roads resulting in hazards. The proposed Project will decrease conflicts of incompatible uses on local roads, offering an alternative trail to non-motorized traffic on local roads. Although the Project will result in the trail crossing existing roadways, safety signage will be installed to alert trail users and vehicles as the trail approaches these intersections. As a result, the Project will result in *less-than-significant* impacts and no mitigation measures are required.

# e) Will the project result in inadequate emergency access?

The proposed Project will not result in a change in the existing roadway network and will not result in congestion on roadways. Further, the Project does not include any components that will otherwise obstruct emergency routes. Therefore, *no impact* will occur and no mitigation measures are required.

# f) Will the project conflict with adopted policies, plans, or programs regarding public transit, bicycle, or pedestrian facilities, or otherwise decrease the performance of safety of such facilities?

Existing circulation facilities include sidewalks on Coronado Street south of Obispo Road where the trailhead will begin. As described above in the Project Description, the Project proposes several new or enhanced crosswalks where the trail will cross existing roadways which will increase the safety of pedestrian facilities in the area. For example, Segment 1 of the trail will include a crosswalk across Coronado Street. Other areas where the trail bisects existing roadways will also include crosswalks to ensure the safety of trail users and vehicles.

Overall, the Project proposes several components, such as sidewalks, crosswalks, and a pedestrian activated traffic signal to facilitate and enhance the safety for trail users. Therefore, the Project will not decrease the safety performance of the area related to pedestrian facilities and a *less-than-significant* impact will occur. No mitigation measures are required.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>94</sup> City/County Association of Governments (C/CAG) of San Mateo County San Mateo County Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan for the Environs of Half Moon Bay Airport, September 2014, Half Moon Bay Safety Zones, Exhibit 4C.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>95</sup> City/County Association of Governments (C/CAG) of San Mateo County San Mateo County Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan for the Environs of Half Moon Bay Airport, September 2014, page 4-24.

#### g) Will the project cause a noticeable increase in pedestrian traffic or a change in pedestrian patterns?

The Project will include construction of a trail in an area that is currently undeveloped. As a result, the Project will result in an increase in pedestrian traffic at the Project site; however, it is not expected that the number of people will cause or otherwise result in substantial affects regarding pedestrian traffic. Further, the Project will encourage and facilitate better access in this area of the County and will provide safer options for traveling along Highway 1. Therefore, although the Project will increase pedestrian traffic patterns and will increase the amount of pedestrian traffic over existing conditions, these are considered improvements to the overall pedestrian circulation pattern. Therefore, a *less-than-significant* impact will occur and no mitigation measures are required.

#### h) Will the project result in inadequate parking capacity?

The San Mateo County Zoning Code does not establish or provide minimum parking regulations for trailrelated uses. Therefore, *no impact* will occur and no mitigation measures are required.

Will the Project:		Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
a)	Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the applicable Regional Water Quality Control Board?				V
<ul> <li>Require or result in the construction of new water or wastewater treatment facilities or expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental effects?</li> </ul>					V
c)	Require or result in the construction of new storm water drainage facilities or expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental effects?			Ø	٦
d)	Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project from existing entitlements and resources, or are new or expanded entitlements needed?				V
e)	Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or may serve the project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project's projected demand in addition to the provider's existing commitments?				Ø
f)	Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted capacity to accommodate the project's solid waste disposal needs?				
g)	Comply with federal, state, and local statutes and regulations related to solid waste?			V	

#### XVII. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

#### Discussion

# a) Will the project exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the applicable Regional Water Quality Control Board?

Wastewater treatment in the community of El Granada is provided by the Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside (SAM) Wastewater Treatment Facility, which serves the Granada Community Services District (GCSD), in addition to the City of Half Moon Bay and the Montara Water and Sanitary District, covering a service area of approximately 12 square miles. The proposed Project will not include the construction of facilities that will require connection to the sanitary sewer; therefore, *no impact* will occur and no mitigation measures are required.

# b) Will the project require or result in the construction of new water or wastewater treatment facilities or expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental effects?

The Project site is currently undeveloped and does not generate demand for water or wastewater treatment. The Project will construct a new 0.8-mile, 12-foot-wide, two-directional multi-use trail parallel; however, there will be no wastewater output associated with the Project components, thus it will not result in an increase beyond existing conditions. Therefore, the Project will not require construction of new water or wastewater treatment facilities or expansion of existing facilities, and *no impacts* will occur. No mitigation measures are required.

# c) Will the Project require or result in the construction of new stormwater drainage facilities or expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental effects?

As described above in the Project Description, the proposed Project crosses several small drainage courses, and will construct culverts beneath the trail to allow water to continue draining along its existing drainage course. The drainage culverts will be constructed using reinforced concrete pipe.

The Project will not involve the alteration of the course of a stream or river but will involve construction of a bridge above the Arroyo de en Medio dry creek bed. The Project will take place primarily along the Caltrans right-of-way, which is currently undeveloped and thus will result in an increase in impervious surfaces with construction of an 8-foot-wide asphalt path. However, this change in impervious surfaces is spread over a 0.8-mile stretch of land and will not significantly change drainage patterns or the rate and amount of surface runoff.

Ground disturbance during construction could temporarily alter drainage patterns but construction activities will be subject to the NPDES permit that imposes strict requirements to reduce the volume of stormwater runoff. BMPs will be implemented during construction and an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan will be prepared and submitted to the County prior to the start of construction.

Compliance with the State and County regulatory requirements along with the General Plan goals and policies listed above in Section IX.a will ensure that the rate and/or volume of surface runoff will not be substantially increased in a manner that results in on-site or off-site flooding and therefore, this impact is *less than significant*. No mitigation measures are required.

# d) Will the Project have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project from existing entitlements and resources, or are new or expanded entitlements needed?

The Coastside County Water District (CCWD) provides the water supply for the community of El Granada, as well as the City of Half Moon Bay and the unincorporated coastal communities of Miramar and Princeton-By-The-Sea.<sup>96</sup> Approximately 72 percent of CCWD's water is purchased on a wholesale basis from the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC), which in turn derives its water from sources including Pilarcitos Lake and the Upper Crystal Springs Reservoir, and the remaining 28 percent is produced locally from both wells and surface water. The average yield from these sources is approximately 830 million gallons per year.<sup>97</sup> The CCWD UWMP states that the District has sufficient water to meet demands during normal years through 2035. However, the supplies are subject to significantly reduced availability in dry years.<sup>98</sup>

The Project involves constructing a new 0.8-mile, 12-foot-wide, two-directional multi-use trail parallel to Highway 1 from Coronado Street to Mirada Road. As mentioned above in Section XIII, Population and Housing, the proposed Project does include a residential component, thus will not directly or indirectly result in an increase to the permanent population in the area. The proposed Project will not include the construction of facilities that will require connection to the CCWD's water supply; therefore, *no impact* will occur and no mitigation measures are required.

e) Will the project result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or may serve the project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project's projected demand in addition to the provider's existing commitments?

As discussed in Section XVII.a and XVII.b above, the proposed Project will not include the construction of facilities that will require connection to the sanitary sewer. Therefore, the Project will not result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or may serve the Project that it has inadequate capacity to serve the project; as a result, *no impact* will occur and no mitigation measures are required.

# f) Will the project be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted capacity to accommodate the project's solid waste disposal needs?

Solid waste disposal in the community of El Granada is provided by Recology of the Coast,<sup>99</sup> which also provides solid waste services to the City of Pacifica,<sup>100</sup> the Miramar district of Half Moon Bay, and the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>96</sup> Coastside County Water District, Coastside County Water District Web Page, http://www.coastsidewater.org/, accessed March 22, 2016.

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>97</sup> Coastside County Water District, Water Supply, http://www.coastsidewater.org/water-supply.html, accessed March 22,
 2016.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>98</sup> West Yost Associates, 2011. 2010 Urban Water Management Plan Prepared for Coastside County Water District.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>99</sup> Granada Community Services District, Garbage and Recycling, http://granada.ca.gov/trash-collection/, accessed March 22, 2016.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>100</sup> Recology of the Coast, Pacifica Residential Recycling, Organics & Garbage Program,

http://www.recologyofthecoast.com/index.php/for-homes/residential-pacifica-services, accessed March 22, 2016.

unincorporated communities of Pillar Point, Princeton-by-the-Sea, Montara, and Moss Beach.<sup>101</sup> This solid waste is sorted, and non-recyclable, non-compostable materials are sent to Ox Mountain Sanitary Landfill in Half Moon Bay. The Ox Mountain Landfill has a total maximum permitted capacity of 69,000,000 cubic yards, with a remaining capacity of 28,898,089 cubic yards as of 2011.<sup>102</sup> As such, the Ox Mountain Landfill is well below its total capacity. Solid waste will be generated through a potential increase in visitors and during construction activities associated with buildout of the Project. However, implementation of the Project will result in minimal, if any, solid waste which will require service by a landfill. Overall, impacts to solid waste disposal will be *less than significant* and no mitigation measures are required.

# g) Comply with federal, state, and local statutes and regulations related to solid waste?

In compliance with State Law SB 1016, the Project will target a California Integrated Waste Management Board (CIWMB) target of 15.7 pounds of waste per day per employee and 5.1 pounds per day per resident. According to CalRecycle, in 2014 unincorporated San Mateo had a disposal rate of 5.7 pounds of waste per day per employee, and 2.5 pounds per day per resident, both of which are well below the targets.<sup>103</sup>

Chapter 4.04 of the San Mateo County Municipal Code address the collection, transport, storage, and disposal of solid wasted within the County. For example, Section 4.04.120 states that solid waste and recyclable materials shall be placed by the person(s) occupying the premises upon which solid waste and recyclable materials are created in a watertight plastic or metal receptacle, or in carts or bins with tight fitting lids provided by the refuse collector, of not less than 20-gallon capacity. Other provisions of the Chapter address solid waste disposal and handling.

Solid waste collection and disposal will continue to operate under existing conditions. As such, the Project will continue to comply with federal, State, and local statutes and regulations related to solid waste as it currently does. Therefore, a *less-than-significant* impact will occur and no mitigation measures are required.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>101</sup> Recology of the Coast, El Granada, Pillar Point, Princeton, Miramar, Montara & Moss Beach Residential Recylcing, Green Waste & Garbage Program, http://www.recologyofthecoast.com/index.php/for-homes/residential-services, accessed March 22, 2016.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>102</sup> CalRecycle, Facility/Site Summary Details: Corinda Los Trancos Landfill (Ox Mtn)(41-AA-0002), http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/SWFacilities/Directory/41-AA-0002/Detail/, accessed March 22, 2016.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>103</sup> CalRecycle, Jurisdiction Diversion/Disposal Rate Summary (2007-current), http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/LGCentral/ reports/diversionprogram/JurisdictionDiversionPost2006.aspx, accessed March 22, 2016.

#### XVIII. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Will the Project:		Potentially Significant Impact	Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated	Less Than Significant Impact	No Impact
<ul> <li>a) Does the project have the potential to degrade the quality of the environment, substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal or eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or prehistory?</li> </ul>			Ø		٦
b)	Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable? ("Cumulatively considerable" means that the incremental effects of a project are considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of other current projects, and the effects of probable future projects)?	٦	٦	Ŋ	
c)	Does the project have environmental effects which will cause substantial adverse effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly?			Ŋ	

#### Discussion

a) Does the project have the potential to degrade the quality of the environment, substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal or eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or prehistory?

As described in this Initial Study, no new construction or physical changes proposed by the Project will significantly degrade the quality of the environment. The design and methods of construction of the proposed trail alignment ensures that the trail will avoid sensitive plant and animal habitats and in areas that could disturb sensitive habitat, such as wetlands or riparian areas, Mitigation Measures BIO-1 through BIO-6, as well as compliance with LCP policies and other existing federal and State regulations for the protection of wildlife and habitat, will serve to reduce these impacts. Further, the trail design ensures conservation of habitats and avoids impacts to sensitive wildlife and plants to the extent possible. Overall, compliance with LCP policies and implementation of the mitigation measures identified throughout this IS/MND would ensure that impacts will be reduced to a *less-than-significant* level.

b) Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable? ("Cumulatively considerable" means that the incremental effects of a project are considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of other current projects, and the effects of probable future projects)?

Future cumulative impacts will result in increased connectivity to the California Coastal Trail, and increased recreational opportunities in El Granada through completion of the Midcoast Multimodal Trail.

Overall, given that the Project will involve formalization of a small segment of trail that promotes nonmotorized passive recreation, the formalization of the trail will cause only minor impacts when taken into consideration cumulatively.

During construction, slight increases in noise and impacts to air quality may occur, but will be minor and temporary in nature. Due to their minor, temporary in nature, cumulative impacts will be considered *less than significant*.

# c) Does the project have environmental effects which will cause substantial adverse effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly?

The proposed Project will not create environmental effects that will cause physical changes to property that will result in adverse effects on humans, either directly or indirectly. The increased recreational opportunities proposed by the Project are considered a beneficial impact. Therefore, implementation of the proposed Project will have a *less-than-significant* impact on human beings.

APPENDIX A: BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES ASSESSMENT & WETLAND DELINEATION REPORT

# **Biological Resources Assessment**

# MIDCOAST MULTIMODAL TRAIL PROJECT EL GRANADA, SAN MATEO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

#### **Prepared For:**

San Mateo County Planning and Building Department 455 County Center, 2<sup>nd</sup> Floor Redwood City, California 94063 Contact: James Hinkamp

#### **Prepared By:**

Leslie Lazarotti lazarotti@wra-ca.com

#### Date:

October 23, 2015

Project Number 24261







2169-G East Francisco Blvd., San Rafael, CA 94702 (415) 454-8868 tel info@wra-ca.com www.wra-ca.com

1.0	INTRODUCTION	1
	1.1 Description of the Study Area	1
2.0	REGULATORY BACKGROUND	3
	2.1 Special-Status Species	3
	2.2 Sensitive Biological Communities	4
3.0	METHODS	7
	3.1 Biological Communities	7
	3.1.1 Non-sensitive Biological Communities	7
	3.1.2 Sensitive Biological Communities	7
	3.2 Special-Status Species	8
	3.2.1 Literature Review	8
	3.2.2 Site Assessment	9
4.0	RESULTS	9
	4.1 Biological Communities	9
	4.1.1 Non-Sensitive Biological Communities	10
	4.1.2 Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Areas (ESHAs)	14
	4.2 Special-Status Species	16
	4.2.1 Plants	16
	4.2.2 Wildlife	16
	4.2.3 Listed Species that Occur in the Region that are Unlikely to Occur in Area	the Study
5.0	SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS	22
	5.1 Biological Communities	22
	5.1.1 Wetlands	22
	5.1.2 Non-Wetland Waters	23
	5.1.3 Riparian Habitat	23
	5.1.4 General Avoidance Measures	23
	5.2 Special-Status Plant Species	24
	5.3 Special-Status Wildlife Species	24
6.0	REFERENCES	

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# LIST OF TABLES

Table 1.	Description of CNPS Ranks and Threat Codes	3
Table 2.	Biological Communities within the Study Area1	0

# LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1. Study Area Location Map	2
Figure 2a. Biological Communities within the Study Area	.11
Figure 2b. Biological Communities within the Study Area	.12
Figure 3. Special-Status Plant Species within a 5-mile Radius of the Study Area	.17
Figure 4. Special-Status Wildlife Species within a 5-mile Radius of the Study Area	.18

# LIST OF APPENDICES

- Appendix A List of Observed Plant and Wildlife Species
- Appendix B Potential for Special-Status Plant and Wildlife Species to Occur in Study Area
- Appendix C Study Area Photographs

# LIST OF ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Cal-IPC CCC CCR CCT CDFW CEQA CESA CFR CNDDB	California Invasive Plant Council California Coastal Commission California Code of Regulations California Coastal Trail California Department of Fish and Wildlife California Environmental Quality Act California Endangered Species Act Code of Federal Regulations California Natural Diversity Database
Corps	U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
County	San Mateo County
CRLF	California red-legged frog
CWA	Clean Water Act
dBA	A-weighted decibels
ESHA	Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Area
FAC	Facultative species (equal in wetland or non-wetlands)
FACW	Facultative wetland species (usually found in wetlands)
FESA	Federal Endangered Species Act
LCP	Local Coastal Program
NMFS	National Marine Fisheries Service
NRCS	Natural Resources Conservation Service
OBL	Obligate wetland species (almost always found in wetlands)
OHWM	Ordinary High Water Mark
PCEs	Primary constituent elements
PG&E	Pacific Gas and Electric
RPW	Relatively permanent water
RWQCB	Regional Water Quality Control Board
SFGS	San Francisco garter snake
TNW	Traditionally navigable waters
ТОВ	Top of Bank
USFWS	U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
USGS	U.S. Geological Survey

# 1.0 INTRODUCTION

On August 13, 2015, WRA, Inc. conducted a biological resource assessment of the 10.39-acre Midcoast Multi-modal Trail site located in the unincorporated community of El Granada in San Mateo County, California (Figure 1).

The purpose of the site visit and report is to identify, describe, and map any sensitive habitats, including riparian and wetland areas, or other Environmental Sensitive Habitat Area (ESHA); and "rare, threatened, or endangered" species, which may occur in the Study Area. WRA performed the biological resources assessment in accordance with the San Mateo County (County) Midcoast Local Coastal Program (LCP), including sections 7.1-7.19. This assessment is based on site conditions observed on the date of the site visit, related information available at the time of the study, and from reviewing past reports completed on the Study Area or adjacent properties. This report also contains an evaluation of potential impacts to special-status species or ESHAs that may occur as a result of the proposed project and potential mitigation measures to compensate for those impacts.

#### 1.1 Description of the Study Area

The Midcoast Multi-modal Trail Project is a component of the California Coastal Trail (CCT). The proposed trail alignment is situated on approximately 10.39 acres of undeveloped land owned by the County in the unincorporated community of El Granada, California (Figure 1). The focus of this report is the proposed trail alignment and land adjacent to the trail (Study Area). The Study Area occurs parallel to and includes parts of the California Coastal Highway (Highway 1), with an approximate distance of 0.83 mile, starting at the north end at Coronado Street and extending south to Mirada Road. The Study Area includes non-native annual grassland, central coast riparian scrub dominated by arroyo willow (*Salix lasiolepis*), a non-native riparian woodland dominated by blue gum (*Eucalyptus globulus*), a stand of Monterey cypress (*Hesperocyparis macrocarpa*), developed areas, coastal seasonal wetlands, and non-wetland waters, with elevations ranging from 9 to 75 feet. Residential neighborhoods, public open space, and schools surround the Study Area. The upland portions of the Study Area are generally comprised of wind breaks of Monterey cypress and non-native annual grasslands.

The Study Area is situated on a coastal terrace between the Santa Cruz mountain range and the Pacific Coast. No past development or agriculture fields occurred within the Study Area; however, based on historic aerial imagery, portions of the Study Area are mowed regularly (Google Earth 2002-2015). A Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E) power line occurs through the Study Area in several locations. The Study Area is transected by developed areas including Miramar Drive, Medio Avenue, and an unnamed dirt road. The Study Area is situated in the coastal fog belt where fog is a source of precipitation in the summer and storms are the source of precipitation in the winter. Average maximum temperature peaks in September at 67 degrees Fahrenheit with average minimum temperature in January at 43 degrees Fahrenheit. Average annual precipitation is 26.98 inches, generally occurring in the winter and spring months from November through March.



Path: L:\Acad 2000 Files\24000\24261\GIS\ArcMap\LocationMap.mxd

# 2.0 REGULATORY BACKGROUND

The following sections explain the regulatory context of the biological assessment, including applicable laws and regulations that were applied to the field investigations and analysis of potential project impacts.

# 2.1 Special-Status Species

Special-status species include those plants and wildlife species that have been formally listed, are proposed as endangered or threatened, or are candidates for such listing under the Federal Endangered Species Act (FESA) or California Endangered Species Act (CESA). These Acts afford protection to both listed and proposed species. In addition, California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) Species of Special Concern and the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) Species of Concern, which are species that face extirpation if current population and habitat trends continue, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) Birds of Conservation Concern, sensitive species included in USFWS Recovery Plans, and CDFW special-status invertebrates are all considered special-status species. Although CDFW Species of Special Concern generally have no special legal status, they are given special consideration under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). In addition to regulations for special-status species, most birds in the United States, including non-status species, are protected by the Migratory Bird Treaty Act of 1918. Under this legislation, destroying active nests, eggs, and young is illegal. Plant species on California Native Plant Society (CNPS) Ranks 1 and 2 are also considered special-status plant species. Impacts to these species are considered significant according to CEQA. Rank 3 and Rank 4 species are afforded little or no protection under CEQA, but are included in this analysis for completeness. A description of the CNPS Ranks is provided below in Table 1.

California F	Rare Plant Ranks (formerly known as CNPS Lists)		
Rank 1A	Presumed extirpated in California and either rare or extinct elsewhere		
Rank 1B	Rare, threatened, or endangered in California and elsewhere		
Rank 2A	Rank 2A Presumed extirpated in California, but more common elsewhere		
Rank 2B	Rare, threatened, or endangered in California, but more common elsewhere		
Rank 3	Plants about which more information is needed - A review list		
Rank 4	Plants of limited distribution - A watch list		
Threat Ran	Threat Ranks		
0.1	Seriously threatened in California		
0.2	Moderately threatened in California		
0.3	Not very threatened in California		

Table 1. Description of CNPS Ranks and Threat Codes

# Critical Habitat

Critical habitat is a term defined and used in the FESA as a specific geographic area that contains features essential for the conservation of a threatened or endangered species and that may require special management and protection. The FESA requires federal agencies to consult with the USFWS to conserve listed species on their lands and to ensure that any activities or projects they fund, authorize, or carry out will not jeopardize the survival of a threatened or endangered species. In consultation for those species with critical habitat, federal agencies must also ensure that their activities or projects do not adversely modify critical habitat to the point that it will no longer aid in the species' recovery. In many cases, this level of protection is similar to that already provided to species by the FESA "jeopardy standard." However, areas that are currently unoccupied by the species but which are needed for the species' recovery, are protected by the prohibition against adverse modification of critical habitat.

# 2.2 Sensitive Biological Communities

Sensitive biological communities include habitats that fulfill special functions or have special values, such as wetlands, streams, and riparian habitat. These habitats are regulated under federal regulations (such as the Clean Water Act (CWA)), state regulations (such as the Porter-Cologne Act, the CDFW Streambed Alteration Program, and CEQA), or local ordinances or policies (such as City or County Tree Ordinances, Special Habitat Management Areas, applicable LCPs, and General Plan Elements). Mitigation measures for impacts to these communities are discussed in Section 5 of this report.

#### Waters of the United States

Section 404 of the Clean Water Act gives the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) regulatory and permitting authority regarding discharge of dredged or fill material into "navigable waters of the United States." Section 502(7) of the Clean Water Act defines navigable waters as "waters of the United States, including territorial seas." Section 328 of Chapter 33 in the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) defines the term "waters of the United States" as it applies to the jurisdictional limits of the authority of the Corps under the Clean Water Act. A summary of this definition of "waters of the U.S." in 33 CFR 328.3 includes<sup>1</sup> (1) waters used for commerce; (2) interstate waters and wetlands; (3) territorial seas; (4) impoundments of waters; (5) tributaries to the above waters; (6) waters and wetlands adjacent to the above waters; and (7) prairie potholes, Carolina bays and Delmarva bays, Pocosins, western vernal pools, and Texas coastal prairie wetlands, provided these features have a significant nexus to the above listed waters; (8) all waters located within the 100year floodplain of waters listed above in items 1-3 or within 4,000 feet of the high tide line or ordinary high water mark of a water listed above in items 1-5, provided those waters are determined to have a significant nexus to waters identified in items 1-3 above. Therefore, for purposes of the determining Corps jurisdiction under the Clean Water Act, "navigable waters" as defined in the Clean Water Act are the same as "waters of the U.S." defined in the CFR above.

Areas not considered to be "waters of the U.S. as defined in 33 CFR 328.3(b), are summarized as follows: (1) waste treatment systems; (2) prior converted cropland; (3) specific classes of ditches; (4) man-made aquatic features in otherwise dry land such as stock watering ponds,

irrigation ponds, settling basins, fields flooded for rice growing, log cleaning ponds, cooling ponds, reflecting pools, swimming pools, small ornamental waters, depressions incidental to mining and construction activity, erosional features, and puddles; (5) groundwater; (6) stormwater control features; wastewater recycling structures, groundwater recharge basins, percolation ponds for wastewater recycling, and distribution networks for wastewater recycling. These areas are discussed further in Section 3.4 of this report.

The limits of Corps jurisdiction under Section 404 as given in 33 CFR Section 328.4 are as follows: (a) *Territorial seas:* three nautical miles in a seaward direction from the baseline; (b) *Tidal waters of the U.S.:* high tide line or to the limit of adjacent non-tidal waters; (c) *Non-tidal waters of the U.S.:* ordinary high water mark or to the limit of adjacent wetlands; (d) *Wetlands:* to the limit of the wetland.

#### Waters of the State

The term "Waters of the State" is defined by the Porter-Cologne Act as "any surface water or groundwater, including saline waters, within the boundaries of the state." The Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) protects all waters in its regulatory scope, but has special responsibility for wetlands, riparian areas, and headwaters. These waterbodies have high resource value, are vulnerable to filling, and are not systematically protected by other programs. RWQCB jurisdiction includes "isolated" wetlands and waters that may not be regulated by the Corps under Section 404. "Waters of the State" are regulated by the RWQCB under the State Water Quality Certification Program which regulates discharges of fill and dredged material under Section 401 of the CWA and the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act. Projects that require a Corps permit, or fall under other federal jurisdiction, and have the potential to impact "Waters of the State," are required to comply with the terms of the Water Quality Certification determination. If a proposed project does not require a federal permit, but does involve dredge or fill activities that may result in a discharge to "Waters of the State," the RWQCB has the option to regulate the dredge and fill activities under its state authority in the form of Waste Discharge Requirements.

#### Streams, Lakes, and Riparian Habitat

Streams and lakes, as habitat for fish and wildlife species, are subject to jurisdiction by CDFW under Sections 1600-1616 of the State Fish and Game Code. Alterations to or work within or adjacent to streambeds or lakes generally require a 1602 Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement. The term stream, which includes creeks and rivers, is defined in the California Code of Regulations (CCR) as follows: "a body of water that flows at least periodically or intermittently through a bed or channel having banks and supports fish or other aquatic life. This includes watercourses having a surface or subsurface flow that supports or has supported riparian vegetation" (14 CCR 1.72). In addition, the term stream can include ephemeral streams, dry washes, watercourses with subsurface flows, canals, aqueducts, irrigation ditches, and other means of water conveyance if they support aquatic life, riparian vegetation, or stream dependent terrestrial wildlife (CDFG ESD 1994). Riparian is defined as, "on, or pertaining to, the banks of a stream;" therefore, riparian vegetation is defined as, "vegetation which occurs in and/or adjacent to a stream and is dependent on, and occurs because of, the stream itself" (CDFG ESD 1994). Removal of riparian vegetation also requires a Section 1602 Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement from CDFW.

#### Other Sensitive Biological Communities

Other sensitive biological communities not discussed above include habitats that fulfill special functions or have special values. Natural communities considered sensitive are those identified in local or regional plans, policies, regulations, or by the CDFW. The CDFW ranks sensitive communities as "threatened" or "very threatened" and keeps records of their occurrences in its Natural Diversity Database (CNDDB). Sensitive plant communities are also identified by CDFW on their *List of California Natural Communities Recognized by the CNDDB*. Impacts to sensitive natural communities identified in local or regional plans, policies, regulations or by the CDFW or USFWS must be considered and evaluated under CEQA (CCR: Title 14, Div. 6, Chap. 3, Appendix G). Specific habitats may also be identified as sensitive in City or County General Plans or ordinances.

#### The California Coastal Commission ESHA Definition

The California Coastal Commission defines an ESHA as follows:

"Environmentally sensitive habitat area" means any area in which plant or animal life or their habitats are either rare or especially valuable because of their special nature or role in an ecosystem and which could be easily disturbed or degraded by human activities and developments. "

California Coastal Commission (CCC) Guidelines contain definitions for specific types of ESHAs, including: wetlands, estuaries, streams and rivers, lakes, open coastal waters and coastal waters, riparian habitats, other resource areas, and special-status species and their habitats. For the purposes of this report, WRA has taken into consideration any areas that may meet the definition of any ESHA defined by the CCC guidelines or the County LCP.

#### San Mateo County Local Coastal Program and Land Use Plan

The 2013 County LCP identified sensitive habitats to include: riparian corridors, wetlands, marine habitats, sand dunes, sea cliffs, and habitats supporting rare, endangered, and unique species. Further, the County LCP defines sensitive habitats as:

...any area which meets one of the following criteria: (1) habitats containing or supporting "rare and endangered" species as defined by the State Fish and Game Commission, (2) all perennial and intermittent streams and their tributaries, (3) coastal tide lands and marshes, (4) coastal and offshore areas containing breeding or nesting sites and coastal areas used by migratory and resident waterassociated birds for resting areas and feeding, (5) areas used for scientific study and research concerning fish and wildlife, (6) lakes and ponds and adjacent shore habitat, (7) existing game and wildlife refuges and reserves, and (8) sand dunes. San Mateo LCP, Policy 7.1

Additionally, the County LCP defines Riparian Corridors as a sensitive habitat, where riparian corridors are defined as:

...the "limit of riparian vegetation" (i.e., a line determined by the association of plant and animal species normally found near streams, lakes and other bodies of freshwater: red alder, jaumea, pickleweed, big leaf maple, narrow-leaf cattail, arroyo willow, broadleaf cattail, horsetail, creek dogwood, black cottonwood, and

box elder). Such a corridor must contain at least a 50% cover of some combination of the plants listed.

San Mateo LCP (2013), Policy 7.7

This County LCP further clarifies in Policy 7.8 that riparian corridors be established for all perennial and intermittent streams, lakes, and other bodies of freshwater in the Coastal Zone.

#### 3.0 METHODS

On August 13, 2015, the Study Area was traversed on foot to determine (1) plant communities present within the Study Area, (2) if existing conditions provide suitable habitat for any specialstatus plant or wildlife species, and (3) if sensitive habitats including ESHA are present. All plant and wildlife species encountered were recorded, and are summarized in Appendix A. Plant nomenclature follows Baldwin et al. (2012), except where noted. For cases in which taxonomic discrepancies occur between Baldwin et al. and the CNPS Inventory of Rare Plants, precedence was given to the species classification used in the CNPS Inventory.

#### 3.1 Biological Communities

Prior to the site visit, the Soil Survey of San Mateo Area, California (NRCS 2015) was examined to determine if any unique soil types that could support sensitive plant communities and/or aquatic features were present in the Study Area. Biological communities present in the Study Area were classified based on existing plant community descriptions described in the *Preliminary Descriptions of the Terrestrial Natural Communities of California* (Holland 1986) and *A Manual of California Vegetation* (Sawyer et al. 2009). However, in some cases it is necessary to identify variants of community types or to describe non-vegetated areas that are not described in the literature. Biological communities were classified as sensitive or non-sensitive as defined by CEQA and other applicable laws and regulations.

#### 3.1.1 Non-sensitive Biological Communities

Non-sensitive biological communities are those communities that are not afforded special protection under CEQA, and other state, federal, and local laws, regulations and ordinances. These communities may, however, provide suitable habitat for some special-status plant or wildlife species and are identified or described in Section 4.2 below.

#### 3.1.2 Sensitive Biological Communities

Sensitive biological communities are defined as those communities that are given special protection under CEQA and other applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations and ordinances. Applicable laws and ordinances are discussed above in Section 2.0. Special methods used to identify sensitive biological communities are discussed below.

#### Wetlands and Waters

The Study Area was surveyed to determine if any wetlands and waters potentially subject to jurisdiction by the Corps, RWQCB, or CDFW were present. The assessment was based primarily on the presence of wetland plant indicators, but may also include any observed indicators of wetland hydrology or wetland soils as defined by the Corps Manual (Environmental Laboratory 1987) and the *Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation* 

Manual: Arid West Region (Corps 2008). Any potential wetland areas were identified as areas dominated by plant species with a wetland indicator status of obligate wetland (OBL), facultative wetland (FACW), or facultative (FAC) as given on the U.S. Department of Agriculture: National Wetland Plant List (Lichvar 2014). Evidence of wetland hydrology can include evidence such as visible inundation or saturation, surface sediment deposits, algal mats and drift lines, and oxidized root channels. Some indicators of wetland soils include dark colored soils, soils with a sulfidic odor, and soils that contain redoximorphic features as defined in *Field Indicators of Hydric Soils in the United States* (NRCS 2010). In addition, the Study Area was surveyed for any wetlands meeting the County LCP or CCC wetland criteria.

The preliminary waters determination was based primarily on the presence of unvegetated, ponded areas or flowing water, or evidence indicating their presence such as a high water mark or a defined drainage course.

#### Other Sensitive Biological Communities

The Study Area was evaluated for the presence of other sensitive biological communities, including riparian areas, sensitive plant communities recognized by CDFW, significant areas of native plants, and other ESHAs. These sensitive biological communities were mapped and are described in Section 4.1.2 below.

#### 3.2 Special-Status Species

#### 3.2.1 Literature Review

Potential occurrence of special-status species in the Study Area was evaluated by first determining which special-status species occur in the vicinity of the Study Area through a literature and database search. Database searches for known occurrences of special-status species focused on the Half Moon Bay and Montara Mountain 7.5 minute U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) quadrangles. The following sources were reviewed to determine which special-status plant and wildlife species have been documented to occur in the vicinity of the Study Area:

- California Natural Diversity Database records (CDFW 2015)
- USFWS quadrangle species lists (USFWS 2015)
- CNPS Electronic Inventory records (CNPS 2015)
- CDFG publication "California's Wildlife, Volumes I-III" (Zeiner et al. 1990)
- CDFG publication "California Bird Species of Special Concern" (Shuford and Gardali 2008)
- CDFG publication "Amphibians and Reptile Species of Special Concern in California" (Jennings 1994)
- CDFG publication "An Annotated Check List of Amphibians and Reptile Species of California and Adjacent Waters, third revised edition" (Jennings 2004)
- A Field Guide to Western Reptiles and Amphibians (Stebbins 2003)

• San Mateo County Local Coastal Program (County of San Mateo 2013)

#### 3.2.2 Site Assessment

On August 13, 2015, WRA surveyed the Study Area to search for suitable habitats for species identified in the literature review as occurring in the vicinity. The potential for each special-status species to occur in the Study Area was then evaluated according to the following criteria:

- <u>No Potential</u>. Habitat on and adjacent to the site is clearly unsuitable for the species requirements (foraging, breeding, cover, substrate, elevation, hydrology, plant community, site history, disturbance regime).
- <u>Unlikely</u>. Few of the habitat components meeting the species requirements are present, and/or the majority of habitat on and adjacent to the site is unsuitable or of very poor quality. The species is not likely to be found on the site.
- <u>Moderate Potential</u>. Some of the habitat components meeting the species requirements are present, and/or only some of the habitat on or adjacent to the site is unsuitable. The species has a moderate probability of being found on the site.
- <u>High Potential</u>. All of the habitat components meeting the species requirements are present and/or most of the habitat on or adjacent to the site is highly suitable. The species has a high probability of being found on the site.
- <u>Present</u>. Species is observed on the site or has been recorded (i.e. CNDDB, other reports) on the site recently.

The site assessment was intended to identify the presence or absence of suitable habitat for each special-status species known to occur in the vicinity in order to determine its potential to occur in the Study Area. The site visit does not constitute protocol-level surveys and was not intended to determine the actual presence or absence of a species; however, if a special-status species was observed during the site visit, its presence was recorded and discussed. Appendix B presents the evaluation of potential for occurrence of each special-status plant and wildlife species known to occur in the vicinity of the Study Area with their habitat requirements, potential for occurrence, and rationale for the classification based on criteria listed above. Recommendations for further surveys are made in Section 5.0 below for species with a moderate or high potential to occur in the Study Area.

#### 4.0 RESULTS

The following sections present the results and discussion of the biological assessment within the Study Area.

# 4.1 Biological Communities

Non-sensitive biological communities in the Study Area include developed areas, non-native annual grassland, Monterey cypress forest, and northern coastal scrub. Four ESHAs occur within the Study Area: coastal seasonal wetland, non-wetland waters, central coast riparian

scrub, and non-native riparian woodland (Figure 2). Descriptions for each biological community are contained in the following sections. Acreage summations for biological communities are detailed in Table 2.

Biological Community <sup>1</sup>	Natural Community <sup>3</sup>	Acreage
Non-Sensitive <sup>4</sup>		
Non-Native [Annual] Grassland	Wild Oats Grassland ( <i>Avena</i> [ <i>barbata, fatua</i> ] Herbaceous Stands)	6.68
Developed <sup>2</sup>	N/A	1.03
Monterey Cypress Forest	Monterey Cypress Stands (Callitropsis macrocarpa Woodland Special Stands)	0.98
Northern Coastal Scrub	Coastal Brambles ( <i>Rubus</i> [ <i>parviflorus, spectabilis, ursinus</i> ] Shrubland Alliance)	0.05
Sensitive <sup>4</sup>		
Non-Wetland Waters <sup>2</sup>	N/A	0.04
Central Coast Riparian Scrub	Arroyo Willow Thickets ( <i>Salix lasiolepis</i> Shrubland Alliance)	1.22
Non-Native Riparian Woodland <sup>2</sup>	Eucalyptus Groves ( <i>Eucalyptus</i> [ <i>globulus, camaldulensis</i> ] Semi- Natural Woodland Alliance)	0.39
Coastal Seasonal Wetland <sup>2</sup>	Western Rush Marshes ( <i>Juncus patens</i> Provisional Herbaceous Alliance)	0.02
	TOTAL	10.39

Table 2. Biological Communities within the Study Area

<sup>1</sup>Holland (1986)

<sup>2</sup>Biological community not described in Holland (1986)

<sup>3</sup>Sawyer et al. (2009)

<sup>4</sup>Determination based on the *List of California Terrestrial Natural Communities* (CDFG 2010) and the *San Mateo County Local Coastal Program* (County 1998)

#### 4.1.1 Non-Sensitive Biological Communities

The Study Area is dominated by biological communities that are not considered sensitive by CDFW, local LCP's, the CCC, or any other regulatory agency and would therefore be unlikely to be considered under CEQA. These biological communities include areas that have been developed (roadways and utility structures), non-native annual grasslands, Monterey cypress forest, and northern coastal scrub.



Figure 2a. Biological Communities within the Study Area

Midcoast Multi-Modal Trail El Granada San Mateo County, California

Path: L:\Acad 2000 Files\24000\24261\GIS\ArcMap\BioComms.mxd





ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS

Map Prepared Date: 9/11/2015 Map Prepared By: fhourigan Base Source: USDA, NAIP 2014 Data Source(s): WRA



Figure 2b. Biological Communities within the Study Area

Midcoast Multi-Modal Trail El Granada San Mateo County, California

Path: L:\Acad 2000 Files\24000\24261\GIS\ArcMap\BioComms.mxd





ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS

Map Prepared Date: 9/11/2015 Map Prepared By: fhourigan Base Source: USDA, NAIP 2014 Data Source(s): WRA

#### Non-Native Annual Grassland

Approximately 6.68 acres of the Study Area contains non-native annual grassland habitat. Holland describes non-native annual grassland as a dense to sparse cover of non-native annual grasses with flowering culms 0.2-1 meter high and often associated with numerous species of showy-flowered annual forbs. This community often occurs on fine-textured, usually clay soils, that are moist, or saturated during the winter rainy season and very dry during the summer and fall. This community dominates within the Study Area. Wild Oats Grasslands (*Avena* [*barbata, fatua*] Semi-Natural Herbaceous Stands, No Rarity Ranking) are dominated by the cool-season annual grass and occur in most habitats in California (Sawyer et al. 2009). Non-native grasslands typically contain other non-native grasses.

In the Study Area, slender oat (*Avena barbata*) is the dominant natural community, occupying the flat, open areas with Italian ryegrass (*Festuca perennis* [*Lolium multiflorum*]), velvet grass (*Holcus lanatus*), and bristly ox-tongue (*Helminthotheca echioides*). Native forbs present within the community include birdsfoot trefoil (*Lotus corniculatus*), spreading rush (*Juncus patens*), fleshy willow dock (*Rumex crassus*) and Pacific American aster (*Symphyotrichum chilense*). Due to differences in micro-topography, the codominant grasses become dominant in some places; however the species composition and soil conditions are similar to the described slender oat grass alliance and therefore included into that alliance. Additionally, two stand-alone eucalyptus trees are present in this community.

#### Developed

The Study Area contains approximately 1.03 acres of developed areas, composed of paved roadways associated with Miramar Drive and Medio Avenue, and an unnamed dirt road, all of which connect to Highway 1.

#### Monterey Cypress Forest

The southern portion of the Study Area contains a 1.00-acre stand of Monterey cypress forest. Monterey cypress is native only to the Monterey Peninsula where it grows on rocky, granitic soils of coastal headlands and bluffs subject to nearly constant onshore winds (Holland 1986). Only two natural stands have been documented, but Monterey cypress has been planted throughout coastal California where it has become naturalized. Additionally, the California Invasive Plant Council (Cal-IPC) has rated Monterey cypress as "limited" for its ability to invade wildlands (Cal-IPC 2006). Sawyer (2009) has recognized this biological community as Monterey Cypress Stands (*Callitropsis macrocarpa* Woodland Special Stands), which are planted for wind protection and as an ornamental tree near roadsides, driveways and homesteads. Native stands of this alliance that occur on the Monterey peninsula are given G1 S1 status due to their rarity; however, stands outside the native range are not ranked and naturalized stands extend from Humboldt County to Santa Barbara County (Sawyer et al. 2009).

In the Study Area, Monterey cypress forest occurs in association with residential areas where it is planted along fences or driveways. At the southern end of the Study Area, tree-of-heaven (*Ailanthus altissima*) is co-dominant tree species in the canopy layer with Monterey cypress. The shrub and herb layer are depauperate due to canopy cover dense and leaf litter. Additionally, Monterey cypress forest occurs north of the non-native riparian woodland associated with Arroyo de en Medio in a generally developed area with managed non-native annual grassland associated with a nearby residence.

#### Coastal Brambles

Coastal Brambles occupies approximately 0.05 acre of the Study Area. Coastal Brambles (*Rubus* [*parviflorus, spectabilis, ursinus*] Shrubland Alliance, Rarity Ranking G4 S3), occur on coastal headlands and slopes between the coastal bluff scrub and coastal coniferous forests on the northern California coasts. Dominant species include California blackberry (*Rubus ursinus*), salmonberry (*Rubus spectabilis*) and thimbleberry (*Rubus parviflorus*). A continuous to intermittent canopy with sparse herbaceous layer is typical of the coastal bramble community. Typical associated species include salal (*Gaultheria shallon*) and coyote bush (*Baccharis pilularis*).

In the Study Area, Coastal Brambles occur along an old barbed wire fence adjacent to the arroyo willow thickets, and are dominated by California blackberry with the trace presence of emergent bulrush (*Scirpus microcarpus*), spreading rush and bristly ox-tongue. This biological community is transitory between mesic upland and a discernable bulrush (*Scirpus micorcarpus*) wetland to the east which is outside of the Study Area. The low percent cover of wetland plants within the Coastal Brambles is a result of this transition.

#### 4.1.2 Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Areas (ESHAs)

The Study Area contains four natural communities considered sensitive by the CDFW, CCC and local LCPs and would therefore be considered sensitive under CEQA. These communities include coastal seasonal wetland, non-wetland waters, central coast riparian scrub, and non-native riparian woodland.

#### Non-Wetland Waters

Non-wetland waters associated with two streams were observed within the Study Area, totaling approximately 0.04 acre (212.97 linear feet). Non-wetland waters are not described by Holland (1986) or Sawyer (2009). Non-wetland waters within the Study Area occur as an intermittent stream in the south and perennial drainage centrally.

The USGS dashed blue-line intermittent stream, Arroyo de ne Medio, showed obvious signs of scouring and alluvial sediment deposition within the creek bed and an unvegetated gravel bed. Dominant vegetation associated with the creek is composed non-native tree species including blue gum and blackwood acacia (*Acacia melanoxylon*) and water was not present at the time of the site visit. The non-native riparian woodland associated with this intermittent stream is discussed below.

The unnamed perennial drainage was observed with standing water and obvious signs of bank scour. The drainage was approximately fourteen inches deep and three to five feet wide. Vegetation associated with the perennial drainage was dominated by central coast riparian scrub, as discussed below. This unnamed stream drains west through a culvert under Highway 1, ultimately to the Pacific Ocean. This perennial drainage likely receives subsurface flows from a local underground stormwater conveyance system and potential upgrade intermittent flows; however, the source water is unconfirmed.

#### Central Coast Riparian Scrub

The Study Area contains approximately 1.22 acres of central coast riparian scrub centrally that is associated with an unnamed perennial drainage. Holland (1986) describes this central coast

riparian scrub as occurring in areas of open to nearly impenetrable willow shrubs associated with a stream or mouth of streams, occurring near the coast in the South Coast Ranges. Soils are relatively fine-grained sand and gravel bars from alluvial deposition.

This community is described by Sawyer (2009) as Arroyo Willow Thickets (*Salix lasiolepis* Shrubland Alliance, Rarity Ranking G4 S4), which occurs throughout much of California along streams, seeps and drainages. The canopy is dominated by arroyo willow forming an open to continuous layer with a variable herbaceous layer. Typical associated species include mugwort (*Artemisia douglasiana*), coyote bush, California blackberry and other willow species.

Within the Study Area, central coast riparian scrub occurs centrally adjacent to Highway 1 and is transected by a pull out and dirt road that provides access to a large field to the east. This habitat is part of a larger area of central coast riparian scrub that extends generally east to west. The canopy is dense and nearly impenetrable, dominated by arroyo willow. Understory structure is heterogeneous due to the many branches of arroyo willow. California blackberry, stinging nettle (*Urtica dioica*), panicled bulrush, and Pacific rush (*Juncus effusus*) comprise the intermittent shrub and herb cover. Soil samples taken within the plant community lacked hydric soil indicators..

#### Non-Native Riparian Woodland

The Study Area contained approximately 0.39 acre of non-native riparian woodland. Non-native riparian habitat is not described in Holland (1986) or Sawyer (2009); however, Eucalyptus groves (*Eucalyptus* [*globulus, camaldulensis*] Semi-Natural Woodland Alliance) are described from the Coast Ranges and Central Valley, typically as planted woodlands and shelterbelts to buffer coastal winds and provide shade (Sawyer et al. 2009). This vegetation alliance is dominated by one of several eucalyptus species (*Eucalyptus* spp.), all of which are not native to North America. Blue gum (and other eucalyptus) groves are frequently situated in rural and semi-urbanized settings, along streams, and coastal hills/prairies.

Within the Study Area, a non-native riparian canopy associated with Arroyo de en Medio is dominated by blue gum and blackwood acacia. The understory structure is heterogeneous with sapling arroyo willow and black acacia with scattered red elderberry (*Sambucus racemosa*), all of which are covered by cape ivy (*Delairea odorata*). The lower shrub layer is dominated by Himalayan blackberry (*Rubus armeniacus*). The herb layer is dominated by garden nasturtium (*Tropaeolum majus*) and veldt grass (*Ehrharta erecta*), mixed with leaf and bark litter from the shedding eucalyptus.

#### **Coastal Seasonal Wetland**

Approximately 0.02 acre of CCC coastal seasonal wetland habitat occurs within the Study Area. Coastal seasonal wetlands are not described by Holland (1986) and are dominated by perennial herbs, especially sedges and grasses that are often low growing and grow yearlong in areas with mild winters. This community occurs scattered throughout California, being most common in grasslands.

Sawyer (2009) best describes the coastal seasonal wetland within the Study Area as Western Rush Marshes (*Juncus patens* Provisional Herbaceous Alliance, Rarity Ranking G4 S4), which occur on seasonally saturated soils on flats, depressions or gentle slopes. Western Rush Marshes contain continuous to intermittent cover of western rush with commonly associated

facultative wetland plants such as Italian wildrye, velvet grass, toad rush (*Juncus bufonius*), and clover (*Trifolium* spp.).

In the Study Area, this biological community occurs centrally, within a small man-made swale that drains to arroyo willow thicket. Western rush is dominant with co-dominants of common rush (*Juncus occidentalis*), and bristly ox-tongue. While the coastal seasonal wetland is dominated by hydrophytic vegetation, it did not contain indicators of hydric soils or wetland hydrology and therefore only meets the CCC definition of a seasonal wetland (WRA, August 2015.

#### 4.2 Special-Status Species

#### 4.2.1 Plants

Based upon a review of the resources and databases given in Section 3.2.1, 42 special-status plant species have been documented in the vicinity of the Study Area (Figure 3). Appendix B summarizes the potential for occurrence for each special-status plant species occurring in the Half Moon Bay and Montara Mountain USGS 7.5 minute quadrangles. No special-status species were observed during the site visit. All species documented to occur in the vicinity of the Study Area are unlikely or have no potential to occur due to lack of suitable habitat within the Study Area, such as coastal prairie, woodlands, or high quality meadows and seeps.. Plants observed during the site visit are listed in Appendix A.

#### 4.2.2 Wildlife

Twenty special-status wildlife species have been documented in the vicinity of the Study Area (Figure 4; CDFW 2015) and an additional 39 are known based upon review of the resources and databases given in Section 3.2.1. Appendix B summarizes the potential for each of these species to occur in the Study Area. Most species are unlikely or precluded from occurring based upon the high level of development and disturbance in the area and lack of suitable habitat features. Two special-status wildlife species were observed in the Study Area during the site assessment, and three other special-status wildlife species have a moderate potential to occur in the Study Area are discussed below.

San Francisco dusky-footed woodrat (*Neotoma fuscipes annectens*), CDFW Species of Special Concern. Present. This subspecies of the dusky-footed woodrat occurs in the Coast Ranges between San Francisco Bay and the Salinas River (Matocq 2003). Occupied habitats are variable and include forest, woodland, riparian areas, and chaparral. Woodrats feed on woody plants, but will also consume fungi, grasses, flowers and acorns. Foraging occurs on the ground and in bushes and trees. This species constructs robust stick houses/structures in areas with moderate cover and a well-developed understory containing woody debris. Breeding takes place from December to September. Individuals are active year-round, and generally nocturnal. The majority of the Study Area is grassland and open habitat which has no potential to support woodrat. However, San Francisco dusky-footed woodrat is present within the central coast riparian scrub and in the Monterey cypress forest in the southern Study Area with a total of four woodrat houses observed within these plant communities, two of which were confirmed active. The eucalyptus and cypress habitats in Arroyo de en Medio have an open understory and woodrat are unlikely to occur here; no houses were observed in these habitats during the site assessment.



Path: L:\Acad 2000 Files\24000\24261\GIS\ArcMap\CNDDB\_Plants.mxd


White-tailed kite (*Elanus leucurus*). CDFW Fully Protected Species. Moderate Potential. The white-tailed kite is a resident in open to semi-open habitats throughout the lower elevations of California, including grasslands, savannahs, woodlands, agricultural areas and wetlands. Vegetative structure and prey availability seem to be more important habitat elements than associations with specific plants or vegetative communities (Dunk 1995). Nests are constructed mostly of twigs and placed in trees, often at habitat edges. Nest trees are highly variable in size, structure, and immediate surroundings, ranging from shrubs to trees greater than 150 feet tall (Dunk 1995). This species preys upon a variety of small mammals, as well as other vertebrates and invertebrates. The Study Area contains suitable foraging habitat, and the eucalyptus provide suitable nesting habitat for this species. Although the high levels of disturbance within the Study Area related to Pacific Coast Highway and residential development decrease the potential for nesting within the Study Area; nesting habitat is present in and adjacent to the Study Area.

Loggerhead shrike (*Lanius Iudovicianus*). CDFW Species of Special Concern, USFWS Bird of Conservation Concern. Moderate Potential. The loggerhead shrike is a year-round resident and winter visitor in lowlands and foothills throughout California. This species is associated with open country with short vegetation and scattered trees, shrubs, fences, utility lines and/or other perches. Although they are songbirds, shrikes are predatory and forage on a variety of invertebrates and small vertebrates. Captured prey items are often impaled for storage purposes on suitable substrates, including thorns or spikes on vegetation, and barbed wire fences. Nests in trees and large shrubs; nests are usually placed three to ten feet off the ground (Shuford and Gardali 2008). Trees and shrubs in and adjacent to the Study Area provide suitable nesting habitat for this species. In addition, the grassland habitat provides suitable foraging, and loggerhead shrike has a moderate potential to nest and occur within the Study Area.

Yellow warbler (Setophaga petechia brewsteri). CDFW Species of Special Concern, USFWS Bird of Conservation Concern. Present. The yellow warbler is a neotropical migrant bird that is widespread in North America, but has declined throughout much of its California breeding range. The Brewster's (*brewsteri*) subspecies is a summer resident and represents the vast majority of yellow warblers that breed in California. West of the Central Valley, typical yellow warbler breeding habitat consists of dense riparian vegetation along watercourses, including wet meadows, with willow growth especially being favored (Shuford and Gardali 2008). The willow scrub habitat provides suitable habitat and a yellow warbler was observed during the site assessment near the Mirada East Trail access. Although the high disturbance in the area immediately adjacent to Pacific Coast Highway and the Mirada East Trail access decreases potential for the Study Area to be used for nesting; there is a moderate potential for yellow warbler to nest within the Study Area.

Allen's hummingbird (*Selasphorus sasin*). USFWS Bird of Conservation Concern. Moderate Potential. Allen's hummingbird, common in many portions of its range, is a summer resident along the majority of California's coast and a year-round resident in portions of coastal southern California and the Channel Islands. Breeding occurs in association with the coastal fog belt, and typical habitats used include coastal scrub, riparian, woodland and forest edges, and eucalyptus and cypress groves (Mitchell 2000). It feeds on nectar, as well as insects and spiders. The eucalyptus, small trees, and shrubs within the Study Area provide suitable nesting habitat for this species. This species is known to nest in the vicinity and in residential areas. There is a moderate potential for Allen's hummingbird to nest within most some habitats in the Study Area except the grassland habitat.

### 4.2.3 Listed Species that Occur in the Region that are Unlikely to Occur in the Study Area

Federally listed species that are documented to occur within the vicinity of the Study Area, but are unlikely to occur include: California red-legged frog (CRLF; *Rana draytonii*) and San Francisco gartersnake (SFGS; *Thamnophis sirtalis tetrataenia*). These species are discussed below.

**California Red-legged Frog (***Rana draytonii***). Federal Threatened Species. CDFW Species of Special Concern. Unlikely.** The California red-legged frog (CRLF) was listed as Federally Threatened on May 23, 1996 (61 FR 25813-25833). Critical Habitat for the CRLF was designated on April 13, 2006 (71 FR 19243-19346), and the revised designation was finalized on March 17, 2010 (75 FR 12815-12959). A Recovery Plan for the CRLF was published by the USFWS on May 28, 2002. The current distribution of this species includes only isolated localities in the Sierra Nevada, northern Coast and Northern Traverse Ranges. It is still common in the San Francisco Bay area and along the central coast. It is now believed to be extirpated from the southern Transverse and Peninsular Ranges (USFWS 2002).

There are four primary constituent elements (PCEs) that are considered to be essential for the conservation or survival of a species. The PCEs for the CRLF include: aquatic breeding habitat; non-breeding aquatic habitat; upland habitat; and dispersal habitat (USFWS 2010).

Aquatic breeding habitat consists of low-gradient fresh water bodies, including natural and manmade (e.g., stock) ponds, backwaters within streams and creeks, marshes, lagoons, and dune ponds. It does not include deep water habitat, such as lakes and reservoirs. Aquatic breeding habitat must hold water for a minimum of 20 weeks in most years and typically greater than one foot in depth (USFWS 2010).

Aquatic non-breeding habitat may or may not hold water long enough for this species to hatch and complete its aquatic life cycle, but it provides shelter, foraging, predator avoidance, and aquatic dispersal for juvenile and adult CRLF. These waterbodies include plunge pools within intermittent creeks; seeps; quiet water refugia during high water flows; and springs of sufficient flow to withstand the summer dry period (USFWS 2010).

Upland habitats typically include areas within 300 feet of aquatic and riparian habitat and are comprised of grasslands, woodlands, and/or vegetation that provide shelter, forage, and predator avoidance. These upland features provide breeding, non-breeding, feeding, and sheltering habitat for juvenile and adult frogs (e.g., shelter, shade, moisture, cooler temperatures, a prey base, foraging opportunities, and areas for predator avoidance). Upland habitat can include structural features such as boulders, rocks and organic debris (e.g. downed trees, logs), as well as small mammal burrows and moist leaf litter (USFWS 2010).

Dispersal Habitat includes accessible upland or riparian habitats between occupied locations within 0.7 miles of each other that allow for movement between these sites. Dispersal habitat includes various natural and altered habitats such as agricultural fields, which do not contain barriers to dispersal. Moderate to high density urban or industrial developments, large reservoirs and heavily traveled roads without bridges or culverts are considered barriers to dispersal (USFWS 2006a).

The Study Area does not contain any PCEs for CRLF. There is no breeding habitat within the Study Area and no connectivity with breeding or potentially occupied habitats. The drainage in the willow scrub habitat contained puddled water immediately prior to the culvert under Highway

1 with a maximum 4 inches in depth. However, based upon maximum depth (14 inches) of the drainage in the Study Area, it was determined to be too shallow and not suitable for CRLF breeding. In addition, the drainage is relatively short, sourced 400 feet upstream from the Study Area and not contiguous with other drainages or potentially occupied locations. Arroyo de en Medio does not pond within the Study Area and was dry at the time of the site assessment. Slope and vegetation indicate Arroyo de en Medio is highly ephemeral and flashy which does not support CRLF breeding or non-breeding aquatic habitat. The nearest documented occurrence is 0.8 mile northwest in the undeveloped area north of El Granada.

Upland habitat is typically within 300 feet of breeding habitat and the Study Area is greater than 500 feet from potential breeding habitat with residential development and high traffic areas between the Study Area and the potential breeding pond. Dispersal habitat by definition is located between suitable and occupied habitats. The Study Area is bounded by development including residences, associated roads, and Highway 1 with no suitable water courses or corridors to provide connectivity with occupied habitats; thus CRLF dispersal through the Study Area is likely precluded. The development within and around the Study Area, in addition to the lack of aquatic habitat, reduce the potential for CRLF to occur or move through the Study Area; therefore, no further measures are recommended for this species.

San Francisco Gartersnake (*Thamnophis sirtalis tetrataenia*), Federal Endangered, State Endangered. CDFW Fully Protected Species. Unlikely. Historically, SFGS occurred in scattered wetland areas on the San Francisco Peninsula from approximately the San Francisco County line south along the eastern and western bases of the Santa Cruz Mountains, at least to the Upper Crystal Springs Reservoir, and along the coast south to Año Nuevo Point, San Mateo County, and Waddell Creek, Santa Cruz County.

The preferred habitat of SFGS is a densely vegetated pond near an open hillside where they can sun themselves, feed, and find cover in rodent burrows; however, considerably less ideal habitats can be successfully occupied (USFWS 2006b). Temporary ponds and other seasonal freshwater bodies are also used. Emergent and bankside vegetation such as cattails (*Typha* spp.), bulrushes (*Scirpus* spp.) and spike rushes (*Juncus* spp. and *Eleocharis* spp.) apparently are preferred and used for cover. The area between stream and pond habitats and grasslands or bank sides is used for basking, while nearby dense vegetation or water often provide escape cover.

During the summer, snakes may disperse from the typical vegetated aquatic-edge habitat into adjacent areas to feed on amphibians or hibernate in rodent burrows. Typically, SFGS utilize upland rodent burrows, including Botta's pocket gopher (*Thomomys bottae*) and the California meadow vole (*Microtus californicus*), within several hundred feet of their aquatic habitat (McGinnis 2001, USFWS 2006b). Literature suggests that lowland rodent burrows are not utilized for hibernation due to the potential for flooding (McGinnis 2001).

During periods of heavy rain or shortly after, SFGS may make long-distance movements of up to 1.25 miles along drainages within the dense riparian cover, and are not documented to travel over open terrain (McGinnis 2001).

The Study Area does not contain aquatic habitat or suitable upland habitat features and is not contiguous with occupied habitats. The nearest documented occurrences are over 1.5 miles north and south of the Study Area. Highway 1 and surrounding residential development are major dispersal barriers between the occupied habitats and the Study Area. Based upon lack of

suitable habitat and barriers to dispersal, it is determined SFGS is unlikely to be present within the Study Area. No further measures are recommended for this species.

# 5.0 SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The following sections present recommendations for future studies and/or measures to avoid or reduce impacts to special-status species and sensitive habitats. Four ESHAs occur within the Study Area:

- Non-wetland waters potentially under the jurisdictional of the Corps, RWQCB, CDFW, CCC, and County LCP;
- Central coast riparian scrub and non-native riparian woodland potentially under the jurisdictional of the CDFW, CCC, and County LCP; and
- Coastal seasonal wetland potentially under the jurisdictional of the CCC and County LCP.

No special-status plant species were observed or have been identified with moderate to high potential to occur within the Study Area. Two special-status wildlife species are present and three have a moderate potential to occur within the Study Area. The following sections present recommendations for future studies and/or measures to avoid or reduce impacts to sensitive habitats and special-status wildlife with potential to occur in the Study Area.

## 5.1 Biological Communities

The CCC and LCP generally prohibit land use or development that would have significant adverse impact on ESHAs. The LCP defines specific criteria for allowable development areas in ESHAs, requires ESHA impacts to be minimized to the maximum extent feasible through siting and design, requires that mitigation measures implemented where impacts to ESHAs may occur. However, permitted uses allowed within ESHAs include the following: education and research, trails and scenic overlooks on public lands, and fish and wildlife management. As aforementioned, ESHAs within the Study Area include coastal seasonal wetlands, non-wetland waters, central coast riparian scrub, and non-native riparian woodland.

### 5.1.1 Wetlands

A 100-foot minimum buffer surrounding wetlands, lakes, and ponds is typically required by the LCP code. However, specific permitted uses, including trails and scenic overlooks, are allowed within these buffer areas. As such, while trail development activities may occur within the 100-foot buffer surrounding a wetland, the following standards are recommended to minimize adverse effects (Section 7.17, San Mateo County LCP):

- all paths be elevated so as not to impede movement of water;
- all construction takes place during daytime hours;
- all outdoor lighting be kept at a distance away from the wetland sufficient not to affect the wildlife;
- motorized machinery be kept to less than 45 dBA at the wetland boundry;

- all construction which alters wetland vegetation be required to replace vegetation;
- no herbicides be used in wetlands unless specifically approved by the county Agricultural commissioner and CDFW, and;
- all projects be reviewed by CDFW and SWQB to determine appropriate mitigation measures.

## 5.1.2 Non-Wetland Waters

The Study Area contains non-wetland waters potentially subject to regulation by the following agencies: the Corps, the RWQCB, the CDFW, and the County LCP. Given the nature of the Project, temporary and permanent impacts to federal-protected non-wetland waters are expected from the construction of a multi-use trail. Temporary and permanent impacts to federal-protected waters (below the OHWM of the stream) in the Study Area will require a Corps Section 404 Nationwide Permit, and a RWQCB Section 401 Water Quality Certification. Any work below top of bank (TOB) of the stream will require a Section 1602 Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement from CDFW.

Best management practices should be used to lessen potential impacts to sensitive habitats. This includes the use of silt fencing, wattles, and other appropriate stormwater pollution prevention measures. Permitting agencies may require a mitigation and monitoring plan to restore or replace temporary and permanent impacts to non-wetland waters.

### 5.1.3 Riparian Habitat

In addition to streams and lakes, the CDFW regulates riparian vegetation. Removal of riparian vegetation also requires a Section 1602 Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement from CDFW. CDFW jurisdiction typically extends to the TOB or the outer edge of riparian vegetation, whichever is further from the stream.

Potential impacts to riparian vegetation could occur through riparian vegetation removal or project-related encroachment into riparian habitat. To ensure that potential impacts to riparian vegetation are avoided, exclusion and/or silt fencing should be placed around all riparian vegetation that will be preserved and this fencing shall remain in place for the duration of construction. If removal of riparian vegetation is proposed, a Section 1602 Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement from CDFW will be needed.

### 5.1.4 General Avoidance Measures

Below, general avoidance measures to reduce potential impacts to sensitive habitats and specific performance criteria for ESHAs are described:

- Site grading and trail development activities should be restricted between approximately May 1 and December 31. Site grading during these dryer months will reduce the possibility of soil erosion and sediments flowing into natural habitats.
- Install temporary silt fencing along the entire perimeter of land disturbing activities to protect potential ESHAs.

- Soil disturbance in the 100-foot buffer zone around the wetland areas (see Section 5.1.1) should be minimized as much as possible. This will reduce the impact to existing soils and vegetation that will remain as natural habitat within the buffer zone and reduce the potential for soil erosion. Perimeter erosion and sediment control measures (i.e. silt fencing, straw waddles) should be installed within the buffer zone area as an extra precaution to reduce the possibility of sediments entering the adjacent potential ESHAs.
- Solid materials, including wood, masonry/rock, glass, paper, or other materials should not be stored or placed in the 100-foot wetland buffer zone to the extent practicable. Solid waste materials should be properly disposed of off-site. Fluid materials, including concrete, wash water, fuels, lubricants, or other fluid materials used during construction should not be disposed of on-site and should be stored or confined as necessary to prevent spillage into natural habitats. If a spill of such materials occurs, the area should be cleaned and contaminated materials disposed of properly. The affected area should be restored to its natural condition.

### 5.2 Special-Status Plant Species

Of the 42 special-status plant species known to occur in the vicinity of the Study Area, none were determined to have a high to moderate potential to occur in the Study Area. Therefore, there are no additional recommendations for special-status plant species.

### 5.3 Special-Status Wildlife Species

Of the 59 special-status wildlife species previously documented in the vicinity, two are present and three were determined to have potential to occur within the Study Area. Most of the species found in the review of background literature occur in habitats not found in the Study Area. No aquatic habitat is present and high development and disturbance within and adjacent to the Study Area preclude the presence of many species.

### San Francisco Dusky-footed Woodrat

The central coast riparian scrub and non-native riparian woodland habitat is occupied by San Francisco dusky-footed woodrat, and four houses were observed. If project activities are to occur within either of these habitats, the measures below shall be implemented to minimize impacts to San Francisco dusky-footed woodrat.

- If avoidance of riparian habitat is not feasible, a pre-construction survey within the riparian habitat will identify all existing San Francisco dusky-footed woodrat houses to be impacted.
- Woodrat houses that cannot be avoided will be dismantled by hand under the supervision of a biologist. If young are encountered during the dismantling process, the material should be placed back on the house and the house will remain unmolested for two to three weeks in order to give the young enough time to mature and leave the house. After two to three weeks, the nest dismantling process may begin again. Nest material will be moved to suitable adjacent areas (riparian, woodland, scrub) that will not be impacted.

## Special-status and Non-special-status Nesting Birds

This assessment determined that four special-status bird species may nest in trees and shrubs within the Study Area. In addition, most common native bird species are also protected by the Migratory Bird Treaty Act (MBTA) during the nesting season. The following avoidance and minimization measures are recommended to be incorporated to any proposed project within the Study Area to avoid impacts to special-status bird species and birds protected under the MBTA.

- If project activities are to be conducted during the nesting season (February 15 August 31), a pre-construction nesting bird survey should be performed no more than 14 days prior to initial ground disturbance to avoid impacting active nests, eggs, and/or young.
- If the survey identifies any active nest, an exclusion buffer should be established for protection of the nest and young. Buffer distance will vary based on species and conditions at the site, but typically ranges between 25 up to 600 feet. The biologist shall establish an appropriate buffer if necessary; the buffer should be maintained until all young have fledged.
- Impacts to nesting birds can be avoided if potential activities including tree trimming or removal are initiated outside of the nesting season (September 1 – January 31).

#### 6.0 REFERENCES

- Baldwin, BG, DH Goldman, DJ Keil, R Patterson, TJ Rosatti, and DH Wilken (eds.). 2012. The Jepson Manual: Vascular Plants of California, second edition. University of California Press, Berkeley, CA.
- California Department of Fish and Game, Biogeographic Data Branch (CDFG). 2010. List of California Terrestrial Natural Communities Recognized by The California Natural Diversity Database.
- California Department of Fish and Game, Environmental Services Division (ESD). 1994. A Field Guide to Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreements, Sections 1600-1607, California Fish and Game Code.
- California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Biogeographic Data Branch (CDFW). 2015. California Natural Diversity Database (CNDDB). Sacramento.
- California Native Plant Society (CNPS). 2015. Inventory of Rare and Endangered Vascular Plants (online edition, v7-07c). California Native Plant Society, Sacramento, California. Available online: http://www.cnps.org/inventory

County of San Mateo. 2013. Local Coastal Program Policies. June 2013.

County of San Mateo. 1998. Local Coastal Program. June 1998.

Dunk, J. R. 1995. White-tailed Kite (*Elanus leucurus*). In The Birds of North America, No. 178 (A. Poole and F. Gill, eds.). The Academy of Natural Sciences, Philadelphia, and the American Ornithologists' Union, Washington, D.C.

Environmental Laboratory. 1987. Corps of Engineers Wetlands Delineation Manual. Department of the Army, Waterways Experiment Station, Vicksburg, Mississippi 39180-0631.

Google Earth. 2015. Aerial Imagery 2002-2015. Accessed September 2015.

- Holland, R. F. 1986. Preliminary Descriptions of the Terrestrial Natural Communities of California. Prepared for the California Department of Fish and Game, Sacramento, California.
- Jennings, M. R. 2004. An Annotated Check List of Amphibians and Reptile Species of California and Adjacent Waters, third revised edition. California Department of Fish and Game, Sacramento, CA.
- Jennings, M. R. and M. P. Hayes. 1994. Amphibian and Reptile Species of Special Concern in California. Final report submitted to the California Department of Fish and Game, Inland Fisheries Division, Rancho Cordova, California. Contract No. 8023.
- Lichvar, R.W., M. Butterwick, N.C. Melvin, and W.N. Kirchner. 2014. The National Wetland Plant List: 2014 Update of Wetland Ratings. Phytoneuron 2014-41: 1-42.
- Matocq, M. Dusky-footed Woodrats (Neotoma fuscipes) at Hastings: A Research Tradition. Hastings Natural History Reserve http://www.hastingsreserve.org/Woodrats, 2003.

- McGinnis, S. M. 2001. Past and Present Habitats for the San Francisco Garter Snake and California Red-Legged Frog on the Original Cascade Ranch Property, With Additional Comments on Potential Movement Pathways and Suggestions for Critical Habitat Enhancement Measures. Unpublished. January.
- Mitchell, D. E. 2000. Allen's Hummingbird (*Selasphorus sasin*). In: The birds of North America (A. Poole, and F. Gill, eds.), no. 501. The Birds of North America Inc., Philadelphia, PA.
- Natural Resources Conservation Service, United States Department of Agriculture (NRCS). 2010. Field Indicators of Hydric Soils in the United States: A Guide for Identifying and Delineating Hydric Soils, Version 7.0. In cooperation with the National Technical Committee for Hydric Soils, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers.
- NRCS. Web Soil Survey: San Mateo County. Available online: http://websoilsurvey.nrcs.usda.gov/. Accessed September 2015.
- Sawyer, J. O. and T. Keeler-Wolf. 2009. A Manual of California Vegetation. California Native Plant Society, Sacramento, California.
- Shuford, WD, and T Gardali (eds). 2008. California Bird Species of Special Concern: A ranked assessment of species, subspecies, and distinct populations of birds of immediate conservation concern in California. Studies of Western Birds 1. Western Field Ornithologists, Camarillo, California, and CDFG, Sacramento.
- Stebbins, R. C. 2003. A Field Guide to Western Reptiles and Amphibians. Third edition. The Peterson Field Guide Series, Houghton Mifflin Company, New York.
- U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS). 2002. Recovery plan for the California red-legged frog (Rana aurora draytonii). U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Portland, OR.
- U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS). 2006a. Designation of Critical Habitat for the California Red-Legged Frog, and Special Rule Exemption Associated With Final Listing for Existing Routine Ranching Activities; Final Rule. Federal Register 71(71): 19243-19346. April 13.
- U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS). 2006b. San Francisco Garter Snake (Thamnophis sirtalis tetrataenia) 5-Year Review: Summary and Evaluation. Sacramento Fish and Wildlife Office. USFWS. 2015. Quadrangle Species Lists, Sacramento Fish and Wildlife Service.
- U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS). 2010. Endangered and Threatened Wildlife and Plants: Revised Designation of Critical Habitat for California Red-legged Frog; Final Rule. Federal Register, Vol. 75, No. 51. 12815-12959.
- United States Army Corps of Engineers (Corps). 2008. Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual: Arid West Region (Version 2.0), ed. J.S. Wakeley, R.W. Lichvar, and C.V. Noble. ERDC/EL TR-08-28. Vicksburg, MS: U.S. Army Engineer Research and Development Center.
- WRA. August 2015. Wetland Delineation Report, Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project. Prepared for San Mateo County.

Zeiner, D. C., W. F. Laudenslayer, Jr., K. E. Mayer, and M. White. 1990. California's Wildlife, Volume I-III: Amphibians and Reptiles, Birds, Mammals. California Statewide Wildlife Habitat Relationships System, California Department of Fish and Game, Sacramento. APPENDIX A

LIST OF OBSERVED PLANT AND ANIMAL SPECIES

Appendix A. Plant and wildlife species observed in the Study Area on August 13, 2015

Scientific Name	Common Name
Plants	
Acacia melanoxylon	blackwood acacia
Achillea millefolium	common yarrow
Ailanthus altissima	tree of heaven
Alyssum alyssoides	sweet alyssum
Anagallis arvensis	scarlet pimpernel
Avena barbata	slender oat
Baccharis pilularis ssp. consanguinea	coyote brush
Brachypodium distachyon	false brome
Brassica nigra	black mustard
Briza minor	little quakinggrass
Bromus carinatus var. carinatus	California brome
Bromus catharticus var. elatus	Chilean brome
Bromus diandrus	ripgut brome
Bromus hordeaceus	soft chess
Carduus pycnocephalus	Italian thistle
Carex hendersonii	Henderson's sedge
Carpobrotus edulis	iceplant
Cirsium vulgare	bull thistle
Conium maculatum	poison hemlock
Convolvulus arvensis	field bindweed
Cortaderia jubata	Pampas grass
Cyperus eragrostis	tall flatsedge
Delairea odorata	Cape ivy
Distichlis spicata	saltgrass
Ehrharta erecta	panic veldtgrass
Epilobium ciliatum ssp. ciliatum	fringed willowherb
Equisetum arvense	field horsetail
Erigeron canadensis	Canadian horseweed
Eschscholzia californica	California poppy
Eucalyptus globulus	blue gum
Festuca bromoides	brome fescue
Festuca perennis	Italian rye grass
Foeniculum vulgare	fennel

Scientific Name	Common Name
Frangula purshiana	Cascara buckthorn
Genista monspessulana	French broom
Hedera helix	English ivy
Helminthotheca echioides	bristly ox-tongue
Hesperocyparis macrocarpa	Monterey cypress
Holcus lanatus	common velvet grass
Hordeum brachyantherum ssp. brachyantherum	meadow barley
Hordeum murinum ssp. glaucum	blue foxtail
Hypochaeris radicata	hairy catsear
Juncus effusus ssp. pacificus	Pacific rush
Juncus occidentalis	western rush
Lactuca serriola	prickly lettuce
Lotus corniculatus	bird's-foot trefoil
Lupinus arboreus	yellow bush lupine
Madia sativa	coast tarweed
Malva nicaeensis	bull mallow
Marah oregana	coast manroot
Myoporum laetum	lollypop tree
Oenothera biennis	common evening-primrose
Oxalis micrantha	dwarf woodsorrel
Persicaria hydropiperoides	common smartweed
Plantago coronopus	buckhorn plantain
Plantago lanceolata	English plantain
Polypogon interruptus	ditch rabbit's-foot grass
Raphanus sativus	wild radish
Rubus armeniacus	Himalayan blackberry
Rubus ursinus	California blackberry
Rumex acetosella	common sheep sorrel
Rumex crassus	willow dock
Rumex crispus	curly dock
Rumex pulcher	fiddle dock
Salix lasiolepis	arroyo willow
Sambucus racemosa var. racemosa	red elderberry
Scabiosa atropurpurea	mourningbride
Scirpus microcarpus	panicled bulrush
Sonchus asper ssp. asper	prickly sow thistle

Scientific Name	Common Name
Sorghum halepense	Johnsongrass
Symphyotrichum chilense	Pacific aster
Tragopogon dubius	yellow salsify
Tropaeolum majus	nasturtium
Urtica dioica ssp. holosericea	hoary nettle
Birds	
Buteo jamaicensis	red-tailed hawk
Calypte anna	Anna's hummingbird
Corvus corax	common raven
Haemorhous mexicanus	house finch
Junco hyemalis	dark-eyed junco
Passer domesticus	house sparrow
Poecile rufescens	chestnut-backed chickadee
Psaltriparus minimus	bushtit
Setophaga petechia	yellow warbler
Spinus psaltria	lesser goldfinch
Sturnus vulgaris	European starling
Turdus migratorius	American robin
Zenaida macroura	mourning dove
Invertebrates	
Junonia coenia	common buckeye
Papilio zelicaon	anise swallowtail
Pieris rapae	cabbage white
Vanessa sp.	painted lady
Mammals	
Felis catus	house cat
Neotoma fuscipes annectens	San Francisco dusky-footed woodrat
Microtus spp.	vole species
Thomomys bottae	Botta's pocket gopher

APPENDIX B

POTENTIAL FOR SPECIAL-STATUS PLANT AND WILDLIFE SPECIES TO OCCUR IN THE STUDY AREA

**Appendix B.** Potential for special-status plant and wildlife species to occur in the Study Area. List compiled from the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) Natural Diversity Database (August 2015), U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) Species Lists, and California Native Plant Society (CNPS) Electronic Inventory search of the Montara Mountain and Half Moon Bay USGS 7.5' quadrangles and a review of other CDFW lists and publications (Jennings and Hayes 1994, Zeiner et al. 1990).

SPECIES	STATUS*	HABITAT	POTENTIAL FOR OCCURRENCE**	RECOMMENDATIONS
		PI	ants	
<i>Allium peninsulare</i> var. <i>franciscanum</i> Franciscan onion	Rank 1B.2	Cismontane woodland, valley and foothill grassland, found on dry clay, volcanic and often serpentinite soils. 100-300m elevation. Blooms May-June.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
Amsinckia lunaris bent-flowered fiddleneck	Rank 1B.2	Coastal bluff scrub, cismontane woodland, valley and foothill grassland. 3-500m elevation. Blooms March-June.	<b>Unlikely</b> . The Study Area contains valley and foothill grassland near the coast. However, Study Area is disturbed and does not represent typical habitat of the species.	<b>Not Observed</b> . The species was not observed No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
Arabis blepharophylla coast rockcress	Rank 4.3	Rocky substrates in broadleafed upland forest, coastal bluff scrub, coastal scrub, and coastal prairie. Elevation range: 3-1,100 m. Blooms February-May	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
<i>Arctostaphylos montaraensis</i> Montara manzanita	Rank 1B.2	Slopes and ridges on chaparral, coastal scrub. 150- 500m elevation. Blooms January-March.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.

SPECIES	STATUS*	HABITAT	POTENTIAL FOR OCCURRENCE**	RECOMMENDATIONS
<i>Arctostaphylos regismontana</i> Kings Mountain manzanita	Rank 1B.2	Broadleafed upland forest, chaparral, north coast coniferous forest, often on granite or sandstone soils. 305-730 meters. Blooms Jan- April.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
<i>Astragalus nuttallii</i> var. <i>nuttallii</i> ocean bluff milk-vetch	Rank 4.2	Coastal dunes and coastal bluff scrub. Elevation range: 3-120 meters. Blooms: January- November.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
Astragalus pycnostachyus var. pycnostachyus coastal marsh milk- vetch	Rank 1B.2	Coastal dunes (mesic) and marshes and swamps (coastal salt, streamsides). Found at elevations of 0-30m. Blooms April-Oct.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
Castilleja ambigua var. ambigua johnny-nip	Rank 4.2	Coastal bluff scrub, coastal prairie, coastal scrub, marshes, Valley and foothill grassland, vernal pools margins. Elevation range: 0-0435 meters.Blooms: March- August.	<b>Unlikely.</b> The Study Area is disturbed and does not represent typical habitat for this species.	<b>Not Observed</b> . The species was not seen during site visit within blooming period. No further recommendations necessary.
<i>Centromadia parryi</i> ssp. <i>parryi</i> pappose tarplant	Rank 1B.2	Coastal prairie, meadows and seeps, coastal salt marsh, valley and foothill grassland. Vernally mesic, often alkaline sites. 2-420m. Blooms May- November.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.

SPECIES	STATUS*	HABITAT	POTENTIAL FOR OCCURRENCE**	RECOMMENDATIONS
<i>Chorizanthe cuspidata</i> var. <i>cuspidata</i> San Francisco Bay spineflower	Rank 1B.2	Coastal bluff scrub, coastal dunes, coastal prairie, coastal scrub, often sandy sites. 3- 215m. Blooms April-Aug.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
<i>Cirsium andrewsii</i> Franciscan thistle	Rank 1B.2	Broad leafed upland forest, coastal bluff scrub, coastal prairie, coastal scrub/ mesic, sometimes serpentine. 0- 135m. Blooms March-July.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
<i>Collinsia multicolor</i> San Francisco collinsia	Rank 1B.2	Closed cone coniferous forest, coastal scrub, sometimes on serpentinite soils. 30-250m elevation. Blooms March-May.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
Cypripedium fasciculatum clustered lady's-slipper	Rank 4.2	Serpentine seeps and streambanks in lower montane coniferous forest and North Coast coniferous forest. Elevation range: 100-2,434 m. Blooms:March- August.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
<i>Dirca occidentalis</i> western leatherwood	Rank 1B.2	Broad leafed upland forest, closed-cone coniferous forest, chaparral, cismontane woodland, North Coast coniferous forest, riparian forest, riparian woodland/mesic. 50-395m. Blooms January - April.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.

SPECIES	STATUS*	HABITAT	POTENTIAL FOR OCCURRENCE**	RECOMMENDATIONS
<i>Elymus californicus</i> California bottle-brush grass	Rank 4.3	Broadleafed upland forest, cismontane woodland, North Coast coniferous forest, riparian woodland. Elevation range: 15-470 m. Blooms May-November.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
<i>Eriophyllum latilobum</i> San Mateo woolly sunflower	FE, SE, Rank 1B.1	Cismontane woodland, often on roadcuts, on and off of serpentine, 45-150 m elevation. Blooms May-June.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
<i>Erysimum franciscanum</i> San Francisco wallflower	Rank 4.2	Serpentine or granite substrates in chaparral, coastal dunes, coastal scrub, and Valley and foothill grassland.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
<i>Fritillaria biflora</i> var. <i>ineziana</i> Hillsborough chocolate lily	Rank 1B.1	Cismontane woodland, valley and foothill grassland in serpentine soils. Blooms March-April.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
<i>Fritillaria lanceolata</i> var. <i>tristulis</i> Marin checker lily	Rank 1B.1	Coastal bluff scrub, coastal prairie, coastal scrub. 15- 150m. Blooms February-May.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
<i>Fritillaria liliacea</i> fragrant fritillary	Rank 1B.2	Coastal scrub, valley and foothill grassland, cismontane woodland, coastal prairie, wetland-riparian areas. Often on serpentine; various soils reported though usually clay, in grassland. 3-410m. Blooms February-April.	<b>Unlikely.</b> Species is known to occur in an array of open habitats from the coast to the central valley. However, the Study Area is disturbed and does not represent typical habitat for this species.	<b>Not Observed.</b> The species was not observed during the site visit. No further recommendations for this species is necessary

SPECIES	STATUS*	HABITAT	POTENTIAL FOR OCCURRENCE**	RECOMMENDATIONS
<i>Grindelia hirsutula</i> var. <i>maritima</i> San Francisco gumplant	Rank 3.2	Coastal scrub, coastal bluff scrub, and valley and foothill grassland. Found on sandy or serpentine slopes and sea bluffs at elevations of 15-400m. Blooms June-September.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
<i>Hesperevax sparsiflora</i> var. <i>brevifolia</i> short-leaved evax	Rank 1B.2	Coastal bluff scrub in sandy soils and coastal dunes. 0- 215m elevation. Blooms March-June.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
<i>Horkelia marinensis</i> Point Reyes horkelia	Rank 1B.2	Coastal dunes, coastal prairie, coastal scrub in sandy soils. 10-150m elevation. Blooms May-September.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
<i>Iris longipetala</i> coast iris	Rank 4.2	Mesic areas in coastal prairie, lower montane coniferous forest, and meadows and seeps. Elevation range: 0-600 meters. Blooms: March – May.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
Leptosiphon croceus coast yellow leptosiphon	Rank 1B.1	Coastal bluff scrub and coastal prairie. 10-150m elevation. Blooms April-May.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
Leptosiphon rosaceus rose leptosiphon	Rank 1B.1	Coastal bluff scrub. 0-100m elevation. Blooms April-July.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	Assumed Absent. No further recommendations for this species is necessary.

SPECIES	STATUS*	HABITAT	POTENTIAL FOR OCCURRENCE**	RECOMMENDATIONS
<i>Lessingia arachnoidea</i> Crystal Springs lessingia	Rank 1B.2	Cismontane woodland, coastal scrub, serpentinite soils in valley and foothill grasslands, often roadsides. 60-200m elevation Blooms July-Oct.	<b>Unlikely</b> . The Study Area is disturbed and does not represent typical habitat for this species. Additionally, this species occurs more inland.	<b>Not Observed.</b> The species was not observed during the site visit which occurred during the blooming period of the species. No further recommendations necessary.
Lessingia hololeuca woolly-headed lessingia	Rank 3	Broadleafed upland forest, coastal scrub, lower montane coniferous forest, valley and foothill grassland on clay and serpentine. 15-305m elevation. Blooms June-October.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> The species was not observed during the site visit No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
<i>Limnanthes douglasii</i> ssp. <i>ornduffii</i> Ornduff's meadowfoam	Rank 1B.1	Meadows and seeps, agricultural fields.10-20m elevation. Blooms November – May.	<b>No Potential.</b> There are neither nearby agricultural fields nor any in the recent past. While the Study Area contains wetlands, they are low quality and have different soil type than those where the species is found.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
<i>Lupinus arboreus</i> var. <i>eximius</i> San Mateo tree lupine	Rank 3.2	Coastal prairie, mesic meadows and seeps, freshwater marshes and swamps, and vernal pools. 1- 140m elevation. Blooms April- July.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
<i>Malacothamnus aboriginum</i> Indian Valley bush- mallow	Rank 1B.2	Chaparral, cismontane woodland on rocky soil, often in burned areas. 150-1700m. Blooms April-October.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.

SPECIES	STATUS*	HABITAT	POTENTIAL FOR OCCURRENCE**	RECOMMENDATIONS
<i>Malacothamnus arcuatus</i> arcuate bush-mallow	Rank 1B.2	This evergreen shrub is found in chaparral at elevations of 15- 355m. Blooms April-Sept.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	Assumed Absent. No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
<i>Malacothamnus davidsonii</i> Davidson's bush-mallow	Rank 1B.2	Chaparral, cismontane woodland, coastal scrub and riparian woodland. 185-855m. Blooms June-January.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
<i>Malacothamnus hallii</i> Hall's bush-mallow	Rank 1B.2	Chaparral and coastal scrub; on serpentine. 10-550m. Blooms May-September.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
<i>Monolopia gracilens</i> woodland woollythreads	Rank 1B.2	Broadleafed upland forest in openings, chaparral in openings, cismontane woodland, north Coast coniferous forest in openings, valley and foothill grassland on serpentine. 100-1200m elevation. Blooms Feb-July.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
Pentachaeta bellidiflora white-rayed pentachaeta	FE, SE, Rank 1B.1	Open and dry slopes on valley and foothill grassland (often on serpentine soil) and cismontane woodland. 35- 620m elevation. Blooms March- May.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
Plagiobothrys chorisianus var. chorisianus Choris' popcornflower	Rank 1B.2	Chaparral, coastal prairie, and coastal scrub. Found in mesic areas at elevations of 15- 100m. Blooms March-June.	<b>Unlikely.</b> The Study Area is disturbed and does not represent suitable habitat for this species.	Assumed Absent. No further recommendations for this species is necessary.

SPECIES	STATUS*	HABITAT	POTENTIAL FOR OCCURRENCE**	RECOMMENDATIONS
<i>Polemonium carneum</i> Oregon polemonium	Rank 2B.2	Chaparral, coastal prairie, coastal scrub, yellow pine forest. Found in mesic areas at elevations of 15-160m. Blooms April- September.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
<i>Potentilla hickmanii</i> Hickman's cinquefoil	FE, SE, Rank 1B.1	Coastal bluff scrub, closed- cone coniferous forest, meadows and seeps, freshwater marshes and swamps. 10-135m elevation. Blooms April-August.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
<i>Silene verecunda</i> ssp. <i>verecunda</i> San Francisco campion	Rank 1B.2	Coastal bluff scrub, chaparral, coastal prairie, coastal scrub, valley and foothill grassland (sandy). 30-645m elevation. Blooms March to August.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
<i>Triphysaria floribunda</i> San Francisco owl's clover	Rank 1B.2	Coastal prairie, coastal scrub, valley and foothill grassland usually on serpentinite. 10- 160m elevation. Blooms April- June.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.
<i>Triquetrella californica</i> Coastal triquetrella	Rank 1B.2	Rocky substrates in coastal bluff scrub, coastal scrub valley, and foothill grasslands. 10-100m.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat for this species.	<b>Assumed Absent.</b> No further recommendations for this species is necessary.

SPECIES	STATUS*	HABITAT	POTENTIAL FOR OCCURRENCE**	RECOMMENDATIONS
		Mar	nmals	
fringed myotis <i>Myotis thysanodes</i>	WBWG	Associated with a wide variety of habitats including mixed coniferous-deciduous forest and redwood/sequoia groves. Buildings, mines and large snags are important day and night roosts.	<b>Unlikely.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable roost habitat. No snags, mines, or buildings are present, and no suitable trees capable of creating suitable snag habitat are present.	No further recommendations.
big free-tailed bat Nyctinomops macrotis	SSC, WBWG	Occurs rarely in low-lying arid areas. Requires high cliffs or rocky outcrops for roosting sites.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat. No cliffs or rocky outcrops are present.	No further recommendations.
Townsend's big-eared bat <i>Corynorhinus</i> <i>townsendii</i>	SSC, SC, WBWG	Primarily found in rural settings in a wide variety of habitats including oak woodlands and mixed coniferous-deciduous forest. Day roosts highly associated with caves and mines. Building roost sites must be cave like. Very sensitive to human disturbance.	<b>Unlikely.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable roost habitat. No caves or mines are present, and the Study Area has high levels of disturbance from the surrounding community and traffic.	No further recommendations.
pallid bat Antrozous pallidus	SSC, WBWG	Occupies a variety of habitats at low elevation including grasslands, shrublands, woodlands, and forests. Most common in open, dry habitats with rocky areas for roosting.	<b>Unlikely.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable roost habitat. Eucalyptus and other trees present in the vicinity do not provide roost habitat.	No further recommendations.

SPECIES	STATUS*	HABITAT	POTENTIAL FOR OCCURRENCE**	RECOMMENDATIONS
western red bat Lasiurus blossevillii	WBWG	Roosts primarily in trees often are in edge habitats adjacent to streams, fields, or urban areas.	<b>Unlikely.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable habitat and has a high level of disturbance. One area contains suitable willows, but is immediately adjacent to a high-use trail access and Highway 1.	No further recommendations.
San Francisco dusky- footed woodrat <i>Neotoma fuscipes</i> <i>annectens</i>	SSC	Typically occurs in forest habitats of moderate canopy and moderate to dense understory. Also found in chaparral habitats.	<b>Present.</b> Two active and two inactive woodrat houses were observed within the Study Area. The Study Area is predominantly open habitat; however, the Non- Native Riparian Woodland and Central Coast Riparian Scrub communities contain suitable woodrat habitat, and houses were observed in these locations.	If avoidance of riparian habitat is not feasible, a pre-construction survey within the riparian habitat will identify all existing San Francisco dusky-footed woodrat houses to be impacted.
American badger <i>Taxidea taxus</i>	SSC	Most abundant in drier open stages of most shrub, forest, and herbaceous habitats, with friable, uncultivated soils. Prey on burrowing rodents.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable grassland habitat for this species and is not contiguous with occupied habitat. High development and disturbance levels preclude badger from the Study Area.	No further recommendations.

SPECIES	STATUS*	HABITAT	POTENTIAL FOR OCCURRENCE**	RECOMMENDATIONS
		В	irds	
California brown pelican Pelecanus occidentalis californicus	FD, SD, CFP	Nests colonially on coastal islands of small to moderate size which afford immunity from attack by ground-dwelling predators. Does not breed north of the Channel Islands. Winter visitor and post- breeding disperser to San Francisco Bay region.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain coastal island habitat and is out of the breeding range for this species.	No further recommendations.
white-tailed kite Elanus leucurus	CFP	Year-long resident of coastal and valley lowlands. Preys on small diurnal mammals and occasional birds, insects, reptiles, and amphibians.	<b>Moderate Potential.</b> The Study Area and vicinity contain suitable nesting and foraging habitat.	Work windows or pre- construction surveys consistent with Migratory Bird Treaty Act requirements.
northern harrier <i>Circus cyaneus</i>	SSC	Coastal salt and freshwater marsh. Nest and forage in grasslands, from salt grass in desert sink to mountain cienagas. Nests on ground in shrubby vegetation, usually at marsh edge.	<b>Unlikely.</b> The Study Area contains grasslands; however, there is a high level of disturbance by humans, dogs, and feral cats. The high disturbance greatly reduces the potential for northern harrier to nest within or adjacent to the Study Area.	No further recommendations.
golden eagle <i>Aquila chrysaetos</i>	CFP	Year-round resident in rolling foothills with open grasslands, scattered trees, and cliff-walled canyons.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain nesting habitat. In addition, the high level of development in the surrounding area reduces potential for golden eagle to forage in the Study Area.	No further recommendations.

SPECIES	STATUS*	HABITAT	POTENTIAL FOR OCCURRENCE**	RECOMMENDATIONS
bald eagle <i>Haliaeetus leucocephalus</i>	FD, SE, CFP	Frequents ocean shores, lake margins, and rivers for both nesting and wintering. Requires abundant fish and adjacent snags or other perches. Nests in large, old-growth, or dominant live tree with open branch-work.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain nesting or foraging habitat for this species.	No further recommendations.
peregrine falcon <i>Falco peregrinus</i>	FD, SD, CFP, BCC	Resident and winter visitor to region. Occurs near wetlands, lakes, rivers, or other water; on cliffs, banks, dunes, mounds; also, human-made structures. Nest consists of a scrape on a depression or ledge in an open site.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain nesting or foraging habitat for this species. No cliffs, ledges, or tall buildings are present.	No further recommendations.
California Ridgway's (clapper) rail <i>Rallus obsoletus (longirostris) obsoletus</i>	FE, SE, CFP	Associated with tidal salt marsh and brackish marshes supporting emergent vegetation, upland refugia, and incised tidal channels.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area is outside the known range of this species and there is no salt marsh present in or near the Study Area.	No further recommendations.
western snowy plover Charadrius alexandrinus nivosus	FT, SSC, BCC, RP	Federal listing applies only to the Pacific coastal population. Found on sandy beaches, salt pond levees, and shores of large alkali lakes. Requires sandy, gravelly, or friable soils for nesting.	<b>No Potential.</b> There is no sandy or beach habitat present in the Study Area. The Study Area is immediately adjacent to Highway 1 and has a level of disturbance.	No further recommendations.

SPECIES	STATUS*	HABITAT	POTENTIAL FOR OCCURRENCE**	RECOMMENDATIONS
California least tern Sterna antillarum browni	FE, SE	Nests along the coast from San Francisco bay south to northern Baja California. Colonial breeder on bare or sparsely vegetated, flat substrates: sand beaches, alkali flats, landfills, or paved areas.	<b>No Potential.</b> There is no sandy, beach, or other suitable habitat present in the Study Area. The Study Area is immediately adjacent to Highway 1 and has a level of disturbance.	No further recommendations.
Caspian tern <i>Sterna caspia</i>	BCC	Summer resident in the region. Nests in small colonies inland and along the coast, usually on small islands and sandbars.	<b>No Potential.</b> There is no sandy, beach, or other suitable habitat present in the Study Area. The Study Area is immediately adjacent to Highway 1 and has a level of disturbance.	No further recommendations.
elegant tern <i>Sterna elegans</i>	BCC	Post-breeding disperser to coastal habitats in the region; not known to nest north of San Diego County. Forages for fish over open water.	<b>No Potential.</b> There is no sandy, beach, or other suitable habitat present in the Study Area. In addition, the Study Area is outside the known breeding range of this species.	No further recommendations.
black oystercatcher Haematopus bachmani	BCC	Resident along rocky shorelines. Nests are small bowls or depressions close to the shore.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area and vicinity do not contain shoreline habitat.	No further recommendations.
long-billed curlew Numenius americanus	BCC	Breeds in upland shortgrass prairies and wet meadows in northeastern California. Winter visitor to the region, occurring in grasslands and shores.	<b>No Potential.</b> There is no prairie or meadow habitat present in the Study Area. In addition, the Study Area is outside the known breeding range of this species.	No further recommendations.

SPECIES	STATUS*	HABITAT	POTENTIAL FOR OCCURRENCE**	RECOMMENDATIONS
short-tailed albatross <i>Diomedea albatrus</i>	FE	Nests on Japanese islands. Very rare winter visitor to offshore California waters.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain shoreline, island, or ocean habitats. In addition, the Study Area is outside the breeding range for this species.	No further recommendations.
Xantu's murrelet Synthliborampus hypoleucus	SSC	Generally rare post-breeding disperser to the region. Pelagic, breeding on offshore islands in rock crevices or under bushes. Does not breed north of the Channel Islands.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain shoreline, island, or ocean habitats. In addition, the Study Area is outside the breeding range for this species.	No further recommendations.
Cassin's auklet Ptychoramphus aleuticus	SSC, BCC	Pelagic species, nesting colonially in burrows on coastal and offshore islands.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain shoreline, island, or ocean habitats.	No further recommendations.
marbled murrelet Brachyramphus marmoratus	FT, SE	Breed in old-growth redwood stands containing platform-like branches along the coast. Winters in coastal waters.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area and vicinity do not contain redwood trees or other suitable forested habitat for nesting. In addition, this species is not known to nest in this portion of coastal San Mateo County.	No further recommendations.
tufted puffin Fratercula cirrhata	BCC	Pelagic; nests along the coast on islands, islets, or (rarely) mainland cliffs. Typically winters well offshore.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain shoreline, island, or ocean habitats.	No further recommendations.
burrowing owl <i>Athene cunicularia</i>	SSC, BCC	Open, dry annual or perennial grasslands, deserts and scrub lands characterized by low-growing vegetation. Subterranean nester, dependent upon burrowing mammals, most notably, the California ground squirrel.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable burrow habitat, and no ground squirrels were observed within or adjacent to the Study Area.	No further recommendations.

SPECIES	STATUS*	HABITAT	POTENTIAL FOR OCCURRENCE**	RECOMMENDATIONS
short-eared owl <i>Asio flammeus</i>	SSC	Resident and mostly winter visitor to the region. Found in swamp lands, both fresh and salt; lowland meadows; alfalfa fields. Tule patches/tall grass needed for nesting/daytime seclusion. Nests on dry ground in depression concealed in vegetation.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain marsh or other suitable habitat for this species. In addition, there is a high level of disturbance by humans, dogs, and feral cats.	No further recommendations.
rufous hummingbird <i>Selasphorus rufus</i>	BCC	Nesting occurs in the transition zone of northwest coastal area from Oregon border to southern Sonoma county. Nests in berry tangles, shrubs, and conifers. Favors habitats rich in nectar-producing flowers.	<b>Unlikely.</b> The Study Area is outside the known breeding range of this species. This species may be observed during migration.	No further recommendations.
Allen's hummingbird Selasphorus sasin	BCC	Inhabits mixed evergreen, riparian woodlands, eucalyptus and cypress groves, oak woodlands, and coastal scrub during breeding season. Nest in shrubs and trees with dense vegetation.	<b>Moderate Potential.</b> This species is known to breed in the vicinity, and may nest in shrubs and trees within or adjacent to the Study Area.	Work windows or pre- construction surveys consistent with Migratory Bird Treaty Act requirements.
olive-sided flycatcher Contopus cooperi	SSC, BCC	Conifer forests where tall trees overlook canyons, meadows, lakes, coastal areas, or other open terrain	<b>Unlikely.</b> No suitable nest trees are present within or adjacent to the Study Area. This species typically nests at higher elevations along the coast.	No further recommendations.

SPECIES	STATUS*	HABITAT	POTENTIAL FOR OCCURRENCE**	RECOMMENDATIONS
little willow flycatcher Empidonax traillii brewsteri	SE	Most numerous where extensive thickets of low, dense willows edge on wet meadows, ponds, or backwaters. Winter migrant.	<b>Unlikely.</b> No suitable nest trees are present within or adjacent to the Study Area. This species typically nests at higher elevations along the coast.	No further recommendations.
oak titmouse Baeolophus inornatus	BCC	Occurs year-round in woodland and savannah habitats where oaks are present, as well as riparian areas. Nests in tree cavities.	<b>Unlikely.</b> Eucalyptus trees within the Study Area don't support cavities suitable for nesting by this species. This species may forage within the Study Area.	No further recommendations.
purple martin <i>Progne subis</i>	SSC	Inhabits woodlands, low elevation coniferous forest. Nest in snags, old woodpecker cavities and human-made structures.	<b>Unlikely.</b> Eucalyptus trees within the Study Area don't support cavities suitable for nesting by this species. This species may forage within the Study Area.	No further recommendations.
bank swallow <i>Riparia riparia</i>	ST	Migrant in riparian and other lowland habitats in western California. Colonial nester in riparian areas with vertical cliffs and bands with fine-textured or fine-textured sandy soils near streams, rivers, lakes or the ocean.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain riparian habitats with cliffs required for nesting by this species.	No further recommendations.
loggerhead shrike <i>Lanius ludovicianus</i>	SSC, BCC	Prefers open habitats with scattered shrubs, trees, posts, or other perches. Eats mostly large insects.	Moderate Potential. The woodland and shrubs in the Arroyo de en Medio portion of the Study Area contain suitable nesting habitat. Elsewhere within the Study Area no shrubs are present for nesting.	Work windows or pre- construction surveys consistent with Migratory Bird Treaty Act requirements.

SPECIES	STATUS*	HABITAT	POTENTIAL FOR OCCURRENCE**	RECOMMENDATIONS
San Francisco (saltmarsh) common yellowthroat Geothlypis trichas sinuosa	SSC, BCC	Resident of San Francisco bay region fresh and salt water marshes. Requires thick, continuous cover down to water surface for foraging, tall grasses, tule patches, willows for nesting.	<b>Unlikely.</b> The Study Area does not contain marsh habitat suitable for nesting by this species.	No further recommendations.
yellow-breasted chat <i>Icteria virens</i>	SSC	Summer resident; inhabits riparian thickets of willow and other brushy tangles near watercourses. Nests in low, dense riparian thickets consisting of willow, blackberry, wild grape	<b>Unlikely.</b> The Study Area does not contain suitable dense riparian habitat for nesting by this species. The Study Area is predominantly open habitat, and the Central Coast Riparian Scrub habitat is immediately adjacent to Highway 1 and high pedestrian traffic areas; reducing potential for use by yellow- breasted chat.	No further recommendations.
yellow warbler Setophaga (Dendroica) petechia	SSC	Summer resident in the region. Nests in riparian stands of aspens, sycamores and alders with a dense understory of willows. Also nests in montane shrubbery in open conifer forests.	<b>Moderate Potential.</b> The Central Coast Riparian Scrub habitat in the Study Area has potential to be used for nesting by yellow warbler. The area immediately adjacent to Highway 1 receives a high level of disturbance; however, suitable protected habitat is present.	Work windows or pre- construction surveys consistent with Migratory Bird Treaty Act requirements.
grasshopper sparrow Ammodramus savannarum	SSC	Frequents dense tall, dry or well-drained grasslands, especially native grasslands with mixed grasses and forbs for foraging and nesting. Nests on ground at base of overhanging clumps of vegetation.	<b>Unlikely.</b> The Study Area contains grasslands; however, there is a high level of disturbance by humans, dogs, and feral cats. In addition, the grassland is unlikely to support nesting based upon vegetation density.	No further recommendations.

SPECIES	STATUS*	HABITAT	POTENTIAL FOR OCCURRENCE**	RECOMMENDATIONS
Bryant's savannah sparrow Passerculus sandwichensis alaudinus	SSC	Year-round resident of tidal marshes and grasslands in coastal fog belt. Breeds from April through July.	<b>Unlikely.</b> The Study Area and vicinity do not contain tidal habitats for nesting. In addition, the high level of disturbance by humans, dogs, and feral cats likely precludes nesting by this species.	No further recommendations.
Alameda song sparrow <i>Melospiza melodia</i> <i>pusillula</i>	BCC, SSC	Year-round resident in tidal- influenced marshes along the eastern and southern portions of San Francisco Bay.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area is outside the known range of this subspecies and does not contain marsh or tidal habitats.	No further recommendations.
tricolored blackbird Agelaius tricolor	SSC, BCC	Usually nests over or near freshwater in dense cattails, tules, or thickets of willow, blackberry, wild rose or other tall herbs. Nesting area must be large enough to support about 50 pairs.	<b>Unlikely.</b> The Study Area does not contain marsh or freshwater habitat suitable for nesting by this species.	No further recommendations.
Nuttall's woodpecker Picoides nuttallii	BCC	Year-round resident in lowland woodlands throughout much of California west of the Sierra Nevada. Typical habitat is dominated by oaks; also occurs in riparian woodland. Nests in tree cavities.	<b>Unlikely.</b> Eucalyptus trees within the Study Area don't support cavities suitable for nesting by this species. This species may forage within the Study Area.	No further recommendations.

SPECIES	STATUS*	HABITAT	POTENTIAL FOR OCCURRENCE**	RECOMMENDATIONS
		Reptiles and	d Amphibians	
Pacific (western) pond turtle <i>Actinemys [Emys]</i> <i>marmorata</i>	SSC	Occurs in perennial ponds, lakes, rivers and streams with suitable basking habitat (mud banks, mats of floating vegetation, partially submerged logs) and submerged shelter.	<b>No Potential.</b> There is no suitable aquatic habitat within the Study Area or vicinity. The intermittent stream and Arroyo de en Medio are not inundated for suitable periods to sustain this species.	No further recommendations.
San Francisco garter snake Thamnophis sirtalis tetrataenia	FE, SE, CFP	Vicinity of freshwater marshes, ponds, and slow moving streams in San Mateo County and extreme northern Santa Cruz County. Prefers dense cover and water depths of at least one foot.	<b>Unlikely.</b> The Study Area and vicinity do not contain marshes, ponds, or slow moving streams. The intermittent stream and Arroyo de en Medio are not inundated for suitable periods to provide habitat for this species and are not contiguous with known occupied habitat.	No further recommendations.
California red-legged frog <i>Rana draytonii</i>	FT, SSC	Associated with quiet perennial to intermittent ponds, stream pools, and wetlands with adjacent upland habitat containing refugia. Prefers shorelines with extensive vegetation. Documented to disperse through upland habitats after rains.	<b>Unlikely.</b> The Study Area and vicinity do not contain marshes, ponds, or slow moving streams. The portion of Arroyo de en Medio was dry at the time of the site visit and does not appear to hold water for long periods based on vegetation. The intermittent stream does not provide suitable habitat for breeding and is not contiguous with occupied habitat to provide dispersal habitat.	No further recommendations.

SPECIES	STATUS*	HABITAT	POTENTIAL FOR OCCURRENCE**	RECOMMENDATIONS
		F	ish	
tidewater goby Eucyclogobius newberryi	FE, SSC	Brackish water habitats along the California coast from Agua Hedionda Lagoon, San Diego County to the mouth of the Smith River. Found in shallow lagoons and lower stream reaches, they need fairly still but not stagnant water and high oxygen levels.	<b>No Potential.</b> There is no aquatic or lagoon habitat in the Study Area.	No further recommendations.
longfin smelt <i>Spirinchus thaleichthys</i>	ST, RP	Found in open waters of estuaries, mostly in the middle or bottom of the water column. This species prefers salinities of 15 to 30 ppt, but can be found in completely freshwater to almost pure seawater.	<b>No Potential.</b> There is no aquatic or estuarine habitat in the Study Area.	No further recommendations.
steelhead, Central California Coast ESU Oncorhynchus mykiss irideus	FT	Occurs from the Russian River south to Soquel Creek and Pajaro River. Also in San Francisco and San Pablo Bay Basins. Adults migrate upstream to spawn in cool, clear, well-oxygenated streams. Juveniles remain in fresh water for 1 or more years before migrating downstream to the ocean.	<b>No Potential.</b> There is no stream habitat in the Study Area, all drainages are intermittent.	No further recommendations.

SPECIES	STATUS*	HABITAT	POTENTIAL FOR OCCURRENCE**	RECOMMENDATIONS
Coho salmon - Central CA Coast ESU <i>Oncorhynchus kisutch</i>	FE, SE	Federal listing includes populations between Punta Gorda and San Lorenzo River. State listing includes populations south of San Francisco Bay only. Occurs inland and in coastal marine waters. Requires beds of loose, silt-free, coarse gravel for spawning. Also needs cover, cool water and sufficient dissolved oxygen.	<b>No Potential.</b> There is no stream habitat in the Study Area, all drainages are intermittent.	No further recommendations.
	_	Invert	ebrates	
white abalone <i>Haliotes sorenseni</i>	FE, SSI	White abalone is the first marine invertebrate to be listed under the ESA and is reported to be most abundant between 25-30 m (80-100 ft. depth).	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain tidal, shoreline, or ocean habitats.	No further recommendations.
black abalone Haliotes cracherodii	FE, SSI	Ranges from Cabo San Lucas to Mendocino County. Found in intertidal and shallow subtidal areas.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain tidal, shoreline, or ocean habitats.	No further recommendations.
San Bruno elfin butterfly Callophrys mossii bayensis	FE, SSI	Inhabits coastal mountainous areas with grassy ground cover, mainly in the vicinity of San Bruno Mountain, San Mateo County. Colonies are located on steep, north-facing slopes within the fog belt. Larval host plant is Sedum spathulifolium.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area is outside of this species range and the larval host plants are not present.	No further recommendations.
SPECIES	STATUS*	HABITAT	POTENTIAL FOR OCCURRENCE**	RECOMMENDATIONS
---	------------	--	--	-----------------------------
Myrtle's silverspot butterfly <i>Speyeria zerene myrtleae</i>	FE, SSI	Foggy, coastal dunes and hills of the Point Reyes Peninsula.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area is outside of this species range.	No further recommendations.
Monarch butterfly <i>Danaus plexippus</i>	SSI	Winter roost sites located in wind-protected tree groves (Eucalyptus, Monterey pine, cypress), with nectar and water sources nearby. Winter roosts monitored by CDFW.	<b>Unlikely.</b> The Study Area does not contain eucalyptus in groves suitable to provide wind protection and no known winter roosts are present within the Study Area. This species may be observed during migration.	No further recommendations.
Mission blue butterfly Plebejus icarioides missionensis	FE, SSI	Inhabits grasslands of the San Francisco peninsula. Three larval host plants: <i>Lupinus</i> <i>albifrons</i> , <i>L. variicolor</i> , and <i>L.</i> <i>formosus</i> , of which <i>L. albifrons</i> is favored.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain the larval host plants for this species.	No further recommendations.
San Francisco tree lupine moth <i>Grapholita edwardsiana</i>	SMC LCP	Occurs only on sandy northern peninsula sites. Tree lupine ( <i>Lupinus arboreus</i> ) host the larvae of this species. This species is addressed in the San Mateo County LCP.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain sandy habitats or the larval host plant for this species.	No further recommendations.
California brackish water snail <i>Tryonia imitator</i>	SMC LCP	Occurs in brackish water, such as Pescadero Marsh.	<b>No Potential.</b> There is no brackish water habitat in the Study Area.	No further recommendations.
globose dune beetle Coelus globosus	SMC LCP	Inhabits California's coastal dune system.	<b>No Potential.</b> The Study Area does not contain sandy or dune habitats required by this species.	No further recommendations.

* Key to status codes:	
BCC	U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service (USFWS) Birds of Conservation Concern
CFP	CDFW Fully Protected Animal
FE	Federal Endangered
FT	Federal Threatened
RP	Sensitive species included in a USFWS Recovery Plan or Draft Recovery Plan
SC	State Candidate Species for listing
SE	State Endangered
SSC	California Department of Fish and Game (CDFG) Species of Special Concern
ST	State Threatened
Rank 1A	California Native Plant Society (CNPS) Rank 1A: Plants presumed extirpated in California and rare or extinct elsewhere
Rank 1B.1	California Native Plant Society (CNPS) Rank 1B.1: Plants rare, threatened or endangered in California and elsewhere (seriously threatened in California)
Rank 1B.2	California Native Plant Society (CNPS) Rank 1B.2: Plants rare, threatened, or endangered in California and elsewhere( moderately threatened in California)
Rank 2B.2	California Native Plant Society (CNPS) Rank 2B.2: Plants rare, threatened, or endangered in California, but more common elsewhere (moderately threatened in California)
Rank 4.3	California Rare Plant Rank 4.3: Plants of Limited Distribution - A Watch List (not very threatened in California)
WBWG	Western Bat Working Group High Priority Species
WL	CDFW Watch List

#### \*\*Potential species occurrence definitions:

Present. Species was observed on the site during site visits or has been recorded (i.e. CNDDB, other reports) on the site recently.

<u>High Potential</u>. All of the habitat components meeting the species requirements are present and/or most of the habitat on or adjacent to the site is highly suitable. The species has a high probability of being found on the site.

<u>Moderate Potential</u>. Some of the habitat components meeting the species requirements are present, and/or only some of the habitat on or adjacent to the site is unsuitable. The species has a moderate probability of being found on the site.

<u>Unlikely</u>. Few of the habitat components meeting the species requirements are present, and/or the majority of habitat on and adjacent to the site is unsuitable or of very poor quality. The species has a low probability of being found on the site.

<u>No Potential</u>. Habitat on and adjacent to the site is clearly unsuitable for the species requirements (foraging, breeding, cover, substrate, elevation, hydrology, plant community, site history, disturbance regime).

APPENDIX C

**STUDY AREA PHOTOGRAPHS** 



Photograph 1. Representative photograph of Central Coastal Riparian Scrub arroyo willow (*Salix lasiolepis*).



Photograph 3. Representative photograph of developed areas in background consistent of streets connecting to Highway 1.



Photograph 2. Representative photograph of Northern Coastal Scrub in background on left, dominated by California blackberry (*Rubus ursinus*).



Photograph 4. Representative photograph of non-native riparian woodland dominated by blue gum (*Eucalyptus globulus*) and blackwood acacia (*Acacia melanoxylon*).



Appendix C. Site Photographs



Photograph 5. Representative photograph of Monterey cypress forest on right dominated by Monterey cypress (*Hesperocyparis macrocarpa*) and tree-of-heaven (*Ailanthus altissima*).



Photograph 7. Representative photograph of coastal seasonal wetland located in swale.



Photograph 6. Representative photograph of Non-native Annual Grassland.



Photograph 8. Close up of coastal seasonal wetland vegetation dominated by several rush species.





Photograph 9. Unnamed Perennial Stream within Central Coast Riparian Scrub in the central portion of the Study Area.



Photograph 10. Evidence of ground burrowing rodents within the Study Area.



Photograph 11. View of intermittent stream bed associated with Arroyo de ne Medio.



Appendix A. Site Photographs



Photograph 12. Example of San Francisco dusky-footed woodrat (Neotoma fuscipes annectens) house.



# Wetland Delineation Report

# MIDCOAST MULTIMODAL TRAIL PROJECT EL GRANADA, SAN MATEO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

# **Prepared For:**

San Mateo County Planning and Building Department 455 County Center, 2<sup>nd</sup> Floor Redwood City, California 94063 Contact: James Hinkamp

# **Prepared By:**

Leslie Lazarotti lazarotti@wra-ca.com

# Date:

October 23, 2015

Project Number 24261







2169-G East Francisco Blvd., San Rafael, CA 94702 (415) 454-8868 tel info@wra-ca.com www.wra-ca.com

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0 INTRODUCTION	2
2.0 REGULATORY BACKGROUND	2
2.1 Federal Jurisdiction over Wetlands and "Other Waters"	2
2.2 State Jurisdiction over Wetlands and "Other Waters"	4
2.2.1 State Water Resources Control Board and Regional Water Quality Control Board.	4
2.2.2 California Department of Fish and Game	5
2.2.3 California Coastal Commission and San Mateo County Local Coastal Program (LC	CP) 5
3.0 METHODS	6
3.1 Army Corps Jurisdiction	6
3.1.1 Potential Section 404 Jurisdictional Wetlands	7
3.1.2 Potential Section 404 Jurisdictional "Other Waters"	9
3.1.3 Potential Tidal Waters	.10
3.1.4 Areas Excluded from Section 404 Jurisdiction	.10
3.1.5 Waters of the State	.10
3.1.6 Areas Exempt from State Jurisdiction	.11
3.2 CDFW Jurisdiction	.11
3.3 CCC/LCP Jurisdiction	.11
3.2.1 Wetlands	.11
3.2.2 Streams	.13
3.2.3 Open Coastal Waters	.14
4.0 STUDY AREA DESCRIPTION	.14
4.1 Vegetation	.14
4.2 Soils	.15
4.3 Hydrology	.17
5.0 RESULTS	.19
5.1 Section 404 Jurisdictional Wetlands	.19
5.2 Potential Section 404 Jurisdictional "Non-wetland Waters"	.19
5.3 Potential Section 404 Tidal Waters	.19
5.4 Waters of the State	.19
5.5 CCC/LCP Jurisdiction	.20

6.0	CONCLUSION	20
7.0	REFERENCES	21

# LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1.	Study Area Location Map	3
Figure 2.	Study Area Soils1	6

# LIST OF TABLES

Table 1.	Summar	y of Jurisdictional	Areas within	Study	Area	19
----------	--------	---------------------	--------------	-------	------	----

# LIST OF APPENDICES

- Appendix A Jurisdictional Delineation Maps
- Appendix B Army Corps Delineation Data Forms
- Appendix C CCC/LCP Delineation Data Forms
- Appendix D Representative Photographs of Study Area

# ACRONYMS

CCC	California Coastal Commission
CCR	California Code of Regulations
ССТ	California Coastal Trail
CDFW	California Department of Fish and Wildlife
CFGC	California Fish and Game Code
CFR	Code of Federal Regulations
Corps	U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
County	San Mateo County
CWA	Clean Water Act
EPA	U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
ESHA	Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Areas
HUC	Hydrologic Unit Code
LCP	Local Coastal Program
NRCS	Natural Resource Conservation Service
OHWM	Ordinary High Water Mark
RPW	Relatively Permanent Waters
RWQCB	Regional Water Quality Control Board
SWRCB	State Water Resources Control Board
TNW	Traditional Navigable Waters
ТОВ	Top of Bank
USDA	U.S. Department of Agriculture
USGS	U.S. Geologic Survey
WRA	WRA, Inc.

## 1.0 INTRODUCTION

The Midcoast Multi-modal Trail Project is a component of the California Coastal Trail (CCT). The proposed trail alignment (Study Area) is situated on approximately 10.39 acres of undeveloped land, located in the unincorporated community of El Granada, San Mateo County, California. The Study Area occurs parallel to and includes the California Coastal Highway (Highway 1), and includes non-native annual grassland, a small patch of northern coastal scrub, central coast riparian scrub, non-native riparian woodland, coastal seasonal wetlands, and Monterey cypress wind breaks, with elevations ranging from 9 to 75 feet. Residential neighborhoods, public open space, and schools surround the Study Area. The upland portions of the Study Area are generally comprised of wind breaks of Monterey cypress and non-native annual grasslands.

On August 13, 2015, biologists from WRA, Inc. (WRA) conducted a wetland delineation within the Study Area (Figure 1). The purpose of the wetland delineation was to determine the location and extent of waters and wetlands, which may be considered jurisdictional by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps), Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB), California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW), and San Mateo County (County) Local Coastal Program (LCP) under Section 404 of the Clean Water Act, Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act, Sections 1600-1616 of the State Fish and Game Code, and California Coastal Act, respectively. This work is being conducted for San Mateo County in preparation for trail and public access improvements along Highway 1. This report presents the results of the delineation.

Appendix A includes maps depicting the extent of Corps/RWQCB, and County/California Coastal Comission (CCC) jurisdiction. The Corps wetland data sheets and County/CCC wetland data sheets are included in Appendix B and C, respectively. Appendix D contains representative photographs of the Study Area.

#### 2.0 REGULATORY BACKGROUND

#### 2.1 Federal Jurisdiction over Wetlands and "Other Waters"

#### Section 404 of the Clean Water Act

Section 404 of the Clean Water Act gives the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) regulatory and permitting authority regarding discharge of dredged or fill material into "navigable waters of the United States." Section 502(7) of the Clean Water Act defines navigable waters as "waters of the United States, including territorial seas." Section 328 of Chapter 33 in the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) defines the term "waters of the United States" as it applies to the jurisdictional limits of the authority of the Corps under the Clean Water Act. A summary of this definition of "waters of the U.S." in 33 CFR 328.3 includes (1) waters used for commerce; (2) interstate waters and wetlands; (3) territorial seas; (4) impoundments of waters; (5) tributaries to the above waters; (6) waters and wetlands adjacent to the above waters; and (7) prairie potholes, Carolina bays and Delmarva bays, Pocosins, western vernal pools, and Texas coastal prairie wetlands, provided these features have a significant nexus to the above listed waters; (8) all waters located within the



100-year floodplain of waters listed above in items 1-3 or within 4,000 feet of the high tide line or ordinary high water mark of a water listed above in items 1-5, provided those waters are determined to have a significant nexus to waters identified in items 1-3 above. Therefore, for purposes of the determining Corps jurisdiction under the Clean Water Act, "navigable waters" as defined in the Clean Water Act are the same as "waters of the U.S." defined in the CFR above.

Areas not considered to be "waters of the U.S. as defined in 33 CFR 328.3(b), are summarized as follows: (1) waste treatment systems; (2) prior converted cropland; (3) specific classes of ditches; (4) man-made aquatic features in otherwise dry land such as stock watering ponds, irrigation ponds, settling basins, fields flooded for rice growing, log cleaning ponds, cooling ponds, reflecting pools, swimming pools, small ornamental waters, depressions incidental to mining and construction activity, erosional features, and puddles; (5) groundwater; (6) stormwater control features; wastewater recycling structures, groundwater recharge basins, percolation ponds for wastewater recycling, and distribution networks for wastewater recycling. These areas are discussed further in Section 3.4 of this report.

The limits of Corps jurisdiction under Section 404 as given in 33 CFR Section 328.4 are as follows: (a) *Territorial seas:* three nautical miles in a seaward direction from the baseline; (b) *Tidal waters of the U.S.:* high tide line or to the limit of adjacent non-tidal waters; (c) *Non-tidal waters of the U.S.:* ordinary high water mark or to the limit of adjacent wetlands; (d) *Wetlands:* to the limit of the wetland.

The Corps of Engineers has developed standard methods and data reporting forms contained in the *U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Wetlands Delineation Manual* (Corps Manual"; Environmental Laboratory 1987) and the *Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual: Arid West Region* (Arid West Supplement"; Corps 2008) to determine the presence or absence of wetlands and Waters of the U.S. The procedures described in the Corps Manual were used to identify wetlands and waters in the Study Area that are potentially subject to regulation under Section 404 of the CWA.

# 2.2 State Jurisdiction over Wetlands and "Other Waters"

#### 2.2.1 State Water Resources Control Board and Regional Water Quality Control Board

The Dickey Water Pollution Act of 1949 and Porter Cologne Act of 1969 established the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) and nine RWQCBs in the State of California. The SWRCB and each RWQCB regulate activities in Waters of the State which include Waters of the U.S. Waters of the State are defined by the Porter-Cologne Act as "any surface water or groundwater, including saline waters, within the boundaries of the state."

The RWQCB regulates discharges of fill and dredged material under Section 401 of the CWA and the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act through the State Water Quality Certification Program. State Water Quality Certification is necessary for all projects that require a Corps permit, or fall under other federal jurisdiction, and have the potential to impact waters of the State. In order for a Section 404 permit to be valid, Section 401 of the CWA requires a Water Quality Certification or waiver to be obtained. The Water Quality Certification (or waiver) determines that the permitted activities will not violate water quality standards individually or cumulatively over the term of the action. Water quality certification must be consistent with the requirements of the Federal CWA, the California Environmental Quality Act, the California Endangered Species Act, and Porter-Cologne Act.

If a proposed project or portion of a proposed project does not require a federal permit, but does involve dredge or fill activities that may result in a discharge to Waters of the State, the RWQCB has the option to regulate the dredge and fill activity under its state authority in the form of Waste Discharge Requirements or Certification of Waste Discharge Requirements. In these cases, a Water Quality Certification is not necessary under Section 401 of the CWA because federal jurisdiction does not apply.

## 2.2.2 California Department of Fish and Game

CDFW is responsible for conserving, protecting, and managing California's fish, wildlife, and native plant resources. Streams and lakes, as habitat for fish, wildlife, and native plant species, are subject to jurisdiction by CDFW under Sections 1600-1616 of the California Fish and Game Code (CFGC). Fish and Game Code Section 1602 requires any person, state or local governmental agency, or public utility to notify CDFW before beginning any activity that will do one or more of the following: 1) substantially obstruct or divert the natural flow of a river, stream, or lake; 2) substantially change or use any material from the bed, channel, or bank of a river, stream, or lake; or 3) deposit or dispose of debris, waste, or other material containing crumbled, flaked, or ground pavement where it can pass into a river, stream, or lake.

These regulated activities require a 1602 Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement. Removal of riparian vegetation also requires a Section 1602 Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement from CDFW.

The term stream, which includes creeks and rivers, is defined in the California Code of Regulations (CCR) as follows:

"a body of water that flows at least periodically or intermittently through a bed or channel having banks and supports fish or other aquatic life. This includes watercourses having a surface or subsurface flow that supports or has supported riparian vegetation"

# (14 CCR 1.72)

In addition, the term stream can include ephemeral streams, dry washes, watercourses with subsurface flows, canals, aqueducts, irrigation ditches, and other means of water conveyance if they support aquatic life, riparian vegetation, or stream-dependent terrestrial wildlife (CDFG ESD 1994). Riparian is defined as, "on, or pertaining to, the banks of a stream;" therefore, riparian vegetation is defined as "vegetation which occurs in and/or adjacent to a stream and is dependent on, and occurs because of, the stream itself" (CDFG ESD 1994).

# 2.2.3 California Coastal Commission and San Mateo County Local Coastal Program (LCP)

The CCC/County LCP regulates the diking, filling, or dredging of wetlands within the coastal zone. Section 30121 of the Coastal Act (2010) defines "wetlands" as land "which may be covered periodically or permanently with shallow water and include saltwater marshes, freshwater marshes, open or closed brackish water marshes, swamps, mudflats, and fens." In addition, the San Mateo County LCP defines "wetlands" as an area where the water table is at, near, or above the land surface long enough to bring about the formation of hydric soils or to support the growth of plants which normally are found to grow in water or wet ground. Wetlands do not include vernally wet areas where the soils are not hydric. The 1981 CCC Statewide Interpretive Guidelines state that hydric soils and hydrophytic vegetation "are useful indicators of

wetland conditions," but the presence or absence of hydric soils and/or hydrophytes alone are not necessarily determinative when the CCC identifies wetlands under the Coastal Act.

The boundaries of areas regulated by the Corps and CCC/LCP are often not the same due to the differing goals of the respective regulatory programs and also because these agencies use different definitions for determining the extent of wetland areas. For example, the Corps requires that positive indicators for the presence of wetland hydrology, hydric soils, and a predominance of hydrophytic vegetation be present for an area to meet the Corps' wetland definition. The CCC does not necessarily require that all three wetland indicators (wetland hydrology, hydric soils, and a predominance of hydrophytic vegetation) be present for an area to be determined to by a "wetland"; rather, the presence of hydric soils in the absence of a predominance of hydrophytes (or vice versa) could be sufficient for a positive wetland determination.

The 2013 County LCP identified sensitive habitats to include: riparian corridors, wetlands, marine habitats, sand dunes, sea cliffs, and habitats supporting rare, endangered, and unique species. Further, the County LCP defines sensitive habitats as:

...any area which meets one of the following criteria: (1) habitats containing or supporting "rare and endangered" species as defined by the State Fish and Game Commission, (2) all perennial and intermittent streams and their tributaries, (3) coastal tide lands and marshes, (4) coastal and offshore areas containing breeding or nesting sites and coastal areas used by migratory and resident water-associated birds for resting areas and feeding, (5) areas used for scientific study and research concerning fish and wildlife, (6) lakes and ponds and adjacent shore habitat, (7) existing game and wildlife refuges and reserves, and (8) sand dunes.

San Mateo LCP, Policy 7.1

Additionally, the County LCP defines Riparian Corridors as a sensitive habitat, where riparian corridors are defined as:

...the "limit of riparian vegetation" (i.e., a line determined by the association of plant and animal species normally found near streams, lakes and other bodies of freshwater: red alder, jaumea, pickleweed, big leaf maple, narrow-leaf cattail, arroyo willow, broadleaf cattail, horsetail, creek dogwood, black cottonwood, and box elder). Such a corridor must contain at least a 50% cover of some combination of the plants listed.

San Mateo LCP (2013), Policy 7.7

This County LCP further clarifies in Policy 7.8 that riparian corridors be established for all perennial and intermittent streams, lakes, and other bodies of freshwater in the Coastal Zone.

#### 3.0 METHODS

#### 3.1 Army Corps Jurisdiction

The methods used in this study to delineate federal jurisdictional wetlands and waters are based on the Corps Manual, Arid West Supplement, and the most recently published National Wetland Plant List (Lichvar 2014). A general description of the Study Area, including plant communities present, topography, and land use was also generated during the delineation visits. The methods for evaluating the presence of wetlands and "other waters" of the U.S. employed during the site visit are described in detail below.

Prior to conducting field studies, available reference materials were reviewed, including the Soil Survey of San Mateo Area (U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA] 1961), the Montara Mountain and Half Moon Bay U.S. Geologic Survey (USGS) 7.5' quadrangles, available aerial photographs of the site, and previous studies conducted within the Study Area.

A routine level wetland delineation was performed on August 13, 2015. A general description of the Study Area, including plant communities present, topology and land use was also generated during the delineation visit. The methods for evaluating the presence of wetlands and "other waters" employed during each site visit are described in detail below.

#### 3.1.1 Potential Section 404 Jurisdictional Wetlands

The Corps has defined the term "wetlands" as follows:

Those areas that are inundated or saturated by surface or ground water at a frequency and duration sufficient to support, and that under normal circumstances do support, a prevalence of vegetation typically adapted for life in saturated soil conditions. Wetlands generally include swamps, marshes, bogs, and similar areas.

## (33 CFR 328.3)

The three parameters listed in the Corps Manual that are used to determine the presence of wetlands are: (1) hydrophytic vegetation, (2) wetland hydrology, and (3) hydric soils. According to the Corps Manual:

"...[E]vidence of a minimum of one positive wetland indicator from each parameter (hydrology, soil, and vegetation) must be found in order to make a positive wetland delineation."

Data on vegetation, hydrology, and soils collected at sample points during the delineation site visits are reported on standard Corps data forms included in Appendix B. Once an area was determined to be a potential jurisdictional wetland, its boundaries were delineated using GPS equipment with sub-meter accuracy and mapped on a geo-referenced aerial photograph. The total acreage of potential jurisdictional wetlands was measured digitally using ArcGIS software. Indicators described in the Corps Manual that were used to make wetland determinations at each sample point in the Study Area are summarized below.

#### Vegetation

Plant species identified on the Study Area were assigned a wetland status according to the USDA list of plant species that occur in wetlands (USDA 2012). This wetland classification system is based on the expected frequency of occurrence in wetlands as follows:

OBL	Always found in wetlands	>99% frequency
FACW(±)	Usually found in wetlands	67-99%
FAC	Equal in wetland or non-wetlands	34-66%

FACU	Usually found in non-wetlands	1-33%
UPL/NL	Upland/Not listed (upland)	<1%

The Arid West Supplement requires that a three-step process be conducted to determine if hydrophytic vegetation is present. The procedure first requires the delineator to apply the "50/20 rule" (Indicator 1) described in the manual. To apply the "50/20 rule", dominant species are chosen independently from each stratum of the community. In general, dominant species are determined for each vegetation stratum from a sampling plot of an appropriate size surrounding the sample point. In general, dominants are the most abundant species that individually or collectively account for more than 50 percent of the total vegetative cover in the stratum, plus any other species that, by itself, accounts for at least 20 percent of the total cover. If greater than 50 percent of the dominant species has an OBL, FACW, or FAC status, ignoring + and - qualifiers, the sample point meets the hydrophytic vegetation criterion.

If the sample point fails Indicator 1 and both hydric soils and wetland hydrology are not present, then the sample point does not meet the hydrophytic vegetation criterion, unless the site is a problematic wetland situation. However, if the sample point fails Indicator 1 but hydric soils and wetland hydrology are both present, the delineator must apply Indicator 2.

Indicator 2 is known as the Prevalence Index. The prevalence index is a weighted average of the wetland indicator status for all plant species within the sampling plot. Each indicator status is given a numeric code (OBL = 1, FACW = 2, FAC = 3, FACU = 4, and UPL = 5). Indicator 2 requires the delineator to estimate the percent cover of each species in every stratum of the community and sum the cover estimates for any species that is present in more than one stratum. The delineator must then organize all species into groups according to their wetland indicator status and calculate the Prevalence Index using the following formula, where A equals total percent cover:

 $A_{OBL} + 2A_{FACW} + 3A_{FAC} + 4A_{FACU} + PI = 5A_{UPL}$ 

 $A_{OBL} + A_{FACW} + A_{FAC} + A_{FACU} + A_{UPL}$ 

The Prevalence Index will yield a number between 1 and 5. If the Prevalence Index is equal to or less than 3, the sample point meets the hydrophytic vegetation criterion. However, if the community fails Indicator 2, the delineator must proceed to Indicator 3.

Indicator 3 is known as Morphological Adaptations. If more than 50 percent of the individuals of a FACU species have morphological adaptations for life in wetlands, that species is considered to be a hydrophyte and its indicator status should be reassigned to FAC. If such observations are made, the delineator must recalculate Indicators 1 and 2 using a FAC indicator status for this species. The sample point meets the hydrophytic vegetation criterion if either test is satisfied.

#### <u>Soils</u>

The Natural Resource Conservation Service (NRCS) defines a hydric soil as follows:

"A hydric soil is a soil that formed under conditions of saturation, flooding, or ponding long enough during the growing season to develop anaerobic conditions in the upper part."

# Federal Register July 13, 1994, USDA, NRCS

Soils formed over long periods of time under wetland (anaerobic) conditions often possess characteristics that indicate they meet the definition of hydric soils. Hydric soils can have a hydrogen sulfide (rotten egg) odor, low chroma matrix color, generally designated 0, 1, or 2, used to identify them as hydric, presence of redox concentrations, gleyed or depleted matrix, or high organic matter content.

Specific indicators that can be used to determine whether a soil is hydric for the purposes of wetland delineation are provided in the NRCS *Field Indicators of Hydric Soils in the U.S.* (NRCS 2010). The Arid West Supplement provides a list of 23 of these hydric soil indicators which are known to occur in the Arid West region. Soil samples were collected and described according to the methodology provided in the Arid West Supplement. Soil chroma and values were determined by utilizing a standard Munsell soil color chart (Gretag Macbeth 2000).

Hydric soils were determined to be present if any of the soil samples met one or more of the 23 hydric soil indicators described in the Arid West Supplement.

#### Hydrology

The Corps jurisdictional wetland hydrology criterion is satisfied if an area is inundated or saturated for a period sufficient to create anoxic soil conditions during the growing season (a minimum of 14 consecutive days in the Arid West region). Evidence of wetland hydrology can include primary indicators, such as visible inundation or saturation, drift deposits, oxidized root channels, and salt crusts, or secondary indicators such as the FAC-neutral test, presence of a shallow aquitard, or crayfish burrows. The Arid West Supplement contains 16 primary hydrology indicators and 10 secondary hydrology indicators. Only one primary indicator is required to meet the wetland hydrology criterion; however, if secondary indicators are used, at least two secondary indicators must be present to conclude that an area has wetland hydrology.

The presence or absence of the primary or secondary indicators described in the Arid West Supplement was utilized to determine if sample points within the Study Area met the wetland hydrology criterion.

# 3.1.2 Potential Section 404 Jurisdictional "Other Waters"

The Study Area was also evaluated for the presence of "other waters". "Other waters" subject to Corps jurisdiction include lakes, rivers, and perennial or intermittent streams. Corps jurisdiction of "other waters" in non-tidal areas extends to the ordinary high water mark (OHWM), defined as:

The term "ordinary high water mark" means that line on the shore established by

the fluctuations of water and indicated by physical characteristics such as clear, natural line impresses on the bank, shelving, changes in the characteristics of the soil, destruction of terrestrial vegetation, the presence of litter and debris, or other appropriate means that consider the characteristics of the surrounding areas.

> Federal Register Vol. 51, No. 219, Part 328.3 (d). November 13, 1986.

"Other waters" are identified in the field by the presence of a defined river or streambed, a bank, and evidence of the flow of water, or by the absence of emergent vegetation in ponds or lakes. "Other waters" that were found within the Study Area were mapped using a sub-meter accurate GPS with sub-meter accuracy and are described in Section 4.0 of this report. Identification of the ordinary high water mark followed the Corps Regulatory Guidance Letter No. 05-05, *Ordinary High Water Mark Identification* (Corps 2005).

#### 3.1.3 Potential Tidal Waters

The Pacific Ocean is located just beyond the western boundary of the Study Area. Regulatory jurisdiction in tidal waters extends to the high tide line, which is the intersection of land with the water's surface at the maximum height reached by a rising tide. Therefore, the high tide line was not mapped as it is located beyond the boundary of the Study Area.

## 3.1.4 Areas Excluded from Section 404 Jurisdiction

Some areas that meet the technical criteria for wetlands or "other waters" may not be jurisdictional under the CWA. Included in this category are some man-induced wetlands, which are areas that have developed at least some characteristics of naturally occurring wetlands due to either intentional or incidental human activities. Examples of man-induced wetlands include, but are not limited to, irrigated wetlands, impoundments (such as stock ponds for livestock), or drainage ditches constructed in uplands, wetlands resulting from filling of formerly deep water habitats, dredged material disposal areas, and wetlands resulting from stream channel realignment.

Other areas that may not be jurisdictional are "isolated" wetlands, or non-navigable waters which are not connected or adjacent to a navigable Waters of the U.S. through either a hydrologic or economic connection (per [*SWANCC v. United States*] Supreme Court decision issued on January 9, 2001). Therefore, wetland areas which do not have a surface or groundwater connection to, and are not adjacent to a navigable Waters of the U.S., may be considered isolated and not subject to Corps jurisdiction. Potential wetlands in the Study Area suspected of being exempt from Corps jurisdiction are identified in this report; however determination of jurisdictional status is the responsibility of the Corps.

#### 3.1.5 Waters of the State

The SWRCB and RWQCB have not established a formal wetland definition nor have they developed a wetland delineation protocol; however these agencies generally adhere to the same delineation protocol set forth by the Corps (Environmental Laboratory 1987). Therefore, the methods used to determine potential Waters of the State were the same as those described above for potential Section 404 jurisdiction.

# 3.1.6 Areas Exempt from State Jurisdiction

Unlike Federal regulations, dredging, filling, or excavation within isolated wetlands and "other waters" constitutes a discharge to Waters of the State, and prospective dischargers are required to submit a report of waste discharge to the RWQCB to comply with requirements of the California Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act (SWRCB 2002). However, since the State of California has not developed a formal wetlands definition or wetlands delineation protocol, the wetlands delineation method outlined in the Corps Manual and the Western Mountains, Valley, and Coast Region supplement (Environmental Laboratory 1987; Corps 2008) was utilized to map wetlands subject to SWRQCB and RWQCB jurisdiction. As a result, similar to Federal jurisdictional delineations some areas that meet the technical criteria for wetlands but do not contain normal circumstances may also be excluded from State jurisdiction due to the lack of normal circumstances (i.e., atypical situations). Included in this category are some maninduced wetlands, such as irrigated wetlands and depressions created in dry land incidental to construction activities.

#### 3.2 CDFW Jurisdiction

CDFW jurisdiction over lakes and streams extends to the top of bank (TOB) of the stream, or the edge of riparian vegetation as determined by edge of dripline, whichever is further. Areas of potential CDFW jurisdiction under sections 1600-1616 of the State Fish and Game Code were identified in the field.

#### 3.3 CCC/LCP Jurisdiction

The Study Area is within the CCC and County LCP boundaries; therefore, potential wetlands and riparian corridors within the Study Area will be analyzed in accordance with the CCC/County LCP definitions.

#### 3.2.1 Wetlands

The Coastal Act defines wetlands as:

"Wetland means lands within the Coastal Zone which may be covered periodically or permanently with shallow water and include saltwater marshes, freshwater marshes, open or closed brackish water marshes, swamps, mudflats, and fens."

(Public Resources Code Section 30121)

Consistent with CCC Administrative Regulations (Section 13577 (b)), the San Mateo County LCP defines wetlands as:

...an area where the water table is at, near, or above the land surface long enough to bring about the formation of hydric soils or to support the growth of plants which normally are found to grow in water or wet ground. Such wetlands can include mudflats (barren of vegetation), marshes, and swamps. Such wetlands can be either fresh or saltwater, along streams (riparian), in tidally influenced areas (near the ocean and usually below extreme high water of spring tides), marginal to lakes, ponds, and man-made impoundments. Wetlands do not include areas which in normal rainfall years are permanently submerged (streams, lakes, ponds and impoundments), nor marine or estuarine areas below extreme low water of spring tides, nor vernally wet areas where the soils are not hydric.

(County of San Mateo LCP Chapter 7)

The Coastal Commission has considered this definition as requiring the observation of one diagnostic feature of a wetland such as wetland hydrology, dominance by wetland vegetation (hydrophytes), or presence of hydric soils as a basis for asserting jurisdiction under the Coastal Act.

The San Mateo County LCP goes on to further define wetlands as follows:

In San Mateo County, wetlands typically contain the following plants: cordgrass, pickleweed, jaumea, frankenia, marsh mint, tule, bulrush, narrow-leaf cattail, broadleaf cattail, pacific silverweed, salt rush, and bog rush. To qualify, a wetland must contain at least a 50% cover of some combination of these plants, unless it is a mudflat.

(Ibid)

However, it is commonly accepted that the CCC statewide guidelines dictate the identification of wetlands despite the more restrictive San Mateo County definition. Furthermore, the *Statewide Interpretive Guidelines for Identifying and Mapping Wetlands and Other Wet Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Areas* (CCC 1981) provide technical criteria for use in identifying and delineating wetlands and other Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Areas (ESHAs) within the Coastal Zone. The technical criteria presented in the guidelines are based on the Coastal Act definition and indicate that wetland hydrology is the most important parameter for determining a wetland, recognizing that:

... the single feature that most wetlands share is soil or substrata that is at least periodically saturated with or covered by water, and this is the feature used to describe wetlands in the Coastal Act. The water creates severe physiological problems for all plants and animals except those that are adapted for life in water or in saturated soil, and therefore only plants adapted to these wet conditions (hydrophytes) could thrive in these wet (hydric) soils. Thus, the presence or absence of hydrophytes and hydric soils make excellent physical parameters upon which to judge the existence of wetland habitat areas for the purposes of the Coastal Act, but they are not the sole criteria.

The Technical Criteria requires that saturation of soil in a wetland must be at or near the surface continuously for a period of time. The meaning of "at or near the surface" generally is considered to be approximately one-foot from the surface or less (the root zone), and the saturation must be continuously present for a period of time (generally more than two weeks) in order to create the necessary soil reduction (anaerobic) processes that create wetland conditions. For example, water from rain during a storm that causes saturation near the surface but then evaporates or infiltrates to 18 inches or deeper below the surface shortly after the storm does not meet the generally accepted criteria for wetland hydrology.

The presence of wetland classified plants or the presence of hydric soils (generally referred to as the "one parameter approach) can be used to identify an area as being a wetland in the Coastal Zone. There is correlation between the presence of wetland plants, wetland hydrology,

and/or hydric soils occurring together, especially in natural undisturbed areas, and in many cases where one of these parameters is found (e.g., wetland plants) the other parameters will also occur. But there are situations which can result in the presence of wetland classified plants without there being wetland conditions, and these areas are not wetlands. Where these situations occur, the delineation study must carefully scrutinize whether the wetland classified plants that are present are growing there as hydrophytes in reducing (anaerobic) conditions caused by the presence of wetland hydrology or are there for some other (non-wetland) reason. Examples may include wetland-classified plants which are also salt-tolerant (e.g., alkali heath) and may be responding to either wetland conditions or saline soil conditions, but not necessarily both, and deep-rooted trees (e.g., willows) which are able to tap into deep groundwater sources and can grow in dry surface soils, but are also found in wetland conditions where surface water is present.

Hydric soils can also occur in upland areas especially in areas where historic disturbances may have exposed substratum or in densely vegetated grasslands (mollisols). Similarly, the delineation must determine if the hydric soil indicators are a result of frequent anaerobic conditions or if they are the result of non-wetland conditions.

The Coastal Act uses a broad wetland definition in which the presence of any one of the wetland parameters may indicate presence of a wetland. The CCC presumes that the area is a wetland if one of the wetland parameters is present. However, there may be exceptions to this presumption if there is strong positive evidence of upland conditions, as opposed to negative evidence of wetland conditions. Positive evidence of upland hydrology might be the observation that a given area saturates only ephemerally following significant rainfall, that the soil is very permeable with no confining layer, or that the land is steep and drains rapidly. Positive evidence of upland conditions should be obtained during the wet season. Based on these facts, this biological resource assessment identified areas within the Study Area that had wetland plants, hydric soils, or wetland hydrology indicators (See Section 3.1.1 for definitions). Soils, hydrology, and vegetation were examined on August 13, 2015 at locations within the Study Area that had the potential to meet the LCP's wetland definition. Sample points were taken in representative areas throughout the Study Area. Once an area was determined to be a potential jurisdictional wetland, its boundaries were delineated using sub-meter accuracy GPS equipment and overlain on a topographic map. Jurisdictional wetland acreage was measured digitally using ArcGIS software.

All areas meeting at least one parameter are depicted on the CCC/LCP jurisdictional map included as Appendix A-3. During this delineation, several areas dominated by facultative wetland vegetation were determined not to be wetlands. The rationale for classifying these areas as non-wetlands are provided in Section 4.1 and the data sheets included as Appendix C. The vegetation, hydrology, and soil criteria used during this delineation are summarized below.

#### 3.2.2 Streams

A stream is a natural watercourse as designated by a solid line or dash and three dots symbol shown on the USGS map most recently published, or any well-defined channel with distinguishable bed and bank that shows evidence of having contained flowing water as indicated by scour or deposit of rock, sand, gravel, soil, or debris (CCC 1981). Prior to visiting the site, WRA reviewed the most recent USGS map for the Study Area.

#### 3.2.3 Open Coastal Waters

Open coastal waters refer to the open ocean overlying the continental shelf and its associated coastline. Salinities exceed 30 parts per thousand with little or no dilution except opposite mouths of estuaries.

## 4.0 STUDY AREA DESCRIPTION

# 4.1 Vegetation

Upland areas within the Study Area contain non-native annual grassland, Monterey cypress stands, and northern coastal scrub. Sensitive communities included central coast riparian scrub, non-native riparian woodland, and coastal seasonal wetland.

The non-native annual grassland covers the majority of the Study Area and is dominated by common grasses such as wild oat (*Avena barbata*, NL), Italian ryegrass (*Festuca perennis* [*Lolium multiflorum*]; FAC), false brome (*Brachypodium distachyon*, NL), and velvet grass (*Holcus lanatus*, FAC), with herbaceous species such as bristly ox-tongue (*Helminthotheca echioides* [*Picris echioides*], FACU) and black mustard (*Brassica nigra*, NL). While the dominant non-native grass species shift between above mentioned species, the species composition and soil type remains consistent throughout the Study Area. Additionally, two stand-alone blue gum (*Eucalyptus globulus*, NL) trees are present in this community.

A stand of Monterey cypress (*Hesperocyparis macrocarpa;* NL) occurs in the southern portion of the Study Area. The tree canopy is co-dominated by tree-of-heaven (*Ailanthus altissima*, FACU) and the sparse understory includes California blackberry (*Rubus ursinus*, FAC) and English ivy (*Hedera helix*, FACU). A small stand of Monterey cypress also occurs west of the non-native riparian woodland associated with Arroyo de en Medio.

Centrally in the Study Area, a small area of northern coastal scrub occurs that was dominated by California blackberry growing on a barbed wire fence along with small amounts common rush (*Juncus patens,* FACW) and bristly ox-tongue.

Central coast riparian scrub dominated by arroyo willow (*Salix lasiolepis*, FACW) was observed east of the northern coastal scrub, in the middle of the Study Area. Central coast riparian scrub was comprised almost entirely of an arroyo willow tree canopy with an understory dominated by California blackberry along with poison oak (*Toxicodendron diversilobum*, FACU), stinging nettle (*Urtica dioica*, FAC), and panicled bulrush (*Scirpus microcarpus*, OBL).

Non-native riparian woodland was associated with Arroyo de ne Medio at the southern end of the Study Area was dominated by blue gum and blackwood acacia (*Acacia melanoxylon*, NL). The shrub understory of this non-native riparian woodland contained scattered red elderberry (*Sambucus racemosa*, FACU), arroyo willow, and Himalayan blackberry (*Rubus armeniacus*, FACU), with herbaceous groundcover dominated by garden nasturtium (*Tropaeolum majus*, UPL) and English ivy (*Delairea odorata*, NL).

Within the Study Area, a coastal seasonal wetland was observed with dominant facultative wetland herbs and forb including rushes (*Juncus effusus, J.occidentalis, J. patens,* all FACW), Italian rye grass, tall flatsedge (*Cyperus eragrostis*, FACW), California blackberry, and curly dock (*Rumex crispus*, FAC). This coastal seasonal wetland was in association with linear,

manmade shallow swale that may be associated with old tire ruts from past mowing (Google Earth 2011-2015).

Some areas of the non-native annual grasslands within the Study Area were dominated by nonnative, invasive, FAC species including Italian ryegrass or velvet grass with a presence of curly dock and fleshy willow dock (Rumex crassus, FACW). Additionally, several small patches less than one square meter of rush (J. patens) were observed within the non-native annual grassland and were associated with manmade shallow topography in uplands; however, these patches were too small to classify as a plant community. Although dominant plant species in these areas have a wetland indicator rating of FAC or FACW (Lichvar 2014), these species did not appear to be functioning as hydrophytes in the current conditions. In these areas, surface hydrology, oxidized rhizospheres on living root channels, and indicator levels of redoximorphic features were not observed in the upper 10 inches of the soil profile (SP2), suggesting that surface and subsurface water does not collect for extended periods of time. It is possible that the relatively low evapotranspiration pressure and presence of summer fog within the Study Area create conditions amenable for Italian ryegrass, velvet grass, and some rushes without extended subsurface moisture. Italian ryegrass, velvet grass, and curly dock have been assessed and/or deemed a moderate invasive threat (Cal-IPC 2006) and thrive in a variety of habitats. Therefore, areas dominated by these species within the Study Area do not appear to be functioning as a wetland and are not considered wetlands in this report.

## 4.2 Soils

Based on the Soil Survey of San Mateo Area (NRCS 2015), the Study Area is underlain primarily by four soil mapping units (Figure 2): *Watsonville loam, sloping, eroded*; *Denison clay loam, nearly level*; *Denison clay loam, nearly level, imperfectly drained*; and *Denison loam, nearly level*. Additionally, a large portion of the Study Area has no soil information available and has not been surveyed by the USDA. More information on each soil mapping unit is provided below.



Path: L:\Acad 2000 Files\24000\24261\GIS\ArcMap\SoilsMap.mxd

#### Watsonville loam, sloping, eroded

This map unit is located on old coastal terraces and valleys with slopes of 0 to 50 percent. Composition of this soil unit is fine, smectitic, thermic Xeric Argialbolls. Native vegetation that typically occurs in association with this soil type includes annual grasses and a few coastal chaparral plants.

Typic Argiobolls, loamy, are deep somewhat poorly drained soils that formed in alluvium derived from coastal sediment. The surface layer is very dark grayish brown loam approximately 10 to 16 inches thick. The subsoil is sandy loam, clay or sandy clay loam to a depth of 60 inches or more. On the lower terraces, soils have higher sandy clay loam content. Typic Argiobolls are somewhat poorly drained because perched water tables occur during periods of heavy water applications. Permeability is very slow and available water capacity is high, however this soil is not considered hydric. This unit is used mainly for field and row crops, irrigated and annual pasture specialty crops such as strawberries and brussel sprouts and urban development.

#### Denison clay loam

This map unit is located on low terraces adjacent to the coast with slopes of 0 to 15 percent. Composition of this soil unit is fine, smectitic, isomesic Pachic Argixerolls. Native grasslands typically occur in association with this soil type.

Pachic Argixerolls are very deep, moderately well-drained soils developed from moderately fine textured granitic alluvium. The surface layer is black clay loam with fine white quartz grains approximately 10 inches thick. The subsoil is black becoming mottled dark gray and light yellowish brownclay to heavy clay loam 10 to 45 inches thick. This soil is moderately well drained with slow permeability; therefore, it is considered hydric if found in depressions because perched water tables occur during periods of heavy water applications. The unit is used mainly for agriculture, growing brussel sprouts, artichokes, cabbage and sugar beets. The soil occurs only on terraces adjacent to the coast north of the town of Half Moon Bay.

#### Denison loam

This map unit is similar to Denison clay loam except that the uppermost 3 to 30 inches is loam. This soil is not considered hydric.

Soils observed within the Study Area match the description of Denison loam, nearly level. Soils were identified as a coarse sandy loam with some coarser depositional materials and were black (10YR 2/1) in the Munsell Soil Color Chart (GretagMacBeth 2000). No redoximorphic features such as oxidized rhizospheres on living root channels or redox concentrations at levels indicative of hydric conditions were observed. The soils were determined to not meet the hydric soil criteria for either the Corps or CCC definitions.

# 4.3 Hydrology

The Study Area occurs within the hydrologic unit code (HUC) 10 - San Gregorio Creek-Frontal Pacific Ocean watershed. The Study Area consists of generally flat topography which slopes gently downward from southeast to the northwest with elevations ranging from approximately 9 to 75 feet above mean sea level. The hydrology of the Study Area is primarily driven by direct precipitation, coastal fog drip, minimal sheet flow from surrounding areas, and two drainages consistent of intermittent and perennial flows. The Study Area is situated in the coastal fog belt

where fog is a source of precipitation in the summer and storms are the source of precipitation in the winter. Average maximum temperature peaks in September at 67 degrees Fahrenheit with average minimum temperature in January at 43 degrees Fahrenheit. Average annual precipitation is approximately 27 inches, generally occurring in the winter and spring months from November through March.

A USGS dashed blue-line intermittent stream, Arroyo de en Medio, occurs through the southern non-native riparian woodland in the Study Area. Arroyo de en Medio is fed by headwaters in the mountains of Rancho Corral de Tierra, north of the Study Area and flows southwest, draining into the Pacific Ocean. At the time of the site visit, Arroyo de en Medio was dry. The OHWM of this feature was mapped using observed physical features including changes in the characteristics of the soil, scouring, alluvial sediment deposition, changes in terrestrial vegetation, and the presence of litter and debris. Additionally, the TOB was delineated for this intermittent stream based on a distinct change in grade that coincides with the active stream channel and floodplain.

An unnamed perennial drainage occurs centrally in the Study Area, in the western portion of the central coast riparian scrub. This unnamed drainage was observed with standing water, draining west through a culvert under Highway 1, ultimately to the Pacific Ocean. This perennial drainage likely receives subsurface flows from a local underground stormwater conveyance system or potentially upgrade intermittent flows; however, the water source remains unconfirmed. The OHWM for this drainage was delineated based on a break along the bank that coincided with changes in terrestrial vegetation. The TOB was not delineated for this perennial drainage due to access restrictions resulting from the impenetrable habitat of the central coast riparian scrub.

Man-made ditches created in uplands were observed within the non-native annual grassland in the Study Area. These ditches did not exhibit signs of OHWM, did not meet wetland parameters, nor are they associated with historic water features. Manmade ditches were generally linked culverts associated with residential areas to under Highway 1.

# 5.0 RESULTS

The Study Area contains sensitive habitats including non-wetland waters, coastal seasonal wetlands, and riparian habitat. Table 1 below summarizes the potential jurisdictional features within the Study Area. All jurisdictional areas are depicted in Appendix A-1.

JURISDICTION	HABITAT TYPE	ACREAGE/ LINEAR FEET
Corps Section 404/ RWQCB Section 401	Non-wetland waters	0.04/ 212
CDFW Section 1602	Drainage/Stream	0.09/ 213
	Riparian	1.61
	TOTAL	1.70/ 213
CCC/ County LCP	Non-wetland waters	0.04/ 213
	Coastal seasonal wetland	0.02
Riparian		1.61
	TOTAL	1.67/ 213

Table 1. Summary of Jurisdictional Areas within Study Area

# 5.1 Section 404 Jurisdictional Wetlands

No wetlands were observed during the site visit that meet the three parameters necessary to qualify as a Corps jurisdictional wetland. While facultative wetland plants dominated small areas of the Study Area, these areas did not contain indicators of hydric soils or wetland hydrology. As a result, no seasonal wetlands were mapped that are subject to Corps regulation under Section 404 of the CWA.

# 5.2 Potential Section 404 Jurisdictional "Non-wetland Waters"

Two features within the Study Area were observed that qualify as Section 404 jurisdictional "non-wetland waters": the USGS dashed blue-line intermittent stream, Arroyo de en Medio, and an unnamed perennial drainage that occurs within the western portion of the central coast riparian scrub (Appendix A-2). The Study Area contains approximately 0.02 acre (121.24 linear feet) of non-wetland waters associated with the intermittent stream, Arroyo de en Medio, and 0.01 acre (91.73 linear feet) of non-wetland waters associated with the intermittent stream, Arroyo de en Medio, and drainage.

# 5.3 Potential Section 404 Tidal Waters

No potential Section 404 tidal waters were observed within the Study Area.

# 5.4 Waters of the State

The potential Section 404 jurisdictional non-wetland waters identified within the Study Area are

also considered Waters of the State subject to regulation by the SWRCB/RWQCB (Appendix A-2).

Additionally, CDFW regulates streams to the TOB or to the edge of riparian habitat, whichever is further. Therefore, approximately 0.08 acre (121.24 linear feet) of the intermittent stream, Arroyo de en Medio; approximately 0.01 acre (91.73 linear feet) of unnamed perennial drainage, and approximately 1.61 acres of associated riparian habitat are considered jurisdictional by the CDFW under Section 1602 of the CFGC (Appendix A-3).

# 5.5 CCC/LCP Jurisdiction

All of the areas regulated by the abovementioned federal and state agencies are considered an ESHA under the CCC/LCP. Based on the CCC/LCP definitions, the central coast riparian scrub within the Study Area is considered an ESHA. While the vegetation associated with the nonnative riparian woodland associated with Arroyo de en Medio in the Study Area does not meet the definition of a riparian corridor based on the definition set forth in the San Mateo LCP, it is associated with an intermittent stream and therefore is designated as a riparian corridor.

Additionally, based on the definitions of the CCC/LCP, approximately 0.02 acre of coastal seasonal wetland within the Study Area is considered an ESHA (Appendix A-3). This coastal seasonal wetland (SP4) was dominated by facultative wetland plants and meets the wetland indicator for hydrophytic vegetation but does not meet indicators of hydric soils or wetland hydrology.

# 6.0 CONCLUSION

The Study Area contains aquatic habitats that fall under the jurisdiction of the Corps, RWQCB, CDFW, and the CCC/County LCP. Approximately 0.04 acre (213 linear feet) of non-wetland waters occur within the Study Area that are regulated by the Corps, RWQCB, CCC, and County LCP. The Study Area contains 0.09 acre (213 linear feet) of streams as defined by the CFGC, and 1.61 acres of riparian habitat that is regulated by the CDFW. Additionally, the CCC and County LCP take jurisdiction over approximately 0.02 acre of coastal seasonal wetland and the aforementioned riparian habitat within the Study Area.

The conclusion of this delineation is based on conditions observed at the time of the field surveys performed on August 13, 2015.

#### 7.0 REFERENCES

- California Coastal Commission (CCC). 1981. Statewide interpretive guidelines for wetlands and other wet environmentally sensitive habitat areas.
- California Coastal Commission. 2010. Public Resources Code, Division 20; California Coastal Act 2010.
- California Department of Fish and Game (CDFG), Environmental Services Division (ESD). 1994. A Field Guide to Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreements, Sections 1600-1607, California Fish and Game Code.
- California Invasive Plant Council (Cal-IPC). 2006. California Invasive Plant Inventory: Cal-IPC Publication 2006-2. California Invasive Plant Council, Berkeley, CA. Available online: http://www.cal-ipc.org/ip/inventory/index.php. Accessed: September 2015.

County of San Mateo. 2013. Local Coastal Program Policies. June 2013.

- Environmental Laboratory. 1987. Corps of Engineers Wetlands Delineation Manual. Department of the Army, Waterways Experiment Station, Vicksburg, Mississippi 39180-0631.
- Federal Register. November 13, 1986. Department of Defense, Corps of Engineers, Department of the Army, 33 CFR Parts 320 through 330, Regulatory Programs of the Corps of Engineers; Final Rule. Vol. 51, No. 219; page 41217.

Google Earth. 2015. Aerial Imagery 2011-2015. Accessed September 2015.

Gretag Macbeth. 2000. Munsell Soil Color Charts. New Windsor, NY.

- Lichvar, R.W., M. Butterwick, N.C. Melvin, and W.N. Kirchner. 2014. The National Wetland Plant List: 2014 Update of Wetland Ratings. Phytoneuron 41: 1-42.
- Solid Waste Agency of Northern Cook County (SWANCC) v. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, 531 U.S. 159 (2001).
- SWRCB. 2002. The California Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act
- U.S Department of Agriculture (USDA), Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS). 2014. The National Wetland Plant List (<u>http://plants.usda.gov/wetland.html</u>, 10 October 2014)
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps). 2005. Regulatory Guidance Letter No. 05-05. Ordinary High Water Mark Identification. December 7.
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps). 2008. Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual: Arid West Region (Version 2.0). September.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA), Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS). 1961. Soil Survey of Soil Survey of San Mateo Area, California. In cooperation with the University of California Agricultural Experiment Station.

- U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA), Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS). 2015. Web Soil Survey. Available online at http://websoilsurvey.nrcs.usda.gov/
- U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA), Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS). 2010. Field Indicators of Hydric Soils in the United States: A Guide for Identifying and Delineating Hydric Soils, Version 7.0. In cooperation with the National Technical Committee for Hydric Soils, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers.
- U.S. Geological Survey (USGS). 2015. Half Moon Bay. 7.5 minute topographic map.
- U.S. Geological Survey (USGS). 2015. Montara Mountain. 7.5 minute topographic map.

Appendix A - Jurisdictional Delineation Maps



# Potential Section 404/401 Jurisdiction:

# **Non-wetland Waters**



Perennial Drainage - 0.02 acre, 91.73 L.F. Intermittent Stream - 0.03 acre, 121.24 L.F.

---- OHWM

# Potential CCC/LCP Jurisdiction:



Perennial Drainage - 0.02 acre, 91.73 L.F.

Intermittent Stream - 0.03 acre, 121.24 L.F.

Coastal Seasonal Wetland - 0.02 acre Riparian - 1.61 acres

# **Potential Section 1602 Jurisdiction**



Perennial Drainage - 0.02 acre, 91.73 L.F. Intermittent Stream - 0.08 acre, 121.24 L.F. — — ТОВ Riparian - 1.61 acres

Cabrillo Highway//Hwy1 sp6 sp5 sp4

A-1.1 Section 404, Seaction 401, Section 1602, California Coastal Commission, Local Coastal Program: Summary of Jurisdictional Areas

Midcoast Multi-Modal Trail El Granada San Mateo County, California





Map Prepared Date: 9/11/2015 Map Prepared By: fhourigan Base Source: USDA, NAIP 2014 Data Source(s): WRA

520

Feet

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS



A-1.2 Section 404, Seaction 401, Section 1602, California Coastal Commission, Local Coastal Program: Summary of Jurisdictional Areas

Midcoast Multi-Modal Trail El Granada San Mateo County, California





520

Feet



ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS

Map Prepared Date: 9/11/2015 Map Prepared By: fhourigan Base Source: USDA, NAIP 2014 Data Source(s): WRA



A-2.1 Section 404/401 Potential Jurisdictional Areas

Midcoast Multi-Modal Trail El Granada San Mateo County, California





500 Feet



ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS

Map Prepared Date: 9/11/2015 Map Prepared By: fhourigan Base Source: USDA, NAIP 2014 Data Source(s): WRA


A-2.2 Section 404/401 Potential Jurisdictional Areas

Midcoast Multi-Modal Trail El Granada San Mateo County, California



Path: L:\Acad 2000 Files\24000\24261\GIS\ArcMap\JurisdictionalDelineationMapAppdx2.mxd



500 Feet



ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS

Map Prepared Date: 9/11/2015 Map Prepared By: fhourigan Base Source: USDA, NAIP 2014 Data Source(s): WRA



A-3.1 CDFW Section 1602 Potential Jurisdictional Areas

Midcoast Multi-Modal Trail El Granada San Mateo County, California



Path: L:\Acad 2000 Files\24000\24261\GIS\ArcMap\JurisdictionalDelineationMapAppdx3.mxd



500 Feet



ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS

Map Prepared Date: 9/11/2015 Map Prepared By: fhourigan Base Source: USDA, NAIP 2014 Data Source(s): WRA



A-3.2 CDFW Section 1602 Potential Jurisdictional Areas

Midcoast Multi-Modal Trail El Granada San Mateo County, California







ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS

Map Prepared Date: 9/11/2015 Map Prepared By: fhourigan Base Source: USDA, NAIP 2014 Data Source(s): WRA

500 Feet Appendix B – Army Corps Delineation Data Forms

# Wetland Determination Data Form - Arid West Region

Project/Site Midcoast Multi-Modal Tra	il	City El Granad	la Cou	nty San Mated	)	Sampling	Date 8/13/20	015
Applicant/Owner County of San Mate	90			Sta	te <u>CA</u>	Sampling Poin	it <u>SP1</u>	
Investigator(s) Stephanie Freed, Rhi	annon Korhi	ummel	Sect	ion,Township,F	Range Sec. 18 T55	8, R5W		
Landform (hillslope, terrace, etc.) hills	lope	Loca	al Relief (concav	re, convex, nor	ie) <u>none</u>		Slope(%)	0-3
Subregion(LRR) LRR C (Medit. CA)		Lat: <u>37°29</u>	'43.64"	Long: <u>1</u> 2	22°27'21.18"W	Datum: V	NGS 84	
Soil Map Unit Name no soil data av	ailable				NWI classification	n <u>n/a</u>		
Are climatic/hydrologic conditions on	-site typical	for this time of year	? 🛛 Yes 🗆	No (lf n	o, explain in remarl	(S)		
Are any of the following significantly of	disturbed?	Vegetation	Soil Hy	drology Are	"Normal Circumsta	ances" present	? 🛛 Yes	🗆 No
Are any of the following naturally pro	blematic?	Vegetation		drology (	If needed, explain a	any answers in	remarks)	
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS - Atta	uch site ma	ap showing sam	nple point loc	ations, trans	sects, important	features, et	с́	
Hydrophytic Vegetation Present? Hydric Soil Present? Wetland Hydrology Present?	□ Yes   □ Yes   □ Yes	X No X No X No	ls the withi	e Sampled A n a Wetland	rea □Ye ?	es 🛛 No		
Remarks: Sample point located within floodplain terrace of intermittent stream. No wetland indicators are present.								
VEGETATION (use scientific r	names)							
TREE STRATUM Plot Size:	30'	Absolute — % cover	Dominant Species?	Indicator Status	Dominance Tes	st Worksheet		
1. Eucalyptus globulus		60	Y	NL	Number of Domi	nant Species	0	_ (A)
2. Salix lasiolepis		5	N	FACW	Total number of	dominant	3	(B)

		·'		- I that are OBL, FACW, or FAC?
2. Salix lasiolepis 3	5	<u>N</u>	FACW	Total number of dominant
4	65	·		% of dominant species that (A/B) (A/B)
SAPLING/SHRUB STRATUM Plot Size	30'			Prevalence Index Worksheet
1 Acacia melanoxylon	5	-	NI	Total % cover of: Multiply by:
- 2	0	- <u> </u>		OBL species0 x1
				FACW species5 x210
4.				FAC species0 x3
Sapling/Shrub Stratum Total Cover	5			FACU species0 x4
		-		UPL species 90 x5 450
HERD STRATUM Plot Size: 10		V	וסו	Column Totals 95 (A) 460 (B)
1. Tropaeolum majus	20	- <u> </u>		- Prevalence Index $= B/A = 4.84$
	10	N		
]. 				Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators
4  -				Dominance Test is >50%
5				Prevalence Index is $$
0				- Morphological adaptations (provide
/ <sup>7</sup>		<u></u>		- supporting data in remarks)
<sup>o.</sup> –	20			- Problematic hydrophytic vegetation <sup>1</sup> (explain)
		-		<sup>1</sup> Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology
WOODY VINE STRATOM Plot Size:				must be present, unless disturbed or problematic.
. 				
<sup>2.</sup> –				-
woody villes Total Cover: _		-		Vegetation Present ?
% Bare ground in herb stratum 70	_ % cover of	biotic crust		-
Remarks: Eucalyptus leaf litter covering bare group vegetation indicators.	nd. Sample po	int is dominated	l by NL and UP	PL vegetation and does not meet any hydrophytic

S	0	I	L
_	_		

#### Sampling Point SP1

Profile desc Depth	r <b>iption: (Describe</b> Matrix	e to the de	pth needed to docum Redo	ent the ir	ndicator o	or confirm	m the absence of indicators.)
(inches)	Color (moist)	%	Color (moist)	%	Type <sup>1</sup>	Loc1	Texture Remarks
0-6	10YR 2/2	100					sandy loam
6+	refusal						
<sup>1</sup> Type: C=Co	ncentration, D=De	epletion, RN	A=Reduced Matrix.	<sup>2</sup> Locat	on: PL=P	ore Linin	ng, RC=Root Channel, M=Matrix
Hydric Soil I	ndicators: (Appli	cable to al	ILRRs, unless other	wise note	ed.)		Indicators for Problematic Hydric Soils <sup>3</sup> :
	(A1)		Sandy Redox (S5)				1cm Muck (A9) (LRR C)
Histic Ep	vipedon (A2)		Stripped Matrix (S	5) arol ( <b>F</b> 1)			2cm Muck (A10)(LRR B)
	SIIC (A3) n Sulfida (A4)			riv (E2)			Reduced Vertic (F18)
	I Sumue (A4)	()	Depleted Matrix (F	(FZ)			Red Parent Material (TF2)
	k (A9)(I RR D)	0)	Redox Dark Surfac	ce (F6)			Other (explain in remarks)
	Below Dark Surfa	ace (A11)	Depleted Dark Sur	face (F7)			
Thick Da	rk Surface (A12)	( )	Redox Depression	s (F8)			
🛛 🗆 Sandy M	lucky Mineral (S1)		Vernal Pools (F9)	. ,			<sup>3</sup> Indicators of hydric vegetation and
Sandy G	leyed Matrix (S4)						wetland hydrology must be present.
Restrictive	Layer (if present)	:					
Type: tree	roots						
Depth (incl	nes): <u>6</u>		_				Hydric Soil Present ? 🛛 Yes 🛛 No
Remarks: Sa	mple point had no	hvdric soil	indicators. A restrictiv	e laver of	tree root	s was pre	esent at approximately 6 inches
		inyano oon		o layor o		o nuo pre	

## HYDROLOGY

Wetland Hydrology Indicators:			Secondary Indicators (2 or more required)				
Primary Indicators (any one indicator is suffic	ient)						
<ul> <li>Surface Water (A1)</li> <li>High Water Table (A2)</li> <li>Saturation (A3)</li> <li>Water Marks (B1)(Nonriverine)</li> <li>Sediment Deposits (B2)(Nonriverine)</li> <li>Drift Deposits (B3)(Nonriverine)</li> <li>Surface Soil Cracks (B6)</li> <li>Inundation Visible on Aerial Imagery (B7)</li> <li>Water-Stained Leaves (B9)</li> </ul>	Salt Crust (B11) Solution Sol		<ul> <li>Water Marks (B1)(Riverine)</li> <li>Sediment Deposits (B2)(Riverine)</li> <li>Drift Deposits (B3)(Riverine)</li> <li>Drainage Patterns (B10)</li> <li>Dry-Season Water Table (C2)</li> <li>Thin Muck Surface (C7)</li> <li>Crayfish Burrows (C8)</li> <li>Saturation Visible on Aerial Imagery (C9)</li> <li>Shallow Aquitard (D3)</li> <li>FAC-Neutral Test (D5)</li> </ul>				
Field Observations:							
Surface water present?  Yes X No	Depth (inches):						
Water table present?	Depth (inches):						
Saturation Present?  Yes No (includes capillary fringe)	Depth (inches):	Wetland I	Hydrology Present ? 🛛 Yes 🛛 No				
Describe recorded data (stream guage, monitoring well, aerial photos, etc.) if available.							
Remarks: Sample point had no indicators of w	vetland hydrology.						

## Wetland Determination Data Form - Arid West Region

Project/Site Midcoast Multi-Modal Trail	City	El Granada	County San Ma	ateo	Sampling Date 8/13/	2015
Applicant/Owner County of San Mateo				State <u>CA</u>	Sampling Point SP2	
Investigator(s) Stephanie Freed, Rhian	non Korhummel		Section,Townsh	ip,Range <u>Sec 18 T5</u>	5S, R5W	
Landform (hillslope, terrace, etc.) field		Local Relief (cor	ncave, convex,	none) <u>none</u>	Slope(%)	0-3
Subregion(LRR) LRR C (Medit. CA)	La	at: <u>37°29'49.50"N</u>	Long:	122°27'36.31"W	Datum:	
Soil Map Unit Name no soil data availa	able			NWI classificati	on <u>none</u>	
Are climatic/hydrologic conditions on-sit	te typical for this tin	ne of year? 🛛 🛛 Yes	; □ No (	If no, explain in rema	arks)	
Are any of the following significantly dis	turbed?	getation 🛛 Soil 🔲	Hydrology	Are "Normal Circums	stances" present? 🛛 Yes	🗆 No
Are any of the following naturally proble	matic?	getation 🛛 Soil 🔲	Hydrology	(If needed, explair	n any answers in remarks)	
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS - Attacl	h site map show	ving sample point	locations, tra	ansects, importar	nt features, etc.	
Hydrophytic Vegetation Present? Hydric Soil Present? Wetland Hydrology Present?	⊠Yes □No □Yes ⊠No □Yes ⊠No	ls w	the Samplec	d Area □ Υ nd?	∕es ⊠No	
Remarks: Sample point was located s hydrology indicators are not	outh of Salix thicke	ets, downgrade of Rou	ute 1. Hydrophy	vtic vegetation indica	tor is present but hydric soi	s and

VEGETATION (use scientific names)				
TREE STRATUM Plot Size	Absolute	Dominant	Indicator	Dominance Test Worksheet
1. <u>n/a</u>	_ % cover	Species?	Status	Number of Dominant Species (A) that are OBL, FACW, or FAC?
2 3				Total number of dominant (B) (B)
4 Tree Stratum Total Cover:				% of dominant species that are OBL, FACW, or FAC?
				Prevalence Index Worksheet
				Total % cover of: Multiply by:
2				OBL species x1 FACW species x2
4Sapling/Shrub Stratum Total Cover: HERB STRATUM Plot Size: 10'				FAC species         00         x3         240           FACU species         x4
1. Festuca perennis	75	Y	FAC	Column Totals <u>80</u> (A) <u>240</u> (B)
2. Rumex crispus	5	N	FAC	Prevalence Index = B/A =3.0
3. Helminthotheca echiodes	2	N	FACU	Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators
4. Holcus lanatus	tr	N	FAC	Dominance Test is >50%
5. Symphyotrichum chilense	tr	<u> </u>	FAC	<b>E</b> Provolonce Index is $z/-3.0^{1}$
6. Lactuca serriola	tr	N	FACU	$\square  \text{Membrale size la dentations } (any identities)$
<ol> <li>Avena barbata</li> <li>8.</li> </ol>	tr	<u>N</u>	NL	Morphological adaptations (provide supporting data in remarks)
Herb Stratum Total Cover:	82			
WOODY VINE STRATUM Plot Size:	n/a			<sup>1</sup> Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must be present, unless disturbed or problematic.
2.				
Woody Vines Total Cover:				Hydrophytic Myes I No
% Bare ground in herb stratum 10	% cover of	biotic crust		Vegetation Present ?
Remarks: 10% thatch observed. Sample point w indicator for hydrophytic vegetation.	as dominated b	y FAC vegetatior	and meets th	e dominance test and PI test and therefore meets the

SOIL	S	0	L
------	---	---	---

#### Sampling Point SP2

SUIL								Sampin	
Profile desc	ription: (Describe	e to the depth	needed to docum	ent the i	ndicator	or confirn	n the absence	e of indicators.)	
Depth (inches)	<u>Matrix</u> Color (moist)	%	Color (moist)	<u>x Feature</u> %	s Type <sup>1</sup>	Loc <sup>1</sup>	Texture		Remarks
0-10	10YR 2/1	99	7.5YR 2.5/3	1	C	PL	sandy loam	indistinct	concentration, fades when
						_			
<sup>1</sup> Type: C=Co	ncentration, D=De	pletion, RM=	Reduced Matrix.	<sup>2</sup> Locat	tion: PL=F	Pore Lining	g, RC=Root C	hannel, M=Matrix	(
Hydric Soil Indicators: (Applicable to all LRRs, unless otherwise noted.)       Indicators for Problematic Hydric Soils <sup>3</sup> :         ☐ Histosol (A1)       ☐ Sandy Redox (S5)       ☐ Icm Muck (A9) (LRR C)         ☐ Histic Epipedon (A2)       ☐ Stripped Matrix (S6)       ☐ 2cm Muck (A10)(LRR B)         ☐ Black Histic (A3)       ☐ Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1)       ☐ Reduced Vertic (F18)         ☐ Hydrogen Sulfide (A4)       ☐ Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2)       ☐ Red Parent Material (TF2)         ☐ Stratified Layers (A5)(LRR C)       ☐ Depleted Matrix (F3)       ☐ Other (explain in remarks)         ☐ 1cm Muck (A9)(LRR D)       ☐ Redox Dark Surface (F6)       ☐ Other (explain in remarks)         ☐ Depleted Below Dark Surface (A11)       ☐ Depleted Dark Surface (F7)       ☐ Thick Dark Surface (A12)       ☐ Redox Depressions (F8)         ☐ Sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4)       ☐ Vernal Pools (F9)       ³Indicators of hydric vegetation and wetland hydrology must be present.         Restrictive Layer (if present):       Type:									
Da	ark Surface (F6) cr	iteria.	nyane sons. Thoug	n sample	point nac	i redox, it		% and therefore c	ioes not meet the Redox
HYDROLO	GY								
Wetland Hyd	drology Indicators	S:					<u>.</u>	Secondary Indicat	tors (2 or more required)
Primary Indic	ators (any one ind	icator is suffic	cient)				—	Water Marks (	B1)(Riverine)
Surface N High Wat Saturatio Water Ma Sedimen Drift Dep Surface S Inundatio Water-St	Water (A1) ter Table (A2) n (A3) arks (B1)(Nonriver t Deposits (B2)(No osits (B3)(Nonrive Soil Cracks (B6) on Visible on Aerial ained Leaves (B9)	ine) priverine) rine) I Imagery (B7)	□ Salt Crust (B1 □ Biotic Crust (E □ Aquatic Invert □ Hydrogen Sul □ Oxidized Rhiz □ Presence of F □ Recent Iron R □ Other (Explain	1) B12) rebrates ( fide Odor cospheres Reduced I reduction n in Rema	B13) · (C1) s along Liv Iron (C4) in PLowe arks)	ving Roots d Soils (C	[ [ [ [ [ [ 6) [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [	Sediment Dep Drift Deposits Drainage Patte Dry-Season W Thin Muck Sur Crayfish Burro Saturation Vis Shallow Aquita FAC-Neutral T	(B2)(Riverine) (B3)(Riverine) erns (B10) /ater Table (C2) rface (C7) wws (C8) ible on Aerial Imagery (C9) ard (D3) Fest (D5)

🗌 Yes 🛛 No

🗆 Yes 🛛 No

🗌 Yes 🛛 No

Remarks: Sample point had no indicators of wetland hydrology.

Describe recorded data (stream guage, monitoring well, aerial photos, etc.) if available.

Depth (inches):

Depth (inches): Depth (inches):

Field Observations:

Water table present?

Saturation Present?

Surface water present?

(includes capillary fringe)

🗌 Yes 🖾 No

Wetland Hydrology Present ?

# Wetland Determination Data Form - Arid West Region

Project/Site Midcoast Multi-Modal Trail	City El Granada	County San Mateo	Sampling Date 8/13/2015
Applicant/Owner <u>County of San Mateo</u>		State CA	Sampling Point SP3
Investigator(s) Stephanie Freed, Rhian	non Korhummel	Section,Township,Range <u>18, 5 Sou</u>	ith, 5 West
Landform (hillslope, terrace, etc.) terrace	e Local Relief	f (concave, convex, none) <u>none</u>	Slope(%) <u>0-3</u>
Subregion(LRR) LRR C (Medit. CA)	Lat: <u>37°29'51.75"</u>	N Long: <u>122°27'41.38"W</u>	Datum: WGS 84
Soil Map Unit Name Denison clay loar	n, nearly level, imperfectly drained	NWI classificat	ion none
Are climatic/hydrologic conditions on-sit	te typical for this time of year?	Yes 🛛 No (If no, explain in rema	arks)
Are any of the following significantly dis	turbed?	Hydrology Are "Normal Circum	stances" present? 🛛 Yes 🔲 No
Are any of the following naturally proble	ematic?	Hydrology (If needed, explai	n any answers in remarks)
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS - Attack	h site map showing sample pe	<u>oint locations, transects, importa</u>	nt features, etc.
Hydrophytic Vegetation Present? Hydric Soil Present? Wetland Hydrology Present?	X Yes □ No □ Yes X No □ Yes X No	Is the Sampled Area	Yes 🖾 No
Remarks: Sample point located inside vegetation indicator is prese	central coast riparian scrub (willow ent but hydric soils and hydrology in	thicket) adjacent to pernnial stream with dicators are not met.	nin floodplain terrace. Hydrophytic

TREE STRATUM Plot Size: 30x30	Absolute	Dominant	Indicator	Dominance Test Worksheet
1. Salix lasiolepis	- % cover 75	Species? Y	FACW	Number of Dominant Species <u>3</u> (A) that are OBL, FACW, or FAC?
2 3		·		Total number of dominant species across all strata?
4 Tree Stratum Total Cover: _	75			% of dominant species that 100 (A/B) are OBL, FACW, or FAC?
SAPLING/SHRUB STRATUM Plot Size	30x30	-		Prevalence Index Worksheet
1 Salix lasiolanis	5	- 	FACW	Total % cover of: Multiply by:
2				OBL species         5         x1         5           FACW species         82         x2         164           FAC species         60         x3         180
Sapling/Shrub Stratum Total Cover:	5			FACU species         x4           UPL species         x5           Column Totals         147
1. Rubus ursinus	55	Y	FAC	$\frac{147}{147} (h) = \frac{147}{549} (b)$
2. Urtica diocia	5	<u> </u>	FAC	Prevalence Index = B/A =2.37
3. Scirpus microcarpus	5	<u> </u>	OBL	Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators
4. Junus effusus	2	<u> </u>	FACW	Dominance Test is >50%
5		·		Prevalence Index is $$
6 7				Morphological adaptations (provide supporting data in remarks)
Herb Stratum Total Cover:	67			Problematic hydrophytic vegetation (explain)
WOODY VINE STRATUM Plot Size:	n/a			<sup>1</sup> Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must be present, unless disturbed or problematic.
2.				
Woody Vines Total Cover:% Bare ground in herb stratum 10	% cover of	biotic crust		Hydrophytic Ares INO

SOIL	S	0	L
------	---	---	---

#### Sampling Point SP3

Profile desc	ription: (Describe Matrix	to the dep	th needed to docum Redox	ent the in Feature	ndicator o	r confiri	n the absence of ir	ndicators.)	
(inches)	Color (moist)	%	Color (moist)		Type <sup>1</sup>	Loc <sup>1</sup>	Texture	Rema	arks
0-8	10YR 2/1	100					sandy loam	small pieces of	mineral give soil
<sup>1</sup> Type: C=Co	ncentration, D=De	pletion, RM	=Reduced Matrix.	<sup>2</sup> Locat	ion: PL=P	ore Linin	g, RC=Root Channe	el, M=Matrix	
Hydric Soil Indicators: (Applicable to all L         Histosol (A1)         Histic Epipedon (A2)         Black Histic (A3)         Hydrogen Sulfide (A4)         Stratified Layers (A5)(LRR C)         1 cm Muck (A9)(LRR D)         Depleted Below Dark Surface (A11)         Thick Dark Surface (A12)         Sandy Mucky Mineral (S1)         Sandy Gleved Matrix (S4)			LRRs, unless otherwise noted.) Sandy Redox (S5) Stripped Matrix (S6) Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1) Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2) Depleted Matrix (F3) Redox Dark Surface (F6) Depleted Dark Surface (F7) Redox Depressions (F8) Vernal Pools (F9)			Indicators for Problematic Hydric Soils <sup>3</sup> : 1 cm Muck (A9) (LRR C) 2 cm Muck (A10)(LRR B) Reduced Vertic (F18) Red Parent Material (TF2) Other (explain in remarks) <sup>3</sup> Indicators of hydric vegetation and			
Restrictive	_ayer (if present)	:							
Depth (incl	nes): <u>8</u>		-				Hydric S	Soil Present ?	🗌 Yes 🛛 No
Remarks: <sub>Sa</sub>	mple point did not	meet hydric	e soil indicators. A res	strictive la	ayer is pres	sent due	to plant roots at a d	epth of approxim	ately 8 inches.

## HYDROLOGY

Wetland Hydrology Indicators:		Secondary Indicators (2 or more required)						
Primary Indicators (any one indicator is suffi	Weter Merke (P1)(Piverine)							
<ul> <li>Surface Water (A1)</li> <li>High Water Table (A2)</li> <li>Saturation (A3)</li> <li>Water Marks (B1)(Nonriverine)</li> <li>Sediment Deposits (B2)(Nonriverine)</li> <li>Drift Deposits (B3)(Nonriverine)</li> <li>Surface Soil Cracks (B6)</li> <li>Inundation Visible on Aerial Imagery (B7</li> <li>Water-Stained Leaves (B9)</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Salt Crust (B11)</li> <li>Biotic Crust (B12)</li> <li>Aquatic Invertebrates (B13)</li> <li>Hydrogen Sulfide Odor (C1)</li> <li>Oxidized Rhizospheres along Living</li> <li>Presence of Reduced Iron (C4)</li> <li>Recent Iron Reduction in PLowed S</li> <li>Other (Explain in Remarks)</li> </ul>	Water Marks (B1) (Riverine)         Sediment Deposits (B2) (Riverine)         Drift Deposits (B3) (Riverine)         Drainage Patterns (B10)         Dry-Season Water Table (C2)         Image Patterns (B10)         Crayfish Burrows (C3)         Soils (C6)         Saturation Visible on Aerial Imagery (C9)         Shallow Aquitard (D3)         FAC-Neutral Test (D5)						
Field Observations:								
Surface water present?  Yes X No	Depth (inches):							
Water table present?	Depth (inches):							
Saturation Present?  Yes X No (includes capillary fringe)	Depth (inches):	Wetland Hydrology Present ? 🛛 Yes 🛛 No						
Describe recorded data (stream guage, monitoring well, aerial photos, etc.) if available.								
Remarks: Sample point had no indicators of wetland hydrology.								

## Wetland Determination Data Form - Arid West Region

Project/Site Midcoast Multi-Modal Trail	City El Granada	County San Mateo	Sampling Date 8/13/2015
Applicant/Owner County of San Mateo		State CA	Sampling Point SP4
Investigator(s) Stephanie Freed, Rhiann	on Korhummel	Section,Township,Range Sec	18, T5S, R5W
Landform (hillslope, terrace, etc.) field	Local Relief (	(concave, convex, none) <u>none</u>	Slope(%) 0-3
Subregion(LRR) LRR C (Medit. CA)	Lat: <u>37°29'52.48"N</u>	Long: <u>122°27'43.45</u>	"W Datum:
Soil Map Unit Name Denison loam, nea	arly level	NWI class	sification none
Are climatic/hydrologic conditions on-site	) typical for this time of year? $\square$ y	res 🔲 No 🛛 (If no, explain in	remarks)
Are any of the following significantly distu	urbed?	Hydrology Are "Normal Ci	rcumstances" present? 🛛 Yes 🔲 No
Are any of the following naturally problem	natic? DVegetation DSoil	Hydrology (If needed, e	explain any answers in remarks)
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS - Attach	site map showing sample po	int locations, transects, imp	ortant features, etc.
Hydrophytic Vegetation Present?       Image: Comparison of the sent?         Hydric Soil Present?       Image: Comparison of the sent?         Wetland Hydrology Present?       Image: Comparison of the sent?	3 Yes □ No ] Yes ⊠ No ] Yes ⊠ No	Is the Sampled Area within a Wetland?	🗌 Yes 🛛 No
Remarks: Sample point located in smal but hydric soils and hydrolog	I swale that drains into central coast y indicators are not met.	t riparian scrub (willow thicket).	Hydrophytic vegetation indicator is present

	Absolute	Dominant	Indicator	Dominance Test Worksheet
1. <u>n/a</u>	% cover	Species?	Status	Number of Dominant Species3 (A) that are OBL, FACW, or FAC?
2 3		·		Total number of dominant gpecies across all strata?
4		·		% of dominant species that (A/B) are OBL, FACW, or FAC? (A/B)
SADI ING/SHRUB STRATUM Plot Size	10x2	•		Prevalence Index Worksheet
	5	V		Total % cover of: Multiply by:
	5	·	FACW	OBL species x1
<u> -</u>		·		FACW species65 x2130
۰. –		·		FAC species5 x315
	5	·		FACU species x4 80
HERB STRATUM Plot Size: 10x2	5			UPL species x5
1. Juncus patens	35	Y	FACW	Column Totals <u>90</u> (A) <u>225</u> (B)
2. Juncus occidentalis	20	Y	FACW	Prevalence Index = B/A =2.5
3. Helmenthotheca echiodes	20	Y	FACU	Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators
4. Junus effusus	5	N	FACW	Dominance Test is >50%
5. Rubus ursinus	5	N	FAC	
6. Rumex crispus	tr	N	FAC	Prevalence index is = 3.0</td
7				Morphological adaptations (provide supporting data in remarks)
8		·		Problematic hydrophytic vegetation <sup>1</sup> (explain)
Herb Stratum Total Cover: _	85			1
WOODY VINE STRATUM Plot Size:				'Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology
1. <u>n/a</u>		·		must be present, unless disturbed of problematic.
2				
Woody Vines Total Cover: _				Hydrophytic M Ves D No
% Bare ground in herb stratum <u>10</u>	% cover of biotic crust			Vegetation Present ?

SOIL	S	0	L
------	---	---	---

#### Sampling Point SP4

Profile descu Depth	ription: (Describe Matrix	to the de	oth needed to docume Redox	ent the ind	licator o	r confirr	n the absence of i	ndicators.)		
(inches)	Color (moist)	%	Color (moist)	%	Type <sup>1</sup>	Loc <sup>1</sup>	Texture	Rem	arks	
0-4	10YR 2/1	100					sandy loam	_ small mineral p	bieces give	a gritty
  	ncentration, D=De	pletion, RN	л=Reduced Matrix.	<sup>2</sup> Location	n: PL=Pc	pre Linin	g, RC=Root Chann	el, M=Matrix		
Hydric Soil I	ndicators: (Appli	cable to a	LRRs, unless other	vise noted	l.)		Indicators for P	roblematic Hydr	ic Soils <sup>3</sup> :	
<ul> <li>☐ Histosol (A1)</li> <li>☐ Histic Epipedon (A2)</li> <li>☐ Black Histic (A3)</li> <li>☐ Hydrogen Sulfide (A4)</li> <li>☐ Stratified Layers (A5)(LRR C)</li> <li>☐ 1cm Muck (A9)(LRR D)</li> <li>☐ Depleted Below Dark Surface (A11)</li> <li>☐ Thick Dark Surface (A12)</li> <li>☐ Sandy Mucky Mineral (S1)</li> <li>☐ Sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4)</li> </ul>			Sandy Redox (S5)       1 cm Muck (A9) (LRR C)         Stripped Matrix (S6)       2 cm Muck (A10)(LRR B)         Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1)       Reduced Vertic (F18)         Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2)       Red Parent Material (TF2)         Depleted Matrix (F3)       Other (explain in remarks)         Redox Dark Surface (F6)       Other (explain in remarks)         Vernal Pools (F9) <sup>3</sup> Indicators of hydric vegetation and wetland hydrology must be presen			and ent.				
Restrictive I	_ayer (if present):									
Type: com	pacted soils		_							
Depth (inch	nes): <u>4</u>						Hydric	Soil Present ?	🛛 Yes	🖾 No
Remarks: <sub>Sa</sub>	mple point had no	indicators	of wetland soils. A res	tricted laye	er due to	compact	ed soils was prese	nt at approximate	ly 4 inches	

### HYDROLOGY

Wetland Hydrology Indicators:			Secondary Indicators (2 or more required)				
Primary Indicators (any one indicator is suffic	ient)		Water Marka (P1)(Piwaripa)				
<ul> <li>Surface Water (A1)</li> <li>High Water Table (A2)</li> <li>Saturation (A3)</li> <li>Water Marks (B1)(Nonriverine)</li> <li>Sediment Deposits (B2)(Nonriverine)</li> <li>Drift Deposits (B3)(Nonriverine)</li> <li>Surface Soil Cracks (B6)</li> <li>Inundation Visible on Aerial Imagery (B7)</li> <li>Water-Stained Leaves (B9)</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Salt Crust (B11)</li> <li>Biotic Crust (B12)</li> <li>Aquatic Invertebrates (B13)</li> <li>Hydrogen Sulfide Odor (C1)</li> <li>Oxidized Rhizospheres along Living</li> <li>Presence of Reduced Iron (C4)</li> <li>Recent Iron Reduction in PLowed S</li> <li>Other (Explain in Remarks)</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Water Marks (B1)(Riverine)</li> <li>Sediment Deposits (B2)(Riverine)</li> <li>Drift Deposits (B3)(Riverine)</li> <li>Drainage Patterns (B10)</li> <li>Dry-Season Water Table (C2)</li> <li>Thin Muck Surface (C7)</li> <li>Crayfish Burrows (C8)</li> <li>Saturation Visible on Aerial Imagery (C9)</li> <li>Shallow Aquitard (D3)</li> <li>FAC-Neutral Test (D5)</li> </ul>					
Field Observations:							
Surface water present?  Surface water present?  Yes  No	Depth (inches):						
Water table present?  Yes  No	Depth (inches):						
Saturation Present?  Yes No (includes capillary fringe)	Depth (inches):	Wetland H	Hydrology Present ? 🛛 Yes 🛛 No				
Describe recorded data (stream guage, monitoring well, aerial photos, etc.) if available.							
Remarks: Sample point had no indicators of v	<i>r</i> etland hydrology.						

# Wetland Determination Data Form - Arid West Region

Project/Site Midcoast Multi-Modal Trail	City El Granada	County San Mateo	Sampling Date 8/13/2015			
Applicant/Owner County of San Mateo		State CA	Sampling Point SP5			
Investigator(s) Stephanie Freed, Rhiannon Kort	nummel	Section, Township, Range 18, 5 Sout	h, 5 West			
Landform (hillslope, terrace, etc.) field	Local Relie	f (concave, convex, none) <u>none</u>	Slope(%) <u>0-3</u>			
Subregion(LRR) LRR C (Medit. CA)	Lat: <u>37°29'52.59</u> '	"N Long: <u>122°27'43.47"W</u>	Datum:			
Soil Map Unit Name Denison loam, nearly leve		NWI classificati	on none			
Are climatic/hydrologic conditions on-site typical	for this time of year?	Yes 🔲 No 🛛 (If no, explain in rema	rks)			
Are any of the following significantly disturbed?	□ Vegetation □ Soi	il 🔲 Hydrology 🛛 Are "Normal Circums	tances" present? 🛛 Yes 🔲 No			
Are any of the following naturally problematic?	□ Vegetation □ Soi	il 🔲 Hydrology (If needed, explair	any answers in remarks)			
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS - Attach site m	nap showing sample p	oint locations, transects, importar	nt features, etc.			
Hydrophytic Vegetation Present?YesHydric Soil Present?YesWetland Hydrology Present?Yes	⊠ No ⊠ No ⊠ No	Is the Sampled Area I Y within a Wetland?	ïes 🖾 No			
Remarks: Sample point located in field north of swale (SP4), Highway 1, and west of central coast riparian scrub (willow thicket). No wetland indicators are present.						

VEGETATION (use scientific names)				
TREE STRATUM Plot Size	Absolute	Dominant	Indicator	Dominance Test Worksheet
1. <u>n/a</u> –	% cover	Species?	Status	Number of Dominant Species (A) that are OBL, FACW, or FAC?
2 3				Total number of dominant (B)
4				% of dominant species that50(A/B) are OBL, FACW, or FAC?
				Prevalence Index Worksheet
SAFLING/SHRUB STRATUM FILL SIZE.				Total % cover of: Multiply by:
1. <u>n/a</u> 2 3 4				OBL species         x1           FACW species         x2           FAC species         50         x3
Sapling/Shrub Stratum Total Cover:				FACU species 35 x4140
HERB STRATUM Plot Size: 10x10				UPL species x5
1 Rubus ursinus	30	Y	FAC	Column Totals         85         (A)         290         (B)
2. Achillea millifolia	25	Y	FACU	Prevalence Index = B/A =
3. Holcus lanatus	15	N	FAC	Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators
<b>4</b> . Equisetum arvense	5	N	FAC	
5. Raphanus sativus	5	N	FACU	
6. Helmentohtheca echiodes	5	N	FACU	Prevalence index is = 3.0</td
7				Morphological adaptations (provide supporting data in remarks)
<sup>8.</sup> –	95	·		Problematic hydrophytic vegetation <sup>1</sup> (explain)
Herb Stratum Total Cover: _	CO			<sup>1</sup> Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology
WOODY VINE STRATUM Plot Size:				must be present, unless disturbed or problematic.
1. <u>n/a</u>				
<sup>2.</sup> =		·		
Woody Vines Total Cover: _				Hydrophytic Vogetation Present 2  Yes  No
% Bare ground in herb stratum <u>15</u>	% cover of	biotic crust		vegeration riesent :
Remarks: Bareground observed with 5% thatch. S PI. Hydrophytic vegetation is not preser	ample point w it.	as dominated by	y FAC and FAC	CU plants, therefore does not meet Dominance test or

SOIL	S	0	L
------	---	---	---

#### Sampling Point SP5

Profile desc Depth	ription: (Describe Matrix	to the dep	th needed to docum Redox	ent the ir	n <b>dicator o</b> s	r confirr	n the absence of ir	ndicators.)		
(inches)	Color (moist)	%	Color (moist)	%	Type <sup>1</sup>	Loc <sup>1</sup>	Texture	Rem	arks	
0-4	10YR 2/1	100					sandy loam	small mineral	pieces give gritty	
<sup>1</sup> Type: C=Co	ncentration, D=De	pletion, RM	I=Reduced Matrix.	<sup>2</sup> Locat	ion: PL=P	ore Lining	g, RC=Root Channe	el, M=Matrix		
Hydric Soil	ndicators: (Appli	cable to al	LRRs, unless other	wise note	ed.)		Indicators for Pr	oblematic Hydi	ric Soils <sup>3</sup> :	
Histosol	(A1)		Sandy Redox (S5)				1cm Muck (As	9) (LRR C)		
Histic Ep	pipedon (A2)		Stripped Matrix (Se	5)			2cm Muck (A10)(LRR B)			
Black Hi	stic (A3)		Loamy Mucky Mine	eral (F1)			Reduced Vert	Reduced Vertic (F18)		
	n Sulfide (A4)	0)		rix (F2)			Red Parent Material (TF2)			
	Layers (A5)(LRR	C)	Depleted Matrix (F	3)			Other (explain in remarks)			
	K (A9)(LKK D)	000 (111)		ж (го) face (Г7)						
	Delow Dark Surface (A12)	ace (ATT)		ace (F7)						
	lik Sullace (A12) lucky Mineral (S1)			5 (го)			<sup>3</sup> Indicators of hydric vegetation and			
□ Sandy №	loved Matrix (S4)						indicators of hydric vegetation and			
								gy must be pres	ent.	
Restrictive	Layer (if present)									
Type: com	pacted solls									
Depth (incl	nes): <u>4</u>		_				Hydric S	Soil Present ?	🗌 Yes 🖾 No	
Remarks: <sub>Sa</sub>	mple point had no	indicators	of hydric soils. A restr	ictive laye	er is prese	nt due to	compacted soils at	approximately 4	inches depth.	

## HYDROLOGY

Wetland Hydrology Indicators:		Secondary Indicators (2 or more required)						
Primary Indicators (any one indicator is suf								
<ul> <li>Surface Water (A1)</li> <li>High Water Table (A2)</li> <li>Saturation (A3)</li> <li>Water Marks (B1)(Nonriverine)</li> <li>Sediment Deposits (B2)(Nonriverine)</li> <li>Drift Deposits (B3)(Nonriverine)</li> <li>Surface Soil Cracks (B6)</li> <li>Inundation Visible on Aerial Imagery (E</li> <li>Water-Stained Leaves (B9)</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Salt Crust (B11)</li> <li>Biotic Crust (B12)</li> <li>Aquatic Invertebrates (B13)</li> <li>Hydrogen Sulfide Odor (C1)</li> <li>Oxidized Rhizospheres along Living I</li> <li>Presence of Reduced Iron (C4)</li> <li>Recent Iron Reduction in PLowed So</li> <li>Other (Explain in Remarks)</li> </ul>	Water Marks (B1)(Riverine)         Sediment Deposits (B2)(Riverine)         Drift Deposits (B3)(Riverine)         Drainage Patterns (B10)         Dry-Season Water Table (C2)         Roots (C3)         Thin Muck Surface (C7)         Crayfish Burrows (C8)         Is (C6)         Shallow Aquitard (D3)         FAC-Neutral Test (D5)						
Field Observations:								
Surface water present?	Depth (inches):							
Water table present?	Depth (inches):							
Saturation Present?	Depth (inches):	Wetland Hydrology Present ? 🛛 Yes 🛛 No						
Describe recorded data (stream guage, monitoring well, aerial photos, etc.) if available.								
Remarks: Sample point had no indicators of wetland hydrology.								

# Wetland Determination Data Form - Arid West Region

Project/Site Midcoast Multi-Modal Trail	City El Granada	County San Mateo	Sampling Date 8/13/2015					
Applicant/Owner <u>County of San Mateo</u>		State CA	Sampling Point SP6					
Investigator(s) Stephanie Freed, Rhiani	non Korhummel	Section,Township,Range Sec 18 T5	5S, R5W					
Landform (hillslope, terrace, etc.) field	Local Relief	(concave, convex, none) none	Slope(%) <u>0-3</u>					
Subregion(LRR) LRR C (Medit. CA)	Lat: <u>37°29'52.91"</u>	N Long: <u>122°27'43.52"W</u>	Datum: WGS 84					
Soil Map Unit Name Denison loam, ne	Soil Map Unit Name Denison loam, nearly level NWI classification none							
Are climatic/hydrologic conditions on-sit	te typical for this time of year?	Yes 🔲 No 🦳 (If no, explain in rema	arks)					
Are any of the following significantly dis	turbed?  Vegetation  Soil	Hydrology Are "Normal Circums	stances" present? 🛛 Yes 🔲 No					
Are any of the following naturally proble	matic?	Hydrology (If needed, explain	n any answers in remarks)					
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS - Attack	n site map showing sample po	pint locations, transects, importar	nt features, etc.					
Hydrophytic Vegetation Present? Hydric Soil Present? Wetland Hydrology Present?	□ Yes ⊠ No □ Yes ⊠ No □ Yes ⊠ No	Is the Sampled Area I Y within a Wetland?	(es 🛛 No					
Remarks: Sample point located in a na	arrow depressional area north of upl	and field (SP5). No wetland indicators a	re met.					

VEGETATION (use scientific names)				
TREE STRATUM Plot Size:	Absolute	Dominant	Indicator	Dominance Test Worksheet
1. <u>n/a</u>	- % cover		Status	Number of Dominant Species (A) that are OBL, FACW, or FAC?
2				Total number of dominant (B) (B)
4		·		% of dominant species that 50 (A/B) are OBL, FACW, or FAC?
		-		Prevalence Index Worksheet
SAPLING/SHRUB STRATUM FILL SIZE.		-		Total % cover of: Multiply by:
				OBL species x1
2				FACW species x2 50
				FAC species 40 x3 120
4				FACU species 30 x4 120
Sapling/Shrub Stratum Total Cover: _		-		UPL species x5
HERB STRATUM Plot Size: 10x10				Column Totals 95 (A) 290 (B)
1. Carex hendersonii	40	Y	FAC	
2. Helmenthotheca echiodes	30	Y	FACU	Prevalence Index = B/A = <u>3.05</u>
3. Cyperus eragrostis	15	<u> </u>	FACW	Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators
4. Juncus patens	5	<u> </u>	FACW	Dominance Test is >50%
5. Juncus effusus	5	<u>N</u>	FACW	$\square$ Prevalence Index is $$
6. Symphyotrichum chilense	tr	<u> </u>	FAC	
7				supporting data in remarks)
8				$\square$ Problematic hydrophytic vegetation <sup>1</sup> (explain)
Herb Stratum Total Cover:	95	_		
WOODY VINE STRATUM Plot Size:				<sup>1</sup> Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology
1. <i>n/a</i>				must be present, unless disturbed or problematic.
2.				
Woody Vines Total Cover: _		-		Hydrophytic Ves 🛛 No
% Bare ground in herb stratum 5	% cover of	biotic crust		
<b>Remarks:</b> Sample point is dominated by FAC and	FACU vegetati	ion. It does not	meet hydrophy	tic vegetation indicators.

SOIL	S	0	L
------	---	---	---

#### Sampling Point SP6

Profile descu Depth	iption: (Describe Matrix	e to the dep	oth needed to docum Redo	ent the ind x Features	licator o	r confiri	n the absence of i	ndicators.)		
(inches)	Color (moist)	%	Color (moist)	%	Type <sup>1</sup>	Loc <sup>1</sup>	Texture	Rem	arks	
0-4	10YR 2/1	100					sandy loam	small but visib	le mineral partic	les
					n: Pl –Pc		RC-Root Channe			
Hvdric Soil I	ndicators: (Appl	icable to al	LRRs. unless other	wise noted	I.)		Indicators for P	roblematic Hydr	ric Soils <sup>3</sup>	
Hydric Soil Indicators: (Applicable to all         Histosol (A1)         Histic Epipedon (A2)         Black Histic (A3)         Hydrogen Sulfide (A4)         Stratified Layers (A5)(LRR C)         1cm Muck (A9)(LRR D)         Depleted Below Dark Surface (A11)         Thick Dark Surface (A12)         Sandy Mucky Mineral (S1)			<ul> <li>Sandy Redox (S5)</li> <li>Stripped Matrix (S)</li> <li>Loamy Mucky Min</li> <li>Loamy Gleyed Ma</li> <li>Depleted Matrix (F)</li> <li>Redox Dark Surfa</li> <li>Depleted Dark Su</li> <li>Redox Depressior</li> <li>Vernal Pools (F9)</li> </ul>	6) eral (F1) trix (F2) <sup>73</sup> ) ce (F6) rface (F7) ns (F8)	-			9) (LRR C) 10)(LRR B) tic (F18) Aaterial (TF2) n in remarks) ydric vegetation a ogy must be pres	and ent.	
Restrictive I	_ayer (if present)	:								
Type: com	pacted soil									
Depth (inch	nes): <u>4</u>		_				Hydric	Soil Present ?	🗆 Yes 🖾 N	١o
Remarks: <sub>Sa</sub>	mple point had no	) hydric soil	indicators. A compac	ted soil res	trictive la	yer at ap	pproximately 4 inche	es was present.		

#### HYDROLOGY

Wetland Hydrology Indicators:	ant)	Secondary Indicators (2 or more required)
<ul> <li>Surface Water (A1)</li> <li>High Water Table (A2)</li> <li>Saturation (A3)</li> <li>Water Marks (B1)(Nonriverine)</li> <li>Sediment Deposits (B2)(Nonriverine)</li> <li>Drift Deposits (B3)(Nonriverine)</li> <li>Surface Soil Cracks (B6)</li> <li>Inundation Visible on Aerial Imagery (B7)</li> <li>Water-Stained Leaves (B9)</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Salt Crust (B11)</li> <li>Biotic Crust (B12)</li> <li>Aquatic Invertebrates (B13)</li> <li>Hydrogen Sulfide Odor (C1)</li> <li>Oxidized Rhizospheres along Living</li> <li>Presence of Reduced Iron (C4)</li> <li>Recent Iron Reduction in PLowed S</li> <li>Other (Explain in Remarks)</li> </ul>	Water Marks (B1)(Riverine)         Sediment Deposits (B2)(Riverine)         Drift Deposits (B3)(Riverine)         Drainage Patterns (B10)         Dry-Season Water Table (C2)         Thin Muck Surface (C7)         Crayfish Burrows (C8)         Soils (C6)         Shallow Aquitard (D3)         FAC-Neutral Test (D5)
Field Observations:		
Surface water present?	Depth (inches):	
Water table present?	Depth (inches):	
Saturation Present?  Yes X No (includes capillary fringe)	Depth (inches):	Wetland Hydrology Present ? 🛛 Yes 🛛 No
Describe recorded data (stream guage, monito	pring well, aerial photos, etc.) if available	).
Remarks: some vegetation was lying down; po	ssible evidence of hydrology, otherwise	no evidence of hydrology was present at the sample point.

Appendix C – CCC Delineation Data Forms

## California Coastal Act Wetland Data Sheet

Project Name:	Midcoast Multi-Mo	odal Trail		County:	San Mateo	
City/Location:	El Granada	)		LCP (if ap	plicable): San Mate	0
Applicant/Owner:	City of San Mateo				A (Western Mts., Valley, and Coast [WM]	
WRA Investigator(s):	Stephanie Freed, F	Rhiannon k	Corhummel		C (Arid West)	
Date:	8/13/2015				SAMPLE POINT ID:	SP1
				HABITAT	:	
CCC/LCP WETLAND	DETERMINATION					
Meets CCC or LCP v	egetation criteria?	] Ye√ No	Sample pol	int located wit	thin floodplain terrace of inte	rmittent
Meets CCC or LCP h	vdric soil criteria?	] Yes√ No	stream. No	o wetland indi	cators are present.	
Meets CCC or LCP h	ydrology criteria?	] Ye√ No	I			
CCC/LCP WETLAND	)?	] Ye√ No	1			
<b>VEGETATION</b>		l				
*indicator status from th	ne USFWS 1996 Nation	nal List of we	etland specie	S		
TREES - Plot size: 3	0x30	% Cover	Status*	Dominant?	<u>Dominance Test:</u>	
Eucalyptus globulus		60	NL	Yes		
Salix lasiolepis		5	FACW	No	Total # of dominant	3
					species across all strata:	
	TOTAL	65.0		1	Total # of dominants that	
5	50% of stratum cover =	32.5	20% =	13.0	are hydrophytic (status	0
SAPLING/SHRUBS -	Plot size: 30x30	% Cover	Status*	Dominant?	of OBL, FACW, or FAC):	
Acacia melanoxylon		5	NL	Yes		
					Percentage of dominants	0%
					that are hydrophytic:	
					[Meets dominance test	t if >50%]
	TOTAL	5.0		1		
5	50% of stratum cover =	2.5	20% =	1.0	Prevalence Index:	
HERBACEOUS - Plot	t size: 10x10	% Cover	Status	Dominant?	<b>-</b>	
Tropaeolum majus		20		Yes	l otal % cover of species	
Delairea odorata		10	NL	NO		
					OBL: 0 x 1 =	
					$FACW = 5 \times 2 =$	10
					FAC: $0 \times 3 =$	
					FACU: 0 x 4 =	450
					UPL: <u>90</u> x 5 =	450
					Tatalı 05	400
					I otal: $95$	460 (B)
					(^)	
					Prevalence Index (B/A) =	4.84
					[Hvdrophvtic veae	tation
	TOTAL	30.0		1	dominant if $B/A \leq$	3.0]
5	50% of stratum cover =	15.0	20% =	6.0		-
-		Meets CO	C or LCP	hydrophytic	vegetation criteria?	Yes 🗸 No

*Comments:* Eucalyptus leaf litter covering bare ground. Sample point is dominated by NL and UPL vegetation and does not meet any hydrophytic vegetation indicators.

Project Na	me:				Sample P	oint ID:SP1
<u>SOILS</u>	Slope (%):	0-3	S	oil map unit:	nc	o soil data available
SOIL PRO	FILE					
Depth	Matrix Color	Redox Color	% and contrast	Redox type	Texture	Comments
0-6	10YR 3/2	none	!		sandy loam	
6+	refusal	<u> </u>	[!	[	<b></b>	
		<u> </u> !	ļ!		<b></b>	
		!	ļ!		<b></b>	
ļ		<u>ا</u>	ļ!	<b> </b>	<b> </b>	
		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	L	L	J
<u>All soils</u>	<u>11</u>		<u>Loamy an</u>	<u>nd clayey soils</u>	<u>only:</u>	<u>Sandy soils only:</u>
Histoso	l (A1)		Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1)			Sandy Mucky Mineral (S1)
Histic E	pipedon (A2)		Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2)			Sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4)
Black H	listic (A3)		Depleted	Matrix (F3)		] Sandy Redox (S5)
Hydrog	en Sulfide (A4)		Redox Da	ark Surface (F6	3) 🗌	Stripped Matrix (S6)
Stratifie	d Layers (A5) [Ario	d West only]	Depleted	Dark Surface	(F7)	Test indicators (NRCS v7):
Deplete	d Below Dark Surf	iace (A11)	🗌 Redox De	pressions (F8	,) [	2 cm Muck (A10) [WMVC only]
Thick D	ark Surface (A12)		Vernal Pc	ols (F9) [Arid	West only]	Very Shallow Dark Surface (TF12)
Other (	explain below)		Meets C	CC or LCP	hydric soil cri	teria? 🗌 Yes 🗸 No
Comments	: Sample point h	nad no hydric s	soil indicators. A	v restrictive la	ayer of tree roo	ts was present at
approximat	ely 6 inches.					

HYDROLOGY (indicators from Corps Regional Supplements, applicable to coastal California only)

	Primary indicators (only 1 needed to meet criteria	<u>):</u>	
	Surface water (A1) Depth (in.):		Stunted or stressed plants (D1) [WMVC only]
	High water table (A2) Depth (in.):		Secondary indicators (need 2+ to meet criteria):
	Soil saturation (A3) Depth (in.):		] Water marks (B1) [Arid West riverine only]
	Water marks (B1) [if in Arid West: Nonriverine on	[y]	Sediment deposits (B2) [Arid West riverine only]
	Sediment deposits (B2) [if in Arid West: Nonriveri	ne only]	Drift deposits (B3) [Arid West riverine only]
	Drift deposits (B3) [if in Arid West: Nonriverine on	ly] 🗌	Water-stained leaves (B9) [WMVC:MLRA 4B only]
	Algal mat or crust (B4) [WMVC only; see B12]		Drainage patterns (B10)
	Iron deposits (B5) [WMVC only]		Dry-season water table (C2)
	Surface soil cracks (B6)		Thin muck surface (C7) [Arid West only]
	Inundation visible on aerial imagery (B7)		Crayfish burrows (C8) [Arid West only]
	Sparsely vegetated concave surface (B8) [WMVC	conly]	Saturation visible on aerial imagery (C9)
	Water-stained leaves (B9) [Arid West and MLRA	5 only]	Geomorphic position (D2) [WMVC only]
	Salt crust (B11)		Shallow aquitard (D3)
	Biotic Crust (B12) [Arid West only; see B4]		Frost-heave hummocks (D4) [WMVC only]
	Aquatic invertebrates (B13)		Raised ant mounds (D6) [WMVC only]
	Hydrogen sulfide odor (C1)		FAC-neutral test (D5) (Does not meet test)
	Oxidized rhizospheres (C3)		
	Presence of reduced iron (C4)	Other (expla	ain below)
	Recent iron reduction in tilled soils (C6)	Meets CCC or	LCP wetland hydrology criteria? Ves No
Coi	mments: Sample point had no hydrologic indi	cators.	

Project Name:				Sa	ample Point ID:	SP2	
Project Name:	Midcoast Multi-Mo	dal Trail		County:	San N	<i>l</i> ateo	
City/Location:	El Granada			LCP (if ap	plicable):	San Mate	0
Applicant/Owner:	City of San Mateo	)			A (Western Mts., Valley,	and Coast	[WMVC])
WRA Investigator(s): Stephanie Freed, Rhiannon Korhumn					C (Arid West)		
Date:	8/13/2015			-	SAMPLE POINT I	D: :	SP2
				HABITAT	:		
CCC/LCP WETLAND	D DETERMINATION						
Meets CCC or LCP v	egetation criteria? 🗹	Ye: No	Sample po	int was locate	d south of Salix thi	ckets, do	wngrade
Meets CCC or LCP h	ydric soil criteria?	] Yes√ No	of Route 1.	While samp	le point meets hydr	ophytic v	egetation
Meets CCC or LCP h	ydrology criteria?	Ye√ No	indicator, fa	acultative spe	cies are non-native	, invasive	species
CCC/LCP WETLAND	D?	Ye√ No	ubitquitous	to the Califor	nia landscape and	is area do	oes not
			indicators a	wellanu. nyo	unc sons and wella	na nyaroi	Ugy
<b>VEGETATION</b>				are not mot.			
*indicator status from th	ne USFWS 1996 Nation	al List of we	etland specie	S			
TREES - Plot size:		% Cover	Status*	Dominant?	<u>Dominance Test</u>	<u>:</u>	
n/a							
					Total # of domina	ant	1
					species across a	II strata:	
	TOTAL				Total # of domina	ants that	
5	50% of stratum cover =		20% =	1% = are hydrophytic (sta		status	1
SAPLING/SHRUBS -	Plot size:	% Cover	Status*	Dominant?	of OBL, FACW,	or FAC):	
n/a							
					Percentage of do	ominants	100%
					that are hydroph	ytic:	
	TOTAL				[Meets domin	iance tesi	t if >50%]
			200/				
	t $raturn cover =$	% Cover	20% =	Dominant2	Prevalence inde	<u>x.</u>	
Festuca perennis		75 75	FAC		Total % cover of s	nacias	
Rumey crispus		5	FAC	No	across all strata:	Jecies	
Helmithotheca echior	has	2	FACU	No		x 1 –	
Holcus lanatus		trace	FAC	No	FACW 0	 x 2 =	
Symphyotrichum chil	ense	trace	FAC	No	FAC: 80	^2 = 	240
l actuca serriola		trace	FACU	No	FACU: 0	x 4 =	240
Avena barbata		trace	NI	No			
		11000		110	0.1 2		
					Total <sup>.</sup> 80		240
					(A)		(B)
					Prevalence Index	x (B/A) =	3.00
					[Hydroph	ytic vege	tation
	TOTAL	82.0		1	dominant	t if $B/A \leq$	3.0]
5	50% of stratum cover =	41.0	20% =	16.4			

 Meets CCC or LCP hydrophytic vegetation criteria?
 Yes
 No

 Comments:
 10% thatch observed.
 Sample point was dominated by FAC vegetation and meets the dominance test and PI test, therefore meets the indicator for hydrophytic vegetation.
 No

## California Coastal Act Wetland Data Sheet

<u>SOILS</u>	Slope (%):	0-3	S	oil map unit:	no	soil data available
SOIL PROP	FILE					
Depth	Matrix Color	Redox Color	% and contrast	Redox type	Texture	Comments
0-10	10YR 2/1	7.5YR 2.5/3	1%	С	sandy loam	indistinct concentration; fades when wetted
<u>All soils</u>	<u>.</u>		<u>Loamy ar</u>	nd clayey soils	<u>only:</u>	Sandy soils only:
Histoso	l (A1)		🗌 Loamy Mi	ucky Mineral (I	=1)	Sandy Mucky Mineral (S1)
Histic E	pipedon (A2)		🗌 Loamy Gl	eyed Matrix (F	2)	Sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4)
Black H	istic (A3)		Depleted	Matrix (F3)		Sandy Redox (S5)
Hydroge	en Sulfide (A4)		🗌 Redox Da	ark Surface (F6	3)	Stripped Matrix (S6)
Stratifie	d Layers (A5) [Ario	l West only]	Depleted	Dark Surface	(F7)	Test indicators (NRCS v7):
Deplete	d Below Dark Surf	ace (A11)	🗌 Redox De	pressions (F8	)	2 cm Muck (A10) [WMVC only]
Thick D	ark Surface (A12)		Vernal Pc	ols (F9) <i>[Arid</i>	West only]	Very Shallow Dark Surface (TF12)
Other (	explain below)		Meets C	CC or LCP	hydric soil crit	eria? 🗌 Yes 🗸 No
Comments.	: Though sample	e point had re	dox, it is less tha	an 2% and the	erefore does no	ot meet the Redox Dark
Surface(F6) criteria						

HYDROLOGY (indicators from Corps Regional Supplements, applicable to coastal California only)

	Primary indicators (only 1 needed to meet criteria	<u>a):</u>	
	Surface water (A1) Depth (in.):		Stunted or stressed plants (D1) [WMVC only]
	High water table (A2) Depth (in.):		Secondary indicators (need 2+ to meet criteria):
	Soil saturation (A3) Depth (in.):		] Water marks (B1) [Arid West riverine only]
	Water marks (B1) [if in Arid West: Nonriverine on	nly]	Sediment deposits (B2) [Arid West riverine only]
	Sediment deposits (B2) [if in Arid West: Nonriver	ine only]	Drift deposits (B3) [Arid West riverine only]
	Drift deposits (B3) [if in Arid West: Nonriverine or	nly]	Water-stained leaves (B9) [WMVC:MLRA 4B only]
	Algal mat or crust (B4) [WMVC only; see B12]		Drainage patterns (B10)
	Iron deposits (B5) [WMVC only]		Dry-season water table (C2)
	Surface soil cracks (B6)		] Thin muck surface (C7) [Arid West only]
	Inundation visible on aerial imagery (B7)		Crayfish burrows (C8) [Arid West only]
	Sparsely vegetated concave surface (B8) [WMVC	C only]	Saturation visible on aerial imagery (C9)
	Water-stained leaves (B9) [Arid West and MLRA	5 only]	Geomorphic position (D2) [WMVC only]
	Salt crust (B11)		Shallow aquitard (D3)
	Biotic Crust (B12) [Arid West only; see B4]		Frost-heave hummocks (D4) [WMVC only]
	Aquatic invertebrates (B13)		Raised ant mounds (D6) [WMVC only]
	Hydrogen sulfide odor (C1)		FAC-neutral test (D5) (Does not meet test)
	Oxidized rhizospheres (C3)		
	Presence of reduced iron (C4)	Other (expla	in below)
	Recent iron reduction in tilled soils (C6)	Meets CCC or	LCP wetland hydrology criteria? Ves No
Cor	mments: Sample point had no hydrologic indi	cators.	

### California Coastal Act Wetland Data Sheet

Project Name:	Midcoast Multi-Mo	odal Trail		County:	San Mateo	
City/Location:			LCP (if ap	oplicable): San Mate	0	
Applicant/Owner:	City of San Mateo	)			A (Western Mts., Valley, and Coast	[WMVC])
WRA Investigator(s):	Rhiannon k	Korhummel	LRR	C (Arid West)	/	
Date:	8/13/2015				SAMPLE POINT ID:	SP3
				HABITAT	······	
CCC/LCP WETLAND	DETERMINATION					
Meets CCC or LCP v	egetation criteria? 🗹	] Ye: No	Sample po	int located in	side central coast riparian sci	rub
Meets CCC or LCP h	ydric soil criteria?	] Yeş√ No	(willow thic	ket) adjacent	t to perennial stream within flo	oodplain
Meets CCC or LCP h	ydrology criteria?	] Yet√ No	terrace. Hy	/drophytic ve	getation indicator is present i	but
CCC/LCP WETLAND	)? 🗸	] Ye: No	hydric soils	and wetland	hydrology indicators are not	met.
<b>VEGETATION</b>						
*indicator status from th	e USFWS 1996 Nation	hal List of we	etland specie	S		
TREES - Plot size: 3	0x30	% Cover	Status*	Dominant?	Dominance Test:	
Salix lasiolepis		75	FACW	Yes		
					Total # of dominant	3
					species across all strata:	
	TOTAL	75.0		1	Total # of dominants that	
5	0% of stratum cover =	37.5	20% =	15.0	are hydrophytic (status	3
SAPLING/SHRUBS -	Plot size: 30x30	% Cover	Status*	Dominant?	of OBL, FACW, or FAC):	J.
Salix lasiolepis		5	FACW	Yes		
					Percentage of dominants	100%
					that are hydrophytic:	
					[Meets dominance test	t if >50%]
	TOTAL	5.0		1		
5	0% of stratum cover =	2.5	20% =	1.0	<u>Prevalence Index:</u>	
HERBACEOUS - Plot	t size: 10x10	% Cover	Status*	Dominant?		
Rubus ursinus		55	FAC	Yes	Total % cover of species	
Urtica diocia		5	FAC	No	across all strata:	
Scirpus microcarpus		5	OBL	No	OBL: <u>5</u> x 1 =	5
Juncus effusus		2	FACW	No	FACW 82 x 2 =	164
					FAC: <u>60</u> x 3 =	180
					FACU: 0 x 4 =	
					UPL: <u>0</u> x 5 =	
					Total: <u>147</u>	349
					(A)	(B)
						2.37
					Prevalence Index (B/A) =	to tige
	TOTAL	67.0		4	[Hydrophytic veget	tation
		07.0	6.001		$a orninant if B/A \leq 1$	3.UJ
5	0% of stratum cover =	33.5	20% =	13.4		

Meets CCC or LCP hydrophytic vegetation criteria? 
Ves No Comments: Bareground observed with 5% thatch. Sample point was dominated by FAC vegetation and meets

Project Name:        SP3									
<b>SOILS</b> Slope (%): 0-3			S	oil map unit:	Denison clay lo	am, nearly level, imperfectly drained			
SOII	L PROF	FILE							
D	epth	Matrix Color	Redox Color	% and contrast	Redox type	Texture	Comments		
0-8		10YR 2/1	n/a			sandy loam			
	All soils	<u>:</u>		Loamy and clayey soils only: Sandy soils only:					
	Histosol	(A1)		Loamy M	」Sandy Mucky Mineral (S1)				
	Histic E	pipedon (A2)		Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2)			Sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4)		
	Black H	istic (A3)		Depleted Matrix (F3)			Sandy Redox (S5)		
	Hydroge	en Sulfide (A4)		🗌 Redox Da	ark Surface (F6	6) [	Stripped Matrix (S6)		
	Stratifie	d Layers (A5) <i>[Ari</i> d	d West only]	Depleted Dark Surface (F7)			Test indicators (NRCS v7):		
	Deplete	d Below Dark Surf	ace (A11)	Redox De	Redox Depressions (F8)				
	Thick Da	ark Surface (A12)		Vernal Po	ools (F9) <i>[Arid</i>	West only]	Very Shallow Dark Surface (TF12)		
	□ Other (explain below) Meets CCC or LCP hydric soil criteria? □ Yes ✓ No								
Con	Comments: A restrictive root layer was present at approximately 8 inches. Sample point does not meet hydric soil								
indic	cators.								

HYDROLOGY (indicators from Corps Regional Supplements, applicable to coastal California only)

	Primary indicators (only 1 needed to meet criteria):		
	Surface water (A1) Depth (in.):		Stunted or stressed plants (D1) [WMVC only]
	High water table (A2) Depth (in.):		Secondary indicators (need 2+ to meet criteria):
	Soil saturation (A3) Depth (in.):		Water marks (B1) [Arid West riverine only]
	Water marks (B1) [if in Arid West: Nonriverine only]		Sediment deposits (B2) [Arid West riverine only]
	Sediment deposits (B2) [if in Arid West: Nonriverine or	nly]	Drift deposits (B3) [Arid West riverine only]
	Drift deposits (B3) [if in Arid West: Nonriverine only]		Water-stained leaves (B9) [WMVC:MLRA 4B only]
	Algal mat or crust (B4) [WMVC only; see B12]		Drainage patterns (B10)
	Iron deposits (B5) [WMVC only]		Dry-season water table (C2)
	Surface soil cracks (B6)		Thin muck surface (C7) [Arid West only]
	Inundation visible on aerial imagery (B7)		Crayfish burrows (C8) [Arid West only]
	Sparsely vegetated concave surface (B8) [WMVC only	/]	Saturation visible on aerial imagery (C9)
	Water-stained leaves (B9) [Arid West and MLRA 5 on]	ly] 🗌	Geomorphic position (D2) [WMVC only]
	Salt crust (B11)		Shallow aquitard (D3)
	Biotic Crust (B12) [Arid West only; see B4]		Frost-heave hummocks (D4) [WMVC only]
	Aquatic invertebrates (B13)		Raised ant mounds (D6) [WMVC only]
	Hydrogen sulfide odor (C1)		FAC-neutral test (D5) (Does not meet test)
	Oxidized rhizospheres (C3)		
	Presence of reduced iron (C4)	Other (explai	n below)
	Recent iron reduction in tilled soils (C6)	ets CCC or I	-CP wetland hydrology criteria? Ves No
Cor	mments: Sample point had no indicators of wetlan	nd hydrology	

Project Name:					Sample Point ID:SP4			
Project Name: Midcoast Multi-Modal Trail				County:	County: San Mateo			
City/Location: El Granada				LCP (if ap	plicable): San Mate	0		
Applicant/Owner:	City of San Mateo	)			A (Western Mts., Valley, and Coast	[WMVC])		
WRA Investigator(s):	Stephanie Freed, F	Rhiannon k	Korhummel		C (Arid West)			
Date:	8/13/2015				SAMPLE POINT ID:	SP4		
				HABITAT	:			
CCC/LCP WETLAND	DETERMINATION							
Meets CCC or LCP v	egetation criteria? 🗹	] Ye: No	Sample po	int located in	small swale that drains into o	central		
Meets CCC or LCP h	ydric soil criteria?	] Yes√ No	coast ripar	ian scrub (will	low thicket). Hydrophytic ve	getation		
Meets CCC or LCP h	ydrology criteria?	] Ye√ No	indicator is	present but h	nydric soils and wetland hydr	rology		
CCC/LCP WETLAND	)? \[\]	Ye Vo	indicators a	are absent.				
VEGETATION								
*indicator status from th	ne USFWS 1996 Nation	nal List of we	etland specie	S				
TREES - Plot size:		% Cover	Status*	Dominant?	Dominance Test:			
n/a								
					Total # of dominant	4		
					species across all strata:	-		
	TOTAL				Total # of dominants that			
5	50% of stratum cover =		20% =		are hydrophytic (status	3		
SAPLING/SHRUBS -	Plot size:	% Cover	Status*	Dominant?	of OBL, FACW, or FAC):	0		
Salix lasiolepis		5	FACW	Yes				
					Percentage of dominants	75%		
					that are hydrophytic:			
					[Meets dominance tes	t if >50%]		
	TOTAL	5.0		1				
5	50% of stratum cover =	2.5	20% =	1.0	<u>Prevalence Index:</u>			
HERBACEOUS - Plot	t size:	% Cover	Status*	Dominant?				
Juncus patens		35	FACW	Yes	Total % cover of species			
Juncus occidentalis	,	20	FACW	Yes				
Helmentohteca echio	des	20	FACU	Yes	OBL: x 1 =	- 100		
Juncus effusus		5	FACW	No	$FACW = \frac{65}{2} \times 2 =$	130		
Rubus ursinus		5	FAC	No	FAC: $5 \times 3 =$	15		
Rumex crispus		trace	FAC	No	FACU: 20 x 4 =	80		
					UPL:X 5 =			
					Tatalı 00	225		
					10tal: <u>90</u>	(B)		
					(^)	(5)		
					Provalance Index (P/A)	2.50		
					[Hudronbutio years	tation		
	τοται	85.0		3	l ryuropriyuc vege dominant if R/Δ <	3 01		
L	50% of stratum cover –	42.5	20% -	17.0		0.0]		

No

 
 Meets CCC or LCP hydrophytic vegetation criteria?
 Yes

 Comments:
 Bareground observed with 5% thatch.
 Sample point was dominated by FACW vegetation, meeting
 Dominance test and PI test, therefore meets hydrophytic vegetation indicators. Plot size needed to be somewhat linear to stay within the wetland.

## California Coastal Act Wetland Data Sheet

Slope (%):	0-3	S	oil map unit:	Denis	on loam, nearly level	
SOIL PROFILE						
Matrix Color	Redox Color	% and contrast	Redox type	Texture	Comments	
10YR 2/1	n/a			sandy loam	small mineral pieces give a gritty texture	
<u>.</u>		<u>Loamy an</u>	nd clayey soils	<u>only:</u>	Sandy soils only:	
l (A1)		🗌 Loamy Mi	ucky Mineral (I	F1)	Sandy Mucky Mineral (S1)	
pipedon (A2)		🗌 Loamy GI	eyed Matrix (F	2)	Sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4)	
istic (A3)		Depleted	Matrix (F3)		Sandy Redox (S5)	
en Sulfide (A4)		🗌 Redox Da	ark Surface (F6	6)	Stripped Matrix (S6)	
d Layers (A5) [Ario	l West only]	Depleted	Dark Surface	(F7)	Test indicators (NRCS v7):	
d Below Dark Surf	ace (A11)	🗌 Redox De	pressions (F8	)	2 cm Muck (A10) <i>[WMVC only]</i>	
ark Surface (A12)		Vernal Po	ols (F9) <i>[Arid</i>	West only]	Very Shallow Dark Surface (TF12)	
explain below)		Meets C	CC or LCP	hydric soil crit	eria? 🗌 Yes 🗸 No	
Comments: Sample point had no hydric soil indicators. Redox was absent.						
	Slope (%): FILE Matrix Color 10YR 2/1 10YR 2/1 (A1) pipedon (A2) istic (A3) en Sulfide (A4) d Layers (A5) [Aric d Below Dark Surfi ark Surface (A12) explain below) : Sample point h	Slope (%): 0-3  ILE  Matrix Color Redox Color 10YR 2/1 n/a  INA INA INA INA INA INA INA INA INA IN	Slope (%):       0-3       Same         ILE       Matrix Color       Redox Color       % and contrast         10YR 2/1       n/a	Slope (%):       0-3       Soil map unit:         FILE       Matrix Color       Redox Color       % and contrast       Redox type         10YR 2/1       n/a	Slope (%):       0-3       Soil map unit:       Denis         FILE       Matrix Color       Redox Color % and contrast       Redox type       Texture         10YR 2/1       n/a       sandy loam       sandy loam         10YR 2/1       n/a       sandy loam         10YR 2/1       Loamy and clayey soils only:       sandy loam         10YR 2/1       Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1)       sandy loam         10YR 2/1       Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2)       sitic (A3)         10YR 2/1       Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F3)       sandy loam         10YR 2/1       Depleted Dark Surface (F6)       sandy loam         10YR 2/1       Depleted Dark Surface (F7)       sandy loam       sandy loam	

HYDROLOGY (indicators from Corps Regional Supplements, applicable to coastal California only)

	Primary indicators (only 1 ne	eeded to meet criteria	<u>ı):</u>		
	Surface water (A1)	Depth (in.):			Stunted or stressed plants (D1) [WMVC only]
	High water table (A2)	Depth (in.):			Secondary indicators (need 2+ to meet criteria):
	Soil saturation (A3)	Depth (in.):			Water marks (B1) [Arid West riverine only]
	Water marks (B1) [if in Arid	West: Nonriverine on	ly]		Sediment deposits (B2) [Arid West riverine only]
	Sediment deposits (B2) [if in	n Arid West: Nonriveri	ne only]		Drift deposits (B3) [Arid West riverine only]
	Drift deposits (B3) [if in Arid	West: Nonriverine on	ily]		Water-stained leaves (B9) [WMVC:MLRA 4B only]
	Algal mat or crust (B4) [WM	VC only; see B12]			Drainage patterns (B10)
	Iron deposits (B5) [WMVC o	only]			Dry-season water table (C2)
	Surface soil cracks (B6)				Thin muck surface (C7) [Arid West only]
	Inundation visible on aerial in	magery (B7)			Crayfish burrows (C8) [Arid West only]
	Sparsely vegetated concave	surface (B8) [WMVC	conly]		Saturation visible on aerial imagery (C9)
	Water-stained leaves (B9) [A	Arid West and MLRA	5 only]		Geomorphic position (D2) [WMVC only]
	Salt crust (B11)				Shallow aquitard (D3)
	Biotic Crust (B12) [Arid Wes	st only; see B4]			Frost-heave hummocks (D4) [WMVC only]
	Aquatic invertebrates (B13)				Raised ant mounds (D6) [WMVC only]
	Hydrogen sulfide odor (C1)				FAC-neutral test (D5) (Does not meet test)
	Oxidized rhizospheres (C3)				
	Presence of reduced iron (C	;4)	Other (ex	plai	n below)
	Recent iron reduction in tille	d soils (C6)	Meets CCC	or l	LCP wetland hydrology criteria?  Yes No
Cor	nments: Sample point had	d no indicators of w	etland hydrolo	ogy	

### California Coastal Act Wetland Data Sheet

Project Name:	Midcoast Multi-Mo	odal Trail		County:	San Mateo	
City/Location:	El Granada			LCP (if ap	plicable): San Mate	0
Applicant/Owner:	City of San Mater	)			A (Western Mts., Valley, and Coast	[WMVC])
WRA Investigator(s):	Stephanie Freed, F	Rhiannon k	Korhummel		C (Arid West)	[])
Date:	8/13/2015			_	SAMPLE POINT ID:	SP5
				HABITAT	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
CCC/LCP WETLAND	DETERMINATION					
Meets CCC or LCP v	egetation criteria?	] Ye:√ No	Sample po	int located in	field north of swale (SP4), H	ighway 1
Meets CCC or LCP h	ydric soil criteria?	] Yes√ No	and west o	f central coas	t riparian scrub (willow thicke	et). No
Meets CCC or LCP h	ydrology criteria?	] Ye√ No	wetland inc	licators prese	ent.	
CCC/LCP WETLAND	)? [	] Ye√ No	)			
<b>VEGETATION</b>						
*indicator status from th	ne USFWS 1996 Nation	nal List of we	etland specie	S		
TREES - Plot size:		% Cover	Status*	Dominant?	<u>Dominance Test:</u>	
n/a						
					Total # of dominant	2
					species across all strata:	
			0.00/		I otal # of dominants that	
	0% of stratum cover =	0/ 0	20% =	Destructo	are hydrophytic (status	1
SAPLING/SHRUBS -	Plot size:	% Cover	Status	Dominant?	of OBL, FACVV, of FAC):	
n/a						
					Percentage of dominants	50%
					that are hydrophytic:	+ if > E00/1
	ΤΟΤΑΙ				Imeets dominance test	[    >50%]
5			20%		Brovalanco Indov:	
	t sizo:	% Cover	= %02 Status*	Dominant2	Flevalence muex.	
Rubus ursinus	1 3126.	30	FAC	Yes	Total % cover of species	
Achillea millifolia		25	FACU	Yes	across all strata:	
Holcus lanatus		15	FAC	No	OBL · x 1 =	
Equisetum arvense		5	FAC	No	FACW: x 2 =	
Raphanus sativus		5	FACU	No	FAC: 50 x 3 =	150
Helmenthotheca echi	iodes	5	FACU	No	FACU: $35 \times 4 =$	140
		-			UPL: x 5 =	
					Total: 85	290
					(A)	(B)
						2.44
					Prevalence Index (B/A) =	3.41
					[Hydrophytic vege	tation
	TOTAL	85.0		2	dominant if $B/A \leq$	3.0]
5	0% of stratum cover =	42.5	20% =	17.0		
		Meets CO	CC or LCP	hydrophytic	vegetation criteria?	Yes 🗸 No

*Comments:* Bareground observed with 5% thatch. Sample point was dominated by FAC and FACU plants, therefore does not meet Dominance test or PI. Hydrophytic vegetation is not present.

Project Na	me:	Sample P	oint ID:SP5					
<u>SOILS</u>	Slope (%):	0-3	S	oil map unit:	Denis	son loam, nearly level		
SOIL PROP	FILE							
Depth	Matrix Color	Redox Color	% and contrast	Redox type	Texture	Comments		
0-4	10YR 2/1	n/a			sandy loam	small mineral pieces give gritty texture		
4+	restrictive							
<u>All soils</u>	<u></u>		<u>Loamy an</u>	nd clayey soils	<u>only:</u>	<u>Sandy soils only:</u>		
Histoso	l (A1)		Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1)			Sandy Mucky Mineral (S1)		
Histic E	pipedon (A2)		Loamy GI	eyed Matrix (F	2)	Sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4)		
Black H	listic (A3)		Depleted	Matrix (F3)		Sandy Redox (S5)		
Hydroge	en Sulfide (A4)		Redox Da	rk Surface (F6	6)	Stripped Matrix (S6)		
Stratifie	d Layers (A5) [Ario	d West only]	Depleted Dark Surface (F7)			Test indicators (NRCS v7):		
Deplete	d Below Dark Surf	ace (A11)	Redox Depressions (F8)			2 cm Muck (A10) [WMVC only]		
Thick D	ark Surface (A12)		Vernal Po	ols (F9) <i>[Arid</i>	West only]	Very Shallow Dark Surface (TF12)		
Other (	□ Other (explain below)       Meets CCC or LCP hydric soil criteria?       □ Yes □ No							
Comments	: Sample point h	nad a restrictiv	e layer of compa	acted soil at a	approximately 4	inches. Sample point had		
no indicato	rs of hydric soils.							

HYDROLOGY (indicators from Corps Regional Supplements, applicable to coastal California only)

	Primary indicators (only 1 needed to meet criteria,	<u>):</u>		
	Surface water (A1) Depth (in.):			Stunted or stressed plants (D1) [WMVC only]
	High water table (A2) Depth (in.):			Secondary indicators (need 2+ to meet criteria):
	Soil saturation (A3) Depth (in.):			Water marks (B1) [Arid West riverine only]
	Water marks (B1) [if in Arid West: Nonriverine onl	y] [		Sediment deposits (B2) [Arid West riverine only]
	Sediment deposits (B2) [if in Arid West: Nonriverin	ne only]		Drift deposits (B3) [Arid West riverine only]
	Drift deposits (B3) [if in Arid West: Nonriverine on	<i>[v]</i>		Water-stained leaves (B9) [WMVC:MLRA 4B only]
	Algal mat or crust (B4) [WMVC only; see B12]			Drainage patterns (B10)
	Iron deposits (B5) [WMVC only]			Dry-season water table (C2)
	Surface soil cracks (B6)			Thin muck surface (C7) [Arid West only]
	Inundation visible on aerial imagery (B7)			Crayfish burrows (C8) [Arid West only]
	Sparsely vegetated concave surface (B8) [WMVC	only]		Saturation visible on aerial imagery (C9)
	Water-stained leaves (B9) [Arid West and MLRA	5 only]		Geomorphic position (D2) [WMVC only]
	Salt crust (B11)			Shallow aquitard (D3)
	Biotic Crust (B12) [Arid West only; see B4]			Frost-heave hummocks (D4) [WMVC only]
	Aquatic invertebrates (B13)			Raised ant mounds (D6) [WMVC only]
	Hydrogen sulfide odor (C1)			FAC-neutral test (D5) (Does not meet test)
	Oxidized rhizospheres (C3)			
	Presence of reduced iron (C4)	Other (expl	laiı	n below)
	Recent iron reduction in tilled soils (C6)	Meets CCC o	r L	-CP wetland hydrology criteria? Ves No
Cor	mments: Sample point had no hydrologic indic	cators.		

Project Name:				Sa	ample Point ID:	SP6_	
Project Name:	odal Trail		County:	San M	/lateo		
City/Location:			LCP (if ap	oplicable):	San Mate	0	
Applicant/Owner:	City of San Mateo	)			A (Western Mts., Valley,	and Coast	[WMVC])
WRA Investigator(s):	Stephanie Freed, F	Rhiannon k	Korhummel		C (Arid West)		/
Date:	8/13/2015			-	SAMPLE POINT II	D:	SP6
				HABITAT	:		
CCC/LCP WETLAND	<b>DETERMINATION</b>	_					
Meets CCC or LCP v	egetation criteria?	] Ye√ No	Sample po	int located in	a slight depressiona	al area no	orth of
Meets CCC or LCP h	ydric soil criteria?	] Yeş√ No	upland field	d (SP5). No v	vetland indicators p	resent.	
Meets CCC or LCP h	ydrology criteria?	] Ye:√ No	)				
CCC/LCP WETLAND	D?	] Ye√ No	)				
VEGETATION							
*indicator status from th	ne USFWS 1996 Nation	nal List of we	etland specie	S			
TREES - Plot size:		% Cover	Status*	Dominant?	Dominance Test.	- -	
n/a							
					Total # of domina	ant	2
					species across a	II strata:	
	TOTAL				Tatal Water Landa		
			0.00/		I Otal # of domina	ants that	
	Diet size:	0/ Cover	20% =	Dominant2	are nyaropnytic (	STATUS	1
SAPLING/SHRUBS -	Piol Size.	% Cover	Status	Dominant?	OF OBL, FACW, C	JI FAC).	
1Va					Percentage of do	minante	
					that are hydrophy	vininants	50%
					Meets domin	ance tes	t if >50%1
	TOTAL				[mooto domm		
5	50% of stratum cover =		20% =		Prevalence Index	 x:	
HERBACEOUS - Plo	t size:	% Cover	Status*	Dominant?		_	
Carex hendersonii		40	FAC	Yes	Total % cover of sp	pecies	
Helmenthotheca echi	iodes	30	FACU	Yes	across all strata:		
Cyperus eragrostis		15	FACW	No	OBL:	x 1 =	
Juncus patens		5	FACW	No	FACW 25	x 2 =	50
Juncus effusus		5	FACW	No	FAC: 40	x 3 =	120
Symphyotrichum chil	ense	trace	FAC	No	FACU: 30	x 4 =	120
					UPL:	x 5 =	
					Total: 95		290
					(A)		(B)
					Describer 1		3.05
					Prevalence Index	( (B/A) =	totion
	ΤΟΤΛΙ	05.0		2	[Hyaroph dominant	yüc vege ⊧if ₽/∧ <	2 01
<i>_</i> _		47.5	200/	10.0	uominam		5.0]
5	0.70 of stratuin cover =	47.0	20% =	19.0			

 Meets CCC or LCP hydrophytic vegetation criteria?
 Yes
 No

 Comments:
 Sample point is dominated by FAC and FACU species therefore does not meet Dominance test or PI and is not considered hydrophytic vegetation.
 No

## California Coastal Act Wetland Data Sheet

<u>SOILS</u>	Slope (%):	0-3	Soil map unit:		Denison loam, nearly level	
SOIL PROP	FILE					
Depth	Matrix Color	Redox Color	% and contrast	Redox type	Texture	Comments
0-4	10YR 2/1	n/a			sandy loam	small but visible mineral particles give gritty texture
4+	restrictive					
<u>All soils</u>	<u>v</u>		<u>Loamy ar</u>	nd clayey soils	<u>only:</u>	Sandy soils only:
Histoso	l (A1)		🗌 Loamy Mi	ucky Mineral (F	=1)	Sandy Mucky Mineral (S1)
Histic E	pipedon (A2)		🗌 Loamy Gl	eyed Matrix (F	2)	Sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4)
Black H	listic (A3)		Depleted	Matrix (F3)		Sandy Redox (S5)
Hydroge	en Sulfide (A4)		🗌 Redox Da	ark Surface (F6	6)	Stripped Matrix (S6)
Stratifie	d Layers (A5) [Ario	d West only]	Depleted Dark Surface (F7)			Test indicators (NRCS v7):
Deplete	d Below Dark Surf	ace (A11)	🗌 Redox De	pressions (F8	)	2 cm Muck (A10) [WMVC only]
Thick D	ark Surface (A12)		Vernal Po	ols (F9) <i>[Arid</i>	West only]	Very Shallow Dark Surface (TF12)
Other (	explain below)		Meets C	CC or LCP	hydric soil crit	eria? 🗌 Yes 🗸 No
Comments	: Sample point c	loes not meet	any hydric soil i	ndicators. Co	ompacted soil a	t approximately 4 inches
created a restrictive layer.						

HYDROLOGY (indicators from Corps Regional Supplements, applicable to coastal California only)

Primary indicators (only 1 needed to meet criteria):	
Surface water (A1) Depth (in.):	Stunted or stressed plants (D1) [WMVC only]
High water table (A2) Depth (in.):	Secondary indicators (need 2+ to meet criteria):
Soil saturation (A3)	Water marks (B1) [Arid West riverine only]
Water marks (B1) [if in Arid West: Nonriverine only]	Sediment deposits (B2) [Arid West riverine only]
Sediment deposits (B2) [if in Arid West: Nonriverine only]	Drift deposits (B3) [Arid West riverine only]
Drift deposits (B3) [if in Arid West: Nonriverine only]	Water-stained leaves (B9) [WMVC:MLRA 4B only]
Algal mat or crust (B4) [WMVC only; see B12]	Drainage patterns (B10)
Iron deposits (B5) [WMVC only]	Dry-season water table (C2)
Surface soil cracks (B6)	Thin muck surface (C7) [Arid West only]
Inundation visible on aerial imagery (B7)	Crayfish burrows (C8) [Arid West only]
Sparsely vegetated concave surface (B8) [WMVC only]	Saturation visible on aerial imagery (C9)
Water-stained leaves (B9) [Arid West and MLRA 5 only]	Geomorphic position (D2) [WMVC only]
Salt crust (B11)	Shallow aquitard (D3)
Biotic Crust (B12) [Arid West only; see B4]	Frost-heave hummocks (D4) [WMVC only]
Aquatic invertebrates (B13)	Raised ant mounds (D6) [WMVC only]
Hydrogen sulfide odor (C1)	□ FAC-neutral test (D5) □ (Does not meet test)
Oxidized rhizospheres (C3)	
Presence of reduced iron (C4)     Othe	ər (explain below)
Recent iron reduction in tilled soils (C6)	CCC or LCP wetland hydrology criteria? 🗌 Yes 🗸 No
Comments: Some vegetation was lying down; possible e	vidence of drainage patterns (B10), otherwise, sample
point does not meet any hydrologic indicators.	

Appendix D – Representative Site Photographs



Unnamed perennial stream inside central coast riparian scrub dominated by arroyo willow (*Salix lasiolepis*, FACW).



Representative soil profile from SP3..



Interior of central coast riparian scrub dominated by arroyo willow (*Salix lasiolepis*, FACW) with SP3.



Exterior of central coast riparian scrub dominated by arroyo willow (*Salix lasiolepis*, FACW).





Henderson's sedge (*Carex hendersonii*, FAC) observed at SP6.



Overall landscape of sample points 4-6.



Bristly ox-tongue (*Helminthotheca echioides*, FACU) was characteristically present around and within sample points 4-6.



Typical soils profile observed throughout sample points 4-6.





California blackberry (*Rubus ursinus*, FAC) upland between SP4 and SP6.



Bristly ox-tongue was closely associated with the spreading rush swale (SP5).



Spreading rush (Juncus patens, FACW) swale (SP4).



Cement culverts in Arroyo de en Medio at Highway 1.





Creek bed of Arroyo de en Medio within the Study Area.



Representative soil sample upland of Arroyo de en Medio.



Looking north into non-native riparian woodland that is associated with Arroyo de en Medio.



Manmade ditch at north end of Study Area.





Area of non-native annual grassland with dominant species including Italian ryegrass (*Festuca perennis*, FAC) (SP2).



Manmade ditch running down to Highway 1.



.

APPENDIX B: AB52 Consultation Letters
Alan Leventhal Muwekma Ohlone Tribal Historian

Subject: Notification of Proposed Project Subject to CEQA Review within the Geographic Area of the Muwekma Ohlone Tribe pursuant to the provision of Assembly Bill 52 (AB52).

Dear Mr. Leventhal:

Pursuant to the provisions of AB 52, the County of San Mateo, as Lead Agency for the proposed Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project (proposed Project), described in Exhibit A to this letter, is hereby notifying the Muwekma Ohlone Tribe of the proposed Project to seek input and to provide any information or concerns regarding the potential for any tribal cultural resources (TCR), as defined by AB 52.

A TCR is defined under AB 52 as a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of size and scope, sacred place, and object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe that are either included or eligible for inclusion in the California Register of Historic Resources or included in a local register of historical resources, or if the County of San Mateo, acting as the Lead Agency, supported by substantial evidence, chooses at its discretion to treat the resource as a TCR.<sup>1</sup>

Although the Muwekma Ohlone Tribe has not formally requested to the County of San Mateo to be notified of proposed projects under pursuant to AB 52, the County, has identified the Muwekma Ohlone Tribe as potentially having knowledge of cultural resources in the project area as indicated by the Native American Heritage Commission on September 30, 2015. Please advise the County of San Mateo if you would like to request a consultation. Pursuant to AB 52, this request must be submitted, in writing and received by the County of San Mateo by August 10, 2016.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Public Resources Code (PRC) Sections 21074(a)(1) and (2).

Sincerely,

Mike Schaller, Senior Planner

## EXHIBIT A



Andrew Galvan The Ohlone Indian Tribe PO Box 3152 Fremont, California 94539

Subject: Notification of Proposed Project Subject to CEQA Review within the Geographic Area of the Ohlone Indian Tribe pursuant to the provision of Assembly Bill 52 (AB52).

Dear Mr. Galvan:

Pursuant to the provisions of AB 52, the County of San Mateo, as Lead Agency for the proposed Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project (proposed Project), described in Exhibit A to this letter, is hereby notifying the Ohlone Indian Tribe of the proposed Project to seek input and to provide any information or concerns regarding the potential for any tribal cultural resources (TCR), as defined by AB 52.

A TCR is defined under AB 52 as a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of size and scope, sacred place, and object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe that are either included or eligible for inclusion in the California Register of Historic Resources or included in a local register of historical resources, or if the County of San Mateo, acting as the Lead Agency, supported by substantial evidence, chooses at its discretion to treat the resource as a TCR.<sup>1</sup>

Although the Ohlone Indian Tribe has not formally requested to the County of San Mateo to be notified of proposed projects under pursuant to AB 52, the County, has identified the Ohlone Indian Tribe as potentially having knowledge of cultural resources in the project area as indicated by the Native American Heritage Commission on September 30, 2015. Please advise the County of San Mateo if you would like to request a consultation. Pursuant to AB 52, this request must be submitted, in writing and received by the County of San Mateo by August 10, 2016.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Public Resources Code (PRC) Sections 21074(a)(1) and (2).

Sincerely,

Mike Schaller, Senior Planner

## EXHIBIT A



Ann Marie Sayers Indian Canyon Mutsun Band of Costanoan PO Box 28 Hollister, California 95024

Subject: Notification of Proposed Project Subject to CEQA Review within the Geographic Area of the Indian Canyon Mutsun Band of Costanoan Tribe pursuant to the provision of Assembly Bill 52 (AB52).

Dear Mr. Ketchum:

Pursuant to the provisions of AB 52, the County of San Mateo, as Lead Agency for the proposed Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project (proposed Project), described in Exhibit A to this letter, is hereby notifying the Indian Canyon Mutsun Band of Costanoan Tribe of the proposed Project to seek input and to provide any information or concerns regarding the potential for any tribal cultural resources (TCR), as defined by AB 52.

A TCR is defined under AB 52 as a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of size and scope, sacred place, and object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe that are either included or eligible for inclusion in the California Register of Historic Resources or included in a local register of historical resources, or if the County of San Mateo, acting as the Lead Agency, supported by substantial evidence, chooses at its discretion to treat the resource as a TCR.<sup>1</sup>

Although the Indian Canyon Mutsun Band of Costanoan Tribe has not formally requested to the County of San Mateo to be notified of proposed projects under pursuant to AB 52, the County, has identified the Indian Canyon Mutsun Band of Costanoan Tribe as potentially having knowledge of cultural resources in the project area as indicated by the Native American Heritage Commission on September 30, 2015. Please advise the County of San Mateo if you would like to request a consultation. Pursuant to AB 52, this request must be submitted, in writing and received by the County of San Mateo by August 10, 2016.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Public Resources Code (PRC) Sections 21074(a)(1) and (2).

Sincerely,

Mike Schaller, Senior Planner

## EXHIBIT A



Edward Ketchum Amah Mutsun Tribal Band 35867 Yosemite Ave Davis. California 95616

Subject: Notification of Proposed Project Subject to CEQA Review within the Geographic Area of the Amah Mutsun Tribal Band pursuant to the provision of Assembly Bill 52 (AB52).

Dear Mr. Ketchum:

Pursuant to the provisions of AB 52, the County of San Mateo, as Lead Agency for the proposed Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project (proposed Project), described in Exhibit A to this letter, is hereby notifying the Amah Mutsun Tribal Band of the proposed Project to seek input and to provide any information or concerns regarding the potential for any tribal cultural resources (TCR), as defined by AB 52.

A TCR is defined under AB 52 as a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of size and scope, sacred place, and object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe that are either included or eligible for inclusion in the California Register of Historic Resources or included in a local register of historical resources, or if the County of San Mateo, acting as the Lead Agency, supported by substantial evidence, chooses at its discretion to treat the resource as a TCR.<sup>1</sup>

Although the Amah Mutsun Tribal Band has not formally requested to the County of San Mateo to be notified of proposed projects under pursuant to AB 52, the County, has identified the Amah Mutsun Tribal Band as potentially having knowledge of cultural resources in the project area as indicated by the Native American Heritage Commission on September 30, 2015. Please advise the County of San Mateo if you would like to request a consultation. Pursuant to AB 52, this request must be submitted, in writing and received by the County of San Mateo by August 10, 2016.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Mike Schaller, Senior Planner, at (650) 363-1849 or email at mschaller@smcgov.org.

Sincerely,

Mike Schaller, Senior Planner

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Public Resources Code (PRC) Sections 21074(a)(1) and (2).

Irene Zwierlein Amah/Mutsun Tribal Band 789 Canada Road Woodside, California 94062

# Subject: Notification of Proposed Project Subject to CEQA Review within the Geographic Area of the Amah Mutsun Tribal Band pursuant to the provision of Assembly Bill 52 (AB52).

Dear Mr. Ketchum:

Pursuant to the provisions of AB 52, the County of San Mateo, as Lead Agency for the proposed Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project (proposed Project), described in Exhibit A to this letter, is hereby notifying the Amah Mutsun Tribal Band of the proposed Project to seek input and to provide any information or concerns regarding the potential for any tribal cultural resources (TCR), as defined by AB 52.

A TCR is defined under AB 52 as a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of size and scope, sacred place, and object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe that are either included or eligible for inclusion in the California Register of Historic Resources or included in a local register of historical resources, or if the County of San Mateo, acting as the Lead Agency, supported by substantial evidence, chooses at its discretion to treat the resource as a TCR.<sup>1</sup>

Although the Amah Mutsun Tribal Band has not formally requested to the County of San Mateo to be notified of proposed projects under pursuant to AB 52, the County, has identified the Amah Mutsun Tribal Band as potentially having knowledge of cultural resources in the project area as indicated by the Native American Heritage Commission on September 30, 2015. Please advise the County of San Mateo if you would like to request a consultation. Pursuant to AB 52, this request must be submitted, in writing and received by the County of San Mateo by August 10, 2016.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Public Resources Code (PRC) Sections 21074(a)(1) and (2).

Sincerely,

Mike Schaller, Senior Planner

## EXHIBIT A



Ramona Garibay Trina Marine Ruano Family 30940 Watkins St Union City, California 94587

Subject: Notification of Proposed Project Subject to CEQA Review within the Geographic Area of the Ohlone/Costanoan Tribe pursuant to the provision of Assembly Bill 52 (AB52).

Dear Ms. Garibay:

Pursuant to the provisions of AB 52, the County of San Mateo, as Lead Agency for the proposed Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project (proposed Project), described in Exhibit A to this letter, is hereby notifying the Ohlone/Costanoan Tribe of the proposed Project to seek input and to provide any information or concerns regarding the potential for any tribal cultural resources (TCR), as defined by AB 52.

A TCR is defined under AB 52 as a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of size and scope, sacred place, and object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe that are either included or eligible for inclusion in the California Register of Historic Resources or included in a local register of historical resources, or if the County of San Mateo, acting as the Lead Agency, supported by substantial evidence, chooses at its discretion to treat the resource as a TCR.<sup>1</sup>

Although the Ohlone/Costanoan Tribe has not formally requested to the County of San Mateo to be notified of proposed projects under pursuant to AB 52, the County, has identified the Ohlone/Costanoan Tribe as potentially having knowledge of cultural resources in the project area as indicated by the Native American Heritage Commission on September 30, 2015. Please advise the County of San Mateo if you would like to request a consultation. Pursuant to AB 52, this request must be submitted, in writing and received by the County of San Mateo by August 10, 2016.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Public Resources Code (PRC) Sections 21074(a)(1) and (2).

Sincerely,

Mike Schaller, Senior Planner

## EXHIBIT A



Jakki Kehl 720 North 2nd Street Patterson, California 95363

Subject: Notification of Proposed Project Subject to CEQA Review within the Geographic Area of the Ohlone/Costanoan Tribe pursuant to the provision of Assembly Bill 52 (AB52).

Dear Ms. Kehl:

Pursuant to the provisions of AB 52, the County of San Mateo, as Lead Agency for the proposed Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project (proposed Project), described in Exhibit A to this letter, is hereby notifying the Ohlone/Costanoan Tribe of the proposed Project to seek input and to provide any information or concerns regarding the potential for any tribal cultural resources (TCR), as defined by AB 52.

A TCR is defined under AB 52 as a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of size and scope, sacred place, and object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe that are either included or eligible for inclusion in the California Register of Historic Resources or included in a local register of historical resources, or if the County of San Mateo, acting as the Lead Agency, supported by substantial evidence, chooses at its discretion to treat the resource as a TCR.<sup>1</sup>

Although the Ohlone/Costanoan Tribe has not formally requested to the County of San Mateo to be notified of proposed projects under pursuant to AB 52, the County, has identified the Ohlone/Costanoan Tribe as potentially having knowledge of cultural resources in the project area as indicated by the Native American Heritage Commission on September 30, 2015. Please advise the County of San Mateo if you would like to request a consultation. Pursuant to AB 52, this request must be submitted, in writing and received by the County of San Mateo by August 10, 2016.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Public Resources Code (PRC) Sections 21074(a)(1) and (2).

Sincerely,

Mike Schaller, Senior Planner

## EXHIBIT A



Ramona Garibay Trina Marine Ruano Family 30940 Watkins St Union City, California 94587

Subject: Notification of Proposed Project Subject to CEQA Review within the Geographic Area of the Ohlone/Costanoan Tribe pursuant to the provision of Assembly Bill 52 (AB52).

Dear Ms. Garibay:

Pursuant to the provisions of AB 52, the County of San Mateo, as Lead Agency for the proposed Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project (proposed Project), described in Exhibit A to this letter, is hereby notifying the Ohlone/Costanoan Tribe of the proposed Project to seek input and to provide any information or concerns regarding the potential for any tribal cultural resources (TCR), as defined by AB 52.

A TCR is defined under AB 52 as a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of size and scope, sacred place, and object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe that are either included or eligible for inclusion in the California Register of Historic Resources or included in a local register of historical resources, or if the County of San Mateo, acting as the Lead Agency, supported by substantial evidence, chooses at its discretion to treat the resource as a TCR.<sup>1</sup>

Although the Ohlone/Costanoan Tribe has not formally requested to the County of San Mateo to be notified of proposed projects under pursuant to AB 52, the County, has identified the Ohlone/Costanoan Tribe as potentially having knowledge of cultural resources in the project area as indicated by the Native American Heritage Commission on September 30, 2015. Please advise the County of San Mateo if you would like to request a consultation. Pursuant to AB 52, this request must be submitted, in writing and received by the County of San Mateo by August 10, 2016.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Public Resources Code (PRC) Sections 21074(a)(1) and (2).

Sincerely,

Mike Schaller, Senior Planner

## EXHIBIT A



Rosemary Cambra Muwekma Ohlone Indian Tribe of the SF Bay Area PO Box 360791 Milpitas, California 95036

Subject: Notification of Proposed Project Subject to CEQA Review within the Geographic Area of the Muwekma Ohlone Indian Tribe of the SF Bay Area pursuant to the provision of Assembly Bill 52 (AB52).

Dear Mr. Ketchum:

Pursuant to the provisions of AB 52, the County of San Mateo, as Lead Agency for the proposed Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project (proposed Project), described in Exhibit A to this letter, is hereby notifying the Muwekma Ohlone Indian Tribe of the SF Bay Area of the proposed Project to seek input and to provide any information or concerns regarding the potential for any tribal cultural resources (TCR), as defined by AB 52.

A TCR is defined under AB 52 as a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of size and scope, sacred place, and object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe that are either included or eligible for inclusion in the California Register of Historic Resources or included in a local register of historical resources, or if the County of San Mateo, acting as the Lead Agency, supported by substantial evidence, chooses at its discretion to treat the resource as a TCR.<sup>1</sup>

Although the Muwekma Ohlone Indian Tribe of the SF Bay Area has not formally requested to the County of San Mateo to be notified of proposed projects under pursuant to AB 52, the County, has identified the Muwekma Ohlone Indian Tribe of the SF Bay Area as potentially having knowledge of cultural resources in the project area as indicated by the Native American Heritage Commission on September 30, 2015. Please advise the County of San Mateo if you would like to request a consultation. Pursuant to AB 52, this request must be submitted, in writing and received by the County of San Mateo by August 10, 2016.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Public Resources Code (PRC) Sections 21074(a)(1) and (2).

Sincerely,

Mike Schaller, Senior Planner

## EXHIBIT A



Tony Cerda Costanoan Rumsen Cannel Tribe 244 E. First Street Pomona, CA 91 766

Subject: Notification of Proposed Project Subject to CEQA Review within the Geographic Area of the Costanoan Rumsen Cannel Tribe pursuant to the provision of Assembly Bill 52 (AB52).

Dear Mr. Ketchum:

Pursuant to the provisions of AB 52, the County of San Mateo, as Lead Agency for the proposed Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project (proposed Project), described in Exhibit A to this letter, is hereby notifying the Costanoan Rumsen Cannel Tribe of the proposed Project to seek input and to provide any information or concerns regarding the potential for any tribal cultural resources (TCR), as defined by AB 52.

A TCR is defined under AB 52 as a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of size and scope, sacred place, and object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe that are either included or eligible for inclusion in the California Register of Historic Resources or included in a local register of historical resources, or if the County of San Mateo, acting as the Lead Agency, supported by substantial evidence, chooses at its discretion to treat the resource as a TCR.<sup>1</sup>

Although the Costanoan Rumsen Cannel Tribe has not formally requested to the County of San Mateo to be notified of proposed projects under pursuant to AB 52, the County, has identified the Costanoan Rumsen Cannel Tribe as potentially having knowledge of cultural resources in the project area as indicated by the Native American Heritage Commission on September 30, 2015. Please advise the County of San Mateo if you would like to request a consultation. Pursuant to AB 52, this request must be submitted, in writing and received by the County of San Mateo by August 10, 2016.

 $<sup>^{1}</sup>$  Public Resources Code (PRC) Sections 21074(a)(1) and (2).

Sincerely,

Mike Schaller, Senior Planner

## EXHIBIT A



Valentin Lopez Amah Mutsun Tribal Band PO Box 5272 Galt, California 95632

Subject: Notification of Proposed Project Subject to CEQA Review within the Geographic Area of the Amah Mutsun Tribal Band pursuant to the provision of Assembly Bill 52 (AB52).

Dear Mr. Ketchum:

Pursuant to the provisions of AB 52, the County of San Mateo, as Lead Agency for the proposed Midcoast Multimodal Trail Project (proposed Project), described in Exhibit A to this letter, is hereby notifying the Amah Mutsun Tribal Band of the proposed Project to seek input and to provide any information or concerns regarding the potential for any tribal cultural resources (TCR), as defined by AB 52.

A TCR is defined under AB 52 as a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of size and scope, sacred place, and object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe that are either included or eligible for inclusion in the California Register of Historic Resources or included in a local register of historical resources, or if the County of San Mateo, acting as the Lead Agency, supported by substantial evidence, chooses at its discretion to treat the resource as a TCR.<sup>1</sup>

Although the Amah Mutsun Tribal Band has not formally requested to the County of San Mateo to be notified of proposed projects under pursuant to AB 52, the County, has identified the Amah Mutsun Tribal Band as potentially having knowledge of cultural resources in the project area as indicated by the Native American Heritage Commission on September 30, 2015. Please advise the County of San Mateo if you would like to request a consultation. Pursuant to AB 52, this request must be submitted, in writing and received by the County of San Mateo by August 10, 2016.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Public Resources Code (PRC) Sections 21074(a)(1) and (2).

Sincerely,

Mike Schaller, Senior Planner

## EXHIBIT A



# APPENDIX C

# NOISE AND VIBRATION DATA

.....

#### Highway 1 at Capistrano (El Granada) Existing Conditions

				POSTED						
				SPEED	LANE	DISTANCE	SITE		GRADE	
#	Roadway	Segment	ADT	LIMIT	DISTANCE	to Reciever	CONDITION	LANES	(%)	
1	Hwy 1	at Capistrano Rd	19,000	50	12	50	Soft	2U	0%	1
2			1,000	35	48	50	Soft	4D	0%	2
3			1,000	45	48	50	Soft	4D	0%	3
4			1,000	65	84	100	Soft	6D	0%	4
5			1,000	65	84	100	Soft	6D	0%	5
6			1,000	65	84	100	Soft	6D	0%	6
7			1,000	65	84	100	Soft	4D	0%	7
8			1,000	45	48	50	Soft	4D	0%	8
9			1,000	45	48	50	Soft	4D	0%	9
10			1,000	45	48	50	Soft	4D	0%	10
11			1,000	45	48	50	Soft	4D	0%	11
12			1,000	45	48	50	Soft	4D	0%	12
13			1,000	45	48	50	Soft	4D	0%	13
14			1,000	45	48	50	Soft	4D	0%	14
15			1,000	45	48	50	Soft	4D	0%	15
16			1,000	45	48	50	Soft	4D	0%	16
17			1,000	45	48	50	Soft	4D	0%	17
18			1,000	45	48	50	Soft	4D	0%	18
19			1,000	45	48	50	Soft	4D	0%	19
20			1,000	45	48	50	Soft	4D	0%	20
21			1,000	45	48	50	Soft	4D	0%	21
22			1,000	45	48	50	Soft	4D	0%	22

ROAD		LANE
CLASSIFICATION	SPEED	DISTANCE
2U	40	12
4U	40	36
4D	45	48
6D	45	84
2D	40	24

VEHICLE MIX INPUTS										
DAILY		HOURLY								
% A	97.42%	DAY	75.5%							
% MT	1.84%	EVENING	14.0%							
% HT	0.74%	NIGHT	10.5%							

Source: Riverside, County of, Department of Public Health, Office of Industrial Hygiene. 2009, November. For Determining and Mitigating Traffic Noise Impacts to Residential Structures. http://www.rivcoph.org/indhyg/services.html

ANALYST RAM

Riverside County Fleet Mix: Secondary, Collectors, or Smaller

-					
Vehicle	Overall %	Day (7 AM to	Evening (7	Night (10 PM	to 7 AM)
Auto	97%	73.60	13.60	10.22	
Medium Truck	2%	0.90	0.04	0.90	
Heavy Truck	1%	0.35	0.04	0.35	
		74.85	13.68	11.47	

Existing Conditions

#### Highway 1 at Capistrano (El Granada) NOISE CONTOURS RESULT SUMMARY TABLE

					N	oise I evel (d	BA)	DISTANCE	TO NOISE (	CONTOUR (FT.
								70	65	
			TRAFFIC	Distance to				dBA	dBA	60
#	ROADWAY	SEGMENT	VOLUMES	Receiver	Lea	Ldn	CNEL	CNEL	CNEL	dBA CNEL
1	Hwy 1	at Capistrano Rd	19,000	50	68.5	71.4	72.0	68	147	318
2	0	0	1,000	50	52.7	55.6	56.2	6	13	28
3	0	0	1,000	50	54.7	57.6	58.2	8	18	38
4	0	0	1,000	100	54.8	57.7	58.3	17	36	77
5	0	0	1,000	100	54.8	57.7	58.3	17	36	77
6	0	0	1,000	100	54.8	57.7	58.3	17	36	77
7	0	0	1,000	100	54.8	57.7	58.3	17	36	77
8	0	0	1,000	50	54.7	57.6	58.2	8	18	38
9	0	0	1,000	50	54.7	57.6	58.2	8	18	38
10	0	0	1,000	50	54.7	57.6	58.2	8	18	38
11	0	0	1,000	50	54.7	57.6	58.2	8	18	38
12	0	0	1,000	50	54.7	57.6	58.2	8	18	38
13	0	0	1,000	50	54.7	57.6	58.2	8	18	38
14	0	0	1,000	50	54.7	57.6	58.2	8	18	38
15	0	0	1,000	50	54.7	57.6	58.2	8	18	38
16	0	0	1,000	50	54.7	57.6	58.2	8	18	38
17	0	0	1,000	50	54.7	57.6	58.2	8	18	38
18	0	0	1,000	50	54.7	57.6	58.2	8	18	38
19	0	0	1,000	50	54.7	57.6	58.2	8	18	38
20	0	0	1,000	50	54.7	57.6	58.2	8	18	38
21	0	0	1,000	50	54.7	57.6	58.2	8	18	38
22	0	0	1,000	50	54.7	57.6	58.2	8	18	38
23	0	0	1,000	50	54.7	57.6	58.2	8	18	38
24	0	0	1,000	50	54.7	57.6	58.2	8	18	38
25	0	0	1,000	50	54.7	57.6	58.2	8	18	38
26	0	0	1,000	50	54.7	57.6	58.2	8	18	38
27	0	0	1,000	50	54.7	57.6	58.2	8	18	38
28	0	0	1,000	50	54.7	57.6	58.2	8	18	38
29	0	0	1,000	50	54.7	57.6	58.2	8	18	38
30	0	0	1,000	50	54.7	57.6	58.2	8	18	38

Scenario:Existing ConditionsRoadway:Hwy 1Segment:at Capistrano Rd

ROADWAY INPUTS	
ADT	19,000
SPEED (mph)	50
ROAD NEAR-FAR LN. DIST.	12
DISTANCE ROAD CL (ft)	50
SOFT/HARD CONDITIONS	Soft
GROUND ABSORPTION (α)	0.5
GRADE (%)	0%
LEFT VIEW	-90
RIGHT VIEW	90
Distance to Receiver	50

Project:	Highway 1 at	Capistrano (El G
Analyst:	RAM	
Date:	14-Mar-18	

VEHICLE MIX INPUTS										
DAILY		HOURLY								
% A	97.4%	DAY	75.5%							
% MT	1.8%	EVENING	14.0%							
% HT	0.7%	NIGHT	10.5%							

CALCULATION AREA									
		DAYTIME			EVENING		NIGHT		
	AUTOS	MT	HT	AUTOS	MT	HT	AUTOS	MT	HT
Vehicles per hour	1165	22	9	861	16	7	216	4	2
Speed in MPH	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	50	50
Left angle	-90	-90	-90	-90	-90	-90	-90	-90	-90
Right angle	90	90	90	90	90	90	90	90	90
Reference levels (dBA)	71.1	78.8	83.0	71.1	78.8	83.0	71.1	78.8	83.0
ADJUSTMENTS									
Flow	-1.6	-18.9	-22.8	-2.9	-20.2	-24.1	-9.0	-26.2	-30.2
Distance (reference)	-0.1	-0.1	-0.1	-0.1	-0.1	-0.1	-0.1	-0.1	-0.1
Distance (Propagation)	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Finite Roadway	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Barrier	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Grade	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
LEQ	69.4	59.9	60.1	68.1	58.6	58.8	62.1	52.5	52.8
VEHICULAR NOISE	DAY=	70.3	Leq	EVENING=	69.0	Leq	NIGHT=	63.0	Leq

RESULTS	FEET FROM CENTERLINE (dBA):				
NOISE LEVELS AT				Leq=	68.5
				Ldn=	71.4
				CNEL=	72.0
			70	65	60
NOISE CONTOUR:			70 dBA	65 dBA	60 dBA
ROAD CENTERLINE DISTANCE TO NOISE	CONTOUR (FEET):	Ldn:	62	134	289
		CNEL:	68	147	318

# Vibration Architectural Damage

CASE-BY-CASE CALCs												
PPVequip = PPVref	x (25/	97	)^1.5	enter distance of concern								
		1.518		enter reference vib level (below)								

PPVequip = 0.199 = PPV at indicated distance for that equipment type

#### DISTANCE REFERENCE TABLE

		FTA damage criterion, PPV (in/sec)						
		I. Reinforced- concrete, steel or timber	II. Engr'd concrete and masonry	III. Non- engr'd timber & masonry bldgs	IV. Bldgs extremely susceptible to vib'n damage			
Equipment Type	PPVref	0.5	0.3	0.2	0.12			
pile driver (upper)	1.518	52 feet	74 feet	97 feet	136 feet			
pile driver (typ)	0.644	30 feet	42 feet	54 feet	75 feet			
sonic driver (upper)	0.734	32 feet	45 feet	59 feet	82 feet			
sonic driver (typ)	0.170	<25	<25	<25	31 feet			
vib'y roller	0.210	<25	<25	26 feet	36 feet			
clam shovel drop	0.202	<25	<25	25 feet	35 feet			
hoe ram	0.089	<25	<25	<25	<25			
bulldozer, large	0.089	<25	<25	<25	<25			
caisson drilling	0.089	<25	<25	<25	<25			
loaded trucks	0.076	<25	<25	<25	<25			
jackhammer	0.035	<25	<25	<25	<25			
hydromill (rock)	0.017	<25	<25	<25	<25			
hydromill (soil)	0.008	<25	<25	<25	<25			
bulldozer, small	0.003	<25	<25	<25	<25			

# **Vibration Annoyance**

330

112

78

/25)

#### CASE-BY-CASE CALCs

Lv equip = Lv (25') - 30 log(

enter distance of concern enter reference vib level (below)

Lv equip =

= Lv at indicated distance for that equipment type

FTA annoyance criterion, PPV (in/sec)

#### DISTANCE REFERENCE TABLE

			Workshop	Office	Residential,	Residential,
			workshop	once	Daytime	Nighttime
Equipment Type	Lv ref 25'		90	84	78	72
pile driver (upper)	112		140 feet	210 feet	330 feet	520 feet
pile driver (typ)	104		75 feet	120 feet	180 feet	290 feet
sonic driver (upper)	105		80 feet	130 feet	200 feet	310 feet
sonic driver (typ)	93		32 feet	50 feet	80 feet	130 feet
vib'y roller	94		35 feet	55 feet	85 feet	140 feet
clam shovel drop	94		35 feet	55 feet	85 feet	140 feet
hoe ram	87		35 feet	32 feet	50 feet	80 feet
bulldozer, large	87		<25	32 feet	50 feet	80 feet
caisson drilling	87		<25	32 feet	50 feet	80 feet
loaded trucks	86		<25	30 feet	45 feet	75 feet
jackhammer	79		<25	<25	26 feet	43 feet
hydromill (rock)	75		<25	<25	<25	32 feet
hydromill (soil)	66		<25	<25	<25	<25
bulldozer, small	58		<25	<25	<25	<25



Suggested Construction Notification Area